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Unless the context requires otherwise, refereneakis annual report to "CenturyLink," "we," "ushd "our" refer to CenturyLink, Inc. and its
consolidated subsidiaries, including SAVVIS, Ind &s consolidated subsidiaries (referred to aav\8s") for periods on or after July 15, 2(
and Qwest Communications International Inc. andtdesolidated subsidiaries (referred to as "Qwegtt)periods on or after April 1, 2011.

PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are an integrated communications company engagaarily in providing an array of communicatioservices to our residential,
business, governmental and wholesale customersc@dumunications services include local and longatise, broadband, private line
(including special access), Multi-Protocol Labelighing ("MPLS"), data integration, managed hostfimgluding cloud hosting), colocation,
Ethernet, network access, public access, wirelédso services and other ancillary services. Wegesto maintain our customer relationships
by, among other things, bundling our service offfgsi to provide our customers with a complete affgof integrated communications servic

Based on our approximately 13.0 million total ascknes at December 31, 2013, we believe weharéhird largest wireline
telecommunications company in the United Statesopérate almost 75% of our total access lines itigres of Colorado, Arizona,
Washington, Florida, Minnesota, North Carolina, §ine, Utah, lowa, New Mexico, Missouri, and Nevalifde also provide local service in
portions of Idaho, Ohio, Wisconsin, Virginia, Tex&ennsylvania, Alabama, Montana, Nebraska, Indiariansas, Tennessee, Wyoming,
New Jersey, South Dakota, North Dakota, Kansasisiana, Michigan, South Carolina, lllinois, Geordiéississippi, Oklahoma, ar
California . In the portion of these 37 states veh&e have access lines, which we refer to as @at Bervice area, we are the incumbent local
telephone company.

At December 31, 2013 we served approximately 6l0amibroadband subscribers. We also operate 55 caiters throughout North
America, Europe and Asia. We define a data cerstang facility where we market, sell and delivehei colocation services, multi-tenant
managed services, or both.

We were incorporated under the laws of the Stateoafsiana in 1968. Our principal executive offiage located at 100 CenturyLink
Drive, Monroe, Louisiana 71203 and our telephonmimer is (318) 388-9000.

For a discussion of certain risks applicable tolmsiness, see "Risk Factors" in Iltem 1A of thisual report. The summary financial
information in this section should be read in cofion with, and is qualified by reference to, consolidated financial statements and notes
thereto in Item 8 and "Management's Discussionfamalysis of Financial Condition and Results of Giems" in Item 7 of this annual report.

Acquisitions
Acquisition of Savvis

On July 15, 2011, we acquired all of the outstagdiommon stock of Sawvvis, a provider of cloud hagtimnanaged hosting, colocation
and network services in domestic and internatiomadkets. We believe this acquisition enhanced bilityato provide information technology
services to our existing business customers andgitiened our ability to attract new business cansts. The aggregate consideration paid for
Savvis was $2.382 billion (determined in the mardescribed in Note 2-Acquisitions to our consolidated financial statetsen Item 8 of thi:
annual report), which consisted of converting estidire of Savvis common stock outstanding immedgiguedr to the acquisition into $30 per
share in cash and 0.2479 shares of CenturyLink camstock. Upon completing the acquisition, we @am $547 million to retire certain pre-
existing Savvis debt and accrued interest.




Table of Contents

Acquisition of Qwes

On April 1, 2011, we acquired all of the outstamgdaommon stock of Qwest, a provider of data, breadbvideo and voice services
nationwide and globally. We entered into this asijigin, among other things, to realize certaintsgiie benefits, including enhanced financial
and operational scale, market diversification anettaged combined networks. As of the acquisitite dQwest served approximately 9.0
million access lines and approximately 3.0 milllmoadband subscribers across 14 states. The atgysideration paid for Qwest was
$12.273 billion (determined in the manner descrilbelote 2—Acquisitions to our consolidated final@tatements in Item 8 of this annual
report), which consisted of converting each sh&@west common stock outstanding immediately practhe acquisition into 0.1664 shares of
CenturyLink common stock, with cash paid in lieUraictional shares. We assumed approximately $4ifti@n of long-term debt in connectic
with our acquisition of Qwest.

Other Acquisitions

During 2013, we acquired two technology companessi60 million in cash to expand and strengthenpttoduct offerings of our data
hosting operations. For additional information, Bege 2—Acquisitions to our consolidated finanatdtements in Item 8 of this annual report

Impact of Recent Acquisition

Prior to our acquisition of Embarq Corporation (“Eang”) in 2009, we provided traditional voice amdelrnet services mainly to
residential customers in predominantly rural amead small to mid-size cities in 25 states. As alted our 2009 Embarq acquisition and 2011
Qwest and Savvis acquisitions, we now (i) servilesdial and business customers in several majsr tities, including Denver, Colorado,
Phoenix, Arizona, Minneapolis - St. Paul, Minnes&aeattle, Washington, Portland, Oregon, Las Velgasada and Salt Lake City, Utah and
(ii) conduct international operations in severaidtions throughout Europe, Asia and Canada. Althalmost a quarter of the total square
miles located within the local service area of OU8. wireline operations is rural, over 95% of cesidential customers live in urban areas. In
addition, the portion of our aggregate revenueis/déifrom business, governmental and wholesalewness has increased substantially since
2009. For more information, see “Risk Factors—RRksating to our Recent Acquisitions” in Item 1Atbfs annual report.

Potential Acquisitions

We regularly evaluate the possibility of acquiramdditional assets in exchange for cash, secudtiesher properties, and at any given
time may be engaged in discussions or negotiatiegarding additional acquisitions. We generallynddannounce our acquisitions or
dispositions until we have entered into a prelimynar definitive agreement.

References to Acquired Business

In the discussion that follows, we refer to therémaental business activities that we now operaterasult of the Savvis acquisition and
the Qwest acquisition as "Legacy Savvis" and "Lgdawest", respectively. References to "Legacy Qghink", when used in reference to a
comparison of our consolidated results for the yeated December 31, 2011, mean the business wateggrior to the Qwest and Savvis
acquisitions.

Financial and Operational Highlights

The following table summarizes the results of aanmsolidated operations. Our operating results aeline operations of Savvis for
periods after July 15, 2011 and Qwest for peridts &pril 1, 2011.

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)

Statements of operations summary data:

Operating revenues $ 18,09: 18,37¢ 15,35
Operating expenses 16,64: 15,66: 13,32¢
Operating income $ 1,45 2,71 2,02¢
Net (loss) income $ (239 777 578
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The following table summarizes certain selectedrial information from our consolidated balanceeth:

December 31,
2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)

Balance sheets summary data:

Total assets $ 51,78 53,94(
Total long-term deb® 20,96¢ 20,60t
Total stockholders' equity 17,19: 19,28¢

(1) Total long-term debt is the sum of currentumities of long-term debt and long-term debt on comsolidated balance sheets. For total obligatiess "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations—Future Contractual Obligatian Item 7 of this annual report.

The following table summarizes certain of our ofieral metrics:

As of December 31,

2013 2012@ 2011 @
(in thousands except for data centers, which are
actuals)
Operational metrics:
Total broadband subscribéts 5,991 5,851 5,65¢
Total access line¥ 13,00z 13,75 14,58
Total data centerd 55 54 51

(1) Broadband subscribers are customers that psechigh-speed Internet connection service thrthugjh existing telephone lines and fiber-optic eabland access lines
are lines reaching from the customers' premisascunnection with the public network.

(2) The prior year numbers have been adjusteniclade the operational metrics of our wholly owsedsidiary, El Paso County Telephone Company, whéthbeen
previously excluded. The increase (in thousanda)e® to including El Paso County Telephone Comfsanipadband subscribers and access lines, ialfedbove, is
approximately 3 and 3, respectively.

(3) Data centers are located throughout North AmeEcappe and Asi.

Substantially all of our long-lived assets are tedan the United States asdbstantially all of our revenues are from custeanhecated il
the United States. We estimate that less than 28tirofonsolidated revenue is derived from providiglgcommunications and data hosting
services outside the United States.

Operations
Segment:

During the first quarter of 2013, we announcedaxganization of our operating segments. Consequemt now report the following
four segments in our consolidated financial statgme

« Consumer.Consists generally of providing strategic and &ygaroducts and services to residential consun@us strategic products
and services offered to these customers includdmadband, wireless and video services, includingPrism TV services. Our
legacy services offered to these customers indlhuzid and long-distance service;

» Business Consists generally of providing strategic and tygaroducts and services to commercial, enterpgiedal and
governmental customers. Our strategic productssandces offered to these customers include ouafiline, broadband, Ethernet,
MPLS, Voice over Internet Protocol ("VolP"), andwerk management services. Our legacy serviceseagfto these customers
include local and long-distance service;
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» Wholesale.Consists generally of providing strategic and tggaroducts and services to other communicatioosigers. Our strateg
products and services offered to these customemnaimly private line (including special accesgglidated internet access, digital
subscriber line ("DSL") and MPLS. Our legacy seegioffered to these customers include the resalarafervices, the sale of
unbundled network elements ("UNEs") which allow aimolesale customers to use our network or a caatilboim of our network and
their own networks to provide voice and data se@wim their customers, lordistance and switched access services and othéces
including billing and collection, pole rental, flospace and database services; and

» Data hosting Consists primarily of providing colocation, manddesting and cloud hosting services to commereiatkrprise, glob.
and governmental customers.

The following tables shows the composition of awrenues by segment under our current segment cetgiion as of December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011 .

Years Ended December 31, Percent Change
2013 2012 2011 2013 vs 2012 2012 vs 2011

Percentage of revenue:

Consumer 33% 34% 35% (1)% ()%
Business 34% 33% 34% 1% (D%
Wholesale 2% 20% 22% — % (2%
Data hosting 7% 7% 4% — % 3%
Other operating revenues 6% 6% 5% — % 1%
Total 10C% 10C% 10C%

For additional information on our segment dataluding information on our certain centrally-managedets and expenses not reflectec
in our segment reports, see Note 13—Segment Infasm#o our consolidated financial statements &mit8 of this annual report and
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finarn€@idition and Results of Operations” in Item 7hs$ annual report.

Products and Service

Our products and services include local and Idisgance, broadband, private line (including sdeaiaess, which we market to wholes
and business customers), MLPS, data integrationaged hosting (including cloud hosting), colocatigthernet, network access, public
access, wireless, video services and other ancaknvices.

We offer our customers the ability to bundle togetbeveral products and services. For example figeiotegrated and unlimited local
and long-distance services. Our customers carbalsdle two or more services such as broadbando\ideluding DIRECTV through our
strategic partnership), voice and Verizon Wirelgssough our strategic partnership) services. Wibe our customers value the convenience
and price discounts associated with receiving plgltservices through a single company.

Most of our products and services are providedgusiir telecommunications network, which consistsaie and data switches, copper
cables, fiber-optic cables and other equipment. r@twork serves approximately 13.0 million accésss and forms a portion of the public
switched telephone network, or PSTN. For more imfmion on our network, see “Business—Network Amettiire” below.

Described below are our key products and services.

Strategic Services

We primarily focus our marketing and sales efforsour “strategic” services, which are those sewior which demand remains strong
and that we believe are most important to our Biparformance. Generally speaking, our strategidces enable our customers to access the
Internet, connect to private networks and transiaif,, and enhance the security, reliability anitieficy of our customers’ communications.
Our strategic services are comprised of the folhgwi

» Broadband Our broadband services allow customers to cortodbie Internet through their existing telephomedi and fiber-optic
cables at high speeds. Substantially all of ouatdbband subscribers are located within the locaicearea of our wireline telephone
operations;
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» Private line. Private line (including special access, which warkat to wholesale and business customers) isatdiircuit or channel
specifically dedicated for the purpose of direcibnnecting two or more sites. Private line offefsgh-speed, secure solution for
frequent transmission of large amounts of data betwsites. We also provide private line transmissirvices to wireless service
providers that use our fiber-optic cables connetietieir towers, commonly referred to as fibetite tower or wireless backhaul
services, to support their next generation wirefesworks;

e MPLS. Multi-Protocol Label Switching is standards-apprdwata networking technology that we provide fmpsut real-time voice
and video. This technology allows network operaflansbility to divert and route traffic around krfailures, congestion and
bottlenecks;

 Managed Hosting Managed hosting includes provision of centralizédrmation technology ("IT") infrastructure andrariety of
managed services including cloud and traditionahmating, application management, back-up, storage,advanced services
including planning, design, implementation and suppervices;

e Colocation. Colocation services enable our customers to irtsiir own IT equipment in our state-of-the atiféies through our
centralized IT infrastructure;

» Ethernet. Ethernet services include point-to-point and rapidtint configurations that facilitate data transsiosis across metropolitan
areas and wide area networks. Ethernet serviceslsoeised to provide transmission services tol@ggeservice providers that use our
fiber-optic cables connected to their towers;

e Video. Our video services include our facilities-basedew, marketed as CenturyLiffkPrism™ | which is a premium entertainment
service that allows our customers to watch hundoédslevision or cable channels and record upto §hows on one home digital
video recorder. We also offer satellite digitakteésion under an arrangement with DIRECTV thatw#iaus to market, sell and bill for
its services under its brand name;

* VolIP. Voice over Internet Protocol, or VolIP, is a rdald, two-way voice communication service (similaour traditional voice
services) that originates over a broadband corureeind often terminates on the PSTN;

* Managed ServiceManaged services represents a blend of networkinigogloud, and IT solutions, typically combinedtwcustome
premise equipment. These services include developaieolutions to customers' communications resjugnts, end to end
deployment and the ongoing operation and proactizragement of the solution for the customer. Mashagevices may also include
extensive consulting and complex software develogrand

*  Wireless ServicesOur wireless services are offered under an agarmreyigement with Verizon Wireless that allows umtoket, sell
and bill for its services under its brand namemgrily to our residential customers who buy thes®ises as part of a bundle with one
or more of our other products and services. Thisngement allows us to sell the full complemernivefizon Wireless services. Our
current five-year arrangement with Verizon Wirelasss through 2015 and is terminable by eitherypiéugreafter.

Legacy Services
Our "legacy" services represent our traditionabepidata and network services, which include theviing:

* Local. We offer local calling services for our residehind business customers within the local serviea af our wireline markets,
generally for a fixed monthly charge. These sewioelude a number of enhanced calling featuresoimel services, such as call
forwarding, caller identification, conference cadji voice mail, selective call ringing and call tireg, for which we generally charge
an additional monthly fee. We also generate reveffieen non-recurring services, such as inside imstallation, maintenance
services, service activation and reactivation.dtorwholesale customers, our local calling servierings include primarily the
resale of our voice services and the sale of UMB&h allow our wholesale customers to use our ngtwer a combination of our
network and their own networks to provide voice dath services to their customers. Local callingises provided to our wholesale
customers allow other telecommunications compahiesbility to originate or terminate telecommunti@as services on our network;

* Long-distance.We offer our residential, business and wholesastorners domestic and international long-distarcéices and toll-
free services. Our international long-distanceisessinclude voice calls that either terminate riginate with our customers in the
United States;

» ISDN. We offer integrated services digital network ("ISD) services, which uses regular telephone linesufgport voice, video and
data applications;
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WAN. We offer wide area network ("WAN") services, whigllow a local communications network to link tadwerks in remote
locations; and

» Switched access services a part of our wholesale segment operationgynaeide various forms of switched access serviges t
wireline and wireless service providers for the aieur facilities to originate and terminate thigiterstate and intrastate voice
transmissions.

Data Integration

Data integration includes the sale of telecommuitna equipment located on customers' premisesedatéd professional services.
These services include network management, instadland maintenance of data equipment and théibgilof proprietary fiber-optic
broadband networks for our governmental and busioestomers.

Other Revenues

We also generate other operating revenues fromegsay Service Fund ("USF") revenues and surchamgéshe leasing and subleasing
of space in our office buildings, warehouses ameoproperties. The majority of our real estateprtes are located in the local service are
our wireline operations.

Additional Information
From time to time, we also make investments inotieenmunications or technology companies.

For further information on regulatory, technologdiaad competitive changes that could impact oueneres, see "Regulation” and
"Competition" under this Item 1 below and "Risk teas" under Iltem 1A below. For more informationtbe financial contributions of our
various services, see "Management's Discussioiaatysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiiems" in Item 7 of this annual report.

Patents, Trade Names, Trademarks and Copyrights

Either directly or through our subsidiaries, we daights in various patents, trade names, tradesnadpyrights and other intellectual
property necessary to conduct our business, suchraSenturyLink™ and PrisnT™ brand names. Our services often use the intellectua
property of others, including licensed software. &l occasionally license our intellectual propéstothers.

We periodically receive offers from third parti@spgurchase or obtain licenses for patents and atkedtectual property rights in exchar
for royalties or other payments. We also periodijcaceive notices, or are named in lawsuits, aligdghat our products or services infringe on
patents or other intellectual property rights afdiparties. In certain instances, these mattangpcdentially adversely impact our operations,
operating results or financial position. For addifil information, see “Risk Factors—Risks Impacting Business” in Item 1A of this annual
report, and “Legal Proceedings—Other Matters” @mit3 of this annual report.

Sales and Marketing

We maintain local offices in most of the larger plapion centers within our local service area. Eheffices provide sales and customer
support services in the community. We also relyponcall center personnel to promote sales of sesvihat meet the needs of our customers.
Our strategy is to enhance our communications ses\Wby offering a comprehensive bundle of senageesdeploying new technologies to
further enhance customer loyalty.

We conduct most of our operations under the bramden"CenturyLink." Our satellite television serviseffered on a co-branded basis
under the "DIRECTV" name. Our switched digital tésgon service offering is branded under the nafresm™ ." The wireless service that
we offer under our agency agreement with Verizoneligss is marketed under the "Verizon Wirelesshidnaame. Since January 2014, we
have marketed certain data hosting, IT and othsicgs furnished through our data hosting operatiomder the “CenturyLink Technology
Solutions” brand name.
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Our approach to our residential customers emphasizetomer-oriented sales, marketing and servitteaMiocal presence. We market
our products and services primarily through dissdes representatives, inbound call centers, fetail stores, telemarketing and third parties.
We support our distribution with direct mail, bifiserts, newspaper and television advertising, iepsomotions, public relations activities
and sponsorship of community events and sportsegenu

Our approach to our business and governmentalmasfoincludes a commitment to deliver communicatiand network products and
services that meet existing and future businesdsough bundles of services and integrated @wfferings. Our focus is to be a
comprehensive communications solution for our swidite, mid-sized and select enterprise businegsgwvernmental customers. We market
our products and services primarily through disades representatives, inbound call centers, telestiag and third parties. We support our
distribution with direct mail, bill inserts, newgper and television advertising, website promotidaekemarketing and third parties.

Our approach to our wholesale customers includesranitment to deliver communications solutions thaet existing and future needs
of national network telecommunications providemratiyh bandwidth growth and quality of services.

Our data hosting operations utilize a solution-basadling approach. By working directly with potehiand existing clients, we are able
to understand our clients' IT infrastructure anegleerm goals. We also market through indirect chasnetluding collaborations with existir
clients and technology providers, telecommunicatioompanies and system integrators.

Network Architecture

Most of our products and services are providedgusiir telecommunications network, which consistga€e and data switches, copper
cables, fiber-optic cables and other equipment.l@eal exchange carrier networks also include edwutffices and remote sites, all with
advanced digital switches and operating with lieghsoftware. Our fiber-optic cable is the primaansport technology between our central
offices and interconnection points with other indaemt carriers. As of December 31, 2013 , we maiethover 1.03 million miles of copper
plant and approximately 168 thousand miles of fifyatic plant in our local exchange networks.

Most of our long distance service is provided disethrough CenturyLink's own switches and netweduipment, with the balance bei
provided through reselling arrangements with otbeg distance carriers. All of our satellite teldoin and wireless voice service is providec
other carriers under agency agreements.

We continue to enhance and expand our network plodieg broadband-enabled technologies to provititeonal capacity to our
customers. Rapid and significant changes in tecyychre expected to continue in the telecommuminatindustry. Our future success will
depend, in part, on our ability to anticipate add to changes in customer demands and techndloggrticular, we anticipate that continued
increases in broadband usage by our customersagilire us to make significant capital expenditdoeisicrease network capacity or to
implement network management practices to alleviatevork capacity shortages, either of which caddersely impact our results of
operation and financial condition. For addition#brmation, see "Risk Factors", generally, in ItéAof this annual report, and, in particular,
"Risk Factors—Risks Affecting Our Business—Increaisebroadband usage may cause network capaciafioms, resulting in service
disruptions, reduced capacity or slower transmissjmeeds for our customers."

Similarly, we continue to take steps to simpliffdanodernize our network, which is comprised of legacy network combined with the
network of several companies we have acquiredamp#st. To attain our objectives, we plan to caito undertake several complex projects
that we expect will be costly and take several yéarcomplete.

For more information on our properties, see Iteaf this annual report.

Regulation

We are subject to significant regulation by thedralCommunications Commission ("FCC"), which reges interstate communicatiol
and state utility commissions, which regulate istiiée communications. These agencies (i) issus talprotect consumers and promote
competition, (ii) set the rates that telecommunicatompanies charge each other for exchanginficrahd (iii) have traditionally established
USF to support the provision of services to higbt@reas. In most states, local voice serviceched and special access services and
interconnection services are subject to price @, although the extent of regulation variesype of service and geographic region. In
addition, we are required to maintain licenses withFCC and with state utility commissions. Lawed aegulations in many states restrict the
manner in which a licensed entity can interact \afffiliates, transfer assets, issue debt and enigagther business activities, and many
acquisitions and divestitures require approvallgyRCC and some state commissions.
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Our telephone operating companies are consideoennibent local exchange carriers ("ILECs"). Histallig, ILECs, like our traditional
telephone operating companies, operated as redutataopolies having the exclusive right and resjility to provide local telephone
services in their franchised service territories.we discuss in greater detail below, passageeof #hecommunications Act of 1996, coupled
with state legislative and regulatory initiativesdaechnological change, fundamentally alteredélephone industry by generally reducing the
regulation of ILECs and creating a substantialease in the number of competitors. The followingadiption discusses some of the major
industry regulations that affect our traditiondéfhone operations, but numerous other regulatiobsliscussed below could also impact us.
Some legislation and regulations are currentlystitgect of judicial, legislative and administratime@ceedings which could substantially
change the manner in which the telecommunicatiodsstry operates and the amount of revenues wevesiog our services. Neither the
outcome of these proceedings, nor their potentigkict on us, can be predicted at this time. Foitiaddl information, see "Risk Factors" in
Item 1A of this annual report.

Federal Regulation
General

We are required to comply with the Communicatiors & 1934, which requires us to offer servicepiat and reasonable rates and on
non-discriminatory terms, as well as the Telecomigations Act of 1996, which amended the CommunicegiAct of 1934 primarily to
promote competition.

The FCC regulates interstate services we prowddyding the special access charges we bill forlegade network transmission and the
interstate access charges that we bill to longadist companies and other communications compan@mnection with the origination and
termination of interstate phone calls. Additionatlye FCC regulates a number of aspects of ounbssirelated to privacy, homeland security
and network infrastructure, including access to asel of local telephone numbers. The FCC has reggbty for maintaining and
administering the federal USF, which provides samtsal support for maintaining networks in high<caseas, as well as supporting service to
low-income households, schools and libraries, and haalth care providers. Like other communicatioesvork operators, ILECs must obti
FCC approval to use certain radio frequenciesp erainsfer control of any such licenses. The FQ&ims the right to revoke these licenses if a
carrier materially violates relevant legal requients.

In recent years, our operations and those of a#decommunications carriers have been further itgohby legislation and regulation
imposing additional obligations on us, particulasligh regards to providing broadband service, leoisy homeland security, increasing dise
recovery requirements, minimizing environmental atgs and enhancing privacy. These laws includ€tramunications Assistance for Law
Enforcement Act, and laws governing local telephoumber portability and customer proprietary netwiaformation requirements. These
laws and regulations may cause us to incur additionsts and could impact our ability to compefedaively.

In December 2012, the FCC initiated a special acpesceeding and has requested data, informatidmecuments to allow it to condt
a comprehensive evaluation of competition in thecg access market. The ultimate impact of thizgeding on the Company is currently
unknown. However, if the FCC were to adopt sigaificchanges in regulations affecting special aceessces, this could adversely impact
operations or financial results.

Intercarrier Compensation

For decades, the FCC has regularly (i) considesgidws intercarrier compensation reforms, genesaitly a goal to create a uniform
mechanism to be used by the entire telecommunitatimlustry for payments between carriers origitgtierminating, or carrying
telecommunications traffic, and (ii) administratbe federal USF.

In October 2011, the FCC adopted the Connect Amen Intercarrier Compensation Reform order ("@#der"), intended to reform
the existing regulatory regime to recognize ongahifts to new technologies, including VolP, anddrally redirect universal service fundir
to foster nationwide broadband coverage. The CAlerprovides for a multi-year transition over tlexindecade as terminating intercarrier
compensation charges are reduced, universal sdanding is explicitly targeted to broadband deph@nt, and line charges paid by end user
customers are gradually increased. We anticipatetifese changes will substantially increase tlee pareductions in the amount of switched
access revenues in our wholesale segment, whigirngeopportunities for increases in federal USH aatail revenue streams.
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In late 2011, numerous parties filed a petitionrfronsideration with the FCC seeking numeroussiews to the order. In January 2012,
we joined more than two dozen parties in challegig@rtain aspects of the order by filing a sepaapfeeal that was heard by the United State:
Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals in November 2013d ave are awaiting the Court's decision. Futuregiadlichallenges to the CAF order are |
possible, which could alter or delay the FCC's pegl changes. In addition, based on the outcontedfCC proceedings, various state
commissions may consider changes to their univeesaice funds or intrastate access rates. Moreaviemaking designed to implement the
order is not complete, and several FCC proceedilgting to the order remain pending. For theseathdr reasons, we cannot predict the
ultimate impact of these proceedings at this time.

We received approximately $534 million , $543 roitliand $510 million of revenue from federal andestmiversal service programs for
the years ended December 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2@s$pectively. Such amounts represented approxiynzu@% , 3.0% and 3.3% of our
2013, 2012 and 2011 total operating revenueseotisgly.

Broadband Deployment

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2008 "Recovery Act") includes certain broadbandatives that are intended to
accelerate broadband deployment across the UniteedsSThe Recovery Act approved $7.2 billion indimg for broadband stimulus projects
across the United States to be administered bygtwernmental agencies. The programs provide geartdoans to applicants for construction
of certain broadband infrastructure, provision eftain broadband services, and support of certaiadband adoption initiatives. This program
has attracted a wide range of applicants includtates, municipalities, staup companies and consortiums. The participatiostioér parties i
these programs has increased competition in sdlacéas, which may increase our marketing costslaodtase our revenues in those areas.
This trend may intensify if program participatiocieases.

State Regulatior

In recent years, most states have reduced thaitatign of ILECs. Nonetheless, state regulatory eossions generally continue to
regulate local service rates, intrastate accesgebastate universal service funds and in somescseyvice quality. While several state
commissions continue to regulate pricing througtt€'iof return” regulation that focused on authatieeels of earnings by ILECs, we are
generally regulated under various forms of alteweategulation that typically limit our ability timcrease rates for basic local voice service, bu
relieve us from the requirement to meet certainiegs tests. In a few states, we have recentlyegigimicing freedom for the majority of retalil
services other than stand-alone basic consumee weiwice. In most of the states in which we ogerae have gained pricing flexibility for
certain enhanced calling services, such as caléstification and for bundled services that alsdude local voice service.

Under state law, our telephone operating subsgliatre typically governed by laws and regulatitvas i) regulate the purchase and sale
of ILECs, (ii) prescribe certain reporting requiremts, (iii) require ILECs to provide service ungeblicly-filed tariffs setting forth the terms,
conditions and prices of regulated services, (m)tlILECs' ability to borrow and pledge their atss€v) regulate transactions between ILECs
and their affiliates and (vi) impose various othervice standards.

Unlike many of our competitors, as an ILEC we gaflgface "carrier of last resort" obligations whimclude an ongoing requirement to
provide service to all prospective and current@usrs in our service area who request service andidling to pay rates prescribed in our
tariffs. In certain situations, this may constitateompetitive disadvantage to us if competitorsa@oose to focus on low-cost profitable
customers and withhold service from high-cost ufif@ble customers. In addition, strict adherenceawaier of last resort requirements may
force us to construct facilities with a low liketibd of positive economic return.

We operate in states where traditional cost regorerchanisms, including rate structures, are uadaiuation or have been modified.
laws and regulations change, there can be no agsuthat these mechanisms will continue to prouslevith any cost recovery.

For several years, we have faced various carrimptaints, legislation or other investigations refjag our intrastate switched access 1
in several of our states. On October 27, 2011F€ adopted an order that, among other thingspgesd state regulatory commissions’
jurisdiction over all terminating access chargesluding intrastate access charges that have fualigrbeen subject to exclusive sti
jurisdiction. Excluding the rate implications comiglated on a prospective basis by this FCC ordenwvill continue to vigorously defend a
seek to collect our intrastate switched accessweysubject to outstanding disputes. The outcorhéseee disputes cannot be determined at
this time. If we are required to reduce our inmgstswitched access rates as a result of any &¢ tisputes or state initiatives, we will seek to
recover displaced switched access revenues framwtéversal service funds or other services. Harethe amount of such recovery,
particularly from residential customers, is notaiss.
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Other Regulations

Certain of our telecommunications and data hostérgices conducted in foreign countries are or besgpme subject to various foreign
laws, including those regulating the protection egténtion of data. Some of the legal requiremgot&rning our foreign operations conflict
with those governing our domestic operations, whaikes our compliance costs and regulatory risgsadditional information, see “Risk
Factors—Risks Relating to Recent Acquisitions—Qequasitions of Qwest and Savvis have increasedrposure to the risks of operating
internationally.”

Competition
General

We compete in a rapidly evolving and highly comipeti market and we expect intense competition ttinae. We compete with cable
and satellite companies, wireless providers, natitelecommunications providers (such as AT&T, baed Verizon Communications Inc.) and
a variety of other competitors. Technological ademand regulatory and legislative changes haveased opportunities for a wide range of
alternative communications service providers, wiiicturn have increased competitive pressures otasiness. These alternate providers
often face fewer regulations and have lower castsires than we do. In addition, the telecommuitoa industry has experienced substantia
consolidation over the past decade and some af@upetitors in one or more lines of our businessganerally larger, have stronger brand
names, have more financial and business resouncklsaave broader service offerings than we currettly

Over the past decade, fundamental technologiogdlatory and legislative changes have significaimipacted the communications
industry, and we expect these changes will contiRaenarily as a result of regulatory and technalabchanges, competition has been
introduced and encouraged in each sector of thereoritations industry in recent years. As a resudtjncreasingly face competition from
other communication service providers, as furthescdbed below.

Wireless telephone services increasingly constdugggnificant source of competition with our ILE€rvices. As a result, some custor
have chosen to completely forego use of traditioviedline phone service and instead rely solelyvmineless service for voice services. We
anticipate this trend will continue, particularly wireless service providers continue to expanil tuwerage areas, improve the quality of thei
services and offer enhanced new services. Sulstgrail of our access line customers are currecdlyable of receiving wireless services fron
at least one competitive service provider. Techgickd and regulatory developments in wireless sesjipersonal communications services,
digital microwave, satellite, coaxial cable, fikmgtics, local multipoint distribution services, WiBnd other wired and wireless technologies
are expected to further permit the developmenttefraatives to traditional landline voice servickreover, the growing prevalence of
electronic mail, text messaging, social networlkamgl similar digital non-voice communications seegicontinues to reduce the demand for
traditional landline voice services.

The Telecommunications Act of 1996, which obligdtdsCs to permit competitors to interconnect tHadilities to the ILEC's network
and to take various other steps that are designptbmote competition, imposes several duties ol B if it receives a specific request from
another entity which seeks to connect with or pte\gervices using the ILEC's network. In additeah ILEC is obligated to (i) negotiate
interconnection agreements in good faith, (ii) pdevnondiscriminatory "unbundled" access to alleasp of the ILEC's network, (iii) offer
resale of its telecommunications services at wiatéesates and (iv) permit competitors, on terms@omtlitions (including rates) that are just,
reasonable and nondiscriminatory, to colocate thigpsical plant on the ILEC's property, or providieual colocation if physical colocation is
not practicable. Current FCC rules require ILECktse a network element only in those situationeres competing carriers genuinely would
be impaired without access to such network elemant$ where the unbundling would not interfere tfith development of facilities-based
competition.

As a result of these regulatory, consumer and t@olgical developments, ILECs also face competifiom competitive local exchange
carriers, or CLECs, particularly in densely popethareas. CLECs provide competing services throesglling the ILECs' local services,
through use of the ILECs' unbundled network elesmenthrough their own facilities.

Technological developments have led to the devedmtrof new products and services that have redilmedemand for our traditional
services, as noted above, or that compete witlitimadl ILEC services. Technological improvemenésvé enabled cable television companies
to provide traditional circuit-switched telephorexdce over their cable networks, and several natioable companies have aggressively
pursued this opportunity. Similarly, companies pdowy VolIP services provide voice communicationvgaes over the Internet which compete
with our traditional telephone service and our owaiP services. In addition, demand for our broadbservices could be adversely affectec
advanced wireless data transmission technologieg loeveloped by wireless providers and by cettiaihnologies permitting cable compar
and other competitors to deliver faster broadbgeeds than ours. Rapid changes in technology smdradreasing the competiveness of the
information technology services industry.
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Similar to us, many cable, technology or other camitations companies that previously offered atkahirange of services are now
offering diversified bundles of services, eithawotigh their own networks, reselling arrangementgiot ventures. As such, a growing number
of companies are competing to serve the communitatieeds of the same customer base. Such astiwitiecontinue to place downward
pressure on the demand for our access lines anttitiieg of our services.

As both residential and business customers inerglysidlemand high-speed connections for entertaimngemmunications and
productivity, we expect the demands on our netwaltkcontinue to increase over the next severakye@o succeed, we and other network-
based providers must ensure that our networks etwed services that meet these increasing bantveidd speed requirements. We plan to
continue to invest in our network to be able to hikis future demand. In addition, network religiibnd security are increasingly important
competitive factors in the enterprise business.

In addition to facing direct competition from thge®viders described above, ILECs increasingly famapetition from alternate
communication systems constructed by long distaaceers, large customers or alternative accesdorenThese systems are capable of
originating or terminating calls without use of th&Cs' networks or switching services. Other ptitdrsources of competition include non-
carrier systems that are capable of bypassing ILEECal networks, either partially or completelgrdugh various means, including the
provision of special access or independent switcharvices and the concentration of telecommumioatiraffic on a few of the ILECs' access
lines. We anticipate that all these trends willtowre and lead to decreased use of our networks.

Additional information about competitive pressuieocated (i) under the heading "Risk Factors—Ri&kecting Our Business" in
Item 1A of this annual report and (ii) in the dission immediately below, which contains more spedaiformation on how these trends in
competition have impacted our segments.

Consumer
Strategic Services

With respect to our strategic services, competitsopmased on price, bandwidth, quality and speespfice, promotions and bundled
offerings. Wireless carriers' fourth generation4Gr, services are allowing them to more directlgnpete with our strategic services. In
providing broadband services, we compete primavitih cable companies, wireless providers and dbheadband service providers. In
reselling DIRECTV video services, we compete prityarith cable and other satellite companies ad aglother sales agents and resellers.
Our Prism™ residential video service faces substantial cortipetfrom a variety of competitors, including welstablished cable companies,
satellite companies and several national compah#&geliver content over the Internet and on neobévices at little or no cost to their
customers. Many of our competitors for these Sfiateervices are not subject to the same regulagmyirements as we are, and therefore are
able to avoid significant regulatory costs and gutiions.

Our strategy for maintaining and increasing ourehafshroadband customers is based on pricing, gaugaf services and features,
quality of service and meeting customer care ndadsder to remain competitive, we believe congitincreasing connection speeds is
important. As a result, we continue to invest im vetwork, which allows for the delivery of highgseed broadband services. While traditiona
ATM-based broadband services are declining, they lb@en more than offset by growth in fillersed broadband services. We also contin
expand our product offerings including facilitieased video services and enhance our marketinge#srwe compete in a maturing market in
which a significant portion of consumers alreadyenaroadband services.

Legacy Services

Although our status as an ILEC continues to prousl@dvantages in providing local services in oual service area, as noted above w
increasingly face significant competition as arré@asing number of consumers are willing to suldstitable, wireless and electronic
communications for traditional voice telecommurimas services. This has led to an increase in tingber and type of competitors within our
industry, price compression and a decrease in aukehshare. As a result of this product substitytive face greater competition in providing
local and long distance services from wireless jolerg, resellers and sales agents (including owgsglsocial media hosts and broadband
service providers, including cable companies. Vge abntinue to compete with traditional telecomroations providers, such as national
carriers, smaller regional providers, CLECs anépehdent telephone companies.

Our strategy to reduce access line loss is baseraply on our pricing, packaging of services ardtfires, quality of service and meeting
customer care needs. While bundle price discoumts hesulted in lower average revenues for ouviddal services, we believe service
bundles continue to positively impact our custone¢ention. In addition to our bundle discounts,alsd offer limited time promotions on our
broadband service for prospective customers whd aanbroadband service in their bundle, whichifartaids our ability to attract and retain
customers and increase usage of our services.
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Business
Strategic Services

In connection with providing strategic services, aoepete against other telecommunication providersle companies, CLECs and
other enterprises, some of whom are substantailfyel than us. Competition is based on price, balttyservice, promotions and bundled
offerings. Private line services also compete dwakk reach and reliability, while broadband seegicompete on a bandwidth and quality of
service. In providing broadband services, we compséth cable companies, wireless providers andrdireadband service providers.

Our competitors for integrated data, Internet, &aservices and other IT services range from midesizusinesses to large enterprises.
Due to the size and capacity of some of these corapathey may be able to offer more inexpensivetisms to our customers. To compete,
focus on providing complex, secure and performatdrogen services to our business customers througlglobal infrastructure. Our network
services continue to see pricing pressures onaliprivate network and bandwidth services offseirzyeases in network services that suppor
our colocation and managed hosting service offaring

The number of companies providing business serV¥iaesggrown and increased competition for thesaaEyparticularly with respect to
smaller business customers. Many of our competftorstrategic services are not subject to the sagelatory requirements as we are and
therefore they are able to avoid significant retpriacosts and obligations. Our keys to growthudel targeting the right clients, offering
targeted business solutions to solve specific theeds and delivering compelling and comprehertsislenical capabilities.

Legacy Services

For all the reasons noted in "Business—Competiti@vasumer—Legacy Services" we face intense competitith respect to our
legacy services and continue to see customers timgraway from these services and into strategizices. In addition, our legacy services
revenues have been, and we expect they will coatiole, adversely affected by access line lossg@pirce competition.

Data Integration

In providing data integration to our customers,aampete primarily with large integrators, equipmerttviders and national
telecommunication providers. Competition is basegackage offerings and as such we focus on pruyittiese customers individualized and
customizable packages. Our strategy is to provigtedata integration through packages that inclutiercstrategic and legacy services. As s
in providing data integration we often face manyh& same competitive pressures as we face ingingystrategic and legacy services, as
discussed above.

We expect data integration to continue to fluctdeden quarter to quarter as this offering tendbeéamore sensitive than others to change
in the economy and in spending trends of our gawernital customers. We further expect the profit imsrgn our data integration offerings to
continue to be lower than those of our strategitlagacy services.

Wholesale
Strategic Services

In providing private line (including special accessrvices to our wholesale markets customers,ongete with cable companies, as
well as other regional and national carriers, offtiiar providers and CLECs. Demand for our priViate services continues to increase, despit
our customers' optimization of their networks, istily consolidation and technological migration. Whie expect that these factors will
continue to impact our wholesale markets segmeatelieve the forecasted growth in fiber-basediapaccess provided to wireless carriers
for backhaul will, over time, ultimately offset tlecline in copper-based special access providedrébess carriers as they migrate to Etherne
services, although the timing and magnitude oftiaifinological migration is uncertain.

Legacy Services

For the same reasons noted above, the provisioardégacy services to other communications pragitkehighly competitive, and has
been and will continue to be adversely affectegtmgluct substitution, technological migration, istty consolidation and mandated rate
reductions. We face significant competition foresx services from CLECs, cable companies, reseltetsvireless service providers as wel
some of our own wholesale markets customers, wdnieldeploying their own networks to provide custoawath local services. By doing so,
these competitors reduce traffic on our network.
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Data Hosting
Strategic Services

Our competitors for cloud, hosting, colocation atlder IT services include telecommunications congmrhardware manufacturers and
system integrators that support the in-house ITaims for a business or offer outsourcing sohgidue to the size and capacity of some of
these companies, they may be able to offer mosgamesive solutions to our customers. To competepas on providing complex, secure
and performance-driven services to our businesgeeess through our global infrastructure platforivistual, dedicated and collocated) on the
same terms outlined above under the heading "Bssir®©perations—Products and Services" in Item higfannual report.

For our colocation services, we continue to seemgipressures with respect to these servicesrasdst wholesale colocation providers
continue to enter our market, and we expect thisdto continue. Our services can be purchasedidhgilly or as part of a total outsourcing
arrangement.

Environmental Compliance

From time to time we may incur environmental cormptie and remediation expenses, mainly resulting ining or operating prior
industrial sites or operating vehicle fleets or powupplies for our communications equipment. Alfiowe cannot assess with certainty the
impact of any future compliance and remediatiorigattions or provide you with any assurances regarthie ultimate impact thereof, we do
not currently believe that future environmental gdiance and remediation expenditures will have gen adverse effect on our financial
condition or results of operations.

Seasonality

Overall, our business is not significantly impachgdseasonality. From time to time weather rel@iedblems have resulted in increased
costs to repair our network and respond to sewadls in some of our markets. The amount and tinoiipese costs are subject to the weathel
patterns of any given year, but have generally légimest during the third quarter and have beeatadlto damage from severe storms,
including hurricanes, tropical storms and tornadoasur markets along the lower Atlantic and Gudlfvexico coastlines.

Employees

At December 31, 2013, we had approximately 47 g&@@loyees, of which approximately 17,000 are membéeither the International
Brotherhood of Electrical Workers ("IBEW") or the@munications Workers of America ("CWA"). See thgcdssion of risks relating to our
labor relations in "Risk Factors—Risks Affecting rBusiness" in Item 1A of this annual report.

Over the past couple of years, we have reduceavotkforce primarily due to (i) integration effofi®m our acquisitions, (ii) increased
competitive pressures, and (iii) the loss of actiess.

Website Access and Important Investor Information

Our website isvww.centurylink.com The information contained on, or that may be ssed through, our website is not part of this
annual report. You may obtain free electronic cemiour annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterlyorepon Form 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports inflthesstor Relations" section of our websitie.¢enturylink.com) under the heading "SEC
Filings." These reports are available on our websit soon as reasonably practicable after we etectily file them with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, or SEC.

We have adopted written codes of conduct that seswtee code of ethics applicable to our directwificers and employees, in
accordance with applicable laws and rules promatjay the SEC and the New York Stock Exchangehdrewent that we make any changes
(other than by a technical, administrative or nahstantive amendment) to, or provide any waivarmfrthe provisions of our code of conduct
applicable to our directors or executive officavs, intend to disclose these events on our website @report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC.
These codes of conduct, as well as copies of adefines on significant governance issues and llageters of our audit committee,
compensation committee, nominating and corporaterg@ance committee and risk evaluation committeeeakso available in the "Corporate
Governance" section of our websitenatw.centurylink.com/Pages/AboutUs/Governameceh print to any shareholder who requests them by
sending a written request to our Corporate SegretaCenturyLink, Inc., 100 CenturyLink Drive, Mar®, Louisiana, 71203.

Investors may also read and copy any materiald fileh the SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Raot0@F Street, N.E., Washingtc
D.C. 20549. For information on the operation of Fhblic Reference Room, you are encouraged tdtealBEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. For all of



our electronic filings, the SEC maintains a webatt@ww.sec.gothat contains reports, proxy and information statets and other
information regarding issuers that file electroflicavith the SEC.
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In connection with filing this annual report, ourief executive officer and chief financial officerade the certifications regarding our
financial disclosures required under the SarbandeyQAct of 2002, and its related regulations. tlaigion, during 2013 , our chief executive
officer certified to the New York Stock Exchangatthe was unaware of any violations by us of thes Nerk Stock Exchange's corporate
governance listing standards.

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statementsral Related Matters

This annual report and other documents filed bynder the federal securities law include, and futwnal or written statements or press
releases by us and our management may includeafdrl@oking statements about our business, finhnoiadition, operating results and
prospects. These statements include, among others:

» statements concerning the benefits that we éxp#laesult from our operations, investmentsngactions and other activities, such as
increased revenue or decreased expenditures;

e statements about our anticipated future opeagatimd financial performance, financial position #igdidity, tax position, contingent
liabilities, growth opportunities and growth ratasquisition and divestiture opportunities, busingspects, regulatory and
competitive outlook, investment and expenditureglalividend and stock repurchase plans, capitadation plans, investment
results, financing alternatives and sources, aiihgrplans; and

» other similar statements of our expectationiefse future plans and strategies, anticipatecettgyments and other matters that are nc
historical facts, many of which are highlightedwgrds such as “may,” “would,” “could,” “should,” tan,” “believes,” “expects,”
“anticipates,” “estimates,” “projects,” “intendsilikely,” “seeks,” “hopes,” or variations or simil@xpressions.

” ” o ” o

” w ”

These forwardeoking statements are based upon our judgmenassuimptions as of the date such statements areqoaderning futur
developments and events, many of which are beyandantrol. These forward-looking statements, dredassumptions upon which they are
based, are inherently speculative and are suljechumber of risks and uncertainties. Actual evant results may differ materially from
those anticipated, estimated, projected or imgigds in those statements if one or more of thisge or uncertainties materialize, or if our
underlying assumptions prove incorrect. Factorsdbald affect actual results include but are mottéd to:

» the timing, success and overall effects of comipetifrom a wide variety of competitive provide
» the risks inherent in rapid technological changeluding product displaceme

» the effects of ongoing changes in the regulatibine communications industry, including the ame of regulatory or judicial
proceedings relating to intercarrier compensatiaeess charges, universal service, broadband depfdydata protection and net
neutrality;

« our ability to effectively adjust to changegfie communications industry, and changes in ouketsy product mix and network
caused by our recent acquisitions;

e our ability to successfully integrate recentbgaired operations into our incumbent operatiomsluiding the possibility that the
anticipated benefits from our recent acquisitioasnot be fully realized in a timely manner or &t al

» our ability to effectively manage our expansion eppnities, including retaining and hiring key pamgel

» possible changes in the demand for, or pricinguar products and services, including our abilityeffectively respond to increased
demand for high-speed broadband service;

* our ability to successfully introduce new protlocservice offerings on a timely and ce$fective basit
» the adverse impact on our business and network frassible equipment failures, security breachesroilar attacks on our netwo
» our ability to successfully negotiate collectivedrining agreements on reasonable terms without stoppage:

e our ability to use our net operating loss carryfars in projected amoun



* our continued access to credit markets on favorigioies

» our ability to collect our receivables from finaalty troubled communications compan
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our ability to maintain favorable relations withrdeey business partners, suppliers, vendors, ladslland financial institution
* any adverse developments in legal or regulatorggedings involving u

» changes in our operating plans, corporate gfiededividend payment plans or other capital afiion plans, including those caused by
changes in our cash requirements, capital expeaerditeds, debt obligations, pension funding requergs, cash flows, or financial
position, or other similar changes;

+ the effects of adverse weatt
» other risks referenced in this annual report oeotf our filings with the SEC; a

» the effects of more general factors such asgdsm interest rates, in tax laws, in accountiolicies or practices, in operating,
medical, pension or administrative costs, in gdmaeaket, labor or economic conditions, or in léagfi®n, regulation or public policy.

These and other uncertainties related to our bssiard our recent acquisitions are described etgreletail in Item 1A of this annual
report, which is subject to updating and suppleimgrity our subsequent SEC reports.

These factors should be considered in connectitimawviy written or oral forward-looking statemeritattwe or persons acting on our
behalf may issue. Additional factors or risks tivatcurrently deem immaterial or that are not prédgémown to us could also cause our actual
results to differ materially from our expected HesuGiven these uncertainties, we caution investat to unduly rely on our forward-looking
statements. We undertake no obligation to updatewise any forward-looking statements for any o@asvhether as a result of new
information, future events or developments, chargeximstances, or otherwise. Furthermore, anyimé&iion about our intentions contained
in any of our forward-looking statements refleais mtentions as of the date of such forwlrdking statement, and is based upon, among
things, the existing regulatory and technologicalimnment, industry and competitive conditionsg @eonomic and market conditions, and
our assumptions as of such date. We may changeteutions, strategies or plans (including our diérid or stock repurchase plans) at any
time and without notice, based upon any changeséh factors, in our assumptions or otherwise.

Investors should also be aware that while we deaabus times, communicate with securities analyisis against our policy to disclose
to them selectively any material non-public infotioa or other confidential information. Accordingiyvestors should not assume that we
agree with any statement or report issued by alystrierespective of the content of the statemeaneport. To the extent that reports issued by
securities analysts contain any projections, fatscar opinions, such reports are not our respiitgib

Unless otherwise indicated, information containethis annual report and other documents filed $ynder the federal securities laws
concerning our views and expectations regarding¢imemunications industry are based on estimate® adis using data from industry
sources, and on assumptions made by us based omanagement’s knowledge and experience in the risikevhich we operate and the
communications industry generally. You should bam@that we have not independently verified daienfindustry or other thirgarty source
and cannot guarantee its accuracy or completeness.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following discussion of “risk factors” idengf the most significant risks or uncertainties tuatld (i) materially and adversely affect
our business, financial condition, results of ofierss, liquidity or prospects or (ii) cause ourusdtresults to differ materially from our
anticipated results or other expectations. Thefdlg information should be read in conjunctiontwiManagement’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsd @ur consolidated financial statements and reélatges included elsewhere in this annual
report. Please note that the following discusssomat intended to comprehensively list all riskaincertainties faced by us. Our operations or
actual results could also be similarly impactedbgitional risks and uncertainties that are notemntty known to us, that we currently deem to
be immaterial or that are not specific to us, saslgeneral economic conditions.
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Risks Affecting Our Business

Increasing competition, including product substifon, continues to cause us to lose access linesctwhas adversely affected and
expected to continue to adversely affect our opemgtesults and financial condition.

Regulatory and other developments over the pastrakyears have caused us to continue to lose satines and to experience increased
competitive pressures impacting each of our busisegments, and we expect these trends will cantinuaddition to competition from larger
national telecommunications providers, we are faaicreasing competition from a variety of otheanrs@s, including cable and satellite
companies, wireless providers, information techgploompanies, broadband providers, device provjdesellers, sales agents and facilities-
based providers using their own networks as wethase leasing parts of our network.

Some of our current and potential competitors ff@rgproducts or services that are substitute®tortraditional voice services, including
wireless voice and non-voice communication seryifigoffer a more comprehensive range of commaiians products and services, (iii)
have market presence, engineering and technicabdajes, and financial and other resources greaten ours, (iv) own larger or more dive
networks with greater transmission capacity or o#ftrantages, (v) conduct operations or raise @lagoita lower cost than us, (vi) are subjec
less regulation, (vii) offer services nationallyioternationally to a larger geographic area agéabase of customers, (viii) offer greater online
content or (ix) have substantially stronger braachas. Consequently, these competitors may be leeftépped to provide more attractive
offerings, to charge lower prices for their produahd services, to develop and expand their contations and network infrastructures more
quickly, to adapt more swiftly to new or emergieghinologies and changes in customer requirementigviote greater resources to the
marketing and sale of their products and servigeg) provide more comprehensive customer service.

Competition could adversely impact us in severalsyancluding (i) the loss of customers and masketre, (ii) the possibility of
customers reducing their usage of our servicesitiirgy to less profitable services, (iii) reducedffic on our networks, (iv) our need to exps
substantial time or money on new capital improvenpeojects, (v) our need to lower prices or inceeasrketing expenses to remain
competitive and (vi) our inability to diversify lsuccessfully offering new products or services.

We are continually taking steps to respond to tlvesepetitive pressures, but these efforts may aduzcessful. Our operating results
and financial condition would be adversely affedfdtiese initiatives are unsuccessful or insuéfitiand if we otherwise are unable to
sufficiently stem or offset our continuing accasg llosses and our revenue declines without cooredipg cost reductions. If this occurred, our
ability to service debt and pay other obligatiormund also be adversely affected.

Rapid technological changes could require substahtxpenditure of financial and other resources @xcess of contemplated levels, and
inability to respond to those changes could reduee market share and adversely affect our operatirggults and financial condition.

The communications industry is experiencing sigaifit technological changes, which in general ahaecing non-voice
communications and enabling a broader array of emieg to offer services competitive with ours. Mafyhose technological changes are (i)
displacing or reducing demand for our traditionaice services, (ii) enabling the development of petitive products or services, or (iii)
enabling our current customers to reduce or bypss®f our networks. Similarly, demand for our litmend services could be adversely
affected by advanced wireless data transmissidmt#ogies being developed by wireless providerstgndertain technologies permitting ce
companies and other competitors to deliver fasteadiband speeds than ours. Rapid changes in tegynate also increasing the
competitiveness of the information technology sssiindustry.

We may not be able to accurately predict technolddrends or the success of newly-offered servieegher technological change could
require us to expend capital or other resourcexd@ess of currently contemplated levels, or togorthe development or provision of products
or services that others can provide more efficjentiwe are not able to develop new products ardises to keep pace with technological
advances, or if those products and services areidety accepted by customers, our ability to cotap®muld be adversely affected and our
market share could decline. Any inability to effeety respond to technological changes could ath@esely affect our operating results and
financial condition, as well as our ability to ser/debt and pay other obligations.

In addition to introducing new technologies ancdedfigs, we may need, from time to time, to phadeoatdated and unprofitable
technologies and services. If we are unable toodonsa cost-effective basis, we could experiendaaged profits.
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For additional information on the risks of incredi@xpenditures, see “Risk Factors—Risks Affectingldquidity and Capital
Resources—Our business requires us to incur sutateapital and operating expenses, which redocesvailable free cash flow.”

Our legacy services continue to experience declinmevenues, and our efforts to offset these dedimeay not be successful.

In recent years, the telephone industry has expegta decline in access lines, long distance tesand network access revenues,
which, coupled with the other changes resultingrfcompetitive, technological and regulatory deveiepts, continue to place downward
pressure on the revenues we generate from ounjegacices.

We have taken a variety of steps to counter theskngs, including:

« an increased focus on selling a broader randpgbier-growth strategic services, which are désdtiin detail elsewhere in this annual
report;

« anincreased focus on serving a broader rangesifiéss, governmental and wholesale custol
 greater use of service bundles;

 acquisitions to increase our scale and stremgbiie product offerings, including new products ardvices provided by our data
hosting segment.

However, some of these strategic services genlenatr profit margins than our traditional servicand some can be expected to
experience slowing growth as increasing numbemiogxisting or potential customers subscribe és¢hnewer products. Moreover, we car
assure you that the revenues generated from ouofferings will offset revenue losses associatedhfreduced sales of our legacy products.
Similarly, we cannot assure you that our new serviterings will be as successful as anticipatedhat we will be able to continue to grow
through acquisitions. In addition, our reliancethbind parties to provide certain of these strategic/ices could constrain our flexibility, as
described further below.

Our future results will suffer if we do not effeately adjust to changes in our business, and wiltther suffer if we do not effectively manag
our expanded operations.

The above-described changes in our industry haaegla higher premium on technological, engineerimagketing and provisioning
skills. Our recent acquisitions also significarthyanged the composition of our markets and proehixct Our future success depends, in part,
on our ability to retrain our staff to acquire tresgthen skills necessary to address these chamggswhere necessary, to attract and retain
new personnel that possess these skills. Giveouirent competitive market for personnel with thslsiéls, we cannot assure you that these
recruitment efforts will be successful.

Unfavorable general economic conditions could neiyaly impact our operating results and financial ndition.

Unfavorable general economic conditions, includimg unstable economy and credit market, could neggtaffect our business.
Worldwide economic growth has been sluggish siri@2and many experts believe that a confluendaaddrs in the United States, Europe,
Asia and developing countries may result in a prgéal period of economic stagnation, slow growteamomic uncertainty. While it is
difficult to predict the ultimate impact of thesergeral economic conditions, they could adversdlgcatiemand for some of our products and
services and could cause customers to shift torlgweed products and services or to delay or fonggrchases of our products and services.
These conditions impact, in particular, our abitiysell discretionary products or services to heiss customers that are under pressure to
reduce costs or to governmental customers that tememtly suffered substantial budget cuts withpfespect of additional future budget cuts.
Any one or more of these circumstances could causeevenues to continue declining. Also, our corts may encounter financial hardships
or may not be able to obtain adequate access dit,ondich could negatively impact their ability teake timely payments to us. In addition, as
discussed further below, unstable economic andtareatkets may preclude us from refinancing mawidebt at terms that are as favorable ac
those from which we previously benefited, at tetha are acceptable to us, or at all. For thessores among others, if current economic
conditions persist or decline, our operating resdibhancial condition, and liquidity could be adsely affected.
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We could be harmed by security breaches, damagesttoer significant disruptions or failures of our etworks, information technology
infrastructure or related systems, or of those waeoate for certain of our customers.

To be successful, we will need to continue provgdar customers with a high-capacity, reliable sacure network. We face the risk, as
does any company, of a security breach or sigmifidésruption of our information technology infragtture and related systems (including our
billing systems). As a communications and informatiechnology company, we face an added risk tlsatarity breach or other significant
disruption of our public networks or informatiortkamology infrastructure and related systems thati@weslop, install, operate and maintain for
certain of our business and governmental custoowarsl lead to material interruptions or curtailneeat service. Moreover, due to the nature
of our customers and services, we face a heightéslethat a security breach or disruption coulsliiein unauthorized access to our
customers’ proprietary or classified informationarr public networks or internal systems or theeays that we operate and maintain for
certain of our customers.

We make significant efforts to maintain the sequaitd integrity of these types of information agdtems and maintain contingency
plans in the event of security breaches or othstesy disruptions. Nonetheless, we cannot assuréhgbwur security efforts and measures wil
prevent unauthorized access to our systems, lodsspruction of data (including confidential cli@mtormation), account takeovers,
unavailability of service, computer viruses, maleyasr other forms of cyber attacks or similar eseftese threats may derive from human
error, fraud, malice or sabotage on the part ofleyges, third parties or other nations, or couklliefrom accidental technological failure.
Similar to other large telecommunications companieshave been subject to a variety of securitadiies and cyber attacks, although to date
none of these have resulted in a material advéfset ®n our operating results or financial coratitiWe cannot assure you, however, that
future security breaches or disruptions would reosccessful or damaging, especially in light efghowing frequency, scope and
sophistication of cyber attacks and intrusions.é&y be unable to anticipate all potential typeattdcks or intrusions or to implement
adequate security barriers or other preventativasmes, and any resulting damages could be material

Additional risks to our network and infrastructimelude:
« power losses or physical damage, whether causéicebyadverse weather conditions, terrorism or nifise
« capacity or system configurance limitatic
« software and hardware obsolescence, defects ounuitbns
e programming, processing and other human erroi
« other disruptions that are beyond our con
Network disruptions, security breaches and othgiicant failures of the above-described systemsd:
« disrupt the proper functioning of these networkd aystems and therefore our operations or thosertdin of our customel

« result in the unauthorized access to, and detginy loss, theft, misappropriation or releas@miprietary, confidential, sensitive or
otherwise valuable information of ours, our custey@ our customers’ end users, including tradeesgecwhich others could use for
competitive, disruptive, destructive or otherwiserhful purposes and outcomes;

* require significant management attention orritial resources to remedy the damages that restdtahange our systems, including
expenses to repair systems, add new personnelelogeadditional protective systems;

* require us to offer expensive incentives toire¢éxisting customers or subject us to claims fortract breach, damages, credits, fines,
penalties, termination or other remedies, partitylaith respect to service standards set by segalatory commissions; or

« result in a loss of business, damage our repataimong our customers and the public generallyjest us to additional regulatory
scrutiny or expose us to litigation.

Likewise, our ability to expand and update our infation technology infrastructure in response togrowth and changing needs is
important to the continued implementation of owvreervice offering initiatives. Our failure to exyghor upgrade our technology infrastruct
could have adverse consequences, which could ia¢chaldelayed implementation of new service offggjrdecreased competitiveness of
existing service offerings, increased acquisitimegration costs, service or billing interruptioasd the diversion of development resources.
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Any or all of the foregoing developments could havweegative impact on our results of operatiomgrfcial condition and cash flows.

Increases in broadband usage may cause network c#gdimitations, resulting in service disruptionseduced capacity or slowe
transmission speeds for our customers.

Video streaming services and peer-to-peer fileisgapplications use significantly more bandwidthri traditional Internet activity such
as web browsing and email. As use of these neweices continues to grow, our high-speed Internstamers will likely use much more
bandwidth than in the past. If this occurs, we ddae required to make significant capital expendguo increase network capacity in order to
avoid service disruptions, service degradatiorlawer transmission speeds for our customers. Adtidraly, we could choose to implement
network management practices to reduce the neteaphcity available to bandwidth-intensive actiwtéuring certain times in market areas
experiencing congestion, which could negativelgeifour ability to retain and attract customeraffiected markets. While we believe demand
for these services may drive high-speed Interngtiocners to pay for faster broadband speeds, wenotaye able to recover the costs of the
necessary network investments. This could reswhiadverse impact to our operating margins, restilbperations and financial condition.

We may need to defend ourselves against claims wainfringe upon others’ intellectual property rigs, or we may need to seek thipawty
licenses to expand our product offerings.

From time to time, we receive notices from thirdtjgs or are named in lawsuits filed by third pestclaiming we have infringed or are
infringing upon their intellectual property rightd/e are currently responding to several of thesee®and claims. Like other communications
companies, we have received an increasing numbktbesé notices and claims in the past several yaatsexpect this industry-wide trend will
continue. Responding to these claims may requite egpend significant time and money defendingusg of the applicable technology, and
divert management’s time and resources away frérardiusiness. In certain instances, we may benextjtop enter into licensing agreements
requiring royalty payments or, in the case of &tign, to pay damages. If we are required to tadeear more of these actions, our profit
margins may decline. In addition, in respondinghitese claims, we may be required to stop sellingdesign one or more of our products or
services, which could significantly and adversdfget our business practices, results of operatiand financial condition.

Similarly, from time to time, we may need to obt#ie right to use certain patents or other intéligicproperty from third parties to be
able to offer new products and services. If we catinense or otherwise obtain rights to use amyired technology from a third party on
reasonable terms, our ability to offer new prodaetd services may be prohibited, restricted, maole rostly or delayed.

Our operations, financial performance and liquiditsre materially reliant on various third parties.

Reliance on other communications providers We rely on reseller and sales agency arrangemséttit®ther communications compan
to provide some of the services that we sell toamstomers, including video services and wirelesslycts and services. If we fail to extend or
renegotiate these arrangements as they expiretinoerto time or if these other companies fail tHilfctheir contractual obligations to us or @
customers, we may have difficulty finding altermatarrangements and our customers may experiesagtons to their services. In addition,
as a reseller or sales agent, we do not contradvh@ability, retail price, design, function, qitgl reliability, customer service or branding of
these products and services, nor do we directlyraball of the marketing and promotion of theseducts and services. To the extent that t
other companies make decisions that negatively étnar ability to market and sell their productsl aervices, our business plans and goals
and our reputation could be negatively impactethdte reseller and sales agency arrangementasueagssful due to one or more of these
risks, our business and operating results may bersely affected.

To offer voice or data services in certain of oarkets, we must either lease network capacity frmmmterconnect our network with the
infrastructure of, other communications companiés typically compete against us in those marketsil& to the risks summarized in the
prior paragraph, our reliance on these lease erdahnection arrangements limits our control otierquality of our services and exposes us tc
the risk that the other carrier may be unwillingctmtinue or renew these arrangements in the fatiterms favorable to us, or at all.

Conversely, certain of our operations carry a $icgmt amount of voice or data traffic for othemmmunications providers. Their reliance
on our services exposes us to the risk that thgytraasfer all or a portion of this traffic from onetwork to networks built, owned or leasec
them, thereby reducing our revenues.

Our operations and financial performance coulddeesely affected if our relationships with anytlvése other communications
companies are disrupted or terminated for any aeson, including if such other companies:

* go bankrupt or experience substantial financidlalifties;
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« suffer work stoppages or other labor st
 challenge our right to receive payments or serviceter applicable regulations or the terms of austimg contract arrangements
« are otherwise unable or unwilling to make paymentsrovide services to

Reliance on other key suppliers, vendors and landtds. We depend on a limited number of suppliers and eentbr equipment and
services relating to our network infrastructurer @gal exchange carrier networks consist of céiifece and remote sites, all with advanced
digital switches. If any of these suppliers expacinterruptions or other problems deliveringemvicing these network components on a
timely basis, our operations could suffer signifite. To the extent that proprietary technologyaafupplier is an integral component of our
network, we may have limited flexibility to purcleakey network components from alternative suppbes may be adversely affected if third
parties assert patent infringement claims agaimssoppliers or us. Similarly, our data center apens are materially reliant on leasing
significant amounts of space from landlords andstariial amounts of power from utility companiasd d&eing able to renew these
arrangements from time to time on favorable teimsddition, we rely on a limited number of soft@atendors to support our business
management systems. In the event it becomes negésseek alternative suppliers and vendors, we Ineaunable to obtain satisfactory
replacement supplies, services, space or utilitieeconomically attractive terms, on a timely basisat all, which could increase costs or ci
disruptions in our services.

Reliance on governmental paymentsWe receive a material amount of revenue or govent subsidies under various government
programs or our service contracts with federateséad local agencies. Governmental agencies frglgueserve the right to terminate their
contacts for convenience, or to suspend or delrapaaies from receiving future subsidies or consracider certain circumstances. If our
governmental contacts are terminated for any reamahwe are suspended or debarred from govertahgpnograms or contacts, our results of
operations and financial condition could be matigradversely affected.

Reliance on financial institutions. We rely on 18 financial institutions to provids with short-term liquidity under our credit fatyli If
one or more of these lenders default on their fupdommitments, our access to revolving credit@dad adversely affected.

Consolidation among other participants in the commigations industry may allow our competitors to cpete more effectively against us,
which could adversely affect our operating resuéiad financial condition.

The telecommunications and cable industries haperéanced substantial consolidation over the lasplte of decades, and some of our
competitors have combined with other communicatjmmasiders, resulting in larger competitors thatdngreater financial and business
resources and broader service offerings. Furthesal@ation could increase competitive pressuned,cduld adversely affect our operating
results and financial condition, as well as outighto service debt and pay other obligations.

If we fail to extend or renegotiate our collectilmrgaining agreements with our labor unions as thexpire from time to time, or if ou
unionized employees were to engage in a striketheowork stoppage, our business and operating fésaould be materially harmed.

Approximately 36%of our employees are members of various bargainiity represented by the Communications Workefsnodrica o
the International Brotherhood of Electrical Worked¥som time to time, our labor agreements with neiexpire and we typically negotiate the
terms of new bargaining agreements. We may be anabstkach new agreements, and union employee&nggage in strikes, work slowdowns
or other labor actions, which could materially dgrour ability to provide services and resultrinreased cost to us. In addition, new labor
agreements may impose significant new costs owhish could impair our financial condition or resubf operations in the future. To the
extent they contain benefit provisions, these agesds may also limit our flexibility to change bétsein response to industry or competitive
changes. In particular, the post-employment benpfibvided under these agreements could causeinsutocosts not faced by many of our
competitors, which could ultimately hinder our caetifive position.
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We have a significant amount of goodwill and othietangible assets on our balance sheet. If our godlti or other intangible assets become
impaired, we may be required to record a signifi¢arharge to earnings and reduce our stockholdergqudy.

Over 55% of our total consolidated assets refleotethe balance sheet included in this annual teqosist of goodwill or other
intangible assets. Under generally accepted acicmuptinciples, most of these intangible assetstiegested for impairment on an annual
basis or more frequently whenever events or circantes indicate that their carrying value may reotdroverable. From time to time (most
recently for the third quarter of 2013), we or poedecessors have recorded large non-cash chargamiings in connection with required
reductions of the value of our intangible assdtsut intangible assets are determined to be inegdir the future, we may be required to recort
additional significant, non-cash charges to eamhgying the period in which the impairment is deteed.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to con#rpaying dividends at the current rate.

Decisions on whether, when and in which amountea&e any future dividend distributions will remainall times entirely at the
discretion of our Board of Directors, which resertiee right to change or terminate our dividendficas at any time and for any reason. Bi
on current circumstances, we plan to continue aueat dividend practices. However, you should lvara that these practices are reviewed
periodically and are subject to change for reasioaismay include any of the following factors:

< we may not have enough cash to pay such divildné to changes in our cash requirements, capieaiding plans, stock repurchase
plans, cash flows or financial position;

« the effects of regulatory reform, including any eges to intercarrier compensation, Universal Serfignd or special access ru
 our desire to maintain or improve the credit ragiog our deb

 the amount of dividends that we may distribotedr shareholders is subject to restrictions uhdeisiana law and is limited by
restricted payment and leverage covenants in aditdiacilities and, potentially, the terms of dnjure indebtedness that we may
incur; and

« the amount of dividends that our subsidiariey dhiatribute to us is subject to restrictions imgedy state law, restrictions that have
been or may be imposed by state regulators in aimmewith obtaining necessary approvals for oupusitions, and restrictions
imposed by the terms of credit facilities applieatd certain subsidiaries and, potentially, thenteof any future indebtedness that
these subsidiaries may incur.

Our Board of Directors is free to change or suspandlividend practices at any time. Our commonedmaders should be aware that
they have no contractual or other legal right tad#inds.

Our current dividend practices could limit our alify to deploy cash for other beneficial purposes.

The current practice of our Board of Directors &y gommon share dividends reflects an intentiatigtyibute to our shareholders a
substantial portion of our cash flow. As a resul, may not retain a sufficient amount of cash oy other transactions that could be
beneficial to our shareholders or debtholderspiticlg stock buybacks, debt prepayments or capif@mrditures that strengthen our business.
In addition, our ability to pursue any material arpion of our business through acquisitions oreiased capital spending will depend more
than it otherwise would on our ability to obtaitrthparty financing. We cannot assure you that dirdncing will be available to us at terms
that are as favorable as those from which we pusiyobenefited, at terms that are acceptable tone, all.

Portions of our property, plant and equipment areclated on property owned by third partie

Over the past few years, certain utilities, coofreea and municipalities in certain of the statesvhich we operate have requested
significant rate increases for attaching our ptartheir facilities. To the extent that these émsitare successful in increasing the amount we p
for these attachments, our future operating costsnerease.

In addition, we rely on rights-of-way, colocatiograements and other authorizations granted by govemtal bodies and other third
parties to locate our cable, conduit and other agtvequipment on their respective properties. if ahthese authorizations terminate or lapse,
our operations could be adversely affected.

23




Table of Contents

We depend on key members of our senior managenmesnt

Our success depends largely on the skills, expegiand performance of a limited number of senificefs. Competition for senior
management in our industry is intense and we mag Héficulty retaining our current senior officess attracting new ones in the event of
terminations or resignations. For a discussiorirofiar retention concerns relating to our recemuasitions, please see the risks described
below under the heading “Risk Factors—Risks Refgtinour Recent Acquisitions.”

As a holding company, we rely on payments from ayerating companies to meet our obligatiol

As a holding company, substantially all of our im@and operating cash flow is dependent upon thengg of our subsidiaries and their
distribution of those earnings to us in the formdvidends, loans or other payments. As a resudtrely upon our subsidiaries to generate the
funds necessary to meet our obligations, includligpayment of amounts owed under our long-tern. d&lr subsidiaries are separate and
distinct legal entities and have no obligation &y @ny amounts owed by us or, subject to limiteckpiions for tax-sharing or cash
management purposes, to make any funds available tio repay our obligations, whether by dividehoans or other payments. State law
applicable to each of our subsidiaries restriotsatimount of dividends that they may pay. Restmnctithat have been or may be imposed by
regulators (either in connection with obtaining e&sary approvals for our acquisitions or in corinaatith our regulated operations), and
restrictions imposed by credit agreements appletbtertain of our subsidiaries may limit the amtoaf funds that our subsidiaries are
permitted to transfer to us, including the amoudrdieidends that may be paid to us. Moreover, ogints to receive assets of any subsidiary
upon its liquidation or reorganization will be effively subordinated to the claims of creditorgtadt subsidiary, including trade creditors. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations—Liquidity arapal Resources” included
elsewhere in this annual report for further distussf these matters.

Risks Relating to our Recent Acquisitions
We may be unable to integrate successfully our r@beacquired operations and realize the anticipdtbenefits of our recent acquisitions.

We acquired Embarq, Qwest and Savvis during a dgiyirmonth period between mid-2009 to mid-2011e§dacquisitions involved
the combination of companies which previously ofeetas independent public companies. We have divatel will continue to devote,
significant management attention and resourcestégiating the business practices and operatiohegdcy CenturyLink and the acquired
companies. We may encounter difficulties in thegnation process, including the following:

* the inability to successfully combine our busises in a manner that permits the combined comjoaaghieve the cost savings and
operating synergies anticipated to result fromabguisitions, either due to technological challengersonnel shortages, strikes or
otherwise, any of which would result in the antatgd benefits of the acquisitions not being redligartly or wholly in the time frame
anticipated or at all;

« delays or limitations in connection with offegimew products or providing current ones arisingafihe multiplicity of different
legacy systems, network and processes used byoétul companies;

* the complexities associated with managing thehined businesses out of several different locatand integrating personnel from
multiple companies, while at the same time attengptio provide consistent, high-quality products aadvices under a unified culture;

« the difficulties of producing combined financiaformation using dispersed personnel with diffeneast practices, including the
attendant risk of errors;

 the complexities of combining companies withfatiént histories, regulatory restrictions, costictres, products, sales forces,
markets, marketing strategies, and customer bases;

« the failure to retain key employees, some of whomid be critical to integrating, operating or exging the companie
« potential unknown liabilities and unforeseen insexhexpenses or regulatory conditions associatibdtiag acquisitions; al

« performance shortfalls at one or all of the camips as a result of the diversion of managemattestion caused by integrating the
companies’ operations.

In the last couple of years we have purchased akwotiter businesses to augment our data hostingesgg Integrating these newly-
acquired businesses into our data hosting opesatidhgive rise to similar challenges and risks.
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As discussed further under “Business—Network Amgttiire,” we are currently undertaking several caxptostly and time-consuming
projects to simplify and modernize our network, erhis an amalgam of our legacy network and the oedsvof companies we have acquire
the past.

For all these reasons, you should be aware thatouaining efforts to integrate these companiesharsihesses could distract our
management, disrupt our ongoing business or cheed@sistencies in our products, services, starsgaahtrols, procedures and policies, ar
which could adversely affect our ability to maimtaelationships with customers, vendors and empeye to achieve the anticipated benefits
of our recent acquisitions, or could otherwise aslely affect our business and financial results.

We may be unable to successfully adjust to the sai$al change in our markets and operations causeylour recent acquisitions.

Prior to our acquisition of Embarqg, we providedhpipally local exchange and internet services twsomers in predominantly rural areas
and small to mid-sized cities in 25 states. Assallteof our recent acquisitions, we now provideweisified array of communications services
to residential, business, governmental and whaesadtomers in a wide range of markets throughmitnited States and internationally.
While we believe we have adequately adjusted oategjies, management, operating models and ordemiabstructures to address these
changes, we cannot assure you that further adjossmméll not be required in the future.

Our acquisitions of Qwest and Savvis have increased exposure to the risks of operating internatialty.

Prior to 2011, substantially all of our operatiovere historically conducted within the continentalited States. Our acquisitions of
Qwest and Savvis in 2011 increased the importahtg#ernational operations to our future operatijagrewth and prospects.

Our foreign operations are subject to varying degi@ regulation in each of the foreign jurisdinBan which we provide services. Local
laws and regulations, and their interpretation enfiircement, differ significantly among those jdit$ions, and can change significantly over
time. Future regulatory, judicial and legislativeaages or interpretations may have a material agdwffect on our ability to deliver services
within various foreign jurisdictions. Many of thef®eign laws and regulations relating to commutiice services are more restrictive than
U.S. laws and regulations, particularly those ne¢ato content distributed over the Internet. Fxaraple, the European Union has enacted a
data retention system that, once implemented hyiohehl member states, will involve requirementsetain certain Internet protocol, or IP,
data that could have an impact on our operatiofsinope. Moreover, national regulatory framewote are consistent with the policies and
requirements of the World Trade Organization havg cecently been, or are still being, enacted angncountries. Accordingly, many
countries are still in the early stages of providiaor and adapting to a liberalized telecommuna&imarket. As a result, in these markets we
may encounter more protracted and difficult proceduo obtain licenses necessary to provide thedtlof products we offer.

In addition to these international regulatory riskeme of the other risks inherent in conductingiess internationally include:
* tax, licensing, currency, political or other busiseestrictions or requiremer

 import and export restrictior

 longer payment cycles and problems collecting actsoteceivable

+ additional U.S. and other regulation of non-detizeoperations, including regulation under thedigm Corrupt Practices Act, or
FCPA, as well as other anti-corruption laws;

« economic, social and political instability, wittie attendant risks of terrorism, kidnapping, eita, civic unrest and potential seizure
or nationalization of assets;

« fluctuations in currency exchange ra
« the ability to secure and maintain the necessaygipal and telecommunications infrastruct

« the inability to enforce contract rights eithiere to underdeveloped legal systems or governnutiona that result in a deprivation of
contract rights;

* laws, policies or practices that limit the scaf@perations that can legally or practicably baducted within any particular country;
and
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« challenges in staffing and managing foreign opena
Any one or more of these factors could adversdlcabur international operations.

Moreover, in order to effectively compete in centiireign jurisdictions, it is frequently necessaryrequired to establish joint ventures,
strategic alliances or marketing arrangements lwithl operators, partners or agents. Reliance cal lwperators, partners or agents could
expose us to the risk of being unable to contreldtope or quality of our overseas services orymtsd or being held liable under the FCPA or
other anti-corruption laws for actions taken by suategic or local partners or agents even thaligbe partners or agents may not themselve
be subject to the FCPA or other applicable antitgaion laws. Any determination that we have vieththe FCPA or other antbrruption law:
could have a material adverse effect on our busjmesults of operations, reputation or prospects.

We expect to incur substantial expenses relatethtocompletion of the integration of Qwest.

We have incurred, and expect to continue to inswipstantial expenses in connection with the integraf Qwest’s business, operations,
networks, systems, technologies, policies and phaess with our own. We have integrated a numbeuofystems, and we continue to work
towards completing the planned integration of @maining systems. Until this integration is comgtbtwe cannot accurately predict the total
amount or the timing of our integration expenses.

Our acquisitions have increased our exposure to tieks of fluctuations in energy costs, power outagand availability of electrical
resources.

Through the acquisitions of Qwest and Savvis, westealded a significant number of data center tasli which are susceptible to
regional costs and supply of power and electrioa¥qr outages. In addition, our energy costs castifate significantly or increase for a variety
of reasons, including changes in legislation amilietion. Several pending proposals designed tacedreenhouse emissions could
substantially increase our energy costs. As eneogts increase, we may not always be able to padsedncreased costs of energy to our
clients, which could harm our business. Our clietitsnand for power may also exceed the power capercolder data centers, which may
limit our ability to fully utilize these data cemge Moreover, the increasing power demands of tedssrvers may cause our demand for powel
in certain of our data centers to exceed the supydjlable from third parties. Any one or moreloéte developments could adversely affec
relationships with our clients and hinder our a@pild run our data centers, which could harm owiress.

Our inability to renew data center leases, on faable terms or at all, could have a negative impaatour financial results.

A significant majority of the data centers we acediin the Qwest and Savvis acquisitions are leasdchave lease terms that expire
between 2013 and 2031. The majority of these lgaisrsde us with the opportunity to renew the leaseur option for periods generally
ranging from five to ten years. Many of these realeaptions, however, provide that rent for the wealeperiod will be equal to the fair market
rental rate at the time of renewal. If the fair kerental rates are significantly higher than cunrent rental rates, we may be unable to offset
these costs by charging more for our services, lwbizild have a negative impact on our financialltesAlso, it is possible that a landlord
may insist on other financially unfavorable reneteains or, where no further option to renew exislisct not to renew altogether.

Any additional future acquisitions by us would sugat us to additional business, operating and findalaisks, the impact of which cannc
presently be evaluated, and could adversely impagtcapital structure or financial position

From time to time in the future we may pursue o#euisition opportunities. To the extent we acgjaitbusiness that is highly leveraged
or is otherwise subject to a high level of risk, nvay be affected by the currently unascertainables rof that business. In addition, the
financing of any future acquisition completed bycosild adversely impact our capital structure paficial position, as any such financing
would likely include the issuance of additionalsaties or the borrowing of additional funds. Extap required by law or applicable securities
exchange listing standards, we do not expect tmaskhareholders to vote on any proposed acaurisitiloreover, we generally do not
announce our acquisitions until we have enteremarpreliminary or definitive agreement.

Risks Relating to Legal and Regulatory Matters

Any adverse outcome of the KPNQwest litigation,adher material litigation of Qwest, Savvis or Cemylink, could have a material advers
impact on our financial condition and operating redts, on the trading price of our securities and @ur ability to access the capital
markets.

As described in Note 15—Commitments and Contingento our consolidated financial statements inaduglsewhere in this annual
report, the KPNQwest lawsuit brought against u€hygill Financial Markets, Plc and Citibank, N.Aepents significant risk to us. The
plaintiffs seek hundreds of millions of dollarsdamages. We continue to vigorously defend the compathat lawsuit.
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We are currently unable to provide an estimat®dlse timing of the resolution of this matter. We@ive no assurance as to the impact:
on our financial results or financial condition tinaay ultimately result from the Cargill/Citibankwsuit. The ultimate outcome remains
uncertain, and a substantial settlement or judgrmettiis matter could have a significant impactusn The magnitude of such a settlement or
judgment could materially and adversely affect financial condition and ability to meet our debtigations, potentially impacting our cret
ratings, our ability to access capital markets amdcompliance with debt covenants. In additioe, tiagnitude of a settlement or judgment
cause us to draw down significantly on our cashiregs, which might force us to obtain additionadficing or explore other methods to
generate cash. Such methods could include issdidigg@al debt securities or selling assets.

There are other material proceedings pending apasnss described in the abaederenced Note 15. Depending on their outcome of
these matters could have a material adverse eaffeotir financial position or operating results. ¥é@ give you no assurances as to the impac
of these matters on our operating results or fiimondition.

We operate in a highly regulated industry and atrestefore exposed to restrictions on our operatiaargd a variety of claims relating to such
regulation.

General. We are subject to significant regulation by i@ Federal Communications Commission (“FCC"), whietjulates interstate
communications, (ii) state utility commissions, athiregulate intrastate communications, and (iifjouss foreign governments and internatic
bodies, which regulate our international operati@msnerally, we must obtain and maintain certisadf authority or licenses from these
bodies in most territories where we offer regulagedsices. We cannot assure you that we will beesssful in obtaining or retaining all licen
necessary to carry out our business plan, and, iévenare, the prescribed service standards anditons imposed on us in connection with
obtaining or acquiring control of these licensey imapose on us substantial costs and limitations.afé also subject to numerous
requirements and interpretations under variougnatenal, federal, state and local laws, rules @gdilations, which are often quite detailed
and occasionally in conflict with each other. Aatiagly, we cannot ensure that we are always corsiti® be in compliance with all these
requirements at any single point in time. The ag=nesponsible for the enforcement of these lawkss and regulations may initiate inquiries
or actions based on customer complaints or on tveir initiative.

Regulation of the telecommunications industry amngis to change rapidly, and the regulatory enviemtraaries substantially from
jurisdiction to jurisdiction. Notwithstanding a et movement towards alternative regulation, atsmiigl portion of our local voice servic
revenue remains subject to FCC and state utilitgragssion pricing regulation, which periodically eggs us to pricing or earnings disputes
and could expose us to unanticipated price declinesrexchange carriers have filed complaintsarious forums requesting reductions in our
access rates. In addition, several long distanoeigers are disputing or refusing to pay amounteave us for carrying Voice over Internet
Protocol (“VolP”) traffic, or traffic they claim tbe VolP traffic. There can be no assurance thatdéuegulatory, judicial or legislative
activities will not have a material adverse effectour operations, or that regulators or thirdipanwvill not raise material issues with regard to
our compliance or noncompliance with applicableutations.

Risks associated with recent changes in federal relgtion . On October 27, 2011, the FCC adopted the Corkeetrica and
Intercarrier Compensation Reform order (“CAF ordlémtended to reform the existing regulatory regitmeecognize ongoing shifts to new
technologies, including VolP, and gradually re-direderal universal service funding to foster miatvide broadband coverage. This initial
ruling provides for a multi-year transition oveethext decade as intercarrier compensation chargagduced, federal universal service
funding is explicitly targeted to broadband depla@y) and subscriber line charges paid by end-usgtomers are gradually increased. We
expect these changes will substantially increasgé#te of reductions in the amount of switched scoevenues we receive in our wholesale
business, while creating opportunities for increasadederal Universal Service Fund (“USF”) andailetevenue streams. Several judicial
challenges to the CAF order are pending and additifuture challenges are possible, any of whiakicalter or delay the FCC's proposed
changes. In addition, based on the outcome of @@ proceedings, various state commissions may @enshanges to their universal service
funds or intrastate access rates. Moreover, rulergadesigned to implement the CAF order is not cletep and several FCC proceedings
relating to the order remain pending. For theseathdr reasons, we cannot predict the ultimate anpbthese proceedings at this time.

In addition, during the last few years CongrestherFCC has initiated various other changes, imetu¢l) broadband stimulus projects,
support funds and similar plans and (i) new “netwoeutrality” rules. The FCC is also consideritgueges in the regulation of special access
services. Any of these recent or pending initiatigeuld adversely affect our operations or findn@sults. Moreover, many of the FCC'’s
regulations adopted in recent years remain sulgaticial review and additional rulemakings, thmsreasing the difficulty of determining t
ultimate impact of these changes on us and our etitogs.

27




Table of Contents

Risks of higher costs Regulations continue to create significant céstais. Challenges to our tariffs by regulatorghird parties or
delays in obtaining certifications and regulatopp@vals could cause us to incur substantial lagdladministrative expenses, and, if
successful, such challenges could adversely dfieatates that we are able to charge our customers.

Our business also may be impacted by legislatiohragulation imposing new or greater obligatioratesl to regulations or laws related
to broadband deployment, bolstering homeland sigcarricyber security, increasing disaster recoveguirements, minimizing environmental
impacts, enhancing privacy, protecting intellecfuaperty rights of third parties, or addressingentissues that impact our business, including
the Communications Assistance for Law Enforcemestt(&hich requires communications carriers to e@shat their equipment, facilities, a
services are able to facilitate authorized eledtrearveillance), and laws governing local numbentability and customer proprietary network
information requirements. We expect our compliaca®ts to increase if future laws or regulationstione to increase our obligations to assist
other governmental agencies.

In addition, increased regulation of our suppli@yald increase our costs. For instance, if enhanegalation of greenhouse gas emiss
increase our energy costs, the profitability of data hosting and other operations could be adyeaffected.

Risks of reduced flexibility . As a diversified full service incumbent local Baage carrier in most of our key markets, we have
traditionally been subject to significant regulatitvat does not apply to many of our competitohss Tegulation in many instances restricts ou
ability to change rates, to compete and to respapidily to changing industry conditions. As our ibess becomes increasingly competitive,
regulatory disparities between us and our compstitould impede our ability to compete.

Risks posed by other regulations All of our operations are also subject to a \gra environmental, safety, health and other
governmental regulations. We monitor our complianwigé federal, state and local regulations govegriee management, discharge and
disposal of hazardous and environmentally sensitigierials. Although we believe that we are in chamge with these regulations, our
management, discharge or disposal of hazardousraridbnmentally sensitive materials might exposéouslaims or actions that could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finargatition and operating results.

“Net neutrality” legislation or regulation could Imit our ability to operate our high-speed data bosss profitably and to manage our
broadband facilities efficiently.

In order to continue to provide quality high-spelada service at attractive prices, we believe waaribe continued flexibility to respond
to changing consumer demands, to manage bandwsdtielefficiently and to invest in our networks2010, the FCC adopted “net neutrality”
regulations that curtailed our operational flextlil Although a federal appeals court vacated thakes in January 2014, the FCC or Congress
could adopt similar measures in the future. Anyhsmeasures could adversely impact our ability terage our high-speed data network
profitably and to implement the upgrades and nétwoanagement practices that may be needed to certiinprovide high quality high-speed
data services, and could therefore negatively impacability to compete effectively.

We may be liable for the material that content prders distribute over our network.

Although we believe our liability for third partpfiormation carried on, stored or disseminated thhoour networks is limited, the law
relating to the liability of private network opeoas, such as us, is not entirely clear. As suchcovedd be exposed to legal claims relating to
third party content disseminated on our networkain® could challenge the accuracy of materialsannetwork, or could involve matters
such as defamation, invasion of privacy or copytrigfringement. If we need to take costly meastioe®duce our exposure to these risks, or
are required to defend ourselves against such sjainor financial results could be negatively affelct

We are subject to franchising requirements that ¢dimpede our expansion opportunities.

We may be required to obtain from municipal autiiesioperating franchises to install or expandiitées. Some of these franchises may
require us to pay franchise fees. These franchigiggirements generally apply to our fiber transpod competitive local exchange carrier
operations, and to our facilities-based video sexwi These requirements could delay us in exparmdingperations or increase the costs of
providing these services.
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We are exposed to risks arising out of recent Idgfion affecting U.S. public companies.

Changing laws, regulations and standards relatirptporate governance and public disclosure, distuthe Sarbane®xley Act and th
Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Praiadiict, and related regulations implemented thedeyrare increasing legal and
financial compliance costs and making some acatiwithore time consuming. Any failure to successfotlyimely complete annual assessment
of our internal controls required by Section 404haf Sarbanes-Oxley Act could subject us to sanstiw investigation by regulatory
authorities. Any such action could adversely affaat financial results or our reputation with int@s, lenders or others.

For a more thorough discussion of the regulatmsyds that may affect our business, see “Regulatiohi2m 1 of Part | of this annual
report.

Risks Affecting our Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our high debt levels pose risks to our viabilitymay make us more vulnerable to adverse economit @ompetitive conditions, as well as
other adverse developments.

We continue to carry significant debt. As of DecemB1, 2013 , our consolidated debt was approxim&el.0 billion . Approximately
$2.6 billion of our consolidated debt securitiesneodue over the 36 months following the date of érinual report.

Our significant levels of debt can adversely affexin several other respects, including:
« limiting the ability of CenturyLink and its subsaties to access the capital mark
« exposing CenturyLink and its subsidiaries to tls& of credit rating downgrades, as described furbledow
« hindering our flexibility to plan for or react tthanging market, industry or economic conditi
« limiting the amount of cash flow available for fotuwperations, acquisitions, dividends, stock relpases or other us
< making us more vulnerable to economic or industyeturns, including interest rate increa
* placing us at a competitive disadvantage comparésks leveraged competitc

« increasing the risk that we will need to selfisdties or assets, possibly on unfavorable teomseduce or terminate our dividend
payments, to meet payment obligations; or

« increasing the risk that we may not meet tharfgial covenants contained in our debt agreemerisiely make all required debt
payments.

The effects of each of these factors could be sitied if we increase our borrowings.
Any failure to make required debt payments coutdpag other things, adversely affect our abiliteémduct operations or raise capital.

We expect to periodically require financing, and wannot assure you that we will be able to obtairck financing on terms that are
acceptable to us, or at all.

We have a significant amount of indebtedness tleaintend to refinance over the next several ygaiscipally through the issuance of
debt securities of CenturyLink, Qwest Corporatiofoth. Our ability to arrange additional financiwdl depend on, among other factors, our
financial position, performance, and credit ratirgswell as prevailing market conditions and ofaetors beyond our control. Prevailing
market conditions could be adversely affected lsyuglitions in domestic or overseas sovereign debitats contractions or limited growth in
the economy or other similar adverse economic dgveénts in the U.S. or abroad. Instability in tkabgl financial markets has from time to
time resulted in periodic volatility in the capitalarkets. This volatility could limit our accessthe credit markets, leading to higher borrowing
costs or, in some cases, the inability to obtaiariting on terms that are as favorable as thoseireich we previously benefitted, on terms
that are acceptable to us, or at all. Any suclufaito obtain additional financing could jeopardize ability to repay, refinance or reduce our
debt obligations.

We may also need to obtain additional financingasralvariety of other circumstances, including if:
 revenues and cash provided by operations de

« economic conditions weaken, competitive pressure®ase or regulatory requirements che
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« we engage in any acquisitions or undertake subistamafpital projects or other initiatives that iaase our cash requireme
* we are required to contribute a material amourash to our pension pla

« we are required to begin to pay other pesirement benefits earlier than anticipa

« our payments of federal taxes increase faster graater amounts than currently anticipate

* we become subject to significant judgments tifesaents in one or more of the matters discussédbie 15—Commitments and
Contingencies to our consolidated financial stat@sacluded elsewhere in this annual report.

For all the reasons mentioned in the prior pardgraye can give no assurance that additional fimanfar any of these purposes will be
available on terms that are acceptable to us alt.at

In addition, our ability to borrow funds in the fmé will depend in part on the satisfaction of te@enants in our credit facilities and otl
debt agreements. If we are unable to satisfy thenfiial covenants contained in those agreemengsegamable to generate cash sufficient to
make required debt payments, the parties to whorareéndebted could accelerate the maturity of sonal of our outstanding indebtedness.
Certain of our debt instruments have cross paymefatult or cross acceleration provisions. Whengmgghese provisions could have a wider
impact on liquidity than might otherwise arise frandefault or acceleration of a single debt insenmSee “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggtems—L.iquidity and Capital Resources” elsewherthis annual report for additional
information about our credit facility.

If we are unable to make required debt paymentsforance our debt, we would likely have to consiatther options, such as selling
assets, issuing additional securities, reducingmninating our dividend payments, cutting coststberwise reducing our cash requirements,
or negotiating with our lenders to restructuredpelicable debt. Our credit agreement and the itmles governing our senior notes may
restrict, or market or business conditions maytlimir ability to do some of these things on fatdederms or at all.

Any downgrade in the credit ratings of us or ourféiates could limit our ability to obtain future ihancing, increase our borrowing costs a
adversely affect the market price of our existinglit securities or otherwise impair our businessdncial condition and results of
operations.

Nationally recognized credit rating organizatioasé issued credit ratings relating to our long-teiebt and the long-term debt of severa
of our subsidiaries that are below “investment gra@here can be no assurance that any ratingreessigp any of these debt securities will
remain in effect for any given period of time oatlany such ratings will not be lowered, susperatagithdrawn entirely by a rating agency if,
in that rating agency'’s judgment, circumstancesaant.

A downgrade of any of these credit ratings could:
« adversely affect the market price of some or abbwf outstanding debt or equity securil
« limit our access to the capital markets or otheeveidversely affect the availability of other nemaficing on favorable terms, if at

« trigger the application of restrictive covenaintgertain of our debt agreements or result in newore restrictive covenants in
agreements governing the terms of any future irethtess that we may incur;

« increase our cost of borrowing; ¢
* impair our business, financial condition and resoltoperation:

Under certain circumstances upon a change of confnwe will be obligated to offer to repurchase cairt of our outstanding debt securities,
which could have certain adverse ramifications.

If the credit ratings relating to certain of oungpterm debt securities are downgraded in the maspeified thereunder in connection
with a “change of control” of CenturyLink, then wall be required to offer to repurchase such delsusities. If, due to lack of cash, legal or
contractual impediments, or otherwise, we fail fi@ioto repurchase such debt securities, suchréatould constitute an event of default under
such debt securities, which could in turn constitudefault under other of our agreements relatiraur indebtedness outstanding at that time
Moreover, the existence of these repurchase cov®naay in certain circumstances make it more diffior discourage a sale or takeover o
or the removal of our incumbent directors.
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Our debt agreements and the debt agreements ofsalosidiaries allow us to incur significantly moreetht, which could exacerbate the other
risks described in this annual report.

The terms of our debt instruments and the debtumstnts of our subsidiaries permit additional indehess. Additional debt may be
necessary for many reasons, including those disdweisove. Incremental borrowings that impose aatditifinancial risks could exacerbate
other risks described in this annual report.

Our business requires us to incur substantial cagiand operating expenses, which reduce our avaliéafsee cash flow.

Our business is capital intensive, and we antieipiaat our capital requirements will continue tosignificant in the coming years. As
discussed further under “Risk Factors—Risks AffagtOur Business—Increases in broadband usage miag ca&twork capacity limitations,
resulting in service disruptions, reduced capamitglower transmission speeds for our customensyeased bandwidth consumption by
consumers and businesses have placed increasedateorathe transmission capacity of our networfksel determine that our networks must
be expanded to handle these increased demandsaywbanwequired to make substantial capital experesit even though there is no assuranc
that the return on our investment will be satisfagtIn addition, many of our growth and modernizatnitiatives are capital intensive and
changes in technology could require further spemdim addition to investing in expanded networksyrproducts or new technologies, we
must from time to time replace some of the equipntieat supports our traditional services as thaigent ages, even though the revenue
base from those services is not growing. While ekele that our planned level of capital expeneéisuwvill meet both our maintenance and
core growth requirements, this may not be the fat®mmands on our network continue to accelerawtoer circumstances underlying our
expectations change. Increased spending could, gutber things, adversely affect our operating nms;gcash flows, results of operations i
financial position. Similarly, we continue to arnpiate incurring substantial operating expensesippart our incumbent services and growth
initiatives.

We cannot assure you whether, when or in what amtauwe will be able to use our net operating lossaswhen they will be depleted.

At December 31, 2013, we had approximately $2l®biof federal net operating losses, or NOLs, ebhielate primarily to pre-
acquisition losses of Qwest. Under certain circamaes, these NOLs can be used to offset our fiedexal and certain taxable income.

The acquisitions of Qwest and Savvis caused “ovimigichanges” under federal tax laws relating toube of NOLs. As a result, these
laws could limit our ability to use these NOLs amdtain other deferred tax attributes. Furthertitimns could apply if we are deemed to
undergo an ownership change in the future. Despile we expect to use substantially all of thes§# Bland certain other deferred tax attrib
as an offset to our federal future taxable incom@®l5, although the timing of that use will depemdn the consolidated group’s future
earnings and future tax circumstances. If and wherNOLs are fully utilized, we expect that the ambof our cash flow dedicated to the
payment of federal taxes will increase substantiall

Increases in costs for pension and healthcare betsefior our active and retired employees may redwes profitability and increase ou
funding commitments

With approximately 47,000 current employees, anat@amately 66,000 pension retirees and approxim&@®,000 former employees
with vested benefits as of December 31, 2013 ppatig in our benefit plans, the costs of pensind healthcare benefits for our active and
retired employees have a significant impact ongoafitability. Our costs of maintaining our pensiand healthcare plans, and the future
funding requirements for these plans, are affebjeskeveral factors, most of which are outside amtrol, including:

« decreases in investment returns on funds held bpension and other benefit plan tru
« changes in prevailing interest rates and theodist rate used to calculate pension and otherrptistment expense
* increases in healthcare costs generally or clairhmited under our healthcare plans specific

« the continuing implementation of the PatienttBction and Affordable Care Act, and the relatembneiliation act and regulations
promulgated thereunder;

« increases in the numberretirees who elect to receive lump sum benefit pays
« changes in plan benefits; ¢
« changes in funding laws or regulatic

Increased costs under these plans could redugarofitability and increase our funding commitmetttour pension plans. Any future
material cash contributions could have a negatiygaict on our liquidity by reducing our cash flows.

31




Table of Contents

As of December 31, 2013, our pension plans anathar post-retirement benefit plans were substiytinderfunded from an
accounting standpoint. See Note 8—Employee Benefitsir consolidated financial statements incluelséwhere in this annual report. For
more information on our obligations under our defibenefit pension plans and other post-retirefnenéfit plans, please see “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Reseste-Pension and Post-retirement
Benefit Obligations” included elsewhere in this mahreport.

Other Risks

If conditions or assumptions differ from the judgmeés, assumptions or estimates used in our critieacounting policies, our consolidate
financial statements and related disclosures cobke materially affected

The preparation of financial statements and reldteclosures in conformity with U.S. generally guieel accounting principles requires
management to make judgments, assumptions andagstiihat affect the amounts reported in such imastatements and accompanying
notes. Our critical accounting policies, which described in “Management’s Discussion and Analgéisinancial Condition and Results of
Operations—Critical Accounting Policies and Estiegdtin Item 7 of Part Il of this Annual Report oarf 10-K, describe those significant
accounting policies and methods used in the préiparaf our consolidated financial statements dratconsidered “critical” because they
require judgments, assumptions and estimates thtgrially impact our consolidated financial stataetseand related disclosures. As a result, if
future events or assumptions differ significantignfi the judgments, assumptions and estimates iordigal accounting policies, these events
or assumptions could have a material impact orconsolidated financial statements and related asseces.

We face hurricane and other natural disaster riskghich can disrupt our operations and cause us mair substantial additional capital an
operating costs.

A substantial number of our facilities are locaitedrlorida, Alabama, Louisiana, Texas, North CaraliSouth Carolina and other coastal
states, which subjects them to the risks assocwitbdsevere tropical storms, hurricanes and toseadincluding downed telephone lines,
flooded facilities, power outages, fuel shortagisnaged or destroyed property and equipment, anklimerruptions. Although we maintain
property and casualty insurance on our plant (eiatuour outside plant) and may under certain cvstances be able to seek recovery of <
additional costs through increased rates, onlyrigroof our additional costs directly related tack hurricanes and natural disasters have
historically been recoverable. We cannot prediottivbr we will continue to be able to obtain inseeafor hazard-related damages or, if
obtainable and carried, whether this insurancebeiladequate to cover our losses. In addition,xpea any insurance of this nature to be
subject to substantial deductibles and to provideofemium adjustments based on claims. Any futhazard-related costs and work
interruptions could adversely affect our operatiand our financial condition.

Tax audits or changes in tax laws could adverseffeat us.

Like all large businesses, we are subject to fragjaad regular audits by the Internal Revenue 8Seras well as state and local tax
authorities. These audits could subject us toitdilities if adverse positions are taken by thteseauthorities.

We believe that we have adequately provided foctaxingencies. However, our tax audits and exatioing.may result in tax liabilities
that differ materially from those that we have miaed in our consolidated financial statementsaBee the ultimate outcomes of all of these
matters are uncertain, we can give no assuranevasether an adverse result from one or moreahtiwvill have a material effect on our
financial results.

Effective for tax years beginning after 2012, Trexpayer Relief Act of 2012 results in certain higheme taxpayers being subject to
increased tax rates on dividends and capital gaidditionally, these high-income taxpayers are alsbject to a 3.8% Medicare tax on net
investment income. These or other potential in@g#s tax rates could reduce demand for our stehich could potentially depress its trading
price.

Our agreements and organizational documents and laggble law could limit another party’s ability tacquire us.

A number of provisions in our agreements and omgitinal documents and various provisions of applie law may delay, defer or
prevent a future takeover of CenturyLink unlessti@over is approved by our Board of Directors. &gatditional information, please see our
Registration Statement on Form 8-A/A filed with tBEC July 1, 2009. This could deprive our sharedrsldf any related takeover premium.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our property, plant and equipment consists prirbyipd telephone lines, cable, central office equgnt, land and buildings related to
operations. Our gross property, plant and equiproensisted of the following components as of thim¥zing dates:

December 31,

2013 2012
Land 2% 2%
Fiber, conduit and other outside plént 41% 40%
Central office and other network electronits 35% 35%
Support asset’ 19% 20%
Construction in progress 3% 3%
10C% 100%

Gross property, plant and equipment

(1) Fiber, conduit and other outside plant consist#hef and metallic cable, conduit, poles and othgporting structure

(2) Central office and other network electronics cassig circuit and packet switches, routers, trassion electronics and electronics providing sertaceustomer:

(3) Support assets consist of buildings, computersoéimet administrative and support equipr

(4) Construction in progress includes inventorighier construction and property of the aforememeiod categories that has not been placed in sesidss still under
construction.

We own substantially all of our telecommunicati@gsiipment required for our business. However, \wedecertain facilities, plant,
equipment and software under various capital leasengements when the leasing arrangements arefavar@ble to us than purchasing the

assets.

We also own and lease administrative offices inomajetropolitan locations both in the United Stated internationally. Substantially
all of our network electronics equipment is locatetuildings or on land that we own or lease withur local service area. Outside of our I
service area, our assets are generally locatedadproperty pursuant to an agreement with thegatgwner or another person with rights to
the property. It is possible that we may lose @gits under one or more of these agreements, dileitctermination or expiration.

With the acquisitions of Qwest in April 2011 andv&@a in July 2011, we expanded our property toudel data center assets, and the
related facilities and communications equipment Tdzilities that house Qwest's and Savvis' warsbsunetwork equipment and data centers

are leased.

We have reclassified certain prior year balancetshmounts presented in our Annual Report on Fd@+K for the year ended December
31, 2012 to conform to the current period pres@tiaSpecifically, we have reclassified $123 millim software development costs, net of $3(
million in accumulated amortization, from propenyant and equipment to other intangible asseusrtonsolidated balance sheet as of

December 31, 2012.

Some of our property, plant and equipment is plddgesecure the long-term debt of subsidiaries. i@tproperty, plant and equipment
was $18.6 billion and $18.9 billion at December 3113 and 2012 , respectively.

Several putative class actions have been filechagas disputing our use of certain rights-of-waydascribed in "Legal Proceedings—
Litigation Matters Relating to Qwest" in Item 3tbfs annual report. If we lose any of these righftsvay or are unable to renew them, we may
find it necessary to move or replace the affectatigns of our network. However, we do not currgmkpect any material adverse impacts as

result of the loss of any of these rights.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are vigorously defending against all of the srattescribed below. As a matter of course, weagared both to litigate the matters
to judgment, as well as to evaluate and consideettlement opportunities. In this section, whenrefer to a class action as "putative" it is
because a class has been alleged, but not certiftedt matter. We have established accrued iiasilfor the matters described below where
losses are deemed probable and reasonably estimable

Litigation Matters Relating to CenturyLink and Embg

In William Douglas Fulghum, et al. v. Embarqg Corpoastj et al., filed on December 28, 2007 in the United Statiss$ri@t Court for the
District of Kansas, a group of retirees filed agtivie class action lawsuit challenging the decismmake certain modifications in retiree
benefits programs relating to life insurance, meldicsurance and prescription drug benefits, gdiyezéfective January 1, 2006 and January 1
2008 (which, at the time of the modifications, veapected to reduce estimated future expensesdmubject benefits by more than $300
million ). Defendants include Embarq, certain sfbenefit plans, its Employee Benefits Committee the individual plan administrator of
certain of its benefits plans. Additional defendantlude Sprint Nextel and certain of its benglins. The Court certified a class on certain of
plaintiffs’ claims, but rejected class certificatias to other claims. On October 14, 2011 Rhighumlawyers filed a new, related lawsuit,
Abbott et al. v. Sprint Nextel et CenturyLink/Embarg is not named a defendant indkesuit. InAbbott,approximately 1,500 plaintiffs allege
breach of fiduciary duty in connection with the obas in retiree benefits that also are at isstieeiRulghumcase. Thébbottplaintiffs are all
members of the class that was certifie@ririghumon claims for allegedly vested benefits (Countsd Hl), and theAbbottclaims are similar t
the Fulghumbreach of fiduciary duty claim (Count II), on whithe Fulghumcourt denied class certification. The Court hagesteproceedings
in Abbottindefinitely. On February 14, 2013, tRelghumcourt dismissed the majority of the plaintiffs'iofa in that case. On July 16, 2013,
the Fulghumcourt granted plaintiffs' request to seek intertocyreview by the United States Court of Appealsthe Tenth Circuit. Embarq
and the other defendants will defend the appealtjrmae to vigorously contest any remaining claimgulghumand seek to have the claims in
the Abbottcase dismissed on similar grounds. We have notiada liability for these matters because we belieis premature (i) to
determine whether an accrual is warranted andf €0, to determine a reasonable estimate of griedability.

In December 2009, subsidiaries of CenturyLink fited lawsuits against subsidiaries of Sprint Nettelecover terminating access
charges for VolP traffic owed under various intengection agreements and tariffs which originallpaximated $34 million in the aggregate.
In connection with the first lawsuit, a federal dom Virginia issued a ruling in our favor, whicasulted in Sprint paying us approximately $24
million . The other lawsuit is pending in federalct in Louisiana. In that case, in early 2011 @wairt dismissed certain of CenturyLink's
claims, referred other claims to the FCC, and stake litigation. In April 2012, Sprint Nextel fillea petition with the FCC, seeking a
declaratory ruling that CenturyLink's access chaudge not apply to VolP originated calls. We havedeferred any revenue recognition rele
to these matters.

Litigation Matters Relating to Qwes

On July 16, 2013, Comcast MO Group, Inc. ("Comqgddtd a lawsuit in Colorado state court againstg®t Communications
International, Inc. ("Qwest"). Comcast alleges Quirsached the parties' 1998 tax sharing agreeiEBA") when it refused to partially
indemnify Comcast for a tax liability settlementr@cast reached with the Commonwealth of Massaclsusett dispute to which we were not a
party. Comcast seeks approximately $80 millionamdges, excluding interest. Qwest and Comcastaatiepto the TSA in their capacities as
successors to the TSA's original parties, U S WHRG., a telecommunications company, and MediaOruifg Inc., a cable television
company, respectively. We have not accrued a iiglidr this matter because we do not believe liadiflity is probable.

On September 29, 2010, the trustees in the Dutckrbptcy proceeding for KPNQwest, N.V. (of which €stwas a major shareholder)
filed a lawsuit in the District Court of Haarlenhgt Netherlands, alleging tort and mismanagemeinslander Dutch law. Qwest and
Koninklijke KPN N.V. ("KPN") are defendants in thimwsuit along with a number of former KPNQwestewisory board members and a
former officer of KPNQwest, some of whom were formaffiliated with Qwest. Plaintiffs allege, amowgher things, that defendants' actions
were a cause of the bankruptcy of KPNQwest, ang $bek damages for the bankruptcy deficit of KPN&wehich is claimed to be
approximately €4.2 billion (or approximately $5.i8ibn based on the exchange rate on December(3 2, plus statutory interest. Two
lawsuits asserting similar claims were previoudidfagainst Qwest and others in federal courtdéw Jersey in 2004 and Colorado in 2009;
those courts dismissed the lawsuits without pregidin the grounds that the claims should not lgatiéd in the United States.
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In February 2014, Qwest, KPN, the individual defemis and the trustees reached a definitive agreesedtiing the litigation. The
settlement terms include Qwest's payment of appratély €171 million (or approximately $235 millimased on the exchange rate on
December 31, 2013 ) to the KPNQwest bankruptcytegtarsuant to its indemnification obligations,adissed in Note 16—Commitments and
Contingencies to our consolidated financial stat@se Item 8 of this annual report.

On September 13, 2006, Cargill Financial Markets,aRd Citibank, N.A. filed a lawsuit in the DigttiCourt of Amsterdam, the
Netherlands, against Qwest, KPN, KPN Telecom Baxid other former officers, employees or supervismgrd members of KPNQwest, sc
of whom were formerly affiliated with Qwest. TheMsuit alleges that defendants misrepresented KPNEfnancial and business condition
in connection with the origination of a credit fitgiand wrongfully allowed KPNQwest to borrow fundnder that facility. Plaintiffs allege
damages of approximately €219 million (or approxeha$301 million based on the exchange rate orebxer 31, 2013 ). The value of this
claim will be reduced to the degree plaintiffs igeerecovery from the tentative trustee settlentesicribed above. While we expect the
plaintiffs would receive proceeds from any suclstiee settlement, the amounts of such expectedegcave not yet known. On April 25, 20
the court issued its judgment denying the clainseded by Cargill and Citibank in their lawsuit.r@idl and Citibank are appealing that
decision.

Regarding the 2010 proceeding filed by the trusteesaccrued a liability in 2013 in the pre-tax ambof €171 million (or
approximately $235 million reflected in our accompiag consolidated financial statements based erefthange rate on December 31, 2013
which represents our best estimate of Qwest'sibomitn under the terms of the then-tentative setéint. Regarding the 2006 suit brought by
Cargill Financial Markets, Plc and Citibank. N.e do not believe that liability is probable andlwontinue to defend against the matter
vigorously.

The terms and conditions of applicable bylaws,ifiestes or articles of incorporation, agreememntagplicable law may obligate Qwest
to indemnify its former directors, officers or eropkes with respect to certain of the matters desdrabove, and Qwest has been advancing
legal fees and costs to certain former directdf&gays or employees in connection with certain texat described above.

Several putative class actions relating to theaitaton of fiber optic cable in certain rights-efiy were filed against Qwest on behalf of
landowners on various dates and in courts locat&d istates in which Qwest has such cable (Alabamzona, California, Colorado,
Delaware, Florida, Georgia, lllinois, Indiana, lgwansas, Kentucky, Maryland, Massachusetts, Mahiglinnesota, Mississippi, Missouri,
Nebraska, Nevada, New Jersey, New Mexico, New YNdtth Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, PennsyibsaBouth Carolina, Tenness
Texas, Utah, Virginia, and Wisconsin.) For the npat, the complaints challenge our right to insiat fiber optic cable in railroad rights-of-
way. The complaints allege that the railroads dwenrtght-of-way as an easement that did not incthdeight to permit us to install our cable
in the right-of-way without the plaintiffs' conseMost of the currently pending actions purporb&brought on behalf of state-wide classes in
the named plaintiffs' respective states, althoughaxction pending before the Illinois Court of Apfsepurports to be brought on behalf of
landowners in lllinois, lowa, Kentucky, Michigan,iivhesota, Nebraska, Ohio and Wisconsin. In gentralcomplaints seek damages on
theories of trespass and unjust enrichment, asagglunitive damages. After previous attempts terento a single nationwide settlement in a
single court proved unsuccessful, the parties maee to seek court approval of settlements onte-btastate basis. To date, the parties have
received final approval of such settlements intafes (Alabama, California, Colorado, DelawarefiBl, Georgia, lllinois, Indiana, lowa,
Kansas, Kentucky, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesotassiksippi, Missouri, Nebraska, Nevada, New Jefdey York, North Carolina, Ohio,
Oklahoma, Oregon, Pennsylvania, South Carolinang@ssee, Utah, Virginia and Wisconsin) and haveyabteceived either preliminary or
final approval in one state where an action is pen{iTexas) and three states where actions weraeatime, but are not currently, pending
(Arizona, Massachusetts, and New Mexico). We haeeueed an amount that we believe is probable fesdhmatters; however, the amount is
not material to our consolidated financial statetsen

Securities Actions

CenturyLink and certain of its affiliates are defants in one consolidated securities and four sloddter derivative actions. The
securities action is pending in federal court i@ 8outhern District of New York and the derivataaions are pending in federal court in the
Eastern and Western Districts of Louisiana. Pliin these actions have variously alleged, amathgr things, that CenturyLink and certain
of its current and former officers and directorslated federal securities laws and/or breached i@ty duties owed to the Company and its
shareholders. Plaintiffs' complaints focus on ategaterial misstatements or omissions concernaglyLink's financial condition and
changes in CenturyLink's capital allocation strgtiegearly 2013.

The matters are in preliminary phases and the Coynjpdiends to defend against the filed actions nogsly. We have not accrued a
liability for these matters as it is prematuret¢idetermine whether an accrual is warranted anid §o, to determine a reasonable estimate of
probable liability.
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Other Matters

From time to time, we are involved in other prodagd incidental to our business, including patefrimrgement allegations,
administrative hearings of state public utility aoissions relating primarily to rate making, actioakting to employee claims, various tax
issues, environmental law issues, grievance hesabirfpre labor regulatory agencies, and miscellaséard party tort actions. The outcome
these other proceedings is not predictable. Howdased on current circumstances we do not belfeatghe ultimate resolution of these other
proceedings, after considering available defensdsaay insurance coverage or indemnification right have a material adverse effect on
our financial position, results of operations osltélows.

We are currently defending several patent infringetlawsuits asserted against us by poacticing entities. These cases have progre
to various stages and one or more may go to tritie coming 24 months if they are not otherwiselked. Where applicable, we are seeking
full or partial indemnification from our vendorsdsuppliers. As with all litigation, we are vigosiu defending these actions and, as a matter
of course, are prepared both to litigate the matejudgment, as well as to evaluate and consifieettlement opportunities.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stockliange ("NYSE") and the Berlin Stock Exchange antaded under the symbol
CTL and CYT, respectively. The following table stgh the high and low reported sales prices @NN SE along with the quarterly
dividends, for each of the quarters indicated.

Sales Price Dividend per
High Low Common Share

2013

First quarter $ 42.01 32.0¢ 0.54(
Second quarter 38.4( 33.8¢ 0.54(
Third quarter 36.4¢ 31.21 0.54(
Fourth quarter 34.1¢ 29.9:¢ 0.54(
2012

First quarter $ 40.5¢ 36.2¢ 0.72¢
Second quarter 39.8¢ 36.91 0.72¢
Third quarter 43.4: 38.9¢ 0.72¢
Fourth quarter 40.4¢ 36.5:2 0.72¢

Common stock dividends during 2013 and 2012 weie gech quarter. On February 24, 2014 , our BoaRirectors declared a
common stock dividend of $0.54 per share.

As described in greater detail in Item 1A of thisndial Report on Form 10-K, the declaration and gaymof dividends is at the
discretion of our Board of Directors, and will depeaupon our financial results, cash requirementsiré prospects and other factors deemed
relevant by our Board of Directors.

At February 18, 2014 , there were approximately,080 stockholders of record although there wereifsagntly more beneficial holders
of our common stock. At February 18, 2014 , thesiclg stock price of our common stock was $30.95 .

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

In February 2013, our Board of Directors authoritezlrepurchase of up to an aggregate of $2 bitifoour outstanding common shares.
This repurchase program terminates on Februar@d1). During the three months ended December 313 2@e repurchased approximately
10.5 million shares of our outstanding common siadkie open market. These shares were repurcliasad aggregate market price of $331
million or an average purchase price of $31.49shere. The common stock repurchased has beerdretire

The following table contains information about #saof our previously-issued common stock that weperchased under our Stock
Repurchase Program:

Total Number of
Shares Purchased as
Part of Publicly

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares That

Average Price May Yet Be Purchased

Total Number of Paid Per Announced Plans or Under the Plans or
Shares Purchased Share Programs Programs
Period
October 2013 2,408,67. $ 32.3¢ 2,408,67. $ 686,036,21
November 2013 1,532,50! 32.21] 1,532,50! 636,682,03
December 2013 6,567,18! 31.01 6,567,18! 433,043,70
Total 10,508,35 31.4¢ 10,508,35
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The following table contains information about ssaof our previously-issued common stock that watveld from delivering during the
fourth quarter of 2013 to employees to satisfyrtteet obligations related to stock-based awards:

Total Number of

Shares Withheld Average Price Paid
for Taxes Per Share
Period
October 2013 31,69t $ 31.4(
November 2013 19,19( 32.1(
December 2013 7,24¢ 32.0¢
Total 58,13(
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following tables of selected consolidated fitiahdata should be read in conjunction with, arelqualified by reference to, our
consolidated financial statements and notes thémdtem 8 of this annual report and "Managemebistussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations" in Item 7to$ annual report.

The tables of selected financial data shown bel@ndarived from our audited consolidated finanstatements. These historical results
are not necessarily indicative of results that gan expect for any future period.

The results of operations include Savvis for pegiafter July 15, 2011, Qwest for periods after Apr2011 and Embarq for periods al
July 1, 2009.

Selected financial information from the consolidastatements of operations data is as follows:

Years Ended December 317
2013®@ 2012 2011 2010 2009

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts
and shares in thousands)

Operating revenues $ 18,09t 18,37¢ 15,35!: 7,042 4,97¢
Operating expenses 16,64 15,66 13,32¢ 4,98 3,741
Operating income $ 1,45 2,71: 2,02t 2,06( 1,23¢
Income before income tax expense 224 1,25( 94¢ 1,531 81¢
Net (loss) income (239) 777 573 94¢ 647
Basic (loss) earnings per common share (0.40 1.2t 1.07 3.1: 3.2t
Diluted (loss) earnings per common share (0.40 1.2¢ 1.07 3.13 3.2¢
Dividends declared per common share 2.1¢€ 2.9C 2.9C 2.9C 2.8C
Weighted average basic common shares outstandini 600,89: 620,20! 532,78( 300,61¢ 198,811
Weighted average diluted common shares outstanding  600,89: 622,28! 534,12: 301,29° 199,05°

(1) See "Management's Discussion and Analysisrafrieial Condition and Results of Operations—ResnfitOperations” in Item 7 of this annual reportdaliscussion of
unusual items affecting the results for the yeaded December 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 .

(2) We recorded a non-cash, non-tax-deductiblelggdbimpairment charge of $1.092 billion for gooilvattributed to our data hosting segment andigdtion settlement
charge of $235 million recorded in 2013.

Selected financial information from the consolidbbalance sheets is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in millions)
Net property, plant and equipméht $ 18,64¢ 18,90¢ 19,36: 8,75¢ 9,097
Goodwill @® 20,67« 21,62} 21,62° 10,26 10,25:
Total assets 51,78 53,94( 55,96¢ 22,03¢ 22,56:
Total long-term debt) 20,96¢ 20,60¢ 21,83¢ 7,32¢ 7,75¢
Total stockholders' equity 17,19: 19,28¢ 20,82: 9,64 9,467

(1) We have reclassified certain prior year batesiteet amounts presented in our Annual Reporbomn EO-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 &id 2o conform
to the current period presentation. Specificallg, vave reclassified $123 million and $83 milliorsaftware development costs, net of $30 million §&dnillion in
accumulated amortization, from property, plant aqdipment to other intangible assets on our cotsi@d balance sheet as of December 31, 2012,arid 201
respectively. We have also reclassified $28 milkma $8 million from depreciation expense to amzatton expense in our statements of operationthéoyears ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The ctiwreof the error did not have an effect on oursmidated statements of operations or our coretglitistatements
of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 20822011.

(2) We recorded a non-cash, non-tax-deductiblelggdbimpairment charge of $1.092 billiaturing 2013 for goodwill attributed to our data tig segmen
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(3) During the year ended December 31, 2013, werded a correction of an error related to an datgment of our net deferred tax liability recordedonnection with
the purchase accounting of Savvis and Qwest in.ZMdrefore, we recognized a $105 million decréasrir net deferred tax liability and a $105 mifliceduction to
goodwill on our consolidated balance sheets aseaeber 31, 2012 and 2011. The correction of tiee did not have an effect on our consolidatecestants of
operations or our consolidated statements of dasls ffor the years ended December 31, 2012 and.2011

(4) Total long-term debt is the sum of currentumisies of long-term debt and long-term debt on comsolidated balance sheets. For total obligatiess "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations—Future Contractual Obligation Iltem 7 of this annual report.

Selected financial information from the consolidbstgatements of cash flows is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in millions)
Net cash provided by operating activities$ 5,55¢ 6,06¢ 4,201 2,04¢ 1,57¢
Net cash used in investing activities (3,149 (2,690 (3,647 (859) (679
Net cash used in financing activities (2,459 (3,29%) (577) (1,175 (97€)
Payments for property, plant and equipment
and capitalized software (3,049 (2,919 (2,417 (864) (75%)

The following table presents certain selected clifsi®d operating data as of the following dates:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012@ 2011 @ 2010 2009
(in thousands except for data centers, which are aals)
Total broadband subscribéts 5,991 5,851 5,65¢ 2,34¢ 2,18¢
Total access lined 13,00: 13,75: 14,587 6,48¢ 7,02t
Total data center® 55 54 51 — —

(1) Broadband subscribers are customers that psechigh-speed Internet connection service thrthugjh existing telephone lines and fiber-optic eabland access lines
are lines reaching from the customers' premisasctnnection with the public network.

(2) The prior year numbers have been adjusteniclade the operational metrics of our wholly owsedsidiary, El Paso County Telephone Company, whéthbeen
previously excluded. The increase (in thousandaj)e@ to including El Paso County Telephone Comifsdopadband subscribers and access lines, ialteabove, is
approximately 3 and 3, respectively.

(3) Data centers are located throughout North AmeEcappe and Asi.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

All references to "Notes" in this Item 7 refer he tNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements detun Item 8 of this annual report.
Certain statements in this annual report constifisi®vard-looking statements. See "Special Note Rixgg Forward-Looking Statements and
Related Matters" in Item 1 of this annual repornt flactors relating to these statements and "Riskt&is" in Item 1A of this annual report for
discussion of certain risk factors applicable ta dusiness, financial condition and results of Gems.

Overview

We are an integrated communications company engagaarily in providing an array of communicatioservices to our residential,
business, governmental and wholesale customersc@dumunications services include local and longadise, broadband, private line
(including special access), Multi-Protocol Labelighing ("MLPS"), data integration, managed hostfimgluding cloud hosting), colocation,
Ethernet, network access, public access, wirelédso services and other ancillary services. Wegesto maintain our customer relationships
by, among other things, bundling our service offgsi to provide our customers with a complete affgof integrated communications servic

At December 31, 2013, we operated approximatelg @8llion access lines in 37 states, served apprately 6.0 million broadband
subscribers, and operated 55 data centers throtijfosth America, Europe and Asia. Our methodologyydounting access lines may not be
comparable to those of other companies.

Our consolidated financial statements include twants of CenturyLink, Inc. ("CenturyLink™) and inajority-owned subsidiaries.
These subsidiaries include SAVVIS, Inc. ("Savvistjce July 15, 2011 and Qwest Communications Iatenal Inc. ("Qwest") since April 1,
2011. See Note 2—Acquisitions to our consolidatedrfcial statements in Item 8 of this annual reptte discuss below, under "Results of
Operations—Segment Results", certain trends that we beliegaignificant, even if they are not necessarilyamat to the combined compar

In the discussion that follows, we refer to therémental business activities that we now operaterasult of the Savvis acquisition and
the Qwest acquisition as "Legacy Savvis" and "Lgdawest", respectively. References to "Legacy QOghink", when used in reference to a
comparison of our consolidated results for the yemded December 31, 2011, mean the business weegperior to the Qwest and Savvis
acquisitions. Due to the magnitude of our recequaitions in relation to Legacy CenturyLink opéoas, in the combined company variance
discussions below for 2012 and 2011 we have segignaflected the impacts of both the Legacy Qvaest Legacy Savvis operations for
enhanced visibility, although we actively manage ¢bmbined company through our four segments,szsised further below.

We have incurred certain non-recurring operatingeases related to our acquisitions of Savvis ig 2001, Qwest in April 2011 and
Embarg in July 2009. These expenses are refleatedst of services and products and selling, géaecdhadministrative expenses in our
consolidated statements of operations, as sumnaabiziew.

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)

Cost of services and products:

Integration and other expenses associated withisitqas $ 15 22 43
Severance expenses, accelerated recognition af-blaged awards and

retention compensation associated with acquisitions — — 24
Total $ 15 22 67

Selling, general and administrative:

Expenses incurred to effect acquisitions $ — — 79
Integration and other expenses associated withisitqas 28 25 17z
Severance expenses, accelerated recognition af-blaged awards and

retention compensation associated with acquisitions 10 36 14¢
Total $ 38 61 40C
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This table does not include costs incurred by QweS&avvis prior to being acquired by us. Basedument plans and information, we
estimate, in relation to our Qwest acquisitionakattegration, severance and retention expensies between $630 million to $654 million
(which includes approximately $511 million of curative expenses incurred through December 31, 2648 pur capital expenditures
associated with integration activities will appnmeite $200 million (which includes approximately $Iillion of cumulative capital
expenditures incurred through December 31, 20%3e) anticipate that the amount of our integratiostedn future years will vary substantially
based on integration activities conducted durirggéhperiods and could in certain cases be higherttiose incurred by us during the year
ended December 31, 2013 .

During the first quarter of 2013, we announcedaganization of our operating segments. Consequerlnow report the followinépur
segments in our consolidated financial statemewoissumer, business, wholesale and data hostingpiTinary purpose of the reorganization
was to strengthen our focus on the business meutkiét continuing our commitment to our wholesalesting and consumer customers. The
reorganization combined business sales and opesdtimctions that formerly resided in the entemrigarkets-network segment and the
regional markets segment into the new unified lssrsegment. The remaining customers formerly by the regional markets segment
became the new consumer segment. Each of the tsagments are described further below:

» Consumer.Consists generally of providing strategic and éggaroducts and services to residential consun@usstrategic products
and services offered to these customers includémadband, wireless and video services, includimgPrism TV services. Our
legacy services offered to these customers indluchd and long-distance service.

e Business Consists generally of providing strategic and tggaroducts and services to commercial, enterpgiedal and
governmental customers. Our strategic productsandces offered to these customers include ouatiline, broadband, Ethernet,
Multiprotocol Label Switching ("MPLS"), Voice ovénternet Protocol ("VolP"), and network managenmsmwices. Our legacy
services offered to these customers include law@dll@ng-distance service.

» Wholesale.Consists generally of providing strategic and tggaroducts and services to other communicatioosigers. Our strateg
products and services offered to these customemnaimly private line (including special accesgglidated internet access, digital
subscriber line ("DSL") and MPLS. Our legacy seegioffered to these customers include the resalarafervices, the sale of
unbundled network elements ("UNEs") which allow aimolesale customers to use our network or a caatilboim of our network and
their own networks to provide voice and data se@wim their customers, lordistance and switched access services and othéces
including billing and collection, pole rental, flospace and database services.

» Data hosting Consists primarily of providing colocation, manddesting and cloud hosting services to commereiatkrprise, glob.
and governmental customers.

Results of Operations

The following table summarizes the results of camsolidated operations for the years ended DeceB1he2013 , 2012 and 2011 . Our
operating results include operations of Savvigiiods after July 15, 2011 and Qwest for peridtes @pril 1, 2011.

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011

(Dollars in millions except
per share amounts)

Operating revenues $ 18,09: 18,37¢ 15,35
Operating expenses 16,64: 15,66: 13,32¢
Operating income 1,45:% 2,71z 2,02t
Other income (expense) (1,229 (1,469 (1,079
Income tax expense 463 47% 37E
Net (loss) income $ (239 771 57¢

Basic (loss) earnings per common share $ (0.40 1.2¢ 1.07

Diluted (loss) earnings per common share $ (0.40) 1.2t 1.07
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Due to our acquisitions of Qwest on April 1, 20kt &avvis on July 15, 2011, our 2013 and 2012 dipgreesults reflect a full year of
Qwest's and Sawvis' results, as compared to our @pérating results, which reflect only nine monthQwest's operating results and five and
a half months of Savvis' operating results.

The change from net income of $777 million in 2842 net loss of $239 million in 2013 is primaridye to a goodwill impairment
charge of $1.092 billion and a charge of $235 wnillin connection with a litigation settlement reded in 2013. The increase in net income of
$204 million in 2012 was primarily due to the 2Qigtiod containing a full year of Qwest's operatiegults compared to the 2011 period only
containing nine months and a significant decreas® 2011 in the amount of acquisition, severanckiategration expenses resulting from
recent acquisitions, as presented in the tablertthde'Overview" section above. The post-acquisitiperations of Legacy Savvis and Legacy
Qwest, which included substantial severance amgjiation expenses and significant acquisition acting adjustments to depreciation and
amortization expense, did not contribute signiftbato our consolidated net income in 2011. SeeeNbt-Acquisitions and Note 3—Goodwiill,
Customer Relationships and Other Intangible Assetair consolidated financial statements in Iteof ghis annual report. In addition to these
factors, growth in strategic services revenueslvinie describe further below) over the past coopleears did not fully offset lower revenues
from other services and products, which placed deavd pressures on our revenues.

Diluted (loss) earnings per common share in 2018 laer than 2012 primarily due to the above-désctigoodwill impairment charge
of $1.092 billion and a litigation settlement chevaf $235 million recorded in 2013. Diluted earrsiqer common share in 2012 was higher
than 2011 as a result of increased net incomedd2 2

The following table summarizes our broadband sulbsts, access lines, data centers and number dbgegs:

As of December 31,

2013 2012®@ 2011@
(in thousands except for data centers, which are
actuals)

Operational metrics:
Total broadband subscribéts 5,991 5,851 5,65k
Total access lined 13,00: 13,75: 14,58:
Total data center® 55 54 51
Total employees 46.€ 47.C 49.Z

(1) Broadband subscribers are customers that psechigh-speed Internet connection service thrthagjh existing telephone lines and fiber-optic esblnd access lines
are lines reaching from the customers' premisascunnection with the public network.

(2) The prior year numbers have been adjustedctade the operational metrics of our wholly owsedsidiary, El Paso County Telephone Company, whécthbeen
previously excluded. The increase (in thousandaj)e@ to including El Paso County Telephone Comfsdopadband subscribers and access lines, ialteabove, is
approximately 3 and 3, respectively.

(3) Data centers are located throughout North AmeEcappe and Asi.

During the last several years, we have experiereeghue decline (excluding the impact of acquisgjgprimarily due to declines in
access lines, intrastate access rates and minutise.oTo mitigate these declines, we remain fodwseefforts to, among other things:
e promote longerm relationships with our customers through bimggdbf integrated service

« provide new services, such as video, cloud hgsthanaged hosting, colocation and other additesaices that may become
available in the future due to, among other thimgls;ances in technology or improvements in ouastfucture;

» provide our broadband and premium services to laghigercentage of our custom
* pursue acquisitions of additional assets if avégla attractive price
* increase usage of our networks;

* market our products and services to new custo
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Operating Revenues

We currently categorize our products, servicesramdnues among the following four categories:

» Strategic serviceswhich include primarily broadband, private linec{uding special access, which we market to whadéeand
business customers), MPLS (which is a data netwgrtéchnology that can deliver the quality of seeviequired to support real-time
voice and video), hosting (including cloud hostargl managed hosting), colocation, Ethernet, videmuding our facilities-based
video services, which we now offer in twelve masketnd our resold satellite service), VolP and x@riWireless services;

* Legacy service, which include primarily local, long-distance, sohied access, Integrated Services Digital Netwd&ON") (which
uses regular telephone lines to support voice ovadel data applications), and traditional wide awetavork ("WAN") services (which
allows a local communications network to link tdwerks in remote locations);

« Data integration, which includes the sale of telecommunicationgfmgent located on customers' premises and relatddgsional
services, such as network management, installatidnmaintenance of data equipment and buildingagnetary fiber-optic
broadband networks for our governmental and busioestomers; and

»  Other revenuesyhich consists primarily of USF revenue and surgbar Unlike the first three revenue categorieothvenues are
not included in our segment revenues.

The following table summarizes our operating revsnunder our current revenue categorization:

Years Ended December 31,

Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Strategic services $ 8,82 8,421 39t 5%
Legacy services 7,617 8,221 (604) (7%
Data integration 65€ 672 (16) (2)%
Other 1,00( 1,05¢ (56) (5)%
Total operating revenues $ 18,09t 18,37¢ (281) (2%

The following table summarizes our operating rewsnunder our current revenue categorization, wiighesented in a manner that we
believe is useful for understanding the impachef Qwest and Sawvis acquisitions:

Years Ended

December 31, Increase / (Decrease)
2012 2011 CenturyLink Qwest Sawvis Total
(Dollars in millions)

Strategic services $ 8,42 6,31 32z 1,20 58t 2,11¢
Legacy services 8,221 7,621 (64¢) 1,24¢ — 60C
Data integration 672 537 19 11€ — 13t
Other 1,05¢ 88( 44 132 — 17€
Total operating

revenues $ 18,37¢ 15,35: (2639) 2,70% 58t 3,02t

Operating revenues attributable to certain bundélices were revised from legacy services toegjiatservices. Specifically, the
revision resulted in a reduction of revenues fregaky services of $104 million and $51 million @adorresponding increase in revenues fron
strategic services for the periods ended Decemhe2@®L2 and 2011, respectively. The revision waggponse to over-allocating discounts to
broadband services revenues and under-allocatsoguints to local and long-distance services reveennder bundled services arrangements,
which resulted in strategic services revenues beimtprstated and legacy services revenues beingtaies.
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Operating revenues attributable to certain CLE@ises were revised from strategic services to legaevices. Specifically, the revision
resulted in a reduction of revenue from strategiwvises of $38 million and a corresponding incraasevenue from legacy services for the
period ended December 31, 2012. The revision wassiponse to recording certain legacy servicesweagegenerated through CLEC services
arrangements as strategic services revenues, wdsaktted in strategic services revenues being tatesand legacy services revenues being
understated. Due to system limitations, we haverdehed that it is impracticable to revise 2011rafieg revenues attributable to certain
CLEC services to conform to our current revenuegatization.

Our operating revenues decreased by $281 mill@rapproximately 2% , during the year ended DecerBbe2013 as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2012. The decrease inuesvénprimarily due to declines to legacy serviesgnues, which decreased$604
million , or 7% , and which reflect the continuilags of access lines and loss of access revensesiated with internet and wireless
substitution in our markets. At December 31, 2@18 had approximately 13.0 million access linebp(a 59% of which are located in Legacy
Qwest's markets), or approximately 5.4% less thamumber of access lines we operated at Decemb@032. We believe the decline in the
number of access lines was primarily due to thpldéement of traditional wireline telephone sersibg other competitive products and
services. We estimate that our access lines Idsbevbetween 5.2% and 5.7% in 2014. Strategicisesuwevenues increased by $395 million ,
or 5% , for the year ended December 31, 2013 apared to the year ended December 31, 2012 prinfaoity increased demand for our
MPLS, Ethernet, broadband, facilities-based vided @ata hosting services, which were partiallyeiffsy a decline in private lines services.
Data integration decreased by $16 million , or Z% the year ended December 31, 2013 as compautbe tyear ended December 31, 2012
primarily due to declines in governmental sales jgrodessional services, which were partially offggia increase in maintenance services.
Other revenue decreased by $56 million , or 5% ttHfe year ended December 31, 2013 as comparée tetr ended December 31, 2012
primarily due to rate reductions on the federalrargal service charges.

Our operating revenues increased by $3.025 biJl@n20% , during the year ended December 31, 281&mpared to the year ended
December 31, 2011. The increase in revenues isaptindue to our acquisitions of Qwest on April2D11 and Sawvis on July 15, 2011. As
reflected in the table above, our acquisitions we& and Savvis contributed incremental operagvgmues (net of intercompany eliminatio
of $2.7 billion and $585 million , respectively,dar 2012 revenues. Legacy CenturyLink operatingmees decreased $263 million , in 2012.
This decrease was primarily attributable to a decin legacy services revenues, which reflectectiminuing loss of access lines in our
markets. At December 31, 2012, we had 13.751 milliccess lines, of which 8.058 millisrere in Legacy Qwest's markets. Access lines i
Legacy CenturyLink markets declined to 5.693 millet December 31, 2012 from 6.051 million at Decengi, 2011, a decrease of 5.9%
during 2012. We believe the decline in the numbercaess lines was primarily due to the displacamétraditional wireline telephone
services by other competitive products and servioes legacy services revenues were also negativgigcted in 2012 by the continued
reduction in access revenues and continued migraficustomers to bundled service offerings at logféective rates. The decrease in our
legacy services revenues was partially offset lghéii revenues from strategic services revenuesriigh MPLS, Internet Protocol Television
("IPTV"), VoIP and broadband services accountedafanajority of the growth in strategic servicesemuyes.

We are aggressively marketing our strategic sesviceluding our data hosting services) to offeet ¢continuing declines in our legacy
services revenues. We believe our recent acquisisoce 2011 will strengthen our ability to acleighis goal.

Further analysis of our operating revenues by segmerovided below in "Segment Results."
Operating Expenses
Our current definitions of operating expenses arfobows:

» Cost of services and products (exclusive of deatieci and amortizationgre expenses incurred in providing products andcses to
our customers. These expenses include: employatedetxpenses directly attributable to operatirdyraaintaining our network (such
as salaries, wages, benefits and professional, fieedl)ties expenses (which include third-partie®mmunications expenses we incur
for using other carriers' networks to provide seggito our customers); rents and utilities experesgspment sales expenses (such as
data integration and modem expenses); costs foetsal service funds ("USF") (which are federal atade funds that are established
to promote the availability of telecommunicatioesvices to all consumers at reasonable and afftedates, among other things, and
to which we are often required to contribute)ghtiion expenses associated with our operationspted expenses directly related to
our network and hosting operations.
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» Selling, general and administrative expenaescorporate overhead and other operating expehlsese expenses include: employee-
related expenses (such as salaries, wages, intenmathissions, benefits and professional fees) tijrattributable to selling products
or services and employee-related expenses for dtnaitive functions; marketing and advertising; ey and other operating taxes
and fees; external commissions; litigation expersssciated with general matters; bad debt expansepther selling, general and
administrative expenses.

These expense classifications may not be compatalti®se of other companies.
Total operating expenses increased by $979 millmm6% , for the year ended December 31, 201®ampared to the year ended

December 31, 2012 and operating expenses incrégsg?l 337 billion , or 18%for the year ended December 31, 2012 as comparthe yea
ended December 31, 2011.

The following tables summarize our operating expens

Years Ended
December 31,

Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease) % Change

(Dollars in millions)

Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptixi and

amortization) $ 7,507 7,63¢ (132 (2%
Selling, general and administrative 3,50z 3,24¢ 25¢ 8 %
Depreciation and amortization 4,541 4,78( (239 (5)%
Impairment of goodwill 1,092 — 1,092 10C %
Total operating expenses $ 16,64: 15,66: 97¢ 6 %

Years Ended
December 31, Increase / (Decrease)

2012 2011 CenturyLink Qwest Sawvis Total
(Dollars in millions)

Cost of services and
products (exclusive of
depreciation and

amortization) $ 7,63¢ 6,32 (73 1,08: 30¢ 1,31¢
Selling, general and

administrative 3,24¢ 2,97¢ (367) 482 152 26¢
Depreciation and

amortization 4,78( 4,02¢ (149 741 162 754
Total operating

expenses $ 15,66 13,32¢ (589 2,30¢ 62C 2,331

The increase in total operating expenses of $9Hbmfor fiscal 2013 over fiscal 2012 was subsialhyt impacted by a goodwill
impairment charge of $1.092 billion and a charg$285 million in connection with a litigation setthent recorded in 2013. Excluding the
effects of the goodwill impairment charge and &tign charge, total operating expenses for the geded December 31, 2013 decreased by
$348 million , or 2% , as compared to the year dridecember 31, 2012. The decrease was primariip@tble to lower depreciation and
amortization expense and lower employee relatets cbad debt expense and customer premise equipnségitation and maintenance costs,
which were partially offset by increases in fagilitosts, network expense and real estate and prnsés.

The acquisitions of Qwest and Savvis largely cbnted to the increase in total operating expent&2.837 billion in 2012. Excluding
the effects of Legacy Qwest and Legacy Savvis esggrtotal operating expenses for the year endedrblger 31, 2012 decreased $589
million , due primarily to decreases in employeletiexd expenses, severance and integration expexlagag to our recent acquisitions and
depreciation and amortization expense. As discuisstiet "Overview" section, our operating experfee013, 2012, and 2011 included
substantial severance and integration costs retatdte Qwest, Savvis and Embarq acquisitions dlsagesignificant acquisition accounting
adjustments to depreciation and amortization expedse Note 2—Acquisitions and Note 3—Goodwill, ©8oeer Relationships and Other
Intangible Assets to our consolidated financialesteents in Item 8 of this annual report.
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Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptiei and amortization) decreased by $132 million2% , for the year ended
December 31, 2013 as compared to the year endeshiber 31, 2012 primarily due to decreases in psajaal fees, customer premise
equipment installation and maintenance costs amm@me related costs. These decreases were padffdet by increases in facility costs,
network expenses and real estate and power. Cestates and products (exclusive of depreciatimhamortization) increased by $1.314
billion , or 21% , for the year months ended Decengi, 2012 as compared to the year ended Dece3tib2011 primarily due to the
acquisitions of Qwest and Savvis. For the year é@icember 31, 2012, Legacy CenturyLink's costofises and products (exclusive of
depreciation and amortization) were slightly losrcompared to 2011. During 2012, we experiencerkdses in severance, salaries and
wages and related benefits, which were partiallyetfby increases in customer premise equipmentraidtenance costs, network expense,
and contractor costs.

Selling, general and administrative expenses isetéy $258 million , or 8% , for the year endeddmeber 31, 2013 as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2012 primarily due to egehaf$235 million in connection with a litigation setthent. The increase was also
attributed to increases in employee related cpstdessional fees and external commissions, whietewartially offset by a decrease in bad
debt expense. Selling, general and administratiperses increased by $269 million , or 9% , foryibar ended December 31, 2012 as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2011 piyrdae to the acquisition of Qwest and Savvis. a&gCenturyLink selling, general and
administrative expenses decreased $367 millionthioyear ended December 31, 2012 as comparéé year ended December 31, 2011. Th
decrease in 2012 was primarily due to a decreasevierance and integration expenses relating toecent acquisitions, as well as a decrease
in salaries, wages, and employee benefits dueedwction in headcount. For all periods preserdgadexpenses include the transaction,
severance and integration expenses related toulestQSavvis and Embarq acquisitions (summarizédddrable in "Overview" above).

Depreciation and amortization expenses decreas&@2§ million or 5% , for the year ended Decemlier2®13 as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2012. This decrease in depogc@tpense is primarily due to depreciation rét@nges of certain telecommunications
equipment. The rate changes were the result chged investment in plant becoming fully depreciatetketired at a faster rate than the
addition of new plant. The decrease in amortizatigpense is primarily due to the use of acceleratedrtization for a portion of the customer
relationship assets and due to our software invastsrbecoming fully amortized faster than new safeawas acquired.

Depreciation and amortization increased by $754anil or 19% , for the year ended December 31228 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2011 primarily due to the acquisitb@west and Savvis. Excluding the effects of tbguésitions of Qwest and Savvis,
depreciation and amortization expense for Legaayt@egLink decreased $149 million , or 4% , due now@al updates of our depreciation rates
for capitalized assets and an out-of-period acéongradjustment related to an overstatement of aégiien expense in prior years, partially
offset by net growth in capital assets. See Notdasis of Presentation and Summary of Significartodniting Policies to our consolidated
financial statements in Item 8 of this annual répar additional information on the out-of-periodcaunting adjustment.

Effective January 1, 2012, we changed our ratespitalized labor as we transitioned certain of 8degacy systems to our historical
company systems. This transition resulted in ameséd $40 million to $55 million increase in the@unt of labor capitalized as an asset
compared to the amount that would have been ciggithif Qwest had continued to use its legacy sgstand a corresponding estimated
$40 million to $55 million decrease in operatingperses for the year ended December 31, 2012. Thoetien in expenses described above
of tax, increased net income approximately $25iomilto $34 million, or $0.04 to $0.05 per basic aildted common share, for the year ende
December 31, 2012.

Further analysis of our operating expenses by segim@rovided below in "Segment Results."”
Goodwill Impairment

As of September 30, 2013, we assessed our repeniitgy which are our four operating segments (gores, business, wholesale and
hosting). Based on our assessment performed, weuoted that our goodwill for the consumer, wholesaid business segments was not
impaired as of that date, but that our goodwilltfee data hosting segment was impaired as of Séied®, 2013. The data hosting segment is
experiencing slower than previously-projected reneand margin growth and greater than anticipabaapetitive pressures. As a result of this
data hosting impairment, we recorded during 20@8racash, non-tax-deductible goodwill impairmerdrgfe of $1.092 billion for goodwiill
assigned to our data hosting segment.

As of September 30, 2013, based on our assessmdotrped with respect to our four reporting unite estimated fair value of our
equity exceeded our carrying value of equity for cansumer, business and wholesale segments b§@%and 150%, respectively. After the
impairment charge described above, the estimateddle of our equity equals the carrying valuesqtiity for our data hosting segment.
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During the fourth quarter of 2013, we elected tarde the date of our annual assessment of godadwadlirment from September 30 to
October 31. This is a change in method of applgin@ccounting principle which management beliesespreferable alternative as the new
date of the assessment is more closely alignedauittstrategic planning process. The change im$éisessment date did not delay, accelere
avoid a potential impairment charge in 2013. Wdqgrered our annual goodwill impairment assessmeB8eatember 30, 2013, prior to the
change in our annual assessment date. We thenmeda qualitative assessment of our goodwill @caibber 31 and concluded that our
goodwill for consumer, wholesale and business tempunits was not impaired and our goodwill fotalaosting reporting unit was not further
impaired as of that date.

We may be required to assess our goodwill for immpant before our next required testing date of Bet@®1, 2014 under certain
circumstances, including any failure to meet ouedasted future operating results or any significareases in our weighted average cost of
capital. In addition, we cannot assure that adveoselitions will not trigger future goodwill impairent testing or an impairment charge. A
number of factors, many of which we have no abtlitgontrol, could affect our financial conditiarperating results and business prospect:
could cause our actual results to differ from thneates and assumptions we employed in our gobomplirment assessment. These factors
include, but are not limited to, (i) further weakamin the overall economy; (ii) a significant diee in our stock price and resulting market
capitalization; (iii) changes in the discount rate use in our testing; (iv) successful efforts by competitors to gain market share in our
markets; (v) adverse changes as a result of regylat legislative actions; (vi) a significant adse change in legal factors or in the overall
business climate; and (vii) recognition of a godtlimpairment loss in the financial statements slubsidiary that is a component of our
segments. For additional information on the chaogeur goodwill impairment assessment date andiskeassociated with intangible assets,
see "Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates—®mitl, Customer Relationships and Other Intangitfssets" below and "Risk Factors" in
Item 1A of Part Il of this annual report. We wibmtinue to monitor certain events that impact querations to determine if an interim
assessment of goodwill impairment should be peréarprior to the next required assessment date wh®ec31, 2014.

Further analysis of our operating expenses by segim@rovided below in "Segment Results."”
Other Consolidated Results

The following tables summarize our total other imeo(expense) and income tax expense:

Years Ended
December 31,

Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Interest expense $ (1,299 (1,319 (22) (2)%
Net gain (loss) on early retirement of debt 10 (179 18¢ 10€ %
Other income (expense) 59 35 24 63 %
Total other income (expense) $ (1,229 (1,467) (239 (16)%
Income tax expense $ 462 47% (20 (2)%
Years Ended
December 31, Increase / (Decrease)
2012 2011 CenturyLink Qwest Sawvis Total
(Dollars in millions)
Interest expense $ (1,319 (1,072) 62 16¢ 16 247
Net loss on early
retirement of debt (179 (8 17¢ (8) — 171
Other income
(expense) 35 3 32 (2) 1 32
Total other income
(expense) $ (1,469 (1,077) 27¢ 16C 17 38¢
Income tax expense $ 472 37¢ nm nm nm 98

nm-Attributing changes in income tax expense taattguisitions of Savvis and Qwest is consideredweszningful.
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Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased $21 million , or 2%thiyear ended December 31, 2013 as comparéé year ended December 31, 2012
primarily due to a lower amount of average debstutding along with lower interest rates, whicheveartially offset by a reduction in the
amortization of debt premiums. Interest expenseeased by $247 million , or 23% , for the year éhDecember 31, 2012 as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2011 primarily due to @& Deriod containing a full year of Qwest inter@gbense compared to the 2011 pe
containing only nine months. Interest expense fegdcy CenturyLink increased $62 million , for tleayended December 31, 2012 as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2011.rithedise in 2012 is substantially due to interesiwor$2 billion aggregate principal
amount of senior notes issued in June 2011 to démaime Savvis acquisition. The 2012 increase igdtigose notes being outstanding for a full
year versus only a portion of 2011. See N«—Long-term Debt and Credit Facilities to our cotdated financial statements in Item 8 of this
annual report and "Liquidity and Capital Resourdaesiow for additional information about those trarctons.

Net Gain or Loss on Early Retirement of Debt

In the fourth quarter of 2013, QCII (Qwest Commaatiicns International Inc. on a stand-alone basdgemed their outstanding debt
securities, which resulted in a gain of $10 million

In the second quarter of 2012, our subsidiaries&mbnd QC completed premiymniced cash tender offers for the purchase of ireof
their respective outstanding debt securities, teguin an aggregate loss of $190 million. Alsdte second quarter of 2012, our subsidiaries
Embarqg and QCII redeemed certain of their respedivtstanding debt securities which resulted ietdass of $9 million.

During 2012, QCII and QC redeemed certain of thatstanding debt securities, which resulted inggregate gain of $20 million.

In the fourth quarter and second quarter of 20X r€deemed certain of its outstanding debt seeanitihich resulted in a total net los:
$8 million.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income (expense) reflects certain items ivettly related to our core operations, including share of income from our 49%
interest in a cellular partnership, interest incpgens and losses from non-operating asset digpusiand foreign currency gains and losses.
Other income was greater for the year ended DeceBihe@013 as compared to 2012 primarily due t82illion gain on the sale of wireless
spectrum in January 2013, which was larger thamg#ie on sale of auction rate securities recognizeé®12. Other income for Legacy
CenturyLink was greater for the year ended DecerBbeP012 as compared to 2011 due to gains oratke ef our auction rate securities and
the recognition in 2011 of $16 million in transactiexpenses incurred in connection with terminasinginused bridge loan financing
commitment related to the Savvis acquisition. SeeeR—Acquisitions to our consolidated financiatsments in Item 8 of this annual report.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased by $10 million foy#ze ended December 31, 2013 as compared to #nepded December 31, 2012 .
Our income tax expense for the year ended Dece81he2012 increased $98 million from the amountgtiercomparable prior year. Our
increase in 2012 was primarily due to a $302 mmillior 32%, increase in income before income taxergp as compared to 2011. For the year
ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 , ourtidocome tax rate was 206.7% , 37.8% and 39.68épectively. The 2013 effective tax
rate reflects the net impacts of the $1.092 billimm-deductible goodwill impairment and of an umiable accounting adjustment of $17
million related to non-deductible life insurancests The 2013 tax expense also includes the impéet$avorable settlement with the Internal
Revenue Service of $33 million and a favorable stdjent of $22 million related to the reversal abllities for uncertain tax positions. The
2012 effective tax rate reflects the $16 milliomersal of a valuation allowance related to theianatate securities we sold in 2012, a
$12 million benefit related to state NOLs net ofuedion allowance, and a $6 million expense assediwith reversing a receivable related to
periods that have been effectively settled withlR®. See Note 12—Income Taxes to our consolidé@tedcial statements in Item 8 of this
annual report and "Income Taxes" below for addaldanformation.
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Segment Result

As described further above under the heading "Memegt's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Coowliand Results of Operations—
Overview," we revised our segment structure in 28d@ restated previously reported segment rexuithé years ended December 31, 2012
and 2011 to conform to our 2013 segment presentarioe following table summarizes our segment tegal the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011 under our segment categanizatiDecember 31, 2013 .

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)

Total segment revenues $ 17,09t 17,32( 14,47
Total segment expenses 8,24¢ 8,24+ 6,62:
Total segment income $ 8,84¢ 9,07¢ 7,84¢
Total margin percentage 52% 52% 54%
Consumer:

Revenues $ 6,00¢ 6,16 5,38¢

Expenses 2,231 2,291 1,972

Income $ 3,77¢ 3,871 3,412

Margin percentage 63% 63% 63%
Business:

Revenues $ 6,13¢ 6,13: 5,15(

Expenses 3,76¢ 3,74% 3,06¢

Income $ 2,361 2,39( 2,08:

Margin percentage 3% 3% 4C%
Wholesale:

Revenues $ 3,67¢ 3,72t 3,31¢

Expenses 1,15¢ 1,23( 1,13i

Income $ 2,421 2,49t 2,17

Margin percentage 68% 67% 66%
Data hosting:

Revenues $ 1,37¢ 1,30( 623

Expenses 1,091 98C 44¢€

Income $ 28t 32C 177

Margin percentage 21% 25% 28%
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The following table reconciles our total segmeneraies and total segment income presented abagetating revenues and operating
income reported in our consolidated statementpefations.

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)
Total segment revenues $ 17,09t 17,32( 14,47:
Other operating revenues 1,00( 1,05¢ 88C
Operating revenues reported in our consolidatedrsents of operations $ 18,09¢ 18,37¢ 15,35!
Total segment income $ 8,84¢ 9,07¢ 7,84¢
Other operating revenues 1,00¢ 1,05¢ 88C
Depreciation and amortization (4,547 (4,780 (4,026
Impairment of goodwill (Note 3) (1,092) — —
Other unassigned operating expenses (2,760) (2,639 (2,677
Operating income reported in our consolidated state of operations $ 1,45¢ 2,71t 2,02t

Our segment revenues include all revenues fronstategic and legacy services and data integrasaescribed in more detail above.
Segment revenues are based upon each customssiicidion to an individual segment. We report segment revenues based upon all
services provided to that segment's customers.epat our segment expenses for our four segmeritlaws:

» Direct expensewhich primarily are specific expenses incurred dgrect result of providing services and productsegment
customers, along with selling, general and adnratise expenses that are directly associated witicific segment customers or
activities; and

» Allocated expensewhich include network expenses, facilities experssebsother expenses such as fleet and real es{atase:

We do not assign depreciation and amortization es@er impairments to our segments, as the redssets and capital expenditures are
centrally managed and are not monitored by or tegdo the chief operating decision maker ("CODI)segment. Similarly, severance
expenses, restructuring expenses and, subjectarcaption for our data hosting segment, certaitradly managed administrative functions
(such as finance, information technology, legal Buthan resources) are not assigned to our segnhatietest expense is also excluded from
segment results because we manage our financiagaal company basis and have not allocated assdebt to specific segments. Other
income (expense) is not monitored as a part oegment operations and is therefore excluded fransegment results. For additional
information about our segments, see Note 13—Segmarmnation to our consolidated financial statetsdn Item 8 of this annual report.

Consumer

The operations of our consumer segment have begscied by several significant trends, includingsthdescribed below:

» Strategic servicedn order to remain competitive and attract addaiaesidential broadband subscribers, we belieigiiportant to
continually increase our broadband network's se@speconnection speeds. As a result, we continuevést in our broadband
network, which allows for the delivery of higheregl broadband services to a greater number ofroesso We compete in a maturi
broadband market in which most consumers already heoadband services and growth rates in new gbbss have slowed.
Moreover, as described further in Items 1 and 1& s annual report, demand for our broadband sesvtould be adversely affected
by competitors providing services at higher broadbspeed than ours or using advanced wirelesgdetdtaologies. We also continue
to expand our strategic product offerings, inclgdiacilities-based video services. The expansioouoffacilities-based video service
infrastructure requires us to incur start-up expsris advance of the revenue that this servicegeeted to generate. Although, over
time, we expect that our revenue for facilitiesdzhgideo services will offset the expenses incyriteel timing of this revenue growth
is uncertain. We believe these efforts will imprate ability to compete and increase our strategienues;
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» Legacy services Our voice revenues have been, and we expect thliegontinue to be, adversely affected by accass losses.
Intense competition and product substitution cargito drive our access line losses. For examplayrmansumers are substituting
cable and wireless voice services and electronit teating and social networking non-voice sergder traditional voice
telecommunications services. We expect that theesters will continue to negatively impact our besis. As a result of the expected
loss of revenues associated with access linespntince to offer our customers service bundling atieér product promotions to help
mitigate this trend, as described below;

» Service bundling and product promotionale offer our customers the ability to bundle npiétiproducts and services. These
customers can bundle local services with otheriseswsuch as broadband, video, long-distance aredess. While we believe our
bundled service offerings can help retain custopibey also tend to lower our profit margins in dessumer segment; and

» Operating efficienciesWe continue to evaluate our operating structucefanus. This involves balancing our segment waddan
response to our workload requirements, productiwifgrovements and changes in industry, competitaghnological and regulatory
conditions.

The following tables summarize the results of ofjens from our consumer segment:

Consumer Segment
Years Ended December 31, Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)

Segment revenues:

Strategic services $ 2,65( 2,47¢ 17¢ 7%
Legacy services 3,34¢ 3,681 (332 (9)%
Data integration 5 7 2 (29%
Total revenues 6,00¢ 6,162 (15¢) (3)%
Segment expenses:
Direct 1,75¢ 1,79¢ (39) (2)%
Allocated 47:¢ 49t (22) (4)%
Total expenses 2,231 2,291 (60) (3)%
Segment income $ 3,77: 3,871 (98) (3)%
Segment margin percentage 63% 63%

Consumer Segment
Years Ended December 31, Increase / (Decrease)
2012 2011 CenturyLink Qwest Total
(Dollars in millions)

Segment revenues:

Strategic services $ 2,47¢ 1,92¢ 19C 35¢€ 54¢€
Legacy services 3,681 3,44¢ (259) 48~ 232
Data integration 7 7 — — —
Total revenues 6,16: 5,38¢ (63 841 77¢
Segment expenses:
Direct 1,79¢ 1,542 25 22¢ 254
Allocated 49t 43C (12) 77 65
Total expenses 2,291 1,972 13 30¢€ 31¢
Segment income $ 3,871 3,412 (76) 53t 45¢
Segment margin percentage 63% 63%
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Segment Revenues

Consumer revenues decreased $158 million , or f8#year ended December 31, 2013 as compared tetireended December 31,
2012 . Growth in strategic services revenues wereetthan offset by the decline in legacy serviezgnues. The increase in strategic service:
revenues is due primarily to volume increases infacilities-based video services and increas¢sémumber of broadband subscribers, as
well as from price increases on various servicegalcy services revenues decreased primarily ddedines in local and long-distance
services associated with access line losses mgdittm the competitive and technological changecdbed above. Consumer revenues
increased by $778 million , or 15% , for the yeadedd December 31, 2012 as compared to the yead @&wtember 31, 2011 . The increase in
revenue is primarily due to our acquisition of Qtyeghich contributed $ 841 million in revenue. Leg&enturyLink's revenue decreased by
$63 million primarily due to a decline in legacyeaues, partially offset by growth in strategicvéges revenues. Legacy services revenues
decreased primarily due to declines in local amg) Idistance services associated with access lasesoresulting from the competitive press
and product substitution previously described. Ghow strategic services revenues was primarily tduen increase in the number of
broadband subscribers.

Segment Expenses

Consumer expenses decreased by $60 million , orf8%the year ended December 31, 2013 as compautheé year ended
December 31, 2012 primarily due to decreases irdeatlexpense, salaries and wages, facility costalocated expenses, partially offset by
increases in professional fees and external conmissThe decrease in allocated expenses for treeyeled December 31, 2013 as compare
to the year ended December 31, 2012 was primauigytd reductions in network salaries and wageanigssional fees. Consumer expenses
increased by $319 million , or 16% , for the yeaded December 31, 2012 as compared to the yead &elkember 31, 2011 primarily due to
the acquisition of Qwest, which contributed $30@iom in total expenses. Legacy CenturyLink's segtexpenses increased by $13 million
during the same period primarily due to increasesxternal commissions, maintenance costs and miragkand advertising costs.

Segment Income

Consumer income decreased by $98 million , or 886 the year ended December 31, 2013 as compaithe tgear ended December 31,
2012 primarily due to a decline in total revenuenS€umer income increased by $459 million , or 1366 the year ended December 31, 2012
as compared to the year ended December 31, 20hanisi due to the acquisition of Qwest, which cdnited $535 millionin segment incom
Legacy CenturyLink's segment income decreased $ifi6nmfor the same period primarily due to a declineoitatrevenue, as discussed abi

Business

The operations of our business segment have bgmactad by several significant trends, includingsthdescribed below:

»  Strategic servicesOur mix of total segment revenues continues taatégfrom legacy services to strategic servicesuas
commercial, enterprise, global and governmentaiocnsrs increasingly demand customized and intedjddiéa, Internet and voice
services. We offer diverse combinations of emerdg@uipnology products and services such as priirsge MPLS, and VolP services.
We believe these services afford our customers rf@xibility in managing their communications neetdsd improve the effectiveness
and efficiency of their operations. Although we arperiencing price compression on our strategiiees due to competition, we
expect strategic revenues from these servicesriince to grow during 2013;

» Legacy services We face intense competition with respect to ogaty services and continue to see customers nrigratvay from
these services and into strategic services. Irtiaddbur legacy services revenues have been, anekpect they will continue to be,
adversely affected by access line losses and poiggression;

» Data integration. We expect both data integration revenue and thgedecosts will fluctuate from quarter to quadsrthis offering
tends to be more sensitive than others to chamgiseieconomy and in spending trends of our fedstatle and local governmental
customers, many of whom have recently experienabdtantial budget cuts with the possibility of dmtedial future budget cuts; and

» Operating efficienciesWe continue to evaluate our operating structucefanus. This involves balancing our segment waddan
response to our workload requirements, productiwifgrovements and changes in industry, competitaghnological and regulatory
conditions, while achieving operational efficierscend improving our processes through automaticaalsb expect our business
segment to benefit indirectly from efficienciesoar company-wide network operations.
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The following tables summarize the results of ofjens from our business segment:

Business Segment
Years Ended December 31, Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)

Segment revenues:

Strategic services $ 2,50¢ 2,35¢ 15z 6 %
Legacy services 2,97¢ 3,112 (13€) (4)%
Data integration 651 665 (14) (2)%
Total revenues 6,13¢ 6,13 3 — %
Segment expenses:
Direct 3,32¢ 3,28t 44 1%
Allocated 44C 45¢ (18) (4%
Total expenses 3,76¢ 3,74% 26 1%
Segment income $ 2,36 2,39( (23) (D)%
Segment margin percentage 3% 3%

Business Segment
Years Ended December 31, Increase / (Decrease)
2012 2011 CenturyLink Qwest Sawvis Total
(Dollars in millions)

Segment revenues:

Strategic services $ 2,35¢ 1,84: 44 45¢ 11 514
Legacy services 3,112 2,77¢ (181) 514 — 33¢
Data integration 665 52¢ 20 11€ — 13¢€
Total revenues 6,13: 5,15( (1179) 1,08¢ 11 98¢
Segment expenses:
Direct 3,28t 2,751 77) 611 — 534
Allocated 45¢ 317 62 75 4 141
Total expenses 3,74: 3,06¢ (15) 68€ 4 67=
Segment income $ 2,39( 2,08z (102) 402 7 30¢
Segment margin
percentage 3% 40%

Segment Revenues

Business revenues increased by $3 million for ez ¥nded December 31, 2013 as compared to theydad December 31, 2012 .
Strategic services revenues increased $153 millrt was substantially offset by a decline in Bgservices revenue of $136 million and a
decline of $14 million in data integration serviewenue. The increase in strategic services reveamme from increases in MPLS, VolP, and
Ethernet services., which were partially offsetdeglines in private line services. Business revemuereased by $983 million for the year
ended December 31, 2012 as compared to the yead &wktember 31, 2011 . The increase in businessuevs primarily due to the
acquisition of Qwest, which contributed $1.089ibiilin revenue. Legacy CenturyLink's segment reeateclined by $117 million primarily
due to a decline in legacy services revenue, figroéset by growth in strategic services revenuegacy services revenues decreased
primarily due to declines in local and long-distarservices associated principally with accessltiss resulting from competitive pressures an
product substitution. Growth in strategic servioegenues was primarily due to increases in VolBeEtet and MPLS services.
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Segment Expenses

Business expenses increased by $26 million , or fiftthe year ended December 31, 2013 as compartbe year ended December 31,
2012 primarily due to increases in salaries andesagrofessional fees and facility costs, partiaffget by decreases in equipment and
maintenance costs and allocated expenses. Alloeaehses decreased for the year ended Decemhi#Zd 1R as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2012 primarily due to decreases inar&tsalaries and wages and professional feeshwhére partially offset by an increase in
real estate and power costs. Business expensesgett for the year ended December 31, 2012 as cedmgathe year ended December 31,
2011 primarily due to the acquisition of Qwest, @thcontributed $686 million in segment expensegakg CenturyLink's expenses decreasel
by $15 million during the same period primarily doedecreases in direct expense, partially offgehbrease in allocated expenses. Direct
expenses decreased due to decreases in emplogtess rekpenses and marketing costs, which werefpifset by increases in customer
premise equipment maintenance and installatiors@sd facility costs. Allocated expense increasedarily due to more fully allocating
network and building rent and related power expgnse

Segment Income

Business income decreased by $23 million , or I86the year ended December 31, 2013 as comparbe tgear ended December 31,
2012 primarily due to an increase in direct expenBa@siness income increased by $308 million 586 1 for the year ended December 31,
2012 as compared to the year ended December 31,@20aarily due to the acquisition of Qwest, whantributed $403 million in segment
income. Legacy CenturyLink's segment income deectay $102 million for the same period primarilyedo a decline in total revenue, as
discussed above.

Wholesale

The operations of our wholesale segment have lmpadted by several significant trends, includingsthdescribed below:

» Strategic servicesDemand for our private line services (includingapl access) has begun to decline due to our iessd
optimization of their networks, industry consoliidat and technological migration. While we expedcttthese factors will continue to
negatively impact our wholesale segment, we beliegedemand for our fiber-based special accesscesrprovided to wireless
carriers for backhaul will partially offset the diee in copper-based special access services mdvmwireless carriers as they
migrate to Ethernet services, although the timind magnitude of this technological migration is emain;

e Legacy service: Our access, local services and long-distance tmgehave been and we expect will continue to beradly affected
by customer migration to more technologically acethservices, declining demand for traditional g@ervices, industry
consolidation and price compression caused by atignland rate reductions. For example, wholesahsemers are substituting ca
wireless and VolIP services for traditional voicke¢emmunications services, resulting in continueckas revenue loss. Our switched
access revenues have been and will continue tmpadted by changes related to the Connect Ameniddrdercarrier Compensation
Reform order ("CAF order") adopted by the Fedemn@unications Commission ("FCC") on October 27,20fat we believe will
substantially increase the pace of reductionseratinount of switched access revenues we recemeriwholesale segment.
Conversely, the FCC instituted an access recovmayge that we believe will allow us to recover thajority of these lost revenues
directly from end users in our consumer and busisegments. We expect these factors will contiawaltersely impact our
wholesale segment; and

» Operating efficienciesWe continue to evaluate our operating structurefaous. This involves balancing our segment wadéan
response to our workload requirements, productiwityrovements and changes in industry, competite@hnological and regulatory
conditions. We also expect our wholesale segmeenefit indirectly from enhanced efficiencies ur company-wide network
operations.
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The following tables summarize the results of ofjens from our wholesale segment:

Wholesale Segment
Years Ended December 31, Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)

Segment revenues:

Strategic services $ 2,28 2,291 (10 — %
Legacy services 1,29: 1,42¢ (13¢) (10%
Total revenues 3,57¢ 3,72¢ (14¢€) (4%
Segment expenses:
Direct 16¢ 16¢ — — %
Allocated 98¢ 1,061 (72) (7)%
Total expenses 1,15¢ 1,23( (72 (6)%
Segment income $ 2,421 2,49¢ (79) (3)%
Segment margin percentage 68% 67%

Wholesale Segment
Years Ended December 31, Increase / (Decrease)
2012 2011 CenturyLink Qwest Sawvis Total
(Dollars in millions)

Segment revenues:

Strategic services $ 2,29 1,92( 32 341 4 377
Legacy services 1,42¢ 1,39: (214) 24¢ — 35
Data integration — 1 (D] — — 1)
Total revenues 3,72¢ 3,314 (183) 59C 4 411
Segment expenses:
Direct 16¢ 174 (18 13 — (5)
Allocated 1,061 963 (77 17t — 98
Total expenses 1,23( 1,137 (95) 18¢ — 93
Segment income $ 2,49¢ 2,17 (89) 40z 4 31¢
Segment margin
percentage 67% 66%

Segment Revenues

Wholesale revenues decreased by $146 million %or for the year ended December 31, 2013 as comparthe year ended
December 31, 2012 . These decreases reflect l@venues from both legacy and strategic services.dErease in legacy services revenues
reflects a continuing declines in access, longadist and local services volumes and revenues dhe tubstitution of cable, wireless and
VolIP services for traditional voice telecommunioas services. The decline in strategic servicesmaes was due to decreases in our private
line and special access services revenues, paiitiet by an increase in Ethernet revenues. \adderevenues increased by $411 million for
the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared yednended December 31, 2011 primarily due td@est acquisition, which contributed
$590 million to total revenue. Legacy CenturyLintiésenue declined by $183 million during this sgyeeod primarily due to declines in
legacy services, partially offset by growth in reue from strategic services. Strategic servicesmags increased primarily due to growth in
Ethernet and broadband services. The decreasgadnyleservices revenues was driven by continuingjraecin access, long-distance and local
services volumes, and the implementation of the ©Afer, as well as the substitution of cable, wise| VolP and other services for traditional
voice telecommunication services.
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Segment Expenses

Wholesale expenses decreased by $72 million , oy f8¥the year ended December 31, 2013 as compaitbeé year ended
December 31, 2012 primarily due to a decreasdacated expenses. Total direct expenses remaithed/edy unchanged from 2012 to 2013.
Allocated expenses for the year ended Decembe&®1 as compared to the year ended December 32 ,d¥gteased primarily due to
decreases in salaries and wages and facility dd8tslesale expenses increased by $93 million ferytar ended December 31, 2012 as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2011 piyrdae to the acquisition of Qwest, which contitbai $188 million in segment expenses.
Legacy Centurylink's expenses declined by $95 omltluring this same period primarily due to lowlweation of fleet and network real estate
expenses and to reduction in employee related sggen

Segment Income

Declines in both strategic and legacy servicesmees largely contributed to a decrease in our véatdesegment income for the year
ended December 31, 2013 as compared to the yead &etember 31, 2012 . Decreases in segment expi@nsach period did not fully offset
the declines in segment revenues. Wholesale segnoamhe increased by $318 million for the year eéhBecember 31, 2012 as compared to
the year ended December 31, 2@tiinarily due to the Qwest acquisition. Segmenbime for our Legacy CenturyLink operations decredust
$88 million for the same period primarily due tdexcline in total revenue, as discussed above.

Data Hosting

The operations of our data hosting segment have ingeacted by several significant trends, includimgse described below:

» Colocation. Colocation is designed for clients seeking datderespace and power for their server and netwgr&guipment needs.
Our data centers provide our clients around thddmeith a secure, high-powered, purpose-built lmrafor their IT equipment. We
anticipate continued pricing pressure for theseises as wholesale vendors continue to expand émé@rprise colocation operations;
however, we believe that our data center exparstiategy may help mitigate these pricing challenges

« Managed hostinc Managed hosting services provide a fully managdatisn for a customer's IT infrastructure and nataneeds,
and include dedicated and cloud hosting serviddiywand computing storage, consulting and maeggcurity services. We believe
that competitive cloud computing offerings have tedcreased pricing pressure and increased sedisconnections by our
customers, and expect those trends to continue eenywe remain focused on expanding our managstihigdousiness, specifically
in our cloud service offerings, which we believaikey to growth. We believe that we have continieestrengthen our cloud offering
by adding differentiating features to our clouddurots;

» Network services Network services are comprised of our hosting astevork products supporting colocation and mandugesing
service offerings. Network services also includenageed VPN and bandwidth services. Segment inconthése services has been
relatively flat due to pricing pressures on VPN &addwidth services, offset by increases in hostireg network services; and

» Operating efficienciesWe continue to evaluate our operating structucefanus. This involves balancing our segment waddan
response to our workload requirements, productiwifgrovements and changes in industry, competitaghnological and regulatory
conditions.
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The following tables summarize the results of ofjens from our data hosting segment, which areattgorized as strategic services:

Data Hosting Segment

Years Ended December 31, Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Segment revenues: $ 1,37¢ 1,30(¢ 76 6 %
Segment expenses: 1,091 98C 111 11%
Segment income $ 28t 32C (39) (11)%
Segment margin percentage 21% 25%

Data Hosting Segment

Years Ended December 31, Increase / (Decrease)
2012 2011 CenturyLink Qwest Sawvis Total
(Dollars in millions)

Segment revenues: $ 1,30(¢ 622 56 51 57C 677
Segment expenses: 98( 44¢ 57 23 454 534
Segment income $ 32 $ 177 (@) 28 11¢€ 147
Segment margin

percentage 25% 28%

Segment Revenues

Data hosting revenues increased by $76 milliong%r, for the year ended December 31, 2013 as capa the year ended
December 31, 2012 primarily due to the impact gEreies contributed from the recent acquisitionsyelbas increases in colocation and
managed hosting revenues. These increases weidlparffset by a decline in data hosting netwoekenues. Segment revenue increased by
$677 million for the year ended December 31, 2012anpared to the year ended December 31, 201 hpiyrdue to the Savvis and Qwest
acquisitions, which contributed segment revenu®5a10 million and $51 million , respectively.

Segment Expenses

Data hosting expenses increased by $111 millioriL 186 , for the year ended December 31, 2013 apared to the year ended
December 31, 201@rimarily due to increases in employee relatedscosgulting from our recent acquisitions and adusaticount, professior
fees, network expenses, real estate and poweraodtarketing and advertising, which were paytiaffset by a decrease in external
commissions. Segment expenses increased by $5Bdmfdr the year ended December 31, 2012 as coedparthe year ended December 31,
2011 primarily due to the Savvis and Qwest acdaisst which contributed segment expenses of $4%bmand $23 million , respectively.

Segment Income

Segment income decreased by $35 million , or 1186the year ended December 31, 2013 as compatbe teear ended December 31,
2012 . The decline in segment income was primaltily to revenues growing at a slower rate than esqgemhe revenues generated from the
recent acquisitions in 2012 and 2013 were substhntiffset by their respective expenses. Segnrartme increased by $143 million for the
year endeDecember 31, 2012 as compared to the year endezhibec 31, 2011 primarily due to the Savvis and @aeguisitions, which
contributed segment income of $116 million and &#on respectively.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with accounting principles that ameegally accepted in the United
States. The preparation of these consolidated dinhstatements requires management to make esSraatl assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenundsexpenses. We have identified certain policiesestimates as critical to our business
operations and the understanding of our past aeptaesults of operations related to (i) busimessbinations; (i) goodwill, customer
relationships and other intangible assets; (igparty, plant and equipment; (iv) pension and pestement benefits; (v) loss contingencies
litigation reserves; and (vi) income taxes. Theskcies and estimates are considered critical bez#uey had a material impact, or they have
the potential to have a material impact, on oursotidated financial statements and because thejreesignificant judgments, assumptions or
estimates. We believe that the estimates, judgnamtsissumptions made when accounting for the itlrssribed below are reasonable, base
on information available at the time they are madmvever, there can be no assurance that actudtgesll not differ from those estimates.

Business Combination

We have accounted for our recent acquisitionsugioly our acquisition of Qwest on April 1, 2011 &walvvis on July 15, 2011, under"
acquisition method of accounting, whereby the thleghnd separately identifiable intangible assetgimed and liabilities assumed are
recognized at their estimated fair values at tlgpisition date. The portion of the purchase pricexcess of the estimated fair value of the net
tangible and separately identifiable intangibleetsgcquired represents goodwill. The estimatésio¥alue and resulting assignment of the
purchase price related to our acquisitions of Quaast Savvis involved significant estimates and judgts by our management. In arriving at
the fair values of assets acquired and liabilitissumed, we considered the following generally gteckvaluation approaches: the cost
approach, income approach and market approache€ianates also included assumptions about projegtegth rates, cost of capital,
effective tax rates, tax amortization periods, tetbgy life cycles, the regulatory and legal enmir@nt and industry and economic trends.

Goodwill, Customer Relationships and Other IntanggbAssets

We amortize customer relationships primarily oveeatimated life of 10 years to 15 years, usinigeeithe sum-of-the-years-digits or the
straight-line methods, depending on the type ofarusr. We amortize capitalized software using th&ight-line method over estimated lives
ranging up to seven years, except for approxim&287 million of our capitalized software costs,iethrepresents costs to develop an
integrated billing and customer care system whsclimortized using the straight-line method oved ge&ar period. We annually review the
estimated lives and methods used to amortize der adtangible assets. The amount of future amatitin expense may differ materially from
current amounts, depending on the results of onualreviews.

Our goodwill was derived from numerous acquisitiaiere the purchase price exceeded the fair vdltleemet assets acquired. For
more information on our recent acquisitions andiltexy fair values, see Note 2—Acquisitions to eansolidated financial statements in Item
8 of this annual report.

We are required to reassign goodwill to reportingsueach time we reorganize our internal reporsimgcture which causes a change in
our operating segments. Goodwill is reassignetieaeporting units using a relative fair value agh. We utilize the trailing twelve months
earnings before interest, tax and depreciatioruasitocation methodology as it represents a resslerproxy for the fair value of the
operations being reorganized. The use of otherv&dire assignment methods could result in matgrdifferent results. For additional
information on the first quarter 2013 reorganizatid our segments, see Note 8—Segment Informati@ut consolidated financial statements
in Item 8 of this annual report.

We have assigned our goodwill balance to our setgrarDecember 31, 2013 as follows:

(Dollars in
millions)
Consumer $ 10,34¢
Business 6,36:
Wholesale 3,27¢
Data hosting 68¢
Total goodwill $ 20,67«
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We are required to assess goodwill for impairmetaast annually, or more frequently if events @hange in circumstances indicate tha
an impairment may have occurred. We are requiredite-down the value of goodwill in periods in whithe recorded amount of goodwill
exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill. Ouragmg units, which we refer to as our segments,rant discrete legal entities with discrete
financial statements. Our assets and liabilitiesesmployed in and relate to the operations of ipleltieporting units. Therefore, the equity
carrying value and future cash flows must be edghaach time a goodwill impairment analysis idqrened on a reporting unit. As a result,
our assets, liabilities and cash flows are assignedporting units using reasonable and consistémtation methodologies. Certain estimates,
judgments and assumptions are required to perfoesetassignments. We believe these estimates, grdgmnd assumptions to be reason:
but changes in many of these can significantlycaféach reporting unit's equity carrying value &rtdre cash flows utilized for our goodwill
impairment test. Our annual assessment date fimgegoodwill impairment was September 30.

During the fourth quarter of 2013, we elected targe the date of our annual assessment of goddwpilirment from September 30 to
October 31. This is a change in method of applgin@ccounting principle which management beliesespreferable alternative as the new
date of the assessment is more closely alignedawittstrategic planning process. The change im$sessment date did not delay, accelere
avoid a potential impairment charge in 2013. Wdqrared our annual goodwill impairment assessmeBeatember 30, 2013, prior to the
change in our annual assessment date. We thermpeda qualitative assessment of our goodwill &Saibber 31 and concluded that our
goodwill for consumer, wholesale and business tappunits was not impaired and our goodwill fotadhosting reporting unit was not further
impaired as of that date .

Property, Plant and Equipmer

Property, plant and equipment acquired in connratiibh our acquisitions was recorded based onstisnated fair value as of its
acquisition date. Purchased and constructed psgpeant and equipment is recorded at cost, plage#timated value of any associated legally
or contractually required asset retirement obl@atRenewals and betterments of plant and equiparentapitalized while repairs, as well as
renewals of minor items, are charged to operatiprese. Depreciation of property, plant and equigtiseprovided on the straiglite methor
using class or overall group rates. The group neegrovides for the recognition of the remaining imeestment, less anticipated net salvage
value, over the remaining useful life of the ass€bés method requires the periodic revision ofréejation rates.

Normal retirements of property, plant and equipnsatcharged against accumulated depreciation,naitliain or loss recognized. Other
types of property, plant and equipment are statedst and, when sold or retired, a gain or lossé®gnized. We depreciate such property on
the straight-line method over estimated serviceslikanging from 3 to 45 years.

We perform annual internal reviews to evaluaterétzsonableness of the depreciable lives for oyrgrty, plant and equipment. Our
reviews utilize models that take into account adatisage, physical wear and tear, replacement gishiesumptions about technology evolution
and, in certain instances, actuarially determinetb@bilities to estimate the remaining life of asset base.

Due to rapid changes in technology and the conipeginvironment, determining the estimated econdifi@®f telecommunications
plant, equipment and software requires a signifieamount of judgment. We regularly review data @lization of equipment, asset retireme
and salvage values to determine adjustments tdeqneciation rates. The effect of a hypothetica pear increase or decrease in the estimate
remaining useful lives of our property, plant amggipment would have decreased depreciation by appately $430 million or increased
depreciation by approximately $610 million , respesty.

Pension and Po-retirement Benefits

We sponsor several noncontributory defined bepefitsion plans (referred to as our pension plams) fubstantial portion of our
employees. In addition to these tax qualified pemgilans, we also maintain several non-qualifieaspen plans for certain eligible highly
compensated employees. We also maintain postiretitebenefit plans that provide health care amditiSurance benefits for certain eligible
retirees.

In 2013 approximately 33% of the January 1, 20I&jmn plans' net actuarial loss balance of $2.2li6rbwas subject to amortization
a component of net periodic expense over the aeeaaining service period of participating empks/expected to receive benefits, which
ranges from 8 to 12 years for the plans. The difiét of the beginning pension plans' net actuavid balance was treated as indefinitely
deferred during 2013. The entire beginning netaxtalloss of $446 million for the post-retiremd@nefit plans was treated as indefinitely
deferred during 2013.

In computing the pension and post-retirement heatlk and life insurance benefits obligations ntust significant assumption we make
is the discount rate. In computing the periodicgi@m and post-retirement benefits expense, the sigsificant assumptions we make are the
discount rate and the expected rate of return an assets.
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The discount rate is the rate at which we belieeecauld effectively settle the benefit obligati@ssof the end of the year. We selected
the discount rate based on a cash flow matchinlysisaising hypothetical yield curves from U.S.mamate bonds rated high quality and
projections of the future benefit payments thatstibmte the projected benefit obligation for thand. This process establishes the uniform
discount rate that produces the same present vélhe estimated future benefit payments as is igeee by discounting each year's benefit
payments by a spot rate applicable to that yeag.spot rates used in this process are derived drgiald curve created from yields on the
60th to 90th percentile of U.S. high quality bonds.

The expected rate of return on plan assets iotigterm rate of return we expect to earn on thaglassets in the future. The rate of
return is determined by the strategic allocatioplah assets and the long-term risk and returrcéstefor each asset class. The forecasts for
each asset class are generated primarily from alysas of the long-term expectations of variousdlgarty investment management
organizations. The expected rate of return on pksets is reviewed annually and revised, as negessaeflect changes in the financial
markets and our investment strategy.

To compute the expected return on pension andrptisment benefit plan assets, we apply an exgaate of return to the fair value of
the pension plan assets and to the fair valuesoptst-retirement benefit plan assets adjusteddotribution timing and for projected benefit
payments to be made from the plan assets. Annuddetzolatility for these assets is reflected ia tiet actuarial losses.

Changes in any of the above factors could signifigampact operating expenses in the consolidatattments of operations and other
comprehensive income (loss) in the consolidatetgsiants of comprehensive income (loss) as wehasalue of the liability and accumulal
other comprehensive loss of stockholders' equitpurconsolidated balance sheets. The expectethretuplan assets is reflected as a
reduction to our pension and post-retirement béegpiense. If our assumed expected rates of r&du2013 were 100 basis points lower, our
qualified pension and post-retirement benefit egperwould have increased by $124 million . If asuamed discount rates for 2013 were 100
basis points lower, our qualified pension and pestement benefit expenses would have decreas&24ynillion and our projected benefit
obligation would have increased by approximatel\8$iillion .

Loss Contingencies and Litigation Reserv

We are involved in several material legal procegslimas described in more detail in "Legal Procegsdim Item 3 of this annual report.
We assess potential losses in relation to thesetned pending or threatened tax and legal matfensmatters not related to income taxes, if a
loss is considered probable and the amount caeds®nably estimated, we recognize an expenseda@stimated loss. To the extent these
estimates are more or less than the actual liab@gulting from the resolution of these matters, @arnings will be increased or decreased
accordingly. If the differences are material, oongolidated financial statements could be matgriaipacted.

For matters related to income taxes, if we deteertfiat the impact of an uncertain tax position ggerlikely than not to be sustained
upon audit by the relevant taxing authority, themrecognize in our financial statements a benefitife largest amount that is more likely thar
not to be sustained. No portion of an uncertainp@sition will be recognized if the position hasdehan a 50% likelihood of being sustained.
Though the validity of any tax position is a matétax law, the body of statutory, regulatory amigrpretive guidance on the application of
law is complex and often ambiguous. Because of #iiether a tax position will ultimately be sustdmrmay be uncertain. The overall tax
liability recorded for uncertain tax positions dgte successor dates of December 31, 2013, 20d2@11 , considers the anticipated
utilization of any applicable tax credits and npemating losses ("NOLs").

Income Taxes

Our provision for income taxes includes amountgdarconsequences deferred to future periods. \Bdedeferred income tax assets
and liabilities reflecting future tax consequenatsbutable to tax net operating losses, or NQ&s credit carryforwards and differences
between the financial statement carrying valuesséts and liabilities and the tax bases of thosetasnd liabilities. Deferred taxes are
computed using enacted tax rates expected to apfie year in which the differences are expeoteaffiect taxable income. The effect on
deferred income tax assets and liabilities of angkan tax rate is recognized in earnings in théogehat includes the enactment date.

The measurement of deferred taxes often involvegxiercise of considerable judgment related toghkzation of tax basis. Our
deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect oueasment that tax positions taken in filed tax metwand the resulting tax basis, are more likely
than not to be sustained if they are audited bintaauthorities. Also, assessing tax rates tha¢xypect to apply and determining the years v
the temporary differences are expected to affectti@® income requires judgment about the futureemmment of our income among the
states in which we operate. Any changes in ourtjpescor judgments involved in the measuremenedémed tax assets and liabilities could
materially impact our financial condition or resutif operations.
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We record deferred income tax assets and lialsilaedescribed above. Valuation allowances arbles$tad when necessary to reduce
deferred income tax assets to amounts that wevieadiee more likely than not to be recovered. Wduata our deferred tax assets quarterly to
determine whether adjustments to our valuationalce are appropriate in light of changes in factsircumstances, such as changes in tax
law, interactions with taxing authorities and dexgghents in case law. In making this evaluationyelhe on our recent history of pre-tax
earnings, estimated timing of future deductions lagwkfits represented by the deferred tax assdteunforecasts of future earnings, the latter
two of which involve the exercise of significantigment. At December 31, 2013, we establisheduatiah allowance of $435 million ,
primarily related to state NOLs, as it is more ljkthan not that this amount will not be utilizedqy to expiration. If forecasts of future
earnings and the nature and estimated timing aféueductions and benefits change in the futueemay determine that a valuation allowe
for certain deferred tax assets is appropriatechvbould materially impact our financial conditionresults of operations. See Note 12—
Income Taxes to our consolidated financial statamignitem 8 of this annual report for additionaflarmation.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

At December 31, 2013, we held cash and cash denigeof $168 million and we had $1.275 billion #gafale under our $2.0 billion
revolving credit facility (referred to as our "CieBacility", which is described further below). Biecember 31, 2013 , cash and cash
equivalents of $95 million were held in foreign Batcounts for the purpose of funding our foreigerations. Due to various factors, our
access to foreign cash is generally much moreicesirthan our access to domestic cash.

We and our Board of Directors monitor our use afhctinroughout the year, but with enhanced scrgany each year in connection with
the review of annual budgets. In connection withlmudgeting process in early 2013 , our executffieays and our Board of Directors
reviewed our sources and potential uses of cashtbeenext several years and elected to reducquanterly dividend rate beginning in 2013
and to implement a share repurchase program. Inemion with our budgeting process in early 2014,executive officers and our Board of
Directors reviewed our sources and potential ueash over the next several years, including anaihgr things the previously-disclosed
effect of the anticipated depletion of our federal operating loss carryforwards by 2015.

Based on the current capital allocation objectidesing 2014 we anticipate expending approxima$@y0 billion of cash for capital
investment in property, plant and equipment antbufil.26 billion for dividends on our common stobksed on the current annual common
stock dividend rate of $2.16 and the current nunab@utstanding common shares. We have debt miaiof approximately $630 million ,
scheduled debt principal payments of $22 milliamg scheduled capital lease and other obligatigmpats of $133 million due during 2014 .
We also anticipate expending cash for repurchasimgmon stock, but the amount will largely dependrarket conditions.

We will continue to monitor our future sources arsgs of cash, and anticipate that we will makestdjants to our capital allocation
strategies when, as and if determined by our Bo&Rirectors. We may also draw on our revolvingdiréacility as a source of liquidity for
operating activities and to give us additional ittty to finance, among other things, our capitalestments, repayments of debt, pension
contributions, dividends, litigation settlement pagnts, or stock repurchases.

We currently expect to continue our current pract€paying quarterly cash dividends in respeaiwsfcommon stock, subject to our
board's discretion to modify or terminate this picecat any time and for any reason.

Capital Expenditures

We incur capital expenditures on an ongoing bas@der to enhance and modernize our networks, etgffectively in our markets
and expand our service offerings. We evaluate gagxpenditure projects based on a variety of faciacluding expected strategic impacts
(such as forecasted impacts on revenue growthpuptivity, expenses, service levels and customentitn) and our expected return on
investment. The amount of capital investment ikigriced by, among other things, demand for ouriges\and products, cash flow generated
by operating activities, cash required for othemppses and regulatory considerations. We estimatéotal 2014 capital expenditures to be
approximately $3.0 billion .

Our capital expenditures continue to be focusedwrstrategic services such as video, broadbandnaméged hosting services. In
particular, we expect to continue to focus on safendevelopment and expanding our fiber infrastmegtincluding installations of "fiber to the
tower," which is a type of telecommunications natwveonsisting of fiber-optic cables that run fronwvizeless carrier's mobile telephone
switching office to cellular towers to enable thaigery of higher bandwidth services supporting itetechnologies than would otherwise
generally be available through a more traditiomglper-based telecommunications network. For mdogrimation on capital spending, see
Items 1 and 1A of this annual report.
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In 2012 and early 2013, we accepted approximat@ébyrillion from Round 1 of Phase 1 of the FCC's @i America Fund ("CAF")
established by Congress to help telecommunicatiarrsers defray the cost of providing broadbandeasdo remote customers. We intend to
use the funds to deploy broadband service for Wbt000 homes in unserved rural areas principali@dlorado, Minnesota, New Mexico,
Virginia and Washington. In 2013, the FCC annourexesther round of CAF funding and we initially aggleto accept approximately $54
million from Round 2 of Phase 1 of the FCC's CAmbtimg broadband services to more than 92,000 haales and businesses in unserved
high-cost areas. Due to challenges from other ctingpéelecommunications carriers on the unservedal mareas, the final amount offered to us
by the FCC, which we accepted in late 2013, wasaqamately $40 million.

Debt and Other Financing Arrangement

Approximately $30 million of Embarq 7.46% noteslwilature on April 1, 2014 and $600 million of ou€@.50% senior notes will
mature on October 1, 2014 . Subject to market ¢mmdi, we expect to continue to issue debt seesrftom time to time in the future to
refinance a substantial portion of our maturingtdieizluding issuing QC debt securities to refinaiits maturing debt. The availability, interest
rate and other terms of any new borrowings willetepon the ratings assigned to us and QC by aw@#tty agencies, among other factors.

As of the date of this annual report, the credihgs for the senior unsecured debt of CenturyLink, and Qwest Corporation were as
follows:

Agency CenturyLink, Inc. Qwest Corporation
Standard & Poor's BB BBB-
Moody's Investors Service, Inc. Ba2 Baa3
Fitch Ratings BB+ BBB-

In early 2013, CenturyLink's senior unsecured datimgs were downgraded from "investment gradehtm-investment grade" by two
of the rating agencies, which we believe increasedorrowing costs. Any additional downgrades ehtiryLink's senior unsecured debt
ratings could under certain circumstances increallgrincrease the cost of our borrowing under thed Facility. In addition, any additional
downgrades of CenturyLink's or QC's senior unsetdabt ratings could impact our access to debtalapi further raise our borrowing costs.
See "Risk Factors—Risks Affecting our Liquidity a@dpital Resources" in Item 1A of this annual répor

Dividends

We currently expect to continue our current pract€paying quarterly cash dividends in respe@uwfcommon stock subject to our
Board of Director's discretion to modify or termi@ahis practice at any time and for any reasoralrty 2013, our Board of Directors appro
a 25.5% reduction in our quarterly common stockddind rate to $0.54 per share, which we believeltex$ in a dividend payout rate that is
more sustainable over the long-term, and theretxyeased our flexibility to balance our multiple etfjves of managing our business, paying
our fixed commitments and returning cash to ouredalders. Assuming continued payment at thisoh®0).54 per share, our total dividends
paid each quarter would be approximately $315 amllbased on our current number of outstanding sHareich does not reflect shares tha
might repurchase or issue in future periods). &isk'Factors—Risks Affecting Our Business" in Ités of Part 11 of this annual report and
the discussion of our stock repurchase programabelo

Stock Repurchase Progra

In February 2013, our Board of Directors authorimedo repurchase up to $2 billion of our outstagdiommon stock. As of December
31, 2013, we had approximately $433 million incktoemaining available for repurchase under thelSRepurchase Program (includes
common shares that, as of December 31, 2013 , dadr@ed to purchase under the program for $2%milh transactions that settled early in
the first quarter of 2014). As of December 31, 20&& had repurchased 45.7 million common shanearfaggregate market price of $1.567
billion and an average purchase price of $34.26spare. The repurchased common stock has beegdrefis of February 20, 2014 , we had
repurchased 51.8 million shares for $1.75 billian an average purchase price of $33.78 per st\expect to continue executing this share
repurchase program primarily in open market trafisas, subject to market conditions and other fectBor additional information on
repurchases made during the quarter ended Dec&@hb2013 , see Item 5 of Part Il of this annuabrép
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In late February 2014, our board authorized a 2#tmprogram to repurchase up to an aggregate 6ft$tlion of our outstanding
common stock. This new program will take effect iettiately upon the completion of our current repasghprogram, which we expect to
deplete during the second quarter of 2014 basexiioant market conditions. We expect to execute ghare repurchase program in open
market transactions, subject to market conditiok@her factors, and expect to complete the n@gram within 18 to 24 months from its
effective date.

Settlement Paymer

In February 2014, Qwest, KPN, the individual defemid and the trustees reached a definitive agreesedtiing the litigation. The
settlement terms include Qwest's payment, whichmade in February 2014, of approximately €171 onilljor approximately $235 million
based on the exchange rate on December 31, 20189 KPNQwest bankruptcy estate pursuant to dsrimification obligations, discussed in
Note 16—Commitments and Contingencies to our consolidéitethcial statements in Item 8 of this annual répor

Credit Facilities

We have access to up to $2 billion aggregate grai@mount of revolving credit under an amendedrasthted revolving credit facility
that matures in April 2017. The Credit FacilitydttCredit Facility") has 18 lenders, with commitrteeranging from $2.5 million to $181
million and allows us to obtain revolving loans d@ndssue up to $400 million of letters of credrhich upon issuance reduce the amount
available for other extensions of credit. Inteisstssessed on borrowings using either the LIBOfR@base rate (each as defined in the Credi
Facility) plus an applicable margin between 1.25% 2.25% per annum for LIBOR loans and 0.25% a@8%.per annum for base rate loans
depending on our then current senior unsecuredtemg debt rating. Our obligations under the Créditility are guaranteed by three of our
wholly-owned subsidiaries, Embarg, QCIl and Sawiis,, one of QCII's wholly-owned subsidiaries ame of Savvis, Inc.'s wholly-owned
subsidiaries. At December 31, 2013, we had $72bomiin borrowings and no amounts of letters of credistanding under the Credit Facili

Under the Credit Facility, we, and our indirect sidilary, Qwest Corporation, must maintain a detEBdTDA (earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization, as definexlinCredit Facility) ratio of not more than 4.@%&nd 2.85:1.0, respectively, as of the last da
of each fiscal quarter for the four quarters thedesl. The Credit Facility also contains a neggtieglge covenant, which generally requires us
to secure equally and ratably any advances undeCtédit Facility if we pledge assets or permiidi@n our property for the benefit of other
debtholders. The Credit Facility also has a cr@ssment default provision, and the Credit Facilitglaertain of our debt securities also have
cross acceleration provisions. When present, thesasions could have a wider impact on liquiditah might otherwise arise from a defaul
acceleration of a single debt instrument. To thembthat our EBITDA (as defined in our Credit Higyg) is reduced by cash settlements or
judgments, including in respect of any of the nrattiiscussed in Note —Commitments and Contingencies to our consolidéitethcial
statements in Item 8 of this annual report, outt tielEBITDA ratios under certain debt agreementblvei adversely affected. This could red
our financing flexibility due to potential restrighs on incurring additional debt under certainyismns of our debt agreements or, in certain
circumstances, could result in a default underagertirovisions of such agreements.

In April 2011, we entered into a $160 million unawitted revolving letter of credit facility which ahles us to provide letters of credit
under terms that may be more favorable than thodenthe Credit Facility. At December 31, 2013 @0d2 , our outstanding letters of credit
totaled $132 million and $120 million , respectivalnder this facility.
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Future Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our estimated futtgetractual obligations as of December 31, 2013 :

2019 and
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 thereafter Total
(Dollars in millions)
Long-term debt, including current
maturities and capital lease obligations
(excluding unamortized premiums, discounts
and other, net.) $ 78t 56& 1,49: 2,21¢ 24¢€ 15,73¢ 21,04«
Interest on long-term debt and
capital lease® 1,37: 1,31¢ 1,24¢ 1,131 1,08¢ 15,40¢ 21,55¢
Operating leases 297 274 252 232 20¢ 1,391 2,65¢
Purchase commitmen® 221 162 8€ 58 22 79 62¢
Post-retirement benefit obligatiéh 73 72 7C 68 111 992 1,38¢
Non-qualified pension obligatior¥ 5 5 5 5 5 21 46
Unrecognized tax benefitd — — — — — 44 44
Other 7 7 7 11 7 12t 164
Total future contractual obligatioff$ $ 2761 2,401 3,15 3,724 1,68¢ 33,79: 47,52t

(1) Actual principal and interest paid in all yeanay differ due to future refinancing of attrimgtidebt or issuance of new debt. Interest on oatifig rate debt was
calculated for all years using the rates effectivBecember 31, 2013 .

(2) We have various long-term, neancelable purchase commitments for advertisingoaoihotion services, including advertising and reéirlg at sports arenas and ot
venues and events. We also have service relatethitorents with various vendors for data procesdiechnical and software support services. Futurengays under
certain service contracts will vary depending onaxtual usage. In the table above we estimatecheats for these service contracts based on thedéservices we
expect to receive.

(3) Reflects only the portion of total obligation thetontractual in nature; see Note 5 be

(4) Represents the amount of tax and interest addapay for our unrecognized tax benefits. The $dilon is composed of unrecognized tax benefft$1 million and
related estimated interest and penalties of $3omi] which would result in future cash paymeifitsur tax positions were not upheld. See Note 12eiime Taxes to
our consolidated financial statements in Iltem &if annual report for additional information. Tivaing of any payments for our unrecognized taxdfigs cannot be
predicted with certainty; therefore, such amoumefiected in the " 2019 and thereafter " columthia above table.

(5) The table is limited to contractual obligationsyoahd does not incluc

contingent liabilities

our open purchase orders as of December 31, ZDi8se purchase orders are generally issued atlaie, and are generally cancelable without g
other long-term liabilities, such as accruals &gdl matters and other taxes that are not contdashligations by nature. We cannot determine it
degree of reliability the years in which theseiliibs might ultimately settle;

cash funding requirements for qualified pensionefienpayable to certain eligible current and fattetirees. Benefits paid by our qualified pengtams are
paid through trusts. Cash funding requirementsHese trusts are not included in this table asre@at able to reliably estimate required contiiing to the
trusts. Our funding projections are discussed &rriielow;

certain post-retirement benefits payable to ceedégible current and future retirees. Not all of post-retirement benefit obligation amount ioatractual
obligation and only the portion that we believa isontractual obligation is reported in the taBlee additional information on our benefits planblate 8—
Employee Benefits to our consolidated financiaesteents in Item 8 of this annual report;

contract termination fees. These fees are non-iegupayments, the timing and payment of whictany, is uncertain. In the ordinary course of bussrend
to optimize our cost structure, we enter into caets with terms greater than one year to use ttveorle facilities of other carriers and to purchasieer
goods and services. Our contracts to use othaecgimetwork facilities generally have no minimuolume requirements and are based on an
interrelationship of volumes and discounted ratssuming we terminate these contracts in 2014 ¢cdindéract termination fees would be approximagy0
million . Under the same assumption, terminatiasfor these contracts to purchase goods and ssmwiculd be $166 million . In the normal course of
business, we do not believe payment of these $eldeely; and

potential indemnification obligations to countetes in certain agreements entered into in the aboourse of business. The nature and terms of thes
arrangements vary. Historically, we have not inedrsignificant costs related to performance unesé types of arrangements.
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Pension and Po-retirement Benefit Obligations

We are subject to material obligations under oisting defined benefit pension plans and other-petitement benefit plans. The
accounting unfunded status as of December 31, @D&8r defined benefit pension plans and other-petstement benefit obligations were
$1.055 billion and $3.153 billion , respectivelyeeSNote 8—Employee Benefits to our consolidated financialesteents in Item 8 of this annt
report for additional information about our pensérd other post-retirement benefit arrangements.

Benefits paid by our qualified pension plans arié flarough a trust that holds all plan assets. Véda@cash contributions of
approximately $146 million in 2013 to our qualifipdnsion plans. Based on current laws and circurosta we expect that our required
contributions to these plans for 2014 will be $haBion.

Certain of our post-retirement health care anditifeirance benefits plans are unfunded. Severgtkthold assets that are used to help
cover the health care costs of certain retireesofA3cember 31, 2013, the fair value of thessttassets was $535 milliginowever, a portic
of these assets is comprised of investments wittniceed liquidity. We estimate that the more ldjaissets in the trust will be adequate to
provide continuing reimbursements for covered pestement health care costs for approximatelydtyears. Thereafter, covered benefits will
be paid either directly by us or from the trustéhesremaining assets become liquid. This projettiege year period could be substantially
shorter or longer depending on returns on plantgsthe timing of maturities of illiquid plan asseind future changes in benefits.

Our estimated annual long-term rate of return enpiansion plans trust assets is 7.5% and for therptirement plans trust asset3i8%
based on the assets currently held; however, acttiahs could vary widely in any given year.

For additional information on factors that coulfluence our funding commitments under these andrgilans, see "Critical Accounting
Policies and Estimates—Pension and Post-RetireBemefits" in this Item 7 and "Risk Factors—Riskd$e&ting our Liquidity and Capital
Resources—Increases in costs for pension and baegdthenefits for our active and retired employeg neduce our profitability and increase
our funding commitments"” in Item 1A of this annugport.

Net Operating Loss Carryforward

We are currently using federal NOLs to offset dtiporof our federal taxable income. We expect tplele a significant portion of these
NOLs and certain other deferred tax attributeshigyend of 2014, and substantially all of thesebxefits by 2015. Once our NOLs are fi
utilized, we expect that the amounts of our castvéldedicated to the payment of federal taxesimgliease substantially. The amounts of t
payments will depend upon many factors, includingife earnings, tax law changes and future taxigistances. For additional information,
see "Risk Factors—Risks Affecting our Liquidity a@dpital Resources" in Item 1A of Part Il of thimaal report.

Historical Information

The following table summarizes our consolidatechdbsn activities (which include cash flows from&iés and Qwest after their
respective acquisition dates):

Years Ended December 31,

Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease)
(Dollars in millions)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 555¢ $ 6,06t (50€6)
Net cash used in investing activities (3,149 (2,690 45¢
Net cash used in financing activities (2,459 (3,295 (841)
Years Ended December 31, Increase /
2012 2011 (Decrease)
(Dollars in millions)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 6,065 $ 4,201 1,86¢
Net cash used in investing activities (2,690 (3,647 (957)
Net cash used in financing activities (3,29%) (577) 2,71¢
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Net cash provided by operating activities decredse®s06 million for the year ended December 31,38s compared to the year ended
December 31, 2012 primarily due to a decreasetifloss) income adjusted for non-cash items, aedeser in the loss on early retirement of
debt, a decrease in the change in the retiremewfieand a decrease in the change in other nmtuaissets and liabilities, which were
partially offset by an increase in the change heoturrent assets and other current liabilities, Net cash provided by operating activities
increased by $1.864 billion for the year ended Drduer 31, 2012 as compared to the year ended Dec&hb2011 primarily attributable to
the acquisitions of Qwest and Savvis, which contald net cash provided by operating activitiesppfraximately $3.4 billion in 2012 and
$2.2 billion in 2011. Our consolidated financiatsiments in Item 8 of this annual report providerimation about the components of net
income and differences between net income andastt grovided by operating activities. For additionformation about our operating resu
see "Results of Operations" above.

Net cash used in investing activities increase@458 million for the year end December 31, 2018ampared to the year ended
December 31, 2012 primarily due to amounts paicéguisitions in 2013, increased payments for pasek of property, plant and equipment
and less proceeds from the sale of property amagible assets. Net cash used in investing deadns$957 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012 as compared to the year endeshiber 31, 2011 primarily due to less net cash fmegcquisitions and an increase in
proceeds from sale of property and intangible assétich were partially offset by an increase igmants for purchases of property, plant and
equipment. Activities in 2012 included paymentsgarchases of property, plant and equipment aniat@pd software of $2.9 billion,
including $1.9 billion for Qwest and Savvis' capgapenditures.

Net cash used in financing activities decreasefii million for the year ended December 31, 201 8ampared to the year ended
December 31, 2012 primarily due to a significardraie from net debt paydowns (including early retzat costs) in 2012 to net proceeds in
2013. Additionally, there was a decrease in divittepaid due to our recently announced reductia@uirper share common stock dividend 1
These items were partially offset by a significemarease in stock repurchases (due to our buybgcgam announced in February 2013). Net
cash used in financing activities increased by #2 fillion for the year ended December 31, 2012cspared to the year ended December 3!
2011 primarily due to net debt paydowns in 201Zusmet debt issuances in 2011. This differencepniamarily due to the $2 billion senior
notes issued in June 2011 to finance the Savvisisitiqn. Also contributing was a $255 million imase in dividends paid attributable to an
increase in the average number of shares outstandin

On December 27, 2013, QCII redeemed $186 millioitsc7.125%Notes due 2018 for $196 million including premiuiees and accrue
interest, which resulted in a $3 million gain.

On November 27, 2013, QCII completed a cash teoffer with respect to its $800 million of 7.125%1és due 2018. QCII received
and accepted tenders of approximately $614 milliggregate principal amount of these notes, or 7f$646 million including premium,
fees and accrued interest, which resulted in a ibmgain.

On November 27, 2013, CenturyLink issued $750iomlbggregate principal amount of 6.75% Notes di282in exchange for net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting discountsetpenses, of approximately $742 milliofihe Notes are unsecured obligations and mi
redeemed, in whole or in part, at any time at @mgation price equal to the greater of par or a 'erakole" rate specified in the Notes, plus
accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption ttateddition, at any time on or prior to DecembgQ16, we may redeem up to 35% of the
principal amount of the Notes at a redemption peigeal to 106.75% of the principal amount therpbfs accrued and unpaid interest to the
redemption date, with the net cash proceeds adiceeqjuity offerings. Under certain circumstanees will be required to make an offer to
repurchase the Notes at a price of 101% of thejrexgate principal amount plus accrued and unpaédédst to the repurchase date.

On August 15, 2013, a subsidiary of Embarqg Corpamg"Embarq") paid at maturity the $50 millionipeipal amount of its 6.75%
Notes.

On July 15, 2013, a subsidiary of Embarq paid attumity the $59 million principal amount of its 8% Notes.
On June 17, 2013, QC paid at maturity the $750anilprincipal amount of its floating rate Notes.

On May 23, 2013, QC issued $775 million aggregaitecipal amount of 6.125% Notes due 2053, inclgdb@5 millionprincipal amour
that was sold pursuant to an over-allotment opgi@mted to the underwriters for the offering, icleange for net proceeds, after deducting
underwriting discounts and expenses, of $752 millidhe Notes are unsecured obligations and magdeemed, in whole or in part, on or
after June 1, 2018 at a redemption price equad@84dlof the principal amount redeemed plus accroeduapaid interest to the redemption
date.

On April 1, 2013, CenturyLink, Inc. paid at matyrihe $176 million principal amount of its 5.50%6tds.
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On March 21, 2013, CenturyLink, Inc. issued $1lidnl aggregate principal amount of 5.625% Notes 2020 in exchange for net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting discountsetpenses, of approximately $988 milliofihe Notes are unsecured obligations and mi
redeemed, in whole or in part, at any time at @mgation price equal to the greater of par or a 'erakole" rate specified in the Notes, plus
accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption ttateddition, at any time on or prior to April 1026, we may redeem up to 35% of the
principal amount of the Notes at a redemption peigeal to 105.625% of the principal amount therphfs accrued and unpaid interest to the
redemption date, with the net cash proceeds adiceeqjuity offerings. Under certain circumstanees will be required to make an offer to
repurchase the Notes at a price of 101% of thejreggate principal amount plus accrued and unpaédédst to the repurchase date.

During the year ended December 31, 2013 , we répsed 45.7 million shares of the company's oudgtgrcommon stock in the open
market. These shares were repurchased for an aggnegrket price of $1.567 billion , or an averpgechase price of $34.26 per share. The
repurchased common stock has been retired. Foti@ualiinformation, see "Liquidity and Capital Resoes—Stock Repurchase Program”
above.

Certain Matters Related to Acquisitions

Qwest's post-closing debt obligations consistexharily of debt securities issued by QCII and twatekubsidiaries while Savvis' post-
closing long-term debt obligations consisted priigaf capital leases, the remaining amounts ofclitare now included in our consolidated
debt balances. The indentures governing Qwest'ainémg debt securities contain customary covenguatisrestrict the ability of Qwest or its
subsidiaries from making certain payments and itnvests, granting liens and selling or transferaisgets. Based on current circumstances
do not anticipate that these covenants will sigaifitly restrict our ability to manage cash balamrasansfer cash between entities within our
consolidated group of companies as needed.

In accounting for the Qwest acquisition, we recdr@avest's debt securities at their estimated faines, which totaled $12.292 billion as
of April 1, 2011. Our acquisition date fair valugtismates were based primarily on quoted marketpric active markets and other observable
inputs where quoted market prices were not avalalthe fair value of Qwest's debt securities exeddhleir stated principal balances on the
acquisition date by $693 million, which we recordeda premium.

The table below summarizes the portions of thisniuen recognized as a reduction to interest expensgtinguished during the periods
indicated:

Years Ended

December 31, Total Since
2013 2012 2011 Acquisition
(Dollars in millions)
Amortized $ 62 86 154 30z
Extinguished” 41 177 58 27€
Total premiums recognized $ 10z 268 21z S7¢

(1) See "Debt and Other Financing Arrangements" forenifiormation

The remaining premium of $115 million as of Decembk, 2013 will reduce interest expense in futieequls, unless otherwise
extinguished.

Other Matters

CenturyLink has cash management arrangements ®iithig of its principal subsidiaries, in which st#rgial portions of the subsidiaries'
cash is regularly advanced to CenturyLink. In adaace with generally accepted accounting princjplesse advances are eliminated as
intercompany transactions. Although CenturyLinkipaically repays these advances to fund the sudr$édi' cash requirements throughout the
year, at any given point in time we may owe a saHisl sum to our subsidiaries under these advamdgsh are eliminated in consolidati
and therefore not recognized on our consolidatéghba sheets.

We also are involved in various legal proceediingd tould have a material adverse effect on oanfiral position. See Note 15—
Commitment and Contingencies to our consolidatedritial statements in Iltem 8 of this annual refayrthe current status of such legal
proceedings.
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Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk from changes inésteates on our variable rate long-term debt akibgs and fluctuations in certain
foreign currencies. We seek to maintain a favoratileof fixed and variable rate debt in an effarfitit interest costs and cash flow volatility
resulting from changes in rates.

Management periodically reviews our exposure terggt rate fluctuations and periodically implemesttategies to manage the expos
From time to time, we have used derivative instmi®¢o (i) lockin or swap our exposure to changing or variableratt rates for fixed intert
rates or (ii) to swap obligations to pay fixed et rates for variable interest rates. As of Ddmem31, 2013 , we had no such instruments
outstanding. We have established policies and puoes for risk assessment and the approval, regaatid monitoring of derivative
instrument activities. We do not hold or issue ¢hgive financial instruments for trading or spetiviapurposes.

We do not believe that there were any material ghario market risks arising from changes in intai@es for the year ended
December 31, 2013 when compared to the discloguoséded in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for fremar ended December 31, 2012 .

At December 31, 2013, we had approximately $20lidtb (excluding capital lease and other obligasavith a carrying amount of $619
million ) of long-term debt outstanding, 94.0% dfiich bears interest at fixed rates and is therafoteexposed to interest rate risk. At
December 31, 2013 we had $1.1 billion floating bt exposed to changes in the London InterBaméré&d Rate (LIBOR). A hypothetical
increase of 100 basis points in LIBOR relativehis tdebt would decrease our annual pre-tax earfipgi1 million .

With our acquisition of Savvis in July 2011, we Bdecome exposed to the risk of fluctuations inféneign currencies in which its
international operations are denominated, primdhié/Euro, the British Pound, the Canadian Dottee,Japanese Yen and the Singapore
Dollar. The percentages of our consolidated revemmel costs that are denominated in these curseaemmaterial. We use a sensitivity
analysis to estimate our exposure to this foreigmency risk, measuring the change in financialtposarising from hypothetical 10% change
in the exchange rates of these currencies, relttittlee U.S. Dollar with all other variables helthstant. The aggregate potential change in the
fair value of financial assets resulting from a diyyetical 10% change in these exchange rates wahmiiiton at December 31, 2013.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methaahalysis presented in the computation of expodorasarket risks. Actual values may
differ materially from those presented above if keficonditions vary from the assumptions used énathalyses performed. These analyses
incorporate the risk exposures that existed at Dbee 31, 2013.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no special purpose or limited purposeiestihat provide off-balance sheet financing, lifityi or market or credit risk support
and we do not engage in leasing, hedging, or atingtar activities that expose us to any significkabilities that are not (i) reflected on the
face of the consolidated financial statementsd{gglosed in Note 15—Commitments and Contingencierir consolidated financial
statements in Item 8 of this annual report, ohe Future Contractual Obligations table includethis Item 7 above or (iii) discussed under the
heading "Market Risk" above.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

The information in "Management's Discussion andlysia of Financial Condition and Results of Opermas—Market Risk" in Iltem 7 of
this annual report is incorporated herein by refeee

69




Table of Contents

ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPL EMENTARY DATA

Report of Management

The Shareholders
CenturyLink, Inc.:

Management has prepared and is responsible fantéagrity and objectivity of our consolidated fir@al statements. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared in accoedaith accounting principles generally acceptethenUnited States of America and
necessarily include amounts determined using osirjpdgments and estimates.

Our consolidated financial statements have beeitealldy KPMG LLP, an independent registered puéticounting firm, who have
expressed their opinion with respect to the fasrashe consolidated financial statements. Thadlitavas conducted in accordance with
standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdiglard (United States).

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over financiglaing, a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réjabflfinancial reporting and the preparation ofancial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfeez Under the supervision and with the partitgraof management, including our
principal executive officer and principal financ@ficer, we conducted an evaluation of the effemtiess of our internal control over financial
reporting based on the frameworkiimernal Control— Integrated Framework (19923sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidns
the Treadway Commission ("COSO"). Based on ouruatan under the framework of COSO, managementladad that our internal control
over financial reporting was effective at Decembgr2013 . The effectiveness of our internal cdrdver financial reporting at December 31,
2013 has been audited by KPMG LLP, as stated in tégort which is included herein.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaubject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors ismqgnsed of independent directors who are not ofioeremployees. The Committee
meets periodically with the external auditors, ing¢ auditors and management. The Committee carssile independence of the external
auditors and the audit scope and discusses inteonélol, financial and reporting matters. Both éx¢éernal and internal auditors have free
access to the Committee.

/sl R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.

R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officada
Assistant Secretary

February 27, 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CenturyLink, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of CenturyLink, Inc. and subsidiaries @ompany) as of December 31,
2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statEnof operations, comprehensive income (loss) flaws, and stockholders' equity for
each of the years in the three-year period endegi@ber 31, 2013 . These consolidated financiadistants are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is toesgpan opinion on these consolidated financiadistants based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenenelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegrferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , ane:$éts of their operations and their cash flowsefach of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2013, in conformity WwitS. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
Company's internal control over financial reportasgof December 31, 2013, based on criteria éstedl ininternal Control— Integrated
Framework(1992)issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifriee Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regated
February 27, 2014 expressed an unqualified opioiothe effectiveness of the Company's internalroboter financial reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP

Shreveport, Louisiana
February 27, 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CenturyLink, Inc.:

We have audited CenturyLink, Inc. and subsidiafie& Company) internal control over financial repa as of December 31, 2013,
based on criteria establishedimernal Control— Integrated Framework (19929sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrike
Treadway Commission (COSQO). The Company's managemegsponsible for maintaining effective internahtrol over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness ofriateontrol over financial reporting, includedtire accompanyingeport of Management
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on@uwenpany's internal control over financial reportbagsed on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri8q@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethatigéanternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness eaististesting and evaluating the design and operafiiectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audit also included perfaggreuch other procedures as we considered necesghgycircumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opini

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed to provide reasonablesssuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegeinerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures that€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witibaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabsurance regarding prevention or timely detecfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could hawaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over fin&l reporting as of December 31,
2013, based on criteria establishedhirernal Control— Integrated Framework (19923sued by the COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of the Company asadlger 31, 2013 and 2012 , and the related comseticstatements of operations,
comprehensive income (loss), cash flows, and stddkins' equity for each of the years in the threaryperiod ended December 31, 2013 , anc
our report dated February 27, 2014 expressed amalifigd opinion on those consolidated financialtsments.

/sl KPMG LLP

Shreveport, Louisiana
February 27, 2014
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CENTURYLINK, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

OPERATING REVENUES
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptiei and amortization)
Selling, general and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment of goodwill (Note 3)
Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Interest expense
Net gain (loss) on early retirement of debt
Other income
Total other income (expense)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Income tax expense
NET (LOSS) INCOME
BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSS) EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE
BASIC
DILUTED
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING
BASIC
DILUTED

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgtsients.
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Years Ended December 31,

2013

2012

2011

(Dollars in millions, except per share
amounts and shares in thousands)

18,00t 18,37¢ 15,35"
7,507 7,63¢ 6,32¢
3,50z 3,24¢ 2,97t
4,541 4,78 4,02¢
1,09z — —

16,64: 15,66: 13,32¢
1,45: 2,71¢ 2,02t

(1,299) (1,319 (1,079)

10 (179 (8)

59 35 3
(1,229 (1,469) (1,079
224 1,25( 94€
462 47z 37E
(239) 777 572
(0.40) 1.2t 1.07
(0.40) 1.2t 1.07
600,89: 620,20 532,78(
600,89: 622,28 534,12:
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CENTURYLINK, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LS35)

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)
NET (LOSS) INCOME $ (239 77 572
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS):
Items related to employee benefit plans:
Change in net actuarial gain (loss), net of $(68882 and $508 tax 981 (6949 (812
Change in net prior service credit, net of $52afid $23 tax (84) (6) (37)
Auction rate securities marked to market, net of, $(&) and $2 tax — 2 4)
Auction rate securities settlements reclassifiedegbincome, net of $—, $(1) an
$— tax — 3 —
Foreign currency translation adjustment and othetrof $—, $— and $2 tax 2 6 (18)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 89¢ (68¢) (871)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) $ 66C 88 (299)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.
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CENTURYLINK, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2013 2012

(Dollars in millions
and shares in thousands)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 16€ 211
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $155 an@$15 1,977 1,915
Income tax receivable — 42
Deferred income taxes, net 1,16¢ 91€
Other 597 552
Total current assets 3,901 3,63¢
NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment 34,30° 31,93:
Accumulated depreciation (15,667) (13,029
Net property, plant and equipment 18,64¢ 18,90¢
GOODWILL AND OTHER ASSETS
Goodwill 20,67 21,62%
Customer relationships, net 5,93¢ 7,052
Other intangible assets, net 1,80z 1,91¢
Other, net 823 79¢€
Total goodwill and other assets 29,23« 31,39:
TOTAL ASSETS $ 51,781 53,94(

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturities of long-term debt $ 78% 1,20t
Accounts payable 1,111 1,207
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Salaries and benefits 65C 682
Income and other taxes 33¢ 35€
Interest 273 26€
Other 514 234
Advance billings and customer deposits 737 642
Total current liabilities 4,40¢ 4,59t
LONG-TERM DEBT 20,18: 19,40(
DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Deferred income taxes, net 4,753 3,56¢
Benefit plan obligations, net 4,04¢ 5,84«
Other 1,20¢ 1,24¢
Total deferred credits and other liabilities 10,00¢ 10,65¢

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 15)
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred stock — non-redeemable, $25.00 par valueorized 2,000 shares, issued and outstant
7 and 7 shares — —

Common stock, $1.00 par value, authorized 1,600a0@01,600,000 shares, issued and outstanding
583,637 and 625,658 shares 584 62€

Additional paid-in capital 17,34: 19,07¢



Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained earnings
Total stockholders' equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

See accompanying notes to consolidated financisients.
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(802) (1,70)
66 1,28¢

17,19 19,28¢

$ 51,78: 53,94(




Table of Contents

CENTURYLINK, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

(Dollars in millions)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net (loss) income $ (239 771 572
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to rehcprovided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 4,541 4,78( 4,02¢
Impairment of goodwill (Note 3) 1,092 — —
Deferred income taxes 391 394 39t
Provision for uncollectible accounts 152 187 152
Gain on sale of intangible assets (32 — —
Long-term debt (premium) discount amortization (57) (88) (14¢)
Net (gain) loss on early retirement of debt (20 17¢ 8
Changes in current assets and current liabilities:
Accounts receivable (212 (159 (102
Accounts payable (76) (72 (58)
Accrued income and other taxes 28 (149 31
Other current assets and other current liabilities, 263 16 (76)
Retirement benefits (342) (169) (68¢)
Changes in other noncurrent assets and liabilities 19 161 (6)
Other, net 41 68 93
Net cash provided by operating activities 5,55¢ 6,06° 4,201
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for property, plant and equipment andai@#ed software (3,049 (2,919 (2,41))
Cash paid for Savvis acquisition, net of $61 casfuaed — — (1,67))
Cash acquired in Qwest acquisition, net of $5 qest — — 41¢
Cash paid for other acquisitions (160 — —
Proceeds from sale of property and intangible asset 80 191 —
Other, net (20 38 1€
Net cash used in investing activities (3,149 (2,690 (3,649
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 2,481 3,36: 4,102
Payments of long-term debt (2,010 (5,119 (2,989
Net (payments) borrowings on credit facility (95) 543 (88)
Early retirement of debt costs (31 (34€) (119
Dividends paid (1,309 (1,81)) (1,55€)
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 73 11C 10z
Repurchase of common stock (1,586€) (37) (32
Other, net 15 2 (9
Net cash used in financing activities (2,459 (3,29 (577)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbagmnts — 3 (22)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equisalent (43 83 (45)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 211 12¢ 17z
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 16e $ 211  $ 12¢
Supplemental cash flow information:
Income taxes (paid) refunded, net $ (48 $ (82 11€

Interest (paid) (net of capitalized interest of $843 and $25) $ (1,339 % (1,405 (1,22%)



See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.

76




Table of Contents

CENTURYLINK, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

(Dollars in millions)
COMMON STOCK (represents dollars and shares)

Balance at beginning of period $ 62€ 61¢ 30&

Issuance of common stock to acquire Qwest, inclydimares issued in connecti

with share-based compensation awards — — 294

Issuance of common stock to acquire Savvis, inolydhares issued in connect

with share-based compensation awards — — 14

Issuance of common stock through dividend reinvestirincentive and benefit

plans 4 8 6

Repurchase of common stock (46) — —

Shares withheld to satisfy tax withholdings — (2) —

Balance at end of period 584 62€ 61¢
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL

Balance at beginning of period 19,07¢ 18,90: 6,181

Issuance of common stock to acquire Qwest, inclydssumption of share-base

compensation awards — — 11,97

Issuance of common stock to acquire Savvis, inolydissumption of share-based

compensation awards — — 601

Issuance of common stock through dividend reinvestirincentive and benefit

plans 69 10z 97

Repurchase of common stock (1,55)) — —

Shares withheld to satisfy tax withholdings (18) (34) (30

Share-based compensation and other, net 85 11C 78

Dividends Declared (321) — —

Balance at end of period 17,34: 19,07¢ 18,90:
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Balance at beginning of period (1,707 (1,019 (147

Other comprehensive income (loss) 89¢ (68¢) (877)

Balance at end of period (802) (1,707 (1,012
RETAINED EARNINGS

Balance at beginning of period 1,28¢ 2,31¢ 3,30z

Net (loss) income (239 777 57E

Dividends declared (980 (1,81)) (1,55¢€)

Balance at end of period 66 1,28¢ 2,31¢
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 17,19 19,28¢ 20,821

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.
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CENTURYLINK, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unless the context requires otherwise, referencakis annual report to "CenturyLink," "we," "ustd "our" refer to CenturyLink, Inc.
and its consolidated subsidiaries, including SAVVWS. and its consolidated subsidiaries (refertedas "Savvis") for periods on or after
July 15, 2011 and Qwest Communications Internatitma and its consolidated subsidiaries (refertecas "Qwest") for periods on or aft
April 1, 2011.

(1) Basis of Presentation and Summary of SignificarAccounting Policies
Basis of Presentatiol

We are an integrated communications company engagaarily in providing an array of communicatioservices to our residential,
business, governmental and wholesale customersc@umunications services include local and longadise, broadband, private line
(including special access), MPLS, broadband, da&gration, managed hosting (including cloud ha@gtinolocation, Ethernet, network access
public access, wireless, video services and othalary services.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemientade our accounts and the accounts of our siavigd over which we exercise
control. These subsidiaries include our acquisiib®AVVIS, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiar&Savvis") on July 15, 2011 and Qwest
Communications International Inc. and its consaédasubsidiaries ("Qwest") on April 1, 2011. Se¢e\Nb—Acquisitions for additional
information. All intercompany amounts and transatdi with our consolidated subsidiaries have beiemreted.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we redaxdmrrection of an error related to an overstatdrof our net deferred tax liability
recorded in connection with the purchase accourtfrigavvis and Qwest in 2011. Therefore, we recagha $105 million decrease in our net
deferred tax liability and a $105 million reductitmgoodwill on our consolidated balance sheetf@egaember 31, 2012. The correction of the
error did not have an effect on our consolidateteshents of operations or our consolidated statentdrcash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011.

We reclassified certain prior year balance she@tents presented in our annual report on Form 16¢Khe year ended December 31,
2012 and 2011 to conform to the current periodgmttion. Specifically, we reclassified $123 milliand $83 milliorin software developme
costs, net of $30 million and $8 million in accuweld amortization, from property, plant and equiptte other intangible assets on our
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31,8@12011, respectively. We also reclassified $#Bom and $8 million from depreciation
expense to amortization expense in our statemémisavations for the years ended December 31, 2812011, respectively. The correction
of the error did not have an effect on our constéd statements of operations or our consolidastdrents of cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011.

In January 2013, we sold $43 million of our wiralepectrum assets held for sale. The sale resolgedain of $32 million , which is
recorded as other income on our consolidated seattnof operations. During the quarter ended JOn2@L3, we reclassified our remaining
$53 million of wireless spectrum assets from heldsiale to other intangible assets on our congelitlbalance sheet. Although we continue to
pursue selling our remaining spectrum assets, wernger expect to reach agreements with purchagém the coming twelve months.

Effective January 1, 2012, we changed our ratespitalized labor as we transitioned certain of @gdegacy systems to our historical
company systems. This transition resulted in ameséd $40 million to $55 million increase in th@m@unt of labor capitalized as an asset
compared to the amount that would have been cigaithif Qwest had continued to use its legacy sgstand a corresponding estimated $40
million to $55 million decrease in operating expenfor the year ended December 31, 2012. The rieduatexpenses described above, net of
tax, increased net income approximately $25 miltw$34 million , or $0.04 to $0.05 per basic aiidtdd common share, for the year ended
December 31, 2012.

Effective January 1, 2012, we changed our estin@tdse remaining useful lives and net salvage eétu certain telecommunications
equipment. These changes resulted in additionakdegion expense of approximately $26 million tiee year ended December 31, 2012. Thi
additional depreciation expense, net of tax, redue income by approximately $16 million , or $r basic and diluted common share, fo
the year ended December 31, 2012.

Effective January 2014, we will change the estimatethe remaining economic lives of certain swictdl circuit network equipment. V
estimate this will result in a net increase in @efation expense in our consolidated statementp@fations of $78 million for the year ended
December 31, 2014.
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To simplify the overall presentation of our condalied financial statements, we report immateriadams attributable to noncontrolling
interests in certain of our subsidiaries as follo()sncome attributable to noncontrolling intetes other income (expense), (ii) equity
attributable to noncontrolling interests in addit paid-in capital and (iii) cash flows attribukalbo noncontrolling interests in other, net
financing activities.

We also reclassified certain other prior period ans to conform to the current period presentaiiociuding the categorization of our
revenues and our segment reporting. See Note 13m&ednformation for additional information. Thedeganges had no impact on total
revenues, total operating expenses or net incomanfpperiod.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policie
Use of Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with U.S. generally accepted accogmiiinciples. These accounting
principles require us to make certain estimatedgjuents and assumptions. We believe that the gssimjadgments and assumptions we mak
when accounting for items and matters such asydtutmited to, investments, long-term contractsstomer retention patterns, allowance for
doubtful accounts, depreciation, amortization, tgakiations, internal labor capitalization rates;overability of assets (including deferred tax
assets), impairment assessments, pension, pastnetit and other post-employment benefits, taxertia liabilities and other provisions and
contingencies are reasonable, based on informatiaitable at the time they were made. These estgnatdgments and assumptions can a
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities andpmmants of stockholders' equity as of the datéhetonsolidated balance sheets, as well ¢
reported amounts of revenue, expenses and comoofecdsh flows during the periods presented incoasolidated statements of operations.
our consolidated statements of comprehensive indtoes) and our consolidated statements of castsfliVe also make estimates in our
assessments of potential losses in relation t@aténed or pending tax and legal matters. See Nbtdricome Taxes and Note 15—
Commitments and Contingencies for additional infation.

For matters not related to income taxes, if a ieg®nsidered probable and the amount can be rablgoestimated, we recognize an
expense for the estimated loss. If we have thenpiatdo recover a portion of the estimated los#rfra third party, we make a separate
assessment of recoverability and reduce the estthiass if recovery is also deemed probable.

For matters related to income taxes, if the impéein uncertain tax position is more likely than twobe sustained upon audit by the
relevant taxing authority, then we recognize a Eefe the largest amount that is more likely thaot to be sustained. No portion of an
uncertain tax position will be recognized if thesiion has less than a 50% likelihood of beinganstd. Interest is recognized on the amou
unrecognized benefit from uncertain tax positions.

For all of these and other matters, actual resoltgd differ from our estimates.
Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue for services when the reledces are provided. Recognition of certain paymsesceived in advance of servi
being provided is deferred until the service isvided. These advance payments include activatidrrastallation charges, which we recogr
as revenue over the expected customer relatiopahipd, which ranges from eighteen months to oseryears depending on the service. We
also defer costs for customer activations and liasians. The deferral of customer activation anstallation costs is limited to the amount of
revenue deferred on advance payments. Costs iseré@dvance payments are recorded as expertse petiod such costs are incurred.
Expected customer relationship periods are estonagang historical experience. Termination feestber fees on existing contracts that are
negotiated in conjunction with new contracts arieded and recognized over the new contract term.

We offer bundle discounts to our customers whoiveceertain groupings of services. These bundleadists are recognized concurrel
with the associated revenues and are allocatduetearious services in the bundled offering basethe estimated selling price of services
included in each bundled combination.

Customer arrangements that include both equipmehsarvices are evaluated to determine whethezléments are separable. If the
elements are deemed separable and separate egrongsses exist, the revenue associated withuterner arrangement is allocated to eact
element based on the relative estimated sellirgppoi the separate elements. We have estimatestHiveg prices of each element by reference
to vendor-specific objective evidence of sellingces when the elements are sold separately. Thmuevassociated with each element is then
recognized as earned. For example, if we receivadaance payment when we sell equipment and cangrservice together, we immediately
recognize as revenue the amount allocated to thipmgnt as long as all the conditions for reveragagnition have been satisfied. The por
of the advance payment allocated to the servicedobagon its relative selling price is recognizediody over the longer of the contractual



period or the expected customer relationship period
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We periodically transfer optical capacity asset®onnetwork to other telecommunications servigeiess. These transactions are
structured as indefeasible rights of use, commuaafisrred to as IRUs, which are the exclusive righise a specified amount of capacity or
fiber for a specified term, typically 20 years. \A&zount for the cash consideration received aorsfeais of optical capacity assets and on all o
the other elements deliverable under an IRU, asme® ratably over the term of the agreement. We havrecognized revenue on any
contemporaneous exchanges of our optical capassgtafor other optical capacity assets.

In connection with offering products and servicesviled by third-party vendors, we review the rielaship between us, the vendor and
the end customer to assess whether revenue sheudghbrted on a gross or net basis. In assessiatherihrevenue should be reported on a
gross or net basis, we consider whether we acpaseipal in the transaction, take title to thegucts, have risk and rewards of ownership or
act as an agent or broker. Based on our agreem@ht®IRECTV and Verizon Wireless, we offer thesssces through sales agency
relationships which are reported on a net basis.

For our data hosting operations, we have servigsd Bommitments pursuant to contracts with certdiaur clients. To the extent that
such service levels are not achieved or are otlerdisputed due to performance or service issuether service interruptions or conditions,
we will estimate the amount of credits to be issaed record a reduction to revenue, with a cornegdipg increase in the credit reserve.

USF, Gross Receipts Taxes and Other Surcharges

In determining whether to include in our revenud arpenses the taxes and surcharges collectedcirstomers and remitted to
government authorities, including USF charges,ssalse, value added and some excise taxes, wes gagemg other things, whether we are
the primary obligor or principal taxpayer for tlaxés assessed in each jurisdiction where we dadssiln jurisdictions where we determine
that we are the principal taxpayer, we record tirelsarges on a gross basis and include them inewenue and costs of services and product:
In jurisdictions where we determine that we areatyea collection agent for the government authoritg record the taxes on a net basis an
not include them in our revenue and costs of sesvémd products.

Advertising Costs

Costs related to advertising are expensed as edtamd included in selling, general and administatxpenses in our consolidated
statements of operations. For the years ended Omxredd, 2013 , 2012 and 2011, our advertising es@evas $210 million , $189 million and
$275 million , respectively.

Legal Costs

In the normal course of our business, we incursctushire and retain external legal counsel tos&luis on regulatory, litigation and other
matters. We expense these costs as the relatddeseave received.

Income Taxes

We file a consolidated federal income tax returthwaiur eligible subsidiaries. The provision forante taxes consists of an amount for
taxes currently payable, an amount for tax consecpsedeferred to future periods, adjustments tdiabilities for uncertain tax positions and
amortization of investment tax credits. We recaetedred income tax assets and liabilities reflecfiture tax consequences attributable to tay
net operating losses ("NOLs"), tax credit carryfards and differences between the financial statensrying value of assets and liabilities
and the tax bases of those assets and liabildieferred taxes are computed using enacted taxeapescted to apply in the year in which the
differences are expected to affect taxable incdrhe.effect on deferred income tax assets andiliaisilof a change in tax rate is recognized in
earnings in the period that includes the enactrdatg.

We establish valuation allowances when necessagdiace deferred income tax assets to the amdattsve believe are more likely
than not to be recovered. A significant portioroaf net deferred tax assets relate to tax berafiibutable to NOLs. Each quarter we evaluate
the need to retain all or a portion of the valuatitlowance on our deferred tax assets. See Netdridme Taxes for additional information.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquigstments that are readily convertible into cashaarcot subject to significant risk
from fluctuations in interest rates. As a restilg value at which cash and cash equivalents aogtezbin our consolidated financial statements
approximates their fair value. In evaluating inveshts for classification as cash equivalents, weire that individual securities have original
maturities of ninety days or less and that indigildavestment funds have dollar-weighted averageiritis of ninety days or less. To preserve
capital and maintain liquidity, we invest with fimeial institutions we deem to be of sound financ@dition and in high quality and relatively
risk-free investment products. Our cash investrpefity limits the concentration of investments wafiecific financial institutions or among
certain products and includes criteria relatedréalit worthiness of any particular financial ingtion.

Book overdrafts occur when checks have been issuebave not been presented to our controlled digloent bank accounts for
payment. Disbursement bank accounts allow us @ydehding of issued checks until the checks aesgmted for payment. Until the issued
checks are presented for payment, the book ovésdaed included in accounts payable on our corst@iibalance sheet. This activity is
included in the operating activities section in oansolidated statements of cash flows.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Acaants

Accounts receivable are recognized based uponntioeiat due from customers for the services provimteat cost for purchased and ot
receivables less an allowance for doubtful accourite allowance for doubtful accounts receivabflects our best estimate of probable losse:
inherent in our receivable portfolio determinedtloa basis of historical experience, specific alloees for known troubled accounts and other
currently available evidence. We generally consaleraccounts past due if they are outstanding 80efays . Our collection process varies by
the customer segment, amount of the receivablepandvaluation of the customer's credit risk. Past due accounts are written off against
our allowance for doubtful accounts when colleci®moonsidered to be not probable. Any recoverfexcoounts previously written off are
generally recognized as a reduction in bad deb¢msgin the period received. The carrying valugcobunts receivable net of the allowance
for doubtful accounts approximates fair value.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment acquired in conneatiith our acquisitions was recorded based onsiisnated fair value as of its
acquisition date plus the estimated value of aspeiated legally or contractually required retiretnebligations. Purchased and constructed
property, plant and equipment is recorded at qbss the estimated value of any associated legalgontractually required retirement
obligations. Property, plant and equipment is deipted primarily using the straight-line group neethUnder the straight-line group method,
assets dedicated to providing telecommunicationscgs (which comprise the majority of our propegilant and equipment) that have similar
physical characteristics, use and expected udeéd hre categorized in the year acquired on tkes lod equal life groups for purposes of
depreciation and tracking. Generally, under thaigt-line group method, when an asset is soletimed in the course of normal business
activities, the cost is deducted from propertynpknd equipment and charged to accumulated depicectiwithout recognition of a gain or lo
A gain or loss is recognized in our consolidatedeshents of operations only if a disposal is abmbion unusual. Leasehold improvements are
amortized over the shorter of the useful liveshef &ssets or the expected lease term. Expendituregintenance and repairs are expensed a
incurred. Interest is capitalized during the camdtion phase of network and other internal-usetabprojects. Employee-related costs for
construction of network and other internal use aszre also capitalized during the constructiorsph®roperty, plant and equipment supplies
used internally are carried at average cost, eXoeignificant individual items for which costligsed on specific identification.

We perform annual internal reviews to evaluateréfzsonableness of the depreciable lives for oyrgrty, plant and equipment. Our
reviews utilize models that take into account datisage, physical wear and tear, replacement gishiesumptions about technology evolution
and, in certain instances, actuarially determinetb@bilities to estimate the remaining life of asset base.

We have asset retirement obligations associatddtht legally or contractually required removabdimited group of property, plant a
equipment assets from leased properties and thesiisof certain hazardous materials present iroaned properties. When an asset
retirement obligation is identified, usually in asgtion with the acquisition of the asset, we rddbe fair value of the obligation as a liability.
The fair value of the obligation is also capitatizes property, plant and equipment and then aneortizer the estimated remaining useful life
of the associated asset. Where the removal oldigéinot legally binding, the net cost to remoseeds is expensed in the period in which the
costs are actually incurred.
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We review long-lived tangible assets for impairmehtnever facts and circumstances indicate thatalmying amounts of the assets
may not be recoverable. For assessment purposeslied assets are grouped with other assetsiabitlitles at the lowest level for which
identifiable cash flows are largely independenthef cash flows of other assets and liabilitieseaba material change in operations. An
impairment loss is recognized only if the carryargount of the asset group is not recoverable aoéesds its fair value. Recoverability of the
asset group to be held and used is assessed byadomfhe carrying amount of the asset group tetienated undiscounted future net cash
flows expected to be generated by the asset gtbtife asset group's carrying value is not recdsleraan impairment charge is recognized for
the amount by which the carrying amount of the tagsmup exceeds its fair value. We determine falugs by using a combination of
comparable market values and discounted cash flasvappropriate.

Goodwill, Customer Relationships and Other Intangille Assets

Intangible assets arising from business combinatisach as goodwill, customer relationships, chpéd software, trademarks and trade
names, are initially recorded at estimated faingalWe amortize customer relationships primarilgroan estimated life of 10 years to,fsing
either the sum-of-the-years-digits or the straigtg-methods, depending on the type of customeraWiertize capitalized software using the
straight-line method over estimated lives rangipgaiseven years , except for approximately $23lfamiof our capitalized software costs,
which represents costs to develop an integratéiddpénd customer care system which is amortizéuguse straight-line method over a 20
year period. We amortize our other intangible aspstdominantly using trsum-of-the-years-digits method over an estimafedoli four
years. Other intangible assets not arising from busimessbinations are initially recorded at cost. Whibiere are no legal, regulatory,
contractual or other factors that would reasonébiit the useful life of an intangible asset, wassify the intangible asset as indefinite-lived
and such intangible assets are not amortized.

Internally used software, whether purchased orldgeel by us, is capitalized and amortized usingstheght-line method over its
estimated useful life. We have capitalized certaists associated with software such as costs oliogags devoting time to the projects and
external direct costs for materials and servicest€associated with software to be used for iatgrarposes are expensed until the point at
which the project has reached the development sfagesequent additions, modifications or upgradéstérnal-use software are capitalized
only to the extent that they allow the softwarg@ésform a task it previously did not perform. Scdte maintenance, data conversion and
training costs are expensed in the period in wiiely are incurred. We review the remaining econdiwés of our capitalized software
annually. Capitalized software is included in otiiéangible assets, net, in our consolidated baaheets.

Our long-lived intangible assets, other than godidwith indefinite lives are assessed for impainhannually, or, under certain
circumstances, more frequently, such as when ewemtiscumstances indicate there may be an impaitnidhese assets are carried at the
estimated fair value at the time of acquisition asdets not acquired in acquisitions are recorthis@rical cost. However, if their estimated
fair value is less than the carrying amount, otheefinitedived intangible assets are reduced to their eséichfair value through an impairme
charge to our consolidated statements of operations

We annually review the estimated lives and methsgsl to amortize our other intangible assets. Theahamounts of amortization
expense may differ materially from our estimategpeahding on the results of our annual review.

We are required to assess goodwill for impairméigast annually, or more frequently if events @hange in circumstances indicate tha
an impairment may have occurred. We are requiredite-down the value of goodwill in periods in whithe recorded amount of goodwiill
exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill. Ouregng units, which we refer to as our segments,rat discrete legal entities with discrete
financial statements. Our assets and liabilitiesesnployed in and relate to the operations of ipleltieporting units. Therefore, the equity
carrying value and future cash flows must be edgthaach time a goodwill impairment assessmergrpned on a reporting unit. As a
result, our assets, liabilities and cash flowsamsigned to reporting units using reasonable ansistent allocation methodologies. Certain
estimates, judgments and assumptions are requineerform these assignments. We believe theseastinjudgments and assumptions to be
reasonable, but changes in many of these can isigmilfy affect each reporting unit's equity cargyiralue and future cash flows utilized for
goodwill impairment assessment. As of SeptembePB03, our annual assessment date, we assessadliigémdmpairment of our reporting
units, which are our four operating segments (coresybusiness, wholesale and data hosting) an@egeded a non-cash, non-tax-deductible
goodwill impairment charge of $1.092 billion forapwill assigned to our data hosting segment.
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During the fourth quarter of 2013, we elected tarde the date of our annual assessment of godadwadlirment from September 30 to
October 31. This is a change in method of applgin@ccounting principle which management beliesespreferable alternative as the new
date of the assessment is more closely alignedauittstrategic planning process. The change im$éisessment date did not delay, accelere
avoid a potential impairment charge in 2013. Wdqgrered our annual goodwill impairment assessmeB8eatember 30, 2013, prior to the
change in our annual assessment date. We thenmeda qualitative assessment of our goodwill @caibber 31 and concluded that our
goodwill for consumer, wholesale and business tempunits was not impaired and our goodwill fotalaosting reporting unit was not further
impaired as of that date.

We are required to reassign goodwill to reportingsueach time we reorganize our internal reporsimgcture which causes a change in
our operating segments. Goodwill is reassignefieaeporting units using a relative fair value agzh. We utilize the earnings before interes
tax and depreciation as our allocation methodokgit represents a reasonable proxy for the fdirevaf the operations being reorganized.

See Note 3—Goodwill, Customer Relationships anceOlhtangible Assets for additional information.
Pension and Post-Retirement Benefits

We recognize the underfunded status of our deflieedfit and post-retirement plans as an asseliability on our balance sheet. Each
year's actuarial gains or losses are a componentrasther comprehensive income (loss), whichésntimcluded in our accumulated otl
comprehensive loss. Pension and post-retirememfivexpenses are recognized over the period ichvtiie employee renders service and
becomes eligible to receive benefits. We make Baganit assumptions (including the discount ratg@ested rate of return on plan assets and
health care trend rates) in computing the pensimghpast-retirement benefits expense and obligatisas Note 8—Employee Benefits for
additional information.

Foreign Currency

Our results of operations include foreign subsidi&rwhich are translated from the applicable fiometl currency to the United States
Dollar using the average exchange rates duringegherting period, while assets and liabilities @amslated at the reporting date. Resulting
gains or losses from translating foreign curreneyaacomponent of our other comprehensive incooss)] which is then included in our
accumulated other comprehensive loss.

Common Stock

At December 31, 2013, we had unissued sharesmfiGink common stock reserved of 31 million stsafer incentive compensatio,
million shares for acquisitions, 1 million shares éur dividend reinvestment plan and 1 millionrglsafor our employee stock purchase plan
("ESPP").

Preferred stock
Holders of outstanding CenturyLink preferred stack entitled to receive cumulative dividends, reegireferential distributions equal to
$25 per share plus unpaid dividends upon Centulg iiquidation and vote as a single class withiblelers of common stock.

Out-of-Period Adjustments

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we disedvand corrected an error that resulted in ansta&ment of depreciation expense
in 2011. We evaluated the error considering botimtjtative and qualitative factors and concludeat the error was immaterial to our
previously issued and current period consolidaiteahicial statements. Therefore, we recognized andiBidn reduction in depreciation exper
during the year ended December 31, 2012. The dmmneaf the error resulted in an increase in nebme of $19 million , or approximately
$0.03 per basic and diluted common share, for #ze gnded December 31, 2012.
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(2) Acquisitions
Acquisition of Savvis

On July 15, 2011, we acquired all of the outstagadiommon stock of Sawvvis, a provider of cloud hagtinanaged hosting, colocation
and network services in domestic and foreign mark&ke believe this acquisition enhances our altiitge an information technology partner
with our existing business customers and strengtbenopportunities to attract new business custetinghe future. Each share of Savvis
common stock outstanding immediately prior to tbeuasition converted into the right to receive 20 share in cash and 0.2479 shares of
CenturyLink common stock. The aggregate considmaraif $2.382 billion consisted of:

e cash payments of $1.732 billipn
» the 14.313 milliorshares of CenturyLink common stock issued to comsata the acquisitio

» the closing stock price of CenturyLink commoocst at July 14, 2011 of $38.54anc

» the estimated net value of the pre-combinationign of certain share-based compensation awaslsmaed by CenturyLink of $98
million , of which $33 million was paid in cash.

Upon completing the acquisition, we also paid $84ffion to retire certain pre-existing Savvis deloid accrued interest, and paid relatec
transaction expenses totaling $15 million . Thehgasyments required on or about the closing date Wumded using existing cash balances,
which included the net proceeds from the June 28diiance of senior notes with an aggregate prihaipaunt of $2 billion . See Note 4—
Long-term Debt and Credit Facilities, for additibmdormation about our senior notes.

The aggregate consideration paid by us exceedeaafjtiregate estimated fair value of the assets mtjand liabilities assumed by
$1.335 hillion, which we recognized as goodwill. This goodwilkisributable to strategic benefits, including emded financial and operatiol
scale, and product and market diversification haexpect to realize. None of the goodwill assedatith this acquisition is deductible for
income tax purposes.

The following was our assignment of the aggregatesitieration:

July 15, 2011
(Dollars in millions)

Cash, accounts receivable and other current assets* $ 214
Property, plant and equipment 1,367
Identifiable intangible assets

Customer relationships 73¢

Other 51
Other noncurrent assets 27
Current liabilities, excluding current maturitieslong-term debt (129)
Current maturities of long-term debt (38)
Long-term debt (840)
Deferred credits and other liabilities (349
Goodwill 1,33¢
Aggregate consideration $ 2,382

* Includes estimated fair value of $90 million focaants receivable which had gross contractual val$01 million on July 15, 2011. The $11 millidifference

between the gross contractual value and the estihfair value assigned represents our best estimsaté July 15, 2011 of contractual cash flows tadild not be
collected.
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Acquisition of Qwes

On April 1, 2011, we acquired all of the outstamdaommon stock of Qwest, a provider of data, Ireemideo and voice services
nationwide and globally. We entered into this asijigin, among other things, to realize certaintsgiie benefits, including enhanced financial
and operational scale, market diversification anettaged combined networks. As of the acquisitite dQwest served approximately 9.0
million access lines and approximately 3.0 milllmoadband subscribers across 14 states. Eachafi@mest common stock outstanding
immediately prior to the acquisition converted ittie right to receive 0.1664 shares of Centuryldokimon stock, with cash paid in lieu of
fractional shares. The aggregate considerationd2a<273 billion based on:

» the 294 millionshares of CenturyLink common stock issued to comsat®a the acquisitio

» the closing stock price of CenturyLink commooct at March 31, 2011 of $41.55

» the estimated net value of the pre-combinationign of share-based compensation awards assuyn€érturyLink of $52 million
(excluding the value of restricted stock includedhie number of issued shares specified above); and

e cash paid in lieu of the issuance of fractistares of $5 million
We assumed approximately $12.7 billion of long-tefait in connection with our acquisition of Qwest.
The aggregate consideration exceeded the aggregtateated fair value of the assets acquired aibilitias assumed by $10.032 billion,
which we recognized as goodwill. This goodwill ttributable to strategic benefits, including enrethéinancial and operational scale, market

diversification and leveraged combined networks #mexpect to realize. None of the goodwill asated with this acquisition is deductible
income tax purposes.

The following was our assignment of the aggregatesiteration:

April 1, 2011
(Dollars in millions)

Cash, accounts receivable and other current assets* $ 2,121
Property, plant and equipment 9,52¢
Identifiable intangible assets

Customer relationships 7,55¢

Capitalized software 1,70z

Other 18¢
Other noncurrent assets 39C
Current liabilities, excluding current maturitiesSlong-term debt (2,426
Current maturities of long-term debt (2,4272)
Long-term debt (10,259
Deferred credits and other liabilities (4,147%)
Goodwill 10,03:
Aggregate consideration $ 12,27¢

* Includes estimated fair value of $1.194 billion émcounts receivable which had gross contractuaévaf $1.274 billion on April 1, 2011. The $80 hah difference

between the gross contractual value and the estihfair value assigned represents our best estisaté April 1, 2011 of contractual cash flows thaiuld not be
collected.

On the acquisition date, we assumed Qwest's catiigs. For more information on our contingendes, Note 15—Commitments and
Contingencies.
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Other Acquisitions

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we adfjaltef the outstanding stock of two companiestédal cash consideration of $160
million , of which $139 million was attributed t@gdwill and the remainder to various other assetsliabilities. The valuation for one of the
acquisitions is still preliminary and subject taolye during the measurement period, which endoireiber of 2014. The acquisitions were
consummated to expand the product offerings ofdata hosting segment and therefore the goodwilbleas assigned to that segment. The
goodwill is primarily attributable to expected futuincreases in data hosting segment revenue freraale of new products to existing
customers as well as the acquisition of new custsmige to the products acquired. The goodwill isdemluctible for tax purposes.

The acquisitions did not materially impact the 2@b8solidated results of operations from the dateéke acquisitions and would not
materially impact pro forma results of operations.

Acquisition-Related Expenses

We have incurred operating expenses related taaguisition of Savvis in July 2011, Qwest in Aj2@11 and Embarq in July 2009. The
table below summarizes our expenses related taaguisitions, which consist primarily of integratiand severance expenses:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011

(Dollars in millions)
Acquisition-related expenses $ 53 83 467

The total amounts of these expenses are recogimzrd cost of services and products and selliegegal and administrative expenses.
In addition to these acquisition-related operagrgenses for the year ended December 31, 201%atton expenses in the amount of $16
million were incurred in connection with terminaian unused loan financing commitment related toS@avvis acquisition. This amount was
not considered an operating activity and therefarteincluded as an operating expense.

At December 31, 2013, we had incurred cumulatogusition related expenses, consisting primarilintegration and severance relatec
expenses, of $62 million for Savvis and $511 millfor Qwest.

Qwest incurred cumulative pre-acquisition relatepemses of $71 million , including $36 million iefiods prior to being acquired and
$35 million on the date of acquisition. Savvis irmed cumulative pre-acquisition related expensek2@ million , including $3 million in
periods prior to being acquired and $19 milliontba date of acquisition. These amounts are notidsd in our results of operations.

References to Acquired Business

In the discussion that follows, we refer to therémental business activities that we now operaterasult of the Savvis acquisition and
the Qwest acquisition as "Legacy Savvis" and "Lgdawest", respectively. References to "Legacy Oshink"”, when used to a comparison
of our consolidated results for the years endeceboer 31, 2012 and 2011, mean the business weteggnaor to the Qwest and Savvis
acquisitions.

Combined Pro Forma Operating Results (Unaudited)

The following unaudited pro forma financial infortizan presents the combined results of CenturyLsif the Qwest and Savvis
acquisitions had been consummated as of Janua2gAi1,

Year Ended

December 31, 2011

(Dollars in

millions)
Operating revenues $ 18,69:
Net income 601
Basic earnings per common share 0.97
Diluted earnings per common share 0.97
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This pro forma information reflects certain adjustits to previously reported operating results, isting of primarily:

» decreased operating revenues and expenses theedbmination of deferred revenues and defeergubnses associated with
installation activities and capacity leases thatensssigned no value at the acquisition date améltmination of transactions among
CenturyLink, Qwest and Savvis that are now sulifgattercompany elimination;

* increased amortization expense related to ifi@bli intangible assets, net of decreased depii@tiaxpense to reflect the fair value of
property, plant and equipment;

» decreased recognition of retiree benefit expenze@Wwest due to the elimination of unrecognizedagal losse:

» decreased interest expense primarily due tamhertization of an adjustment to reflect the inssghfair value of long-term debt of
Qwest recognized on the acquisition date; and

» the related income tax effec

The pro forma information does not necessarilyefthe actual results of operations had the QamdiSavvis acquisitions been
consummated at January 1, 2011, nor is it necésgadicative of future operating results. The fjwoma information does not adjust for
integration costs incurred by us, Qwest and Sadwigng 2011 (which are further described abovéig hote) or integration costs incurred by
us in future periods. In addition, the pro formBimation does not give effect to any potentialerave enhancements, cost synergies or other
operating efficiencies that could result from tlcguisitions (other than those realized in our histd consolidated financial statements after
respective acquisition dates).

(3) Goodwill, Customer Relationships and Other Intagible Assets

Goodwill, customer relationships and other intafegéssets consisted of the following:

December 31,

December 31, 201 2012
(Dollars in millions)

Goodwill $ 20,67¢ 21,627

Customer relationships, less accumulated amonizatf $3,641 and $2,524 5,93t 7,052

Indefinite-life intangible assets 321 26€
Other intangible assets subject to amortization

Capitalized software, less accumulated amortizaifodil,193 and $844 1,41¢ 1,52z

Trade names and patents, less accumulated amionizdt$208 and $142 66 12¢

Total other intangible assets, net $ 1,80z 1,91¢

Total amortization expense for intangible assetshe years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and\284 $1.589 billion , $1.710
billion and $1.433 billion , respectively.

We estimate that total amortization expense farigible assets for the years ending December 34, @ough 2018 will be as follows:

(Dollars in millions)

2014 $ 1,39(
2015 1,24¢
2016 1,13¢
2017 1,027
2018 904

Our goodwill was derived from numerous acquisitiaiere the purchase price exceeded the fair vdltteemet assets acquired. For
more information on our recent acquisitions andiltexy fair values, see Note 2—Acquisitions.
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During the first quarter of 2013, we reorganized @perating segments to support our new operatimgtsire. As a result, we reassigned
goodwill to our segments using a relative fair ea#llocation approach. As of January 3, 2013, w&aed our aggregate goodwill balance to
our four segments as follows.

As of
January 3, 2013

(Dollars in millions)

Consumer $ 10,34¢
Business 6,36:
Wholesale 3,274
Data hosting 1,64
Total goodwiill $ 21,62'

We assess our goodwill and other indefinite-livedmgible assets for impairment annually, or, urtdetain circumstances, more
frequently, such as when events or circumstanahsdte there may be impairment. We are requiredgri@ down the value of goodwill only
when our assessment determines the recorded amfogoddwill exceeds the fair value. Our annual geiildmpairment assessment date was
September 30, at which date we assessed our mgpariits, which are our four operating segmentagomer, business, wholesale and data
hosting). See Note 1—Basis of Presentation and Samnof Significant Accounting Policies, for infortian about the change in our goodwill
impairment assessment date. Our annual impairnssesament date for indefinite-lived intangible &sether than goodwill is December 31.

Our reporting units, which we refer to as our segisieare not discrete legal entities with discfetancial statements. Our assets and
liabilities are employed in and relate to the ofierss of multiple reporting units. For each segmer compare its estimated fair value of
equity to its carrying value of equity that we gssio the segment. If the estimated fair valuehefdegment is greater than the carrying value,
we conclude that no impairment exists. If the eatéd fair value of the segment is less than theyicay value, a second calculation is required
in which the implied fair value of goodwill is coraped to the carrying value of goodwill that we gesi to the segment. If the implied fair
value of goodwill is less than its carrying valgepdwill must be written down to its implied faialae.

At September 30, 2013, as a result of the Janu@t@ thternal reorganization of our four segmentsdid not have a baseline valuation
upon which to perform a qualitative assessment.ithaghlly, our stock price and total company forgtea cash flows declined since our
previous quantitative assessment. Therefore, vima&i®d the fair value of our consumer, businessvemlesale segments by considering both
a market approach and a discounted cash flow methddur data hosting segment by considering odig@unted cash flow method, which
resulted in a level 3 fair value measurement. Thekat approach method includes the use of compamabltiples of publicly traded
companies whose services are comparable to ouesdishounted cash flow method is based on the preséue of projected cash flows and a
terminal value, which represents the expected niizathcash flows of the segments beyond the castsffrom the discrete projection period.
We discounted the estimated cash flows for our wmes, wholesale and business segments using theateepresents our weighted average
cost of capital, which we determined to be appratety 6.0% as of the assessment date (which wapresed of an after-tax cost of debt of
3.4% and a cost of equity of 8.3% ). We discounltedestimated cash flows of our data hosting segosing a rate that represents its
estimated weighted average cost of capital, whietdetermined to be approximately 11.0% as of thessmement date (which was comprised
of an after-tax cost of debt of 3.4% and a cogtpfity of 11.9% ). We also reconciled the estimdaédvalues of the segments to our market
capitalization as of September 30, 2013 and coedubat the indicated implied control premium opapximately 18.4%was reasonable bas
on recent transactions in the market place.

As of September 30, 2013, based on our assessmgotrped with respect to these segments as dedaii®ve, we concluded that our
goodwill for consumer, wholesale and business satgngas not impaired as of that date, but thaoadwill for the data hosting segment
was impaired as of September 30, 2013. The datmbaegment is experiencing slower than previopstjected revenue and margin growth
and greater than anticipated competitive pressiétethie time we issued our third quarter 2013 FA6¥Q, we had not finalized our impairme
estimate for the data hosting segment due to mhitelil time period from the assessment date toilihg fiate for our report, as well as the time
required to finalize our strategic planning procasd estimate the fair values of certain assetdiabitities for this segment. Although our
assessment was incomplete, we recorded our besaésof a non-cash, non-tax-deductible goodwip@ainment charge of $1.1 billion during
the third quarter of 2013 for goodwill assignedts data hosting segment. We completed our goodwihirment assessment during the
fourth quarter of 2013 and recorded an adjustnmedetrease the estimated goodwill impairment chiayg®8 million , which resulted in a net
non-cash, non-tax-deductible goodwill impairmerarge of $1.092 billion for goodwill assigned to aata hosting segment.
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The following table shows the rollforward of goodiveissigned to our operating segments from thealgn®, 2013 reorganization throu

December 31, 2013.

Consumer
Business
Wholesale
Data hosting

Total goodwill

As of
January 3, 2013

Acquisitions

Impairment

As of
December 31, 2013

(Dollars in millions)

10,34¢ — — 10,34¢
6,36° — — 6,36:
3,27¢ — — 3,27¢
1,647 13¢ (1,092) 68¢
21,62 13¢ (1,092) 20,67«

For additional information on the reorganizatioroaf segments, acquisitions and correction of ear see Note 13—Segment
Information, Note 2—Acquisitions and Note 1—Basi$cesentation and Summary of Significant Accountholicies, respectively.

We completed our qualitative assessment of ouffimitke>lived intangible assets other than goodwadlof December 31, 2013 and
concluded it is not more likely than not that cudéfinitedived intangible assets are impaired; thus, no impent charge was recorded in 2C

(4) Long-Term Debt and Credit Facilities

Long-term debt, including unamortized discounts pramiums, at December 31, 2013 and 2012 consigtiedrrowings by
CenturyLink, Inc. and certain of its subsidiariesjuding Qwest and Embarqg Corporation ("Embarg$)follows:

CenturyLink, Inc.
Senior notes
Credit facility @
Term loan
Subsidiaries
Qwest
Senior notes
Embarq
Senior notes
First mortgage bonds
Other
Capital lease and other obligations

Unamortized (discounts) premiums and
other, net

Total long-term debt
Less current maturities

Long-term debt, excluding current
maturities

December 31,

Interest Rates Maturities 2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)

5.000% - 7.650% 2015 - 2042 $ 7,82t 6,25(
2.179% - 4.250% 2017 72E 82C
2.420% 2019 402 424
6.125% - 8.375% 2014 - 2053 8,39: 9,16¢
7.082% - 7.995% 2016 - 2036 2,66¢ 2,66¢
7.125% - 8.770% 2014 - 2025 262 32z
9.000% 2019 15C 20C
Various Various 61¢ 734
(78) 18
20,96¢ 20,60¢
(78%) (1,20%)
$ 20,18: 19,40(

(1) The outstanding amounts of our Credit Fachityrowings at December 31, 2013 and 2012 were $Wli6n and $820 million , respectively, with wéitpd average
interest rates of 2.176% and 2.450% , respectiVdlgse amounts change on a regular basis.
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New Issuance:
2013

On November 27, 2013, CenturyLink, Inc. issuedGbbllion aggregate principal amount of 6.75% Nadegs 2023, in exchange for net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting discountsetpenses, of approximately $742 milliofihe Notes are unsecured obligations and mi
redeemed, in whole or in part, at any time at @mgation price equal to the greater of par or a 'erakole" rate specified in the Notes, plus
accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption ttateddition, at any time on or prior to DecembgQ16, we may redeem up to 35% of the
principal amount of the Notes at a redemption peigeal to 106.75% of the principal amount therpbfs accrued and unpaid interest to the
redemption date, with the net cash proceeds adiceeqjuity offerings. Under certain circumstanees will be required to make an offer to
repurchase the Notes at a price of 101% of thejreggate principal amount plus accrued and unpaédédst to the repurchase date.

On May 23, 2013, Qwest Corporation ("QC") issug&@%million aggregate principal amount of 6.125%ed¢adue 2053, including $25
million principal amount that was sold pursuanatoover-allotment option granted to the underwsifer the offering, in exchange for net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting discountsexpenses, of approximately $752 milliohihe Notes are unsecured obligations and mi
redeemed, in whole or in part, on or after Jun2018 at a redemption price equal to 100% of thecpal amount redeemed plus accrued and
unpaid interest to the redemption date.

On March 21, 2013, CenturyLink, Inc. issued $lidnl aggregate principal amount of 5.625% Notes 21020 in exchange for net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting discountsexpenses, of approximately $988 milliohihe Notes are unsecured obligations and mi
redeemed, in whole or in part, at any time at @mgation price equal to the greater of par or a 'enakole" rate specified in the Notes, plus
accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption taddition, at any time on or prior to April 1026, we may redeem up to 35% of the
principal amount of the Notes at a redemption peigeal to 105.625% of the principal amount therphfs accrued and unpaid interest to the
redemption date, with the net cash proceeds ddiceeqjuity offerings. Under certain circumstanees will be required to make an offer to
repurchase the Notes at a price of 101% of thejreggate principal amount plus accrued and unpaéddst to the repurchase date.

2012

On June 25, 2012, QC issued $400 million aggregateipal amount of 7.00% Notes due 2052 in exgledior net proceeds, after
deducting underwriting discounts and expenses387 $nillion. The Notes are unsecured obligations and maydeereed, in whole or in pe
on or after July 1, 2017 at a redemption price Etua00% of the principal amount redeemed pluswst interest.

On April 18, 2012 , CenturyLink, Inc. entered itderm loan in the amount of $440 million with ColBaand several other Farm Credit
System banks. This term loan is payable in 29 aartaee quarterly installments of $5.5 million inipeipal plus interest through April 18,
2019, when the balance will be due. We have thoptf paying monthly interest based upon eithendan Interbank Offered Rate (" LIBOR
") or the base rate (as defined in the credit agesd) plus an applicable margin between 1.5% t0%.per annum for LIBOR loans and 0.5%
to 1.50% per annum for base rate loans dependimmgiothen current senior unsecured long-term dabtg. Our term loan is guaranteed by
three of our wholly-owned subsidiaries, Embarq, QQwest Communications International Inc. on adtalone basis) and Savvis, Inc. (on a
stand-alone basis), one of QCII's wholly-owned gliages and one of Sawvis, Inc.'s wholly ownedsidiaries. The remaining terms and
conditions of our term loan are substantially samtb those set forth in our Credit Facility, désed in this Note below under "Credit
Facilities."

On April 2, 2012, QC issued $525 million aggregatecipal amount of 7.00% Notes due 2052 in exgledior net proceeds, after
deducting underwriting discounts and expenses508%nillion. The Notes are unsecured obligations and maydeereed, in whole or in pe
on or after April 1, 2017 at a redemption priceado 100% of the principal amount redeemed plusweed interest.

On March 12, 2012 , CenturyLink, Inc. issued (§58 million aggregate principal amount of 7.65%i8eNotes due 2042 in exchange
for net proceeds, after deducting underwriting alists, of approximately $644 million and (i) $h#lion aggregate principal amount of
5.80% Senior Notes due 2022 in exchange for netegabs, after deducting underwriting discounts ppiraximately $1.389 billion . The Notes
are unsecured obligations and may be redeemed aina@ on the terms and conditions specified therei

Repayment:
2013

On December 27, 2013, QCII redeemed $186 millioitsc7.125% Notes due 2018 for $196 millimeluding premium, fees and accrt
interest, which resulted in a $3 million gain.
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On November 27, 2013, QCII completed a cash teoffer with respect to its $800 million of 7.125%fds due 2018. QCII received

and accepted tenders of approximately $614 miliggregate principal amount of these notes, or 7f%$%646 million including premium,
fees and accrued interest, which resulted in ailibmgain.

On August 15, 2013, a subsidiary of Embarq pamaturity the $50 million principal amount of its76% Notes.
On July 15, 2013, a subsidiary of Embarq paid attumity the $59 million principal amount of its 8% Notes.
On June 17, 2013, QC paid at maturity the $750aniprincipal amount of its floating rate Notes.

On April 1, 2013, CenturyLink, Inc. paid at matyrihe $176 million principal amount of its 5.50%6tds.

2012

On October 26, 2012 , QCII redeemed all $550 mmiltad its 8.00% Notes due 2015, which resulted gaa of $15 million .

On August 29, 2012, certain subsidiaries of Cesfink paid $29 million and $30 million , respectiyeto retire its outstanding Rural
Utilities Service and Rural Telephone Bank debt.

On August 15, 2012, CenturyLink paid at maturitg $318 million principal amount of its 7.875% Nate

On July 20, 2012, QC redeemed all $484 millioit®¥.50% Notes due 2023, which resulted in an itenil loss.

On May 17, 2012, QCIl redeemed $500 million of7itS0% Notes due 2014, which resulted in an imredtgain.

On April 23, 2012 , Embarqg redeemed the remain2@0dmillion of its 6.738% Notes due 2013, whichutesd in an immaterial loss.

On April 18, 2012 , QC completed a cash tenderdff@purchase a portion of its $811 million of 83 Notes due 2016 and its $400
million of 7.625% Notes due 2015. With respectt$03.375% Notes due 2016, QC received and accégredrs of approximate®575 million
aggregate principal amount of these notes, or 7f#6$%722 million including a premium, fees and raex interest. With respect to its 7.625%
Notes due 2015, QC received and accepted tenderpobximately$308 million aggregate principal amount of thestespor 77% , for $369
million including a premium, fees and accrued iestr The completion of this tender offer resulted ioss of $46 million .

On April 2, 2012 , Embarg completed a cash tenéfer to purchase a portion of its $528 million 0788% Notes due 2013 and its $2.0
billion of 7.082% Notes due 2016. With respectt$06.738% Notes due 2013, Embarq received and taxtggnders of approximately $328
million aggregate principal amount of these note$2% , for $360 million including a premium, femsd accrued interest. With respect to its
7.082% Notes due 2016, Embarg received and accegiddrs of approximately $816 million aggregaiagpal amount of these notes, or
41% , for $944 million including a premium, feedaaccrued interest. The completion of these teaffers resulted in a loss of $144 million .

On March 1, 2012 , QCII redeemed $800 million sfit50% Notes due 2014, which resulted in an imnzigain.

Credit Facilities

We have access to up to $2 billion aggregate grai@mount of revolving credit under an amendedrasthted revolving credit facility
that matures in April 2017. The Credit FacilitydttCredit Facility") has 18 lenders, with commitrteeranging from $2.5 million to $181
million and allows us to obtain revolving loans d@ndssue up to $400 million of letters of credrhich upon issuance reduce the amount
available for other extensions of credit. Inteiestssessed on borrowings using either the LIBOR@base rate (each as defined in the Credi
Facility) plus an applicable margin between 1.25% 2.25% per annum for LIBOR loans and 0.25% a@8%.per annum for base rate loans
depending on our then current senior unsecuredtemg debt rating. Our obligations under the Créditility are guaranteed by three of our

wholly-owned subsidiaries, Embarg, QCIl and Sawis,, one of QCII's wholly-owned subsidiaries ame of Savvis, Inc.'s wholly-owned
subsidiaries.

In April 2011, we entered into a $160 million unawitted revolving letter of credit facility which ahles us to provide letters of credit
under terms that may be more favorable than thodenthe Credit Facility. At December 31, 2013 20d2 , our outstanding letters of credit
totaled $132 million and $120 million , respectiyalinder this facility.
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Aggregate Maturities of Lon-Term Debt

Aggregate maturities of our long-term debt (exahgdiinamortized premiums, discounts and other, net):

(Dollars in millions) @

2014 $ 78t
2015 56&
2016 1,49:
2017 2,21¢
2018 24¢€
2019 and thereafter 15,73¢
Total long-term debt $ 21,04«

(1) Actual principal paid in all years may differ duethe possible future refinancing of outstandingtde the issuance of new de

Interest Expenst

Interest expense includes interest on long-ternt. ddte following table presents the amount of gliagsrest expense, net of capitalized
interest:

Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)

Interest expense:

Gross interest expense $ 1,33¢ 1,362 1,097

Capitalized interest (47) (43 (25
Total interest expense $ 1,29¢ 1,31¢ 1,07z
Covenants

Certain of our loan agreements contain variousiotisins, as described more fully below. We belive covenants currently in place
result in no significant restriction to the trarrséé funds from our consolidated subsidiaries to@gyLink.

The senior notes of CenturyLink were issued unddndenture dated March 31, 1994. This indentuessdmt contain any financial
covenants, but does include restrictions that lonit ability to (i) incur, issue or create liensonpour property and (ii) consolidate with or
merge into, or transfer or lease all or substdgtél of our assets to any other party. The indemtloes not contain any provisions that are
impacted by our credit ratings or that restrictigsaiance of new securities in the event of a nizt@dverse change to us.

Embarg's senior notes were issued pursuant todamtare dated as of May 17, 2006. While Embaraiegally prohibited from creating
liens on its property unless its senior notes aceied equally and ratably, Embarq can create bents property without equally and ratably
securing its senior notes so long as the sum a@fddbtedness so secured does not exceedof B¥tibarg's consolidated net tangible assets
indenture contains customary events of defaulterafrwhich are impacted by Embarq's credit ratifige indenture does not contain any
financial covenants or restrictions on the abiidyssue new securities in accordance with thegarhthe indenture.

Several of our Embarq subsidiaries have outstanfifisignortgage bonds. Each issue of these firstgage bonds is secured by
substantially all of the property, plant and equéomof the issuing subsidiary. Approximately 12%oaof net property, plant and equipment is
pledged to secure the long-term debt of subsidiarie
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Under the Credit Facility, we, and our indirect sidilary, Qwest Corporation, must maintain a detEBdTDA (earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization, as definalimCredit Facility) ratio of not more than 4.00nd 2.85 :1.0, respectively, as of the last
day of each fiscal quarter for the four quarteentended. The Credit Facility also contains a negaiedge covenant, which generally requ
us to secure equally and ratably any advances uhde&redit Facility if we pledge assets or peiiits on our property for the benefit of other
debtholders. The Credit Facility also has a cr@gsment default provision, and the Credit Facilitglaertain of our debt securities also have
cross acceleration provisions. When present, thesgsions could have a wider impact on liquiditah might otherwise arise from a defaul
acceleration of a single debt instrument. To ther¢hat our EBITDA (as defined in our Credit Rig) is reduced by cash settlements or
judgments, including in respect of any of the mrattiscussed in Note —Commitments and Contingencies, our debt to EBITa#os under
certain debt agreements will be adversely affectads could reduce our financing flexibility due ggotential restrictions on incurring additio
debt under certain provisions of our debt agreementin certain circumstances, could result irfadlt under certain provisions of such
agreements.

At December 31, 2013 , we believe were in compkanith all of the provisions and covenants contaimeour Credit Facility and other
debt agreements.

(5) Accounts Receivable

The following table presents details of our acceurteivable balances:

December 31,

2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)
Trade and purchased receivables $ 1,862 1,782
Earned and unbilled receivables 252 274
Other 18 19
Total accounts receivable 2,132 2,07t
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (15%) (15¢)
Accounts receivable, less allowance $ 1,97 1,91

We are exposed to concentrations of credit risknfresidential and business customers within ouallservice area, business customers
outside of our local service area and from othlectammunications service providers. We generallyadorequire collateral to secure our
receivable balances. We have agreements with tedlemommunications service providers whereby weeatw bill and collect on their behalf
for services rendered by those providers to outocmsrs within our local service area. We purchaseants receivable from other
telecommunications service providers primarily aie@ourse basis and include these amounts in @ouats receivable balance. We have not
experienced any significant loss associated wigisélpurchased receivables.

The following table presents details of our allowseffor doubtful accounts:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
(Dollars in millions)
2013 $ 15¢ 152 (15%) 15E
2012 $ 14k 187 (174 15¢
2011 $ 60 158 (68) 14t
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(6) Property, Plant and Equipment

Net property, plant and equipment is composed efaHowing:

Depreciable December 31,
Lives 2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)
Land N/A $ 58E 57¢
Fiber, conduit and other outside pléht 1545 14,18" 13,03(
Central office and other network electrons 3-10 12,17¢ 11,24:
Support assetd 3-30 6,42( 6,23¢
Construction in progres8 N/A 937 847
Gross property, plant and equipment 34,30° 31,93:
Accumulated depreciation (15,667) (13,029
Net property, plant and equipment $ 18,64¢ 18,90¢

)
@)
®)
4)

Fiber, conduit and other outside plant consistibefr and metallic cable, conduit, poles and otherporting structure
Central office and other network electronics cassis circuit and packet switches, routers, trassion electronics and electronics providing sertaceustomer:
Support assets consist of buildings, computersoéimet administrative and support equipr

Construction in progress includes inventorlgHer construction and property of the aforememtid categories that has not been placed in seasidds still under
construction.

We recorded depreciation expense of $2.952 billi#8.070 billion and $2.593 billion for the yearsled December 31, 2013 , 2012 and
2011, respectively.

On April 2, 2012, our subsidiary, Qwest Corporatft@C"), sold an office building for net proceedstd 33 million . As part of the
transaction, QC agreed to lease a portion of tlildibg from the new owner. As a result, the $16limil gain from the sale was deferred and
will be recognized as a reduction to rent expenvas the 10 year lease term.

Asset Retirement Obligatior

At December 31, 2013, our asset retirement ohtigatbalance was primarily related to estimatedritosts of removing equipment
from leased properties and estimated future cdgtsoperly disposing of asbestos and other hazardwaterials upon remodeling or
demolishing buildings. Asset retirement obligatians included in other long-term liabilities on @mansolidated balance sheets.

The following table provides asset retirement adtlign activity:

Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)

Balance at beginning of year $ 10€ 10¢ 41
Accretion expense 7 7 9
Liabilities incurred — 1 —
Liabilities assumed in Qwest and Savvis acquisition — — 124
Liabilities settled and other 4 @ 3
Change in estimate 3 (10) (62)
Balance at end of year $ 10¢€ 10¢€ 10¢<

During 2013, 2012 and 2011 we revised our estisnftethe cost of removal of network equipment esstis remediation, and other
obligations by $3 million , $10 million and $62 toh , respectively. These revisions resulted ie@uction of the asset retirement obligation
and offsetting reduction to gross property, plard aquipment.
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(7) Severance and Leased Real Estate

Periodically, we have reductions in our workforoel @ave accrued liabilities for related severarmustsc These workforce reductions
resulted primarily from the progression or completof our integration plans, increased competitisessures and reduced workload demands
due to the loss of access lines.

We report severance liabilities within accrued eqes and other liabilities-salaries and benefitsinconsolidated balance sheets and
report severance expenses in cost of servicesradd¢ts and selling, general and administrativeeagps in our consolidated statements of
operations. We have not allocated any severanaensepto our consumer, business and wholesale madginents.

In periods prior to our acquisition of Qwest, Qwleatl ceased using certain real estate that it@esirlg under lonterm operating lease
As of the April 1, 2011 acquisition date, we reciagd liabilities to reflect our estimates of th& faalues of the existing lease obligations for
real estate for which we had ceased using, nettohated sublease rentals. Our fair value estimaggs determined using discounted cash
methods. We recognize expense to reflect accrefitime discounted liabilities and periodically, aejust the expense when our actual
experience differs from our initial estimates. Véeart the current portion of liabilities for ceasggk real estate leases in accrued expenses a
other liabilities-other and report the noncurreaitipn in deferred credits and other liabilitiesoar consolidated balance sheets. We report the
related expenses in selling, general and admitiisraxpenses in our consolidated statements aftipas. At December 31, 2013nhe curren
and noncurrent portions of our leased real estatrial were $17 million and $96 million , respeetix The remaining lease terms range from
0.1to 12 years, with a weighted average of 9rsyea

Changes in our accrued liabilities for severanqeeages and leased real estate were as follows:

Severance Real Estate
(Dollars in millions)
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 37 15¢
Accrued to expense 96 2
Payments, net (113) (24)
Reversals and adjustments 3 —
Balance at December 31, 2012 17 131
Accrued to expense 31 —
Payments, net (32) (16)
Reversals and adjustments — 2
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 17 11¢

(8) Employee Benefits
Pension, PosRetirement and Other Post-Employment Benefits

We sponsor several defined benefit pension plahghain the aggregate cover a substantial portiauo employees including separate
plans for Legacy CenturyLink, Legacy Qwest and loygambarq employees. Until such time as we eletitegrate the Qwest and Embarq
benefit plans with ours, we plan to continue torapeethese plans independently. Pension benefisafticipants of these plans who are
represented by a collective bargaining agreemenbased on negotiated schedules. All other paatiti) pension benefits are based on each
individual participant's years of service and congagion. We use a December 31 measurement dedé far plans. In addition to these tax
qualified pension plans, we also maintain non-digalipension plans for certain current and formghly compensated employees. We
maintain post-retirement benefit plans that providelth care and life insurance benefits for cerédigible retirees. We also provide other pos
employment benefits for eligible former employees.

Pension Benefits

In connection with the acquisition of Qwest on Agri2011, we assumed defined benefit pension poasored by Qwest for its
employees. Based on a valuation analysis, we réepegiia $490 million net liability at April 1, 20%r the unfunded status of the Qwest
pension plans, reflecting projected benefit oblmzg of $8.3 billion in excess of the $7.8 billitair value of plan assets.
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Current funding laws require a company with a @hartfall to fund the annual cost of benefits edrimeaddition to a seven -year
amortization of the shortfall. Our funding poliayrfthe pension plans is to make contributions withobjective of accumulating sufficient
assets to pay all qualified pension benefits whenwhder the terms of the plans. The accountingnd#d status of our qualified pension plan:
was $995 million as of December 31, 2013 .

In 2013, we made cash contributions of approxinyg®&¥6 million in to our qualified pension plangdgwaid approximately $5 millioof
benefits directly to participants of our non-quiakif pension plans. Based on current laws and cstamees, our required contributions to our
qualified pension plans for 2014 is $123 millicend we estimate that we will pay approximately $8ion of benefits to participants of our
non-qualified pension plans.

Post-Retirement Benefits

Our post-retirement health care plans provide petstement benefits to qualified retirees. The pestement health care plans we
assumed as part of our acquisitions of Qwest anblaEsnprovide post-retirement benefits to qualifietirees and allow (i) eligible employees
retiring before certain dates to receive benefitsoeor reduced cost and (i) eligible employeédsing after certain dates to receive benefits on
a shared cost basis. The post-retirement healéhpdans are primarily funded by us and we expecbtdinue funding these post-retirement
obligations as benefits are paid.

In connection with the acquisition of Qwest on Agri2011, we assumed post-retirement benefit pdaossored by Qwest for certain of
its employees. At April 1, 2011, we recognized &%4llion liability for the unfunded status of Quefés post-retirement benefit plans, reflecting
estimated accumulated post-retirement benefit abtigs of $3.3 billion in excess of the $762 milifair value of the plan assets.

No contributions were made to the post-retiremersts in 2013 , and we do not expect to make aibotipn in 2014. However, in 201
we paid approximately $157 million of benefits (oéparticipant contributions and direct subsidigg)t were not payable by the trusts, and w
estimate that in 2014 we will pay approximately $18illion of benefits (net of participant contriflms and direct subsidies) that are not
payable by the trusts.

A change of 100 basis points in the assumed ifiigalth care cost trend rate would have had theviolg effects in 2013 :

100 Basis
Points Change

Increase (Decrease)
(Dollars in millions)

Effect on the aggregate of the service and inta@sitcomponents of net periodic post-retireme
benefit expense (consolidated statement of opesitio $ 3 (©))

Effect on benefit obligation (consolidated balasbeet) 87 (80)

We expect our health care cost trend rate to deereyn 0.25% per year from 6.50% in 2014 to an aftéwate of 4.50% in 2022. Our
post-retirement health care expense, for cert&iibéd Legacy Qwest retirees and certain eligibdgécy CenturyLink retirees, is capped at a
set dollar amount. Therefore, those health carefiievbligations are not subject to increasing tieaehre trends after the effective date of the
caps.
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Expected Cash Flow

The qualified pension, non-qualified pension anstgetirement health care benefit payments and ipresiand life insurance premium
payments are paid by us or distributed from plaetss The estimated benefit payments provided batevbased on actuarial assumptions
using the demographics of the employee and regpiopelations and have been reduced by estimatetiparit contributions.

Post-Retirement Medicare Part D
Pension Plans Benefit Plans Subsidy Receipts

(Dollars in millions)

Estimated future benefit payments:

2014 $ 1,03¢ 352 (13)
2015 1,007 341 (10)
2016 99C 32¢ (10)
2017 977 31¢ (10)
2018 962 30¢ (10)
2019 - 2023 4,55¢ 1,36¢ (40)

Net Periodic Benefit Expens

The actuarial assumptions used to compute theangtdic benefit expense for our qualified pensiwon-qualified pension and post-
retirement benefit plans are based upon informati@ilable as of the beginning of the year, asgmesl in the following table.

Pension Plans Post-Retirement Benefit Plans
2013 2012 2011® 2013 2012 2011@

Actuarial assumptions at beginning of year:

Discount rate 3.50%4.20% 4.25% -5.10% 5.00% -5.50% 3.6(% 4.60% -4.80% 5.3(%
Rate of compensation increase 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% N/A N/A N/A
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 7.5(% 7.5(% 7.50% -8.00% 7.3(% 6.00% -7.50% 7.25%
Initial health care cost trend rate N/A N/A N/A 6.50% -7.00% 8.0(% 8.5(%
Ultimate health care cost trend rate N/A N/A N/A 4.5(% 5.0(% 5.0(%
Year ultimate trend rate is reached N/A N/A N/A 2022 201¢ 201¢

N/A-Not applicable

(1) This column does not consider Qwest's actLiassumptions for its pension plan as of the bég@of the year due to the acquisition date of Apri2011. Qwest had
the following actuarial assumptions as of Apri011: discount rate of 5.40% ; expected long-teate of return on plan assets 7.50% ; and a rateropensation
increase of 3.50% .

(2) This column does not consider Qwest's actLassumptions for its post-retirement benefit @arof the beginning of the year due to the acqoisdate of April 1,
2011. Qwest had the following actuarial assumptasef April 1, 2011: discount rate of 5.30% ; eotpel long-term rate of return on plan assets di%.5initial healtt
care cost trend rate of 7.50% and ultimate health trend rate of 5.00% to be reached in 2016.
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Net periodic pension benefit (income) expense, Wwhicludes the effects of the Qwest acquisitionsegjient to April 1, 2011, included
the following components:

Pension Plans
Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011®
(Dollars in millions)
Service cost $ 91 87 70
Interest cost 544 625 56C
Expected return on plan assets (89¢) (847) (709)
Settlements — — 1
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost 5 4 2
Amortization of unrecognized actuarial loss 84 35 13
Net periodic pension benefit (income) expense $ (172) (96) (63

(1) Includes $58 milliomf income related to the Qwest plans subsequehetdpril 1, 2011 acquisition da

Net periodic post-retirement benefit expense (inepmwhich includes the effects of the Qwest actjaoisisubsequent to April 1, 2011,
included the following components:

Post-Retirement Plans
Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011®
(Dollars in millions)
Service cost $ 24 22 18
Interest cost 14C 17z 152
Expected return on plan assets (39 (45) (42)
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost — — 2
Amortization of unrecognized actuarial loss 4 — —
Net periodic post-retirement benefit expense (ingpm $ 12¢ 15C 127

(1) Includes $92 milliomelated to the Qwest plans subsequent to the Ap#iD11 acquisition da

Benefit Obligations

The actuarial assumptions used to compute the tus@ddus for the plans are based upon informatiafable as of December 31, 2013
and 2012 and are as follows:

Pension Plans Post-Retirement Benefit Plans
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Actuarial assumptions at end of year:

Discount rate 4.20% -5.10% 3.25% -4.20% 4.5(% 3.6(%
Rate of compensation increase 3.25% 3.25% N/A N/A
Initial health care cost trend rate N/A N/A 6.50% / 7.00¢ 6.75% / 7.509
Ultimate health care cost trend rate N/A N/A 4.5(% 4.5(%
Year ultimate trend rate is reached N/A N/A 2022 / 202 2022/ 202

N/A-Not applicable
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The following table summarizes the change in theebeobligations for the pension and post-retiratrzenefit plans:

Pension Plans
Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

(Dollars in millions)
Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 14,88: 13,59¢ 4,53¢
Service cost 91 87 70
Interest cost 544 62¢ 56C
Plan amendments — 14 12
Acquisitions — — 8,26
Actuarial (gain) loss (1,179 1,56¢ 93C
Benefits paid by company (5) (5) (16)
Benefits paid from plan assets (937) (2,002) (761)

Benefit obligation at end of year $ 13,40: 14,88: 13,59¢

Post-Retirement Benefit Plans
Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

(Dollars in millions)
Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 4,07t 3,93( 55¢
Service cost 24 22 18
Interest cost 14C 17z 152
Participant contributions 96 86 64
Plan amendments 141 — 31
Acquisitions — — 3,28¢
Direct subsidy receipts 13 19 22
Actuarial (gain) loss (399 26C 152
Benefits paid by company (26€) (268) (219
Benefits paid from plan assets (13€) (1479) (139

Benefit obligation at end of year $ 3,68¢ 4,07t 3,93(

Our aggregate benefit obligation as of DecembeB813 , 2012 and 2011 was $17.089 billion , $18188i®n and $17.499 billion ,
respectively.
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Plan Assets

We maintain plan assets for our qualified pensiamgpand certain post-retirement benefit plans. Jirdified pension plan assets are
used for the payment of pension benefits and ceeiggible plan expenses. The post-retirement liepkein's assets are used to pay health car
benefits and premiums on behalf of eligible reraad to pay certain eligible plan expenses. Tipe&®d rate of return on plan assets is the
long-term rate of return we expect to earn on tha$ assets. The rate of return is determinedhégtrategic allocation of plan assets and the
long-term risk and return forecast for each asisesisc The forecasts for each asset class are geth@ramarily from an analysis of the long-
term expectations of various third party investnmmeanagement organizations. The expected ratewiren plan assets is reviewed annually
and revised, as necessary, to reflect changeg ifinflincial markets and our investment strategge folowing tables summarize the change in
the fair value of plan assets for the pension ared-petirement benefit plans:

Pension Plans
Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 12,32: 11,81« 3,732
Return on plan assets 81C 1,47¢ 47¢
Acquisitions — — 7,771
Employer contributions 14¢€ 32 587
Benefits paid from plan assets (93) (1,007) (767)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 12,34¢ 12,32 11,81/

Post-Retirement Benefit Plans
Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 62€ 69¢ 54
Actual gain on plan assets 45 80 4
Acquisitions — — 76¢€
Benefits paid from plan assets (13€) (147) (139
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 53¢ 62¢ 692

Pension Plans:Our investment objective for the pension plan @siseto achieve an attractive risk-adjusted retwer time that will
provide for the payment of benefits and minimize tisk of large losses. Our pension plan investrarategy is designed to meet this objec
by broadly diversifying plan assets across numestragegies with differing expected returns, vditegs and correlations. The pension plan
assets have target allocations of 55.5% to inteatstsensitive investments and 44.5% to investsn@ggigned to provide higher expected
returns than the interest rate sensitive investsaémnterest rate sensitive investments include 86fan assets targeted primarily to long-
duration investment grade bonds, 13.5% targetéibtoyield, emerging market bonds and convertiloieds and 6% targeted to diversified
strategies, which primarily have exposures to dlgbaernment, corporate and inflation-linked boraeiswell as some exposures to global
stocks and commodities. Assets expected to prdvgleer returns than the interest rate sensitivetassclude broadly diversified equity
investments with targets of approximately 14% t8.Ustocks and 14% to developed and emerging madket).S. stocks. Approximately
11.5% is allocated to other private markets investis including funds primarily invested in privatguity, private debt and hedge funds. Real
estate investments are targeted at 5% of plansagstehe beginning of 2014, our expected annuagiterm rate of return on pension assets is
assumed to be 7.5% .
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Post-Retirement Benefit Plan©ur investment objective for the post-retiremesdfit plan assets is to achieve an attractiveatjlster
return and minimize the risk of large losses oherdxpected life of the assets. Investment rishkdaaged by broadly diversifying assets acros
numerous strategies with differing expected retuofatilities and correlations. Our investmenastgy is designed to be consistent with the
investment objective, with particular focus on pding liquidity for the reimbursement of our unioepresented employees post-retirement
health care costs. The post-retirement benefit ptaets have target allocations of 37% to equatiels63% to non-equity investments. Specific
target allocations within these broad categoriesadiowed to vary to provide liquidity in order teeet reimbursement requirements. Equity
investments are broadly diversified with exposarpublicly traded U.S., non-U.S. and emerging miaskecks and private equity. While no
new private equity investments have been madecenteyears, the percent allocation to existinggigvequity investments is expected to
increase as liquid, publicly traded stocks are draawn for the reimbursement of health care cd3te.63% non-equity allocation includes
investment grade bonds, high yield bonds, converbbnds, emerging market debt, real estate, hieohgks, private debt and diversified
strategies. At the beginning of 2014, our expeat®alal long-term rate of return on post-retirentatefit plan assets is assumed to be 7.3%

Permitted investmentsPlan assets are managed consistent with thectests set forth by the Employee Retirement Inc&@weurity Act
of 1974, as amended, which requires diversificatibassets and also generally prohibits definecfieand welfare plans from investing more
than 10% of their assets in securities issued égponsor company. At December 31, 2013 and 2B&%ednsion and post-retirement benefit
plans did not directly own any shares of our commstmek or any of our debt.

Derivative instrumentsDerivative instruments are used to reduce riskelbas provide return. The pension and post-netimet benefit
plans use exchange traded futures to gain expts@guity and Treasury markets consistent witheiagset allocations. Interest rate swap
used in the pension plans to reduce risk relabwad¢asurement of the benefit obligation, whicheissitive to interest rate changes. Foreign
exchange forward contracts are used to managencyrexposures. Credit default swaps are used t@geacredit risk exposures in a cost
effective and targeted manner relative to transgatiith physical corporate fixed income securit@ptions are currently used to manage
interest rate exposure taking into account theigdplolatility and current pricing of the specifiaderlying market instrument. Some deriva
instruments subject the plans to counterparty fitle external investment managers, along with Rlanagement, monitor counterparty
exposure and mitigate this risk by diversifying thg@posure among multiple high credit quality coupaeties, requiring collateral and limiting
exposure by periodically settling contracts.

The gross notional exposure of the derivative umatgnts directly held by the plans is shown beloke Motional amount of the
derivatives corresponds to market exposure but doesepresent an actual cash investment.

Gross Notional Exposure
Post-Retirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans
Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012

(Dollars in millions)
Derivative instruments:

Exchange-traded U.S. equity futures $ 95 302 16 3C
Exchange-traded non-U.S. equity futures — 1 — —
Exchange-traded Treasury futures 3,011 1,762 — —
Interest rate swaps 55€ 1,471 — —
Credit default swaps 258 49t — —
Foreign exchange forwards 93¢ 72€ 29 21
Options 261 76€ — —

Fair Value Measurementds-air value is defined as the price that woulddiived to sell an asset or paid to transfer ditiain an
orderly transaction between independent and knayelable parties who are willing and able to trangarcan asset or liability at the
measurement date. We use valuation techniquesiidpdimize the use of observable inputs and minirttizeuse of unobservable inputs when
determining fair value and then we rank the estaailues based on the reliability of the inpusdu®llowing the fair value hierarchy set
forth by the FASB. For additional information oretfair value hierarchy, see Note 11—Fair Value Disare.
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At December 31, 2013, we used the following vatimatechniques to measure fair value for assetsréltvere no changes to these
methodologies during 2013 :
* Level 1—-Assets were valued using the closing price reparteéde active market in which the individual setyuwas tradec

» Level 2—Assets were valued using quoted prinaaarkets that are not active, broker dealer gigotst net asset value of shares held
by the plans and other methods by which all sigaiit input were observable at the measurement date.

» Level 3—Assets were valued using unobservable inputs iclwlittle or no market data exists as reportedhayrespective institutiot
at the measurement date.

The tables below presents the fair value of plaetasby category and the input levels used to mhénerthose fair values at December 31
2013 . Itis important to note that the asset alfions do not include market exposures that amgegaiith derivatives.

Fair Value of Pension Plan Assets at December 31013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Dollars in millions)
Investment grade bonds (a) $ 81: 1,50« — 3 2,31
High yield bonds (b) — 1,26t 26 1,291
Emerging market bonds (c) 19¢ 367 — 563
Convertible bonds (d) — 38¢ — 38¢
Diversified strategies (e) — 723 — 723
U.S. stocks (f) 1,40¢ 92 — 1,50C
Non-U.S. stocks (g) 1,15¢ 29¢ — 1,45¢
Emerging market stocks (h) — 11C — 11C
Private equity (i) — — 721 721
Private debt (j) — — 43€ 43¢
Market neutral hedge funds (k) — 867 9¢ 96€
Directional hedge funds (k) — 582 32 614
Real estate (I) — 30¢€ 26& 571
Derivatives (m) — (39 — (34
Cash equivalents and short-term investments (n) — 721 — 721
Total investments $ 3,57¢ 7,191 1,57¢ 12,34¢
Accrued expenses —
Total pension plan assets $ 12,34¢

102




Table of Contents

Fair Value of Post-Retirement Plan Assets
at December 31, 2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Dollars in millions)
Investment grade bonds (a) $ 21 5€ — 3 77
High yield bonds (b) — 5€ — 56
Emerging market bonds (c) — 37 — 37
Diversified strategies (e) — 86 — 86
U.S. stocks (f) 56 — — 56
Non-U.S. stocks (g) 58 — — 58
Emerging market stocks (h) — 12 — 12
Private equity (i) — — 4C 40
Private debt (j) — — 5 5
Market neutral hedge funds (k) — 35 — 35
Directional hedge funds (k) — 14 — 14
Real estate (I) — 22 12 34
Cash equivalents and short-term investments (n) — 24 — 24
Total investments $ 13t 34z 57 534
Contribution Receivable 1
Total post-retirement plan assets $ 93¢

The tables below presents the fair value of plaetssy category and the input levels used to mhénerthose fair values at December 31
2012 . Itis important to note that the asset alfions do not include market exposures that amegaiith derivatives. Investments include
dividend and interest receivable, pending tradases payable and accrued expenses.

Fair Value of Pension Plan Assets at December 31012

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Dollars in millions)
Investment grade bonds (a) $ 83( 1,55¢ — % 2,38t
High yield bonds (b) — 1,30: 5¢ 1,362
Emerging market bonds (c) 19¢ 39¢ — 59E
Convertible bonds (d) — 374 — 374
Diversified strategies (e) — 65E — 65E
U.S. stocks (f) 1,22t 11¢ — 1,344
Non-U.S. stocks (g) 1,21z 17¢ — 1,39(
Emerging market stocks (h) 111 19z — 304
Private equity (i) — — 711 711
Private debt (j) — — 46E 465
Market neutral hedge funds (k) — 90¢€ — 90€
Directional hedge funds (k) — 34C 194 534
Real estate (I) — 223 337 56(
Derivatives (m) (5) 3 — 2
Cash equivalents and short-term investments (n) — 75C — 75C
Total investments $ 3,57- 6,99¢ 1,76¢ 12,33
Accrued expenses (12
Total pension plan assets $ 12,32
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Fair Value of Post-Retirement Plan Assets
at December 31, 2012

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Dollars in millions)
Investment grade bonds (a) $ 22 86 — 3 10¢
High yield bonds (b) — 9C — aC
Emerging market bonds (c) — 4C — 40
Convertible bonds (d) — 2 — 2
Diversified strategies (e) — 72 — 72
U.S. stocks (f) 55 — — 55
Non-U.S. stocks (g) 58 1 — 59
Emerging market stocks (h) — 2C — 20
Private equity (i) — — 45 45
Private debt (j) — — 6 6
Market neutral hedge funds (k) — 41 — 41
Directional hedge funds (k) — 24 — 24
Real estate (I) — 21 28 49
Cash equivalents and short-term investments (n) 5 21 — 26
Total investments $ 14C 41¢ 79 637
Accrued expenses (@D}
Reimbursement accrual (20
Total post-retirement plan assets $ 62¢€

The plans' assets are invested in various assgjarés utilizing multiple strategies and investtmanagers. For several of the
investments in the tables above and discussed b#ievplans own units in commingled funds and kahipartnerships that invest in various
types of assets. Interests in commingled fundvalteed using the net asset value ("NAV") per ufigéach fund. The NAV reported by the f
manager is based on the market value of the urnidgrigvestments owned by each fund, minus its liiéds, divided by the number of shares
outstanding. Commingled funds held by the plans¢ha be redeemed at NAV within a year of the faialnstatement date are generally
classified as Level 2. Investments in limited parghips represent long-term commitments with adfimaturity date, typically ten years.
Valuation inputs for these limited partnership metts are generally based on assumptions andiofbenation not observable in the market
and are classified as Level 3 investments. Thenagsons and valuation methodologies of the priairgdors, account managers, fund
managers and partnerships are monitored and egdlémtreasonableness. Below is an overview oaffset categories, the underlying
strategies and valuation inputs used to value sketa in the preceding tables:

(a) Investment grade bondspresent investments in fixed income securitieselsas commingled bond funds comprised of U.S.
Treasury securities, agencies, corporate bondggage-backed securities, asset-backed securittbesanmercial mortgage-backed securities.
Treasury securities are valued at the bid pricemtep in the active market in which the securityrégled and are classified as Level 1. The
valuation inputs of other investment grade bondsgrily utilize observable market information are dased on a spread to U.S. Treasury
securities and consider yields available on coniparsecurities of issuers with similar credit rgénThe primary observable inputs include
references to the new issue market for similar iiéées, the secondary trading markets and dealetegu Option adjusted spread models are
utilized to evaluate securities such as asset loesdeurities that have early redemption featurbes& securities are classified as Level 2. The
commingled funds are valued at NAV based on th&ataralue of the underlying fixed income securitising the same valuation inputs
described above. The commingled funds can be reek@NAV within a year of the financial statemdate and are classified as Level 2.

(b) High yield bondsepresent investments in below investment gradsdfinRcome securities as well as commingled higldysend
funds. The valuation inputs for the securities iy utilize observable market information and besed on a spread to U.S. Treasury
securities and consider yields available on coniparsecurities of issuers with similar credit rggnThese securities are classified as Level 2
The commingled funds are valued at NAV based omtheket value of the underlying high yield instrurteeusing the same valuation inputs
described above. Commingled funds that can be meeldat NAV within a year of the financial statemdate are classified as Level 2.
Commingled funds that cannot be redeemed at NAMaircannot be redeemed at NAV within a year offithencial statement date are
classified as Level 3.
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(c) Emerging market bondgpresent investments in securities issued by govents and other entities located in developing
countries as well as registered mutual funds amthziogled emerging market bond funds. The valuatiputs for the securities utilize
observable market information and are primarilyelaen dealer quotes or a spread relative to the mmvernment bonds. These securities are
classified as Level 2. The commingled funds aree@lat NAV based on the market value of the undeglgmerging market bonds using the
same valuation inputs described above. The comemihiginds can be redeemed at NAV within a year efithancial statement date and are
classified as Level 2. The registered mutual funalde at the daily NAV, as determined by the maviedtie of the underlying investments, and
are classified as Level 1.

(d) Convertible bondgrimarily represent investments in corporate debusties that have features that allow the delbieto
converted into equity securities under certainwirstances. The valuation inputs for the individraivertible bonds primarily utilize
observable market information including a spread 8. Treasuries and the value and volatility ef timderlying equity security. Convertible
bonds are classified as Level 2.

(e) Diversified strategiesepresent an investment in a commingled fund thatarily has exposures to global government, cafsor
and inflation linked bonds, global stocks and cordities. The commingled fund is valued at NAV basadhe market value of the underlying
investments. The valuation inputs utilize obsergahbrket information including published prices éachange traded securities, bid prices fol
government bonds, and spreads and yields avallabt®mmparable fixed income securities with simieedit ratings. This fund can be
redeemed at NAV within a year of the financial stagént date and is classified as Level 2.

() U.S. stocksepresent investments in stocks of U.S. based coimpas well as commingled U.S. stock funds. Theat@n inputs
for U.S. stocks are based on the last publishex peported on the major stock market on whictst#wurities are traded and are classified as
Level 1. The commingled funds are valued at NAVdobsn the market value of the underlying investmesing the same valuation inputs
described above. These commingled funds can bemsztbat NAV within a year of the financial statetndsite and are classified as Level 2.

(g) Non-U.S. stockeepresent investments in stocks of companies bas#glveloped countries outside the U.S. as well as
commingled funds. The valuation inputs for non-Wt®cks are based on the last published price tegbon the major stock market on which
the securities are traded and are classified aslllevi he commingled funds are valued at NAV basethe market value of the underlying
investments using the same valuation inputs destrbove. These commingled funds can be redeend\atvithin a year of the financial
statement date and are classified as Level 2.

(h) Emerging market stockspresent investments in a registered mutual fimdcammingled funds comprised of stocks of
companies located in developing markets. Registenedial funds trade at the daily NAV, as determibgdhe market value of the underlying
investments, and are classified as Level 1. Thentiogied funds are valued at NAV based on the mariikete of the underlying investments
using the same valuation inputs described prewdiaslindividual stocks. These commingled funds barredeemed at NAV within a year of
the financial statement date and are classifiddceas| 2.

(i) Private equityrepresents non-public investments in domestic areldgn buy out and venture capital funds. Privajaity funds
are structured as limited partnerships and aresdahiccording to the valuation policy of each paghip, subject to prevailing accounting and
other regulatory guidelines. The partnerships wdeation methodologies that give consideration targye of factors, including but not limited
to the price at which investments were acquiree nigture of the investments, market conditionsljigavalues on comparable public securi
current and projected operating performance, arahfiing transactions subsequent to the acquisifitime investments. These valuation
methodologies involve a significant degree of juégin Private equity investments are classifiedasel 3.

(j) Private debtepresents non-public investments in distressedeazanine debt funds. Mezzanine debt instrumeptdetnt
instruments that are subordinated to other debesand may include embedded equity instruments asigvarrants. Private debt funds are
structured as limited partnerships and are valgedrding to the valuation policy of each partnguskubject to prevailing accounting and of
regulatory guidelines. The valuation of underlyfagd investments are based on factors includingsthiger's current and projected credit
worthiness, the security's terms, reference te#uoairities of comparable companies, and other méaktors. These valuation methodologies
involve a significant degree of judgment. Privadbidinvestments are classified as Level 3.
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(k) Market neutral hedge fundmld investments in a diversified mix of instrumettiat are intended in combination to exhibit low
correlations to market fluctuations. These investimare typically combined with futures to achieweorrelated excess returns over various
marketsDirectional hedge funds-This asset category represents investments thaertabit somewhat higher correlations to market
fluctuations than the market neutral hedge funulgedtments in hedge funds include both direct imrests and investments in diversified
funds of funds. Hedge Funds are valued at NAV baseithe market value of the underlying investmervtigch include publicly traded equity
and fixed income securities and privately negotiatebt securities. The hedge funds are valuedily plarty administrators using the same
valuation inputs previously described. Hedge fuihdsé can be redeemed at NAV within a year of tharicial statement date are classified as
Level 2. Hedge fund investments that cannot beemeel at NAV or that cannot be redeemed at NAV withyear of the financial statement
date are classified as Level 3.

(I) Real estateepresents investments in commingled funds anddihpartnerships that invest in a diversified miidfof real estate
properties. These investments are valued at NAGralang to the valuation policy of each fund or parship, subject to prevailing accounting
and other regulatory guidelines. The valuation tefi the underlying properties are generally basethird-party appraisals that use
comparable sales or a projection of future cashidlto determine fair value. Real estate investmiinatiscan be redeemed at NAV within a'y
of the financial statement date are classifiedeselL2. Real estate investments that cannot beneelé at NAV or that cannot be redeemed at
NAV within a year of the financial statement date elassified as Level

(m) Derivativesinclude the market value of exchange traded futcoegracts which are classified as Level 1, as a&fprivately
negotiated over-the-counter swaps and optionsatteatalued based on the change in interest ra@specific market index and classified as
Level 2. The market values represent gains or ogs# occur due to fluctuations in interest rafil@gign currency exchange rates, security
prices, or other factors.

(n) Cash equivalents and short-term investmegpsesent investments that are used in conjunetidnderivatives positions or are
used to provide liquidity for the payment of beteér other purposes. U.S. Treasury Bills are \chhtethe bid price reported in the active
market in which the security is traded and aresifiesl as Level 1. The valuation inputs of otheswséies are based on a spread to U.S.
Treasury Bills, the Federal Funds Rate, or Londdearbank Offered Rate and consider yields availahleomparable securities of issuers with
similar credit ratings and are classified as Lexelhe commingled funds are valued at NAV basethermarket value of the underlying
investments using the same valuation inputs desttr@iitbove. These commingled funds can be redeend\atvithin a year of the financial
statement date and are classified as Level 2.

Concentrations of Riskinvestments, in general, are exposed to variaks rsuch as significant world events, interes, reredit, foreigr
currency and overall market volatility risk. Thessks are managed by broadly diversifying assetssscnumerous asset classes and strategie
with differing expected returns, volatilities angrelations. Risk is also broadly diversified asrosimerous market sectors and individual
companies. Financial instruments that potentiallyject the plans to concentrations of counterpasiyconsist principally of investment
contracts with high quality financial institutionBhese investment contracts are typically colldizzd obligations and/or are actively managed
limiting the amount of counterparty exposure to ang financial institution. Although the investmeare well diversified, the value of plan
assets could change materially depending uponvéealb market volatility, which could affect therfded status of the plans.
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The table below presents a rollforward of the pemgilan assets valued using Level 3 inputs:

Pension Plan Assets Valued Using Level 3 Inputs

Market
High Neutral Directional
Yield Private Private Hedge Hedge Real
Bonds Equity Debt Fund Funds Estate Total
(Dollars in millions)
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 79 791 461 18¢€ 18¢ 53¢ 2,23i
Net transfers 12 — — (18¢) — (10%) (30%)
Acquisitions 1 70 12C — — 18 20¢
Dispositions (171) (109 (102 — — (127) (343
Actual return on plan assets:
Gains relating to assets sold during the year — 3 1 — — — 4
Gains (losses) relating to assets still held a
year-end 2 (44) (15) — 11 10 (36)
Balance at December 31, 2012 59 711 465 — 194 337 1,76¢
Net transfers — — — — (16%) — (16%)
Acquisitions 5 82 71 10C — 9 267
Dispositions (43 (279 (144 — (D) (97 (464)
Actual return on plan assets:
Gains relating to assets sold during the yes 12 68 18 — — 11 10¢
(Losses) gains relating to assets still held at
year-end @) 39 26 1) 4 5 66
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 26 721 43¢ 99 32 265 1,57¢

The table below presents a rollforward of the petitement plan assets valued using Level 3 inputs:

Post-Retirement Plan Assets Valued Using Level 3 puts

Private Private Real
Equity Debt Estate Total
(Dollars in millions)
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 60 8 26 94
Acquisitions 1 — — 1
Dispositions (15) (©)] (D) (19
Actual return on plan assets:
Gains (losses) relating to assets sold during dae y 4 2 (2) 5
(Losses) gains relating to assets still held at-ged (5) (1) 4 2
Balance at December 31, 2012 45 6 28 79
Acquisitions 1 — — 1
Dispositions (11 @ (18) (30
Actual return on plan assets:
Gains (losses) relating to assets sold during ¢ae y 4 — (D) 3
Gains relating to assets still held at year-end 1 — 3 4
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 40 5 12 57

Certain gains and losses are allocated betweetsassd during the year and assets still held at-gad based on transactions and
changes in valuations that occurred during the.yHagse allocations also impact our calculationeaifacquisitions and dispositions.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013, the investomegram produced actual gains on qualified pnand post-retirement plan
assets of $855 million as compared to the expeetens of $935 million for a difference of $80 laih . For the year ended December 31,
2012 , the investment program produced actual gairsension and post-retirement plan assets ob$b8lion as compared to the expected
returns of $892 million for a difference of $664llion . The short-term annual returns on plan asaé almost always be different from the
expected long-term returns and the plans couldreqpee net gains or losses, due primarily to tHatilitly occurring in the financial markets
during any given year.

Unfunded Status

The following table presents the unfunded statub®fpensions and post-retirement benefit plans:

Post-Retirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans
Years Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)
Benefit obligation $ (13,40 (14,88)) (3,68¢) (4,07%)
Fair value of plan assets 12,34¢ 12,32: 53t 62€
Unfunded status (1,05%) (2,560) (3,159 (3,449
Current portion of unfunded status $ (5) (6) (159 (160
Non-current portion of unfunded status $ (1,050 (2,559 (2,999 (3,289

The current portion of our posttirement benefit obligations is recorded on ansolidated balance sheets in accrued expensesttaen
current liabilities-salaries and benefits.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive L«-Recognition and Deferrals

The following tables present cumulative items mmognized as a component of net periodic benefjisrese as of December 31, 2012 ,
items recognized as a component of net periodiefiitsrexpense in 2013 , additional items defernaiiing) 2013 and cumulative items not
recognized as a component of net periodic benefjpense as of December 31, 2013 . The items nognézed as a component of net periodic
benefits expense have been recorded on our coasadithalance sheets in accumulated other compiigbdass:

As of and for the Years Ended December 31,

Recognition

of Net

Periodic Net

Benefits Change in

2012 Expense Deferrals AOCI 2013
(Dollars in millions)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Pension plans:
Net actuarial (loss) gain $ (2,236) 84 1,09¢ 1,17¢ (1,05¢)
Prior service (cost) benefit (38) 5 — 5 (33
Deferred income tax benefit (expense) 87t (34) (419) (45%) 422
Total pension plans (1,399 55 67% 73C (669)
Post-retirement benefit plans:
Net actuarial (loss) gain (44¢€) 4 40¢ 40¢ (37
Prior service (cost) benefit (22 — (141) (147 (163)
Deferred income tax benefit (expense) 17¢ QD (200 (207 78
Total post-retirement benefit plans (289) 3 164 167 (122)
Total accumulated other comprehensive
loss $ (1,689 58 83¢ 897 (797

108






Table of Contents

The following table presents estimated items todoegnized in 2014 as a component of net perioglefit expense of the pension, non-
qualified pension and post-retirement benefit plans

Pension Post-Retirement
Plans Plans

(Dollars in millions)

Estimated recognition of net periodic benefit exgeeim 2014:

Net actuarial loss $ a7 —
Prior service cost (5) a7
Deferred income tax benefit 8 6
Estimated net periodic benefit expense to be rexbid 2014 as a component of other comprehensi
income (loss) $ (14 13)

Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modemaition Act of 200:

We sponsor post-retirement health care plans ikl benefit options that provide prescriptiongdbenefits that we deem actuarially
equivalent to or exceeding Medicare Part D. We gatze the impact of the federal subsidy receivedienthe Medicare Prescription Drug,
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 in thicahkation of our post-retirement benefit obligatiand net periodic post-retirement benefit
expense.

Other Benefit Plans
Health Care and Life Insurance

We provide health care and life insurance bentdiesssentially all of our active employees. Welargely self-funded for the cost of the
health care plan. Our health care benefit expefasasirrent employees was $362 million , $360 roilliand $377 million for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectivaiiordrepresented employee benefits are based atiagggl collective bargaining
agreements. Employees contributed $117 millionl3%illion and $90 million for the years ended Dmber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Our group life insurance plans atly fnsured and the premiums are paid by us.

401(k) Plan

We sponsor qualified defined contribution beneffiins covering substantially all of our employeesdér these plans, employees may
contribute a percentage of their annual compensafioto certain maximums, as defined by the plaushy the Internal Revenue Service
("IRS"). Currently, we match a percentage of emptogontributions in cash. At December 31, 2013R@&ckmber 31, 2012 , the assets of the
plans included approximately 9 million and 10 noitlishares of our common stock, respectively, @saltrof the combination of previous
employer match and participant directed contrimgidVe recognized expenses related to these pl&&9anillion , $76 million and $70
million and for the years ended December 31, 2@(BL2 and 2011 , respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plans

We sponsored non-qualified unfunded deferred cosgt@n plans for various groups that included @eméour current and former
highly compensated employees. The value of asadtfabilities related to these plans was not sigait.

(9) Share-based Compensation

We maintain equity programs that allow our BoardoEctors (through its Compensation Committeewor©hief Executive Officer as
its delegate) to grant incentives to certain emgésyand our outside directors in any one or a auattibin of several forms, including incentive
and non-qualified stock options, stock appreciatights, restricted stock awards, restricted stouks and market and performance shares.
Stock options generally expire ten years from thie @f grant. We also offer an ESPP, which alloligglde employees to purchase our
common stock at a 15% discount based on the lofwiedoeginning or ending stock price during reuyisix month offering periods.
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Stock Options

The following table summarizes activity involvingpsk option awards for the year ended Decembe2@13 :

Weighted-
Average
Number of Exercise
Options Price
(in thousands)

Outstanding at December 31, 2012 6,73 % 34.2:
Exercised (1,142 $ 27.07
Forfeited/Expired (26€) $ 30.51

Outstanding at December 31, 2013 5,32t § 35.9¢

Exercisable at December 31, 2013 532 ¢ 35.9¢

The aggregate intrinsic value of our options ouiditag and exercisable at December 31, 2013 wasrBlidn . The weighted average
remaining contractual term for such options was Be4ars.

During 2013, we received net cash proceeds of§iBibn in connection with our option exercises.e€ltax benefit realized from these
exercises was $4 million . The total intrinsic vabf options exercised for the years ended DeceBhe2013 , 2012 and 2011 was $11
million , $49 million and $47 million , respectiyel

Restricted Stock Award

For awards that contain only service conditionsviesting, we calculate the award fair value bagethe closing stock price on the
accounting grant date. For restricted stock awtralscontain market conditions, the award fair gakicalculated through Monte-Carlo
simulations.

During the second quarter of 2013, we granted agymiately 335 thousand shares of restricted stodettain executive-level employees
as part of our long-term incentive program, of vihé@proximately 223 thousand contained only sere@®litions and will vest on a straight-
line basis on May 23, 2014, 2015 and 2016. The imngawards contain market and service conditemms will vest on May 23, 2016. These
shares, with market and service conditions, reptesaly the target for the award as each recigiastthe opportunity to ultimately receive
between 0% and 200% of the target restricted sd@ekd depending on, our total shareholder retursugethat of selected peer companies for
2013, 2014 and 2015.

In addition, during the first and second quarte2@f3, we granted approximately 1.2 million shdcesertain key employees as part of
our annual equity compensation program. The remgiawards granted throughout the year to certdiardtey employees and our outside
directors were made as part of our equity compé@rsand retention programs. These awards requisesamnvice conditions for vesting and
typically vest equally over a three year period.

During the first quarter of 2012, we granted apprately 402 thousand shares of restricted stodettain executive-level employees as
part of our long-term incentive program, of whigipeoximately 201 thousand contained only servicggd@@mns and will vest on a straight-line
basis on February 20, 2013, 2014 and 2015. Theingmaawards contain market and service conditemms will vest on February 20, 2015.
These shares, with market and service conditi@msesent only the target for the award as eacpiesmtihas the opportunity to ultimately
receive between 0% and 200% of the target restrigtieck award depending on our total shareholdarnmdor 2012, 2013 and 2014 in relation
to that of the S&P 500 Index.

In addition, during the first quarter of 2012, weugted restricted stock to certain key employegsaasof our annual equity compensat
program. These awards contained only service donditApproximately 519 thousand shares of awaitls/@st on a straight-line basis on
January 9, 2013, 2014 and 2015. Approximately 868sand shares of awards will vest on a straiglktiliasis on March 15, 2013, 2014 and
2015. The remaining awards granted throughout ¢ae §o certain other key employees and our outlirgetors were made as part of our
equity compensation and retention programs. Theseds require only service conditions for vesting #ypically vest an equal portion
annually over a three year period.
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The following table summarizes activity involvingstricted stock and restricted stock unit awardshfe year ended December 31, 2013

Weighted-
Average
Number of Grant Date
Shares Fair Value
(in thousands)

Non-vested at December 31, 2012 352t % 38.4:
Granted 1,88¢ $ 35.6¢
Vested (1,499 $ 37.0¢
Forfeited (296) $ 36.2¢

Non-vested at December 31, 2013 3,62t g 37.3:

During 2012, we granted 2.1 million shares of fettd stock at a weighted-average price of $39@ring 2011, we grantetl3 million
shares of restricted stock at a weighted-averaige pf $36.15 , excluding the 1.9 million sharesiid in connection with our acquisitions of
Qwest and Savvis. The total fair value of restdcitock that vested during 2013, 2012 and 2011$sagmillion , $102 million and $72
million , respectively.

Compensation Expense and Tax Benefit

We recognize compensation expense related to otketnand performance share-based awards with gnasltohg that only have a
service condition on a straight-line basis overrguisite service period for the entire awardal obmpensation expense for all share-based
payment arrangements for the years ended Decertb2033 , 2012 and 2011 was $63 million , $78 milland $65 million , respectively.
These amounts included $12 million in compensatiqrense recognized in 2011 for the acceleratiaredin awards resulting from the
consummation of the Qwest acquisition. Our tax Berecognized in the income statements for ourstiesed payment arrangements for the
years ended December 12013 , 2012 and 2011 was $25 million , $31 millgovd $25 million , respectively. At December 31, 20there wa:
$89 million of total unrecognized compensation egeerelated to our share-based payment arrangemdrith we expect to recognize over a
weighted-average period of 1.7 years.
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(10) (Loss) Earnings Per Common Share

Basic and diluted (loss) earnings per common sfoarthe years ended December 31, 2013 , 2012 ahll ®@re calculated as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts,
shares in thousands)

(Loss) Income (Numerator):

Net (loss) income $ (239 771 57z
Earnings applicable to non-vested restricted stock — (1) @)
Net (loss) income applicable to common stock fonpating basic earnings per

common share (239 77€ 571
Net (loss) income as adjusted for purposes of coimpudiluted earnings per

common share $ (239) T7€ 571

Shares (Denominator):
Weighted average number of shares:

Outstanding during period 604,40: 622,13¢ 534,32(
Non-vested restricted stock (3,517) (2,796 (2,209
Non-vested restricted stock units — 862 66¢
Weighted average shares outstanding for computis@lfloss) earnings per
common share 600,89: 620,20! 532,78(
Incremental common shares attributable to dilusieeurities:
Shares issuable under convertible securities — 12 13
Shares issuable under incentive compensation plans — 2,06¢ 1,32¢
Number of shares as adjusted for purposes of cangpdiluted earnings per
common share 600,89: 622,28" 534,12:
Basic (loss) earnings per common share $ 0.40 $ 1.2t 3 1.07
Diluted (loss) earnings per common shidre $ (040 $ 128§ 1.07

(1) For the year ended December 31, 2013, we @&dlrom the calculation of diluted loss per sHaBmillion shares potentially issuable under inm@ncompensation
plans or convertible securities, as their effdahdluded, would have been anti-dilutive.

Our calculations of diluted earnings per commoneslexclude shares of common stock that are issugole exercise of stock options
when the exercise price is greater than the avaragket price of our common stock during the perfdch potentially issuable shares totaled
2.7 million , 2.2 million and 2.4 million for 201,322012 and 2011 , respectively.

(11) Fair Value Disclosure

Our financial instruments consist of cash and eaghivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payatnldong-term debt, excluding
capital lease obligations. Due to their shiertn nature, the carrying amounts of our cash astl equivalents, accounts receivable and acc
payable approximate their fair values.

Fair value is defined as the price that would lmeireed to sell an asset or paid to transfer alifglin an orderly transaction between
independent and knowledgeable parties who arengillind able to transact for an asset or liabilittha measurement date. We use valuation
techniques that maximize the use of observabletsngud minimize the use of unobservable inputs valetarmining fair value and then we
rank the estimated values based on the relialafithe inputs used following the fair value hietarset forth by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board ("FASB").

We determined the fair values of our long-term detaiuding the current portion, based on quotedketzprices where available or, if
not available, based on discounted future cashsflesing current market interest rates.
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The three input levels in the hierarchy of fairummeasurements are defined by the FASB geneaflyllaws:

Input Level Description of Input
Level 1 Observable inputs such as quoted market pricestiveamarkets.
Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices in active markeds are either directly or indirectly observable.
Level 3 Unobservable inputs in which little or no marketadexists.

The following table presents the carrying amounts @stimated fair values of our investment se@sitiwhich are reported in noncurrent
other assets, and long-term debt, excluding calgitale obligations, as well as the input levelslusaletermine the fair values:

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

Input Carrying Carrying
Level Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
(Dollars in millions)
Liabilities-Long-term debt excluding capital lease
obligations 2 $ 20,34" 20,41 19,87: 21,457
(12) Income Taxes
Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)

Income tax expense was as follows:
Federal

Current $ 1 57 (49

Deferred 40¢< 361 401
State

Current 62 15 25

Deferred (8) 33 (6)
Foreign

Current 9 7 4

Deferred (4) — —
Total income tax expense $ 468 47c 378

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Income tax expense was allocated as follows:
Income tax expense in the consolidated stateméigerations:

Attributable to income $
Stockholders' equity:

Compensation expense for tax purposes in excemsnodints recognized for
financial reporting purposes

Tax effect of the change in accumulated other ceimgmsive loss
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The following is a reconciliation from the statutdederal income tax rate to our effective incowme riate:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(Percentage of pre-tax income)
Statutory federal income tax rate 35.C% 35.(% 35.(%
State income taxes, net of federal income tax lienef 2.8% 2.5% 1.3%
Impairment of goodwiill 188.t % —% —%
Reversal of liability for unrecognized tax position (24.5% —% —%
Foreign income taxes 2.7% 0.2% 0.4%
Nondeductible accounting adjustment for life insuw& 3.1% —% —%
Release state valuation allowance (2.9% —% —%
Other, net 1.4% —% 2.9%
Effective income tax rate 206.7% 37.8% 39.6%

The 2013 effective tax rate is 206.7% compared/t8% for 2012 . The 2013 rate reflects the taxatféé a $1.092 billion nomleductible
goodwill impairment charge, a favorable settlemeitih the Internal Revenue Service of $33 millia$22 million reduction due to the
reversal of an uncertain tax position and the féeceof a $17 million unfavorable accounting adjnent for non-deductible life insurance
costs. For 2013, the tax rate was decreased bynalfdn reduction to the valuation allowance doetie estimated ability to utilize more state
NOLs than previously expected. The 2012 rate rifléee$16 million reversal of a valuation allowance rethto the auction rate securities we
sold in 2012. The 2011 rate was decreased by $llibmue to a $16 million decrease to the valuatitiowance related to state NOLs due
primarily to the effects of a tax law change in afi¢he states in which we operate, which is plytiaffset by an $8 million valuation
allowance recorded on deferred tax assets thatreefyiure income of a special character to redlmebenefits.

The tax effects of temporary differences that gaseto significant portions of the deferred tasets and deferred tax liabilities at
December 31, 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)

Deferred tax assets

Post-retirement and pension benefit costs $ 1,61¢ 2,311
Net operating loss carryforwards 1,532 2,17¢
Other employee benefits 182 184
Other 782 78¢
Gross deferred tax assets 4,114 5,46(
Less valuation allowance (43%) (444)
Net deferred tax assets 3,67¢ 5,01¢
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment, primarily due tordetion differences (3,909 (3,789
Goodwill and other intangible assets (3,226 (3,689
Other (137) (192
Gross deferred tax liabilities (7,267) (7,669
Net deferred tax liability $ (3,58¢) (2,649

Of the $3.588 billion and $2.648 billion net deéstrtax liability at December 31, 2013 and 201Xpeetively, $4.753 billion and $3.564
billion is reflected as a long-term liability and.$65 billion and $916 million is reflected as & aerrent deferred tax asset at December 31,
2013 and December 31, 2012 , respectively.
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In connection with our acquisitions of Savvis otyJib, 2011 and Qwest on April 1, 2011, we recogdinet noncurrent deferred tax
liabilities of approximately $279 million and $588llion , respectively, which reflects the expecfatlre tax effects of certain differences
between the financial reporting carrying amounts &x bases of Savvis' and Qwest's assets antitiéehiln addition, due to the Qwest
acquisition, we recognized a net current defersgdhsset of $289 millionwhich relates primarily to certain accrued lidlagb that are expectt
to result in future tax deductions. These primaffecences involve Qwest's pension and other petstament benefit obligations as well as tax
effects for acquired intangible assets, propetantand equipment and long-term debt, includirgéffects of acquisition date valuation
adjustments, for both entities. The net deferredisdility is partially offset by a deferred tagset for expected future tax deductions relatir
Sawvis' and Qwest's net operating loss carryforszard

At December 31, 2013, we had federal NOLs of $2l®n and state NOLS of $12.4 billion . If unusete NOLs will expire between
2015 and 2032; however, no significant amountsrextil 2020. At December 31, 2013 , we had $5iani( $33 million net of federal
income tax) of state investment tax credit carnyinds that will expire between 2014 and 2024 ifutdized. In addition, at December 31,
2013 we had $91 million of alternative minimum tak AMT, credits. Our acquisitions of Qwest and @aaused "ownership changes"
within the meaning of Section 382 of the InternavBnue Code ("Section 382"). As a result, our ghiiti use these NOLSs is subject to annual
limits imposed by Section 382. Despite this, weestfo use substantially all of these NOLs as &ebhgainst our future taxable income,
although the timing of that use will depend upon foure earnings and future tax circumstances.

We establish valuation allowances when necessagdiace the deferred tax assets to amounts we teixpealize. As of December 31,
2013, a valuation allowance of $435 million watabBshed as it is more likely than not that thiscaunt of net operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards will not be utilized prior to expiia. Our valuation allowance at December 31, 20182012 is primarily related to state NOL
carryforwards. This valuation allowance decrease@i®million during 2013 .

We recorded valuation allowances of $18 million &463 million related to the Savvis and Qwest asitjons, respectively, for the
portion of the acquired net deferred tax assetsvibalid not believe is more likely than not torkalized. Our acquisition date assignment of
deferred income taxes and the related valuati@walhce was completed in 2012 as discussed in Net&cguisitions.

A reconciliation of the change in our gross unretped tax benefits (excluding both interest and ietgted federal benefit) from
January 1 to December 31 for 2013 and 2012 islksvis

2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)
Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year $ 78 111
Increase in tax positions taken in the current year — 3
Decrease due to the reversal of tax positions takarprior year — (39
Decrease from the lapse of statute of limitations (36) 2
Settlements (28) —
Unrecognized tax benefits at end of year $ 14 78

During 2012, we entered into negotiations with HR8 to resolve a claim that was filed by Qwest1899. Based on the status of the
negotiations at year end 2012, we partially rexeeeseunrecognized tax benefit that was assumedrasfihe Qwest acquisition. The
negotiations were settled in 2013 and we fully regd the amount of the unrecognized tax positiorecgivable was recorded for the refund
that is expected to be received in 2014.

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits tifiagécognized, would impact the effective incorag tate was $29 million and $52
million at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively

Our policy is to reflect interest expense assodiatigth unrecognized tax benefits in income tax exgee We had accrued interest
(presented before related tax benefits) of appratetg $30 million and $33 million at December 3013 and 2012 , respectively.

We file income tax returns, including returns for subsidiaries, with federal, state and locakgigtions. Our uncertain income tax
positions are related to tax years that are cuyremnider or remain subject to examination by tHevant taxing authorities.
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In 2012 Qwest filed an amended 2008 federal inctameeturn primarily to report the carryforward ieqp of prior year settlements. A
refund was received for the amended 2008 fedecahire tax return in 2013. In 2013, Qwest filed areaded 2009 federal income tax return
primarily to report the carryforward impact of prigear settlements. Such amended filing is suligeatijustments by the IRS.

Beginning with the 2010 tax year, our federal cdidsed returns are subject to annual examinatiothe IRS. Qwest's federal
consolidated returns for the 2010 and pre-merg#f 28x years are open to examination by the IR8efa consolidated returns for Savvis for
tax years 2010 and pre-merger 2011 are under egtiotirby the IRS.

In years prior to 2011, Qwest filed amended fed@@me tax returns for 2002-2007 to make protectiaims with respect to items
reserved in their audit settlements and to coitests not addressed in prior audits. The examinaifdhose amended federal income tax
returns by the IRS was completed in 2012.

Our open income tax years by major jurisdictionasdollows at December 31, 2013 :

Jurisdiction Open Tax Years

Federal 2009—<¢urrent

State
Florida 2006—2008 and 2010edrrent
Minnesota 1999 and 2010-eurrent
Oregon 2009—e¢urrent
Other states 2009—e¢urrent

Since the period for assessing additional liabtltyically begins upon the filing of a return, stpossible that certain jurisdictions could
assess tax for years prior to the open tax yeactodied above. Additionally, it is possible thataia jurisdictions in which we do not believe
we have an income tax filing responsibility, andadingly did not file a return, may attempt toessa liability, or that other jurisdictions to
which we pay taxes may attempt to assert that weanditional taxes.

Based on our current assessment of various fadtatading (i) the potential outcomes of these anga@xaminations, (ii) the expiration
of statute of limitations for specific jurisdictisn(iii) the negotiated settlement of certain disglissues, and (iv) the administrative practides c
applicable taxing jurisdictions, it is reasonabbsgible that the related unrecognized tax benfgfitancertain tax positions previously taken
may decrease by up to $8 million within the nexii@nths. The actual amount of such decrease, ifwitlydepend on several future
developments and events, many of which are outsideontrol.

(13) Segment Information

During the first quarter of 2013, we announcedaxganization of our operating segments. Consequemt now report the following
four segments in our consolidated financial statgseconsumer, business, wholesale and data ho3tiegprimary purpose of the
reorganization was to strengthen our focus on tisinless market while continuing our commitmentuowholesale, hosting and consumer
customers. The reorganization combined business sald operations functions that formerly residetthé enterprise marketetwork segme!
and the regional markets segment into the newadhifusiness segment. The remaining customers flyrsmwiced by the regional markets
segment became the new consumer segment. Each afittent segments are described further below:

» Consumer.Consists generally of providing strategic and &ygaroducts and services to residential consun@us strategic products
and services offered to these customers includdmadband, wireless and video services, includingPrism TV services. Our
legacy services offered to these customers indlhucid and long-distance service.

» Business Consists generally of providing strategic and tggaroducts and services to commercial, enterpgiedal and
governmental customers. Our strategic productsandces offered to these customers include ouatiline, broadband, Ethernet,
Multiprotocol Label Switching ("MPLS"), Voice ovénternet Protocol ("VolP"), and network managenmsmwices. Our legacy
services offered to these customers include lawdll@ng-distance service.
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» Wholesale.Consists generally of providing strategic and tggaroducts and services to other communicatioosigers. Our strateg
products and services offered to these customemnaimly private line (including special accesgglidated internet access, digital
subscriber line ("DSL") and MPLS. Our legacy seegioffered to these customers include resale ofewices, the sale of unbundled
network elements ("UNEs") which allow our wholesalestomers the use of our network or a combinaifarur network and their
own networks to provide voice and data servicahé@ customers, long-distance and switched acmssces and other services,
including billing and collection, pole rental, flospace and database services.

» Data hosting Consists primarily of providing colocation, manddesting and cloud hosting services to commereiatkrprise, glob.
and governmental customers.

We have restated previously reported segment sefulthe years ended December 31, 2012 and 204 fodhe above-described
restructuring of our business on January 3, 20h8.fdllowing table summarizes our segment resolt2013, 2012 and 2011 based on the
segment categorization we were operating underegebber 31, 2013.

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)

Total segment revenues $ 17,098 $ 17,32( 14,47
Total segment expenses 8,24¢ 8,24« 6,62:
Total segment income $ 8,84 9,07¢ 7,84¢
Total margin percentage 52% 52% 54%
Consumer:

Revenues $ 6,00¢ $ 6,162 5,38¢

Expenses 2,231 2,291 1,972

Income $ 3,777 $ 3,871 3,41:

Margin percentage 63% 63% 63%
Business:

Revenues $ 6,13¢ % 6,13: 5,15(

Expenses 3,76¢ 3,74: 3,06¢

Income $ 2,361 % 2,39( 2,08:

Margin percentage 3% 3% 40%
Wholesale:

Revenues $ 3,57¢ $ 3,72¢ 3,31¢

Expenses 1,15¢ 1,23( 1,13i

Income $ 2,421 % 2,49t 2,171

Margin percentage 68% 67% 66%
Data hosting:

Revenues $ 1,37¢  $ 1,30( 623

Expenses 1,091 98C 44¢

Income $ 28t % 32C 177

Margin percentage 21% 25% 28%

We categorize our products and services relategMenues into the following four categories:

» Strategic serviceswhich include primarily broadband, private linec{uding special access which we market to whddeaad
business customers), MPLS (which is a data netwgrtéchnology that can deliver the quality of seeviequired to support real-time
voice and video), hosting (including cloud hostargl managed hosting), colocation, Ethernet, videduding resold satellite and our
facilities-based video services), VoIP and Veri¥dineless services;

» Legacy service, which include primarily local, long-distance, $stied access, Integrated Services Digital Netwd&ON") (which
uses regular telephone lines to support voice ovadal data applications), and traditional wide awetavork ("WAN") services (which
allows a local communications network to link tdwerks in remote locations);
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« Data integration, which includes the sale of telecommunicationgfgent located on customers' premises and relatddgsional
services, such as network management, installatidnmaintenance of data equipment and buildingagnetary fiber-optic
broadband networks for our governmental and busioestomers; and

»  Other revenuesyhich consist primarily of Universal Service Furid$F") revenue and surcharges. Unlike the first¢tmrevenue
categories, other revenues are not included irsegment revenues.

Our operating revenues for our products and seswioesisted of the following categories for thergemded December 31, 2013 , 2012
and 2011 :

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)
Strategic services $ 8,82: % 8,42 6,312
Legacy services 7,617 8,221 7,621
Data integration 65€ 672 537
Other 1,00(¢ 1,05¢ 88C
Total operating revenues $ 18,09 § 18,37¢ 15,35!

Operating revenues attributable to certain bundéslices were revised from legacy services toegifatservices. Specifically, the
revision resulted in a reduction of revenues fregeky services of $104 million and $51 million @ncdorresponding increase in revenues fron
strategic services for the periods ended Decemhe2@®L2 and 2011, respectively. The revision wagsponse to over-allocating discounts to
broadband services revenues and under-allocatsnguints to local and long-distance services revenader bundled services arrangements,
which resulted in strategic services revenues bemtgrstated and legacy services revenues beingtate.

Operating revenues attributable to certain CLE@ises were revised from strategic services to lggaevices. Specifically, the revision
resulted in a reduction of revenue from strategiwises of $38 million and a corresponding increéasevenue from legacy services for the
period ended December 31, 2012. The revision wassiponse to recording certain legacy servicesweggenerated through CLEC services
arrangements as strategic services revenues, wdsalied in strategic services revenues being tatersand legacy services revenues being
understated. Due to system limitations, we haverdehed that it is impracticable to revise 2011rafing revenues attributable to certain
CLEC services to conform to our current revenuegatization.

Other operating revenues include revenue from usaleervice funds, which allows us to recover di@o of our costs under federal e
state cost recovery mechanisms, and certain syebao our customers, including billings for owjuiged contributions to several USF
programs. These surcharge billings to our custormerseflected on a gross basis in our statemémgerations (included in both operating
revenues and expenses) and aggregated approxirid&ymillion , $531 million and $392 million fone years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011 , respectively. We also generate offgrating revenues from leasing and subleasispate in our office buildings,
warehouses and other properties. We centrally-neatisgactivities that generate these other opegrativenues and consequently these
revenues are not included in any of our four sedseresented above.

Our segment revenues include all revenues fronstategic, legacy and data integration operatisrmeacribed in more detail above.
Segment revenues are based upon each customssiicddion to an individual segment. We report seigment revenues based upon all
services provided to that segment's customers,thétexception of data hosting revenue generated bBusiness and wholesale customers,
which is reported as data hosting segment revedeseport our segment expenses for our four setmaanfollows:

» Direct expense, which primarily are specific expenses incurrecalrect result of providing services and productsegment
customers, along with selling, general and adnratis®e expenses that are directly associated ypigltciic segment customers or
activities; and

» Allocated expense, which include network expenses, facilities exgsnand other expenses such as fleet and real espnse
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We do not assign depreciation and amortization esg@@r impairments to our segments, as the retesteets and capital expenditures are
centrally managed and are not monitored by or tegddo the chief operating decision maker ("CODM)segment. Similarly, severance
expenses, restructuring expenses and, subjectarcaption for our data hosting segment, certaitraly managed administrative functions
(such as finance, information technology, legal huohan resources) are not assigned to our segnhetiei®st expense is also excluded from
segment results because we manage our financiagatal company basis and have not allocated agsdebt to specific segments. Other
income (expense) is not monitored as a part o6egment operations and is therefore excluded frens@gment results.

The following table reconciles segment income toimeome for the years ended December 31, 20122 26d 2011 :

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)
Total segment income $ 8,84¢ $ 9,07¢ 7,84¢
Other operating revenues 1,00(¢ 1,05¢ 88(
Depreciation and amortization (4,547) (4,780 (4,026
Impairment of goodwiill (1,099 — —
Other unassigned operating expenses (2,760 (2,639 (2,677
Other income (expense), net (1,229 (1,469 (1,077
Income tax expense (463) (473 (37%)
Net (loss) income $ (239) 771 57¢

We do not have any single customer that provideri@n 10% of our total operating revenues. Sakistyy all of our revenues come
from customers located in the United States.

(14) Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

2013

Operating revenues $ 4,51 4,52¢ 4,51¢ 4,54z 18,09
Operating income (loss) 782 71t (68E) 641 1,45:
Net income (loss) 29¢ 26¢ (1,04%) 23¢ (239)
Basic earnings (loss) per common share 0.4¢ 0.4t (1.7¢) 0.41 (0.40
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share 0.4¢ 0.4 (1.7¢) 0.41 (0.40
2012

Operating revenues $ 4,61( 4,612 4,571 4,58: 18,37¢
Operating income 654 657 73€ 66€ 2,71z
Net income 20C 74 27C 23< 177
Basic earnings per common share 0.32 0.1z 0.4: 0.37 1.2t
Diluted earnings per common share 0.32 0.1z 0.4z 0.37 1.2t

During the third quarter of 2012, we discovered eodected an error that resulted in an overstat¢wfedepreciation expense in the
amount of $30 million in 2011 and $15 million iretfirst six months of 2012. The total reductiordepreciation expense of $45 million was
recognized in the third quarter of 2012.

The net loss of $1.045 billion in the third qua@2013 is primarily due to a goodwill impairmesttarge of $1.1 billion and a charge of
$233 million in connection with a tentative settlmhin a litigation matter.
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(15) Commitments and Contingencies

We are vigorously defending against all of the erattescribed below. As a matter of course, weaagared both to litigate the matters
to judgment, as well as to evaluate and considae#lement opportunities. In this Note, when wker to a class action as "putative" it is
because a class has been alleged, but not ceitifibdt matter. We have established accrued iimsilfor the matters described below where
losses are deemed probable and reasonably estimable

Litigation Matters Relating to CenturyLink and Embg

In William Douglas Fulghum, et al. v. Embarqg Corpoaostj et al., filed on December 28, 2007 in the United Statissriat Court for the
District of Kansas, a group of retirees filed agtivie class action lawsuit challenging the decis@make certain modifications in retiree
benefits programs relating to life insurance, madicsurance and prescription drug benefits, gdiyezéective January 1, 2006 and January 1
2008 (which, at the time of the modifications, veapected to reduce estimated future expensesdamubject benefits by more than $300
million ). Defendants include Embarq, certain sfbenefit plans, its Employee Benefits Committe@ the individual plan administrator of
certain of its benefits plans. Additional defendaintlude Sprint Nextel and certain of its benglfins. The Court certified a class on certain of
plaintiffs’ claims, but rejected class certificatias to other claims. On October 14, 2011 Rhighumlawyers filed a new, related lawsuit,
Abbott et al. v. Sprint Nextel et CenturyLink/Embarqg is not named a defendant indlssuit. InAbbott,approximately 1,500 plaintiffs allege
breach of fiduciary duty in connection with the nbas in retiree benefits that also are at isstieeiRulghumcase. Thé\bbottplaintiffs are all
members of the class that was certifie@ririghumon claims for allegedly vested benefits (Countsd Hl), and theAbbottclaims are similar t
the Fulghumbreach of fiduciary duty claim (Count II), on whithe Fulghumcourt denied class certification. The Court hagedigoroceedings
in Abbottindefinitely. On February 14, 2013, tRelghumcourt dismissed the majority of the plaintiffs'iola in that case. On July 16, 2013,
the Fulghumcourt granted plaintiffs' request to seek intertocyreview by the United States Court of Appeailsthe Tenth Circuit. Embarq
and the other defendants will defend the appealtjrmae to vigorously contest any remaining claimgulghumand seek to have the claims in
the Abbottcase dismissed on similar grounds. We have notiada liability for these matters because we belieis premature (i) to
determine whether an accrual is warranted andf 60, to determine a reasonable estimate of fniedability.

In December 2009, subsidiaries of CenturyLink fited lawsuits against subsidiaries of Sprint Netgelecover terminating access
charges for VolP traffic owed under various intentection agreements and tariffs which originallprmpximated $34 million in the aggregate.
In connection with the first lawsuit, a federal com Virginia issued a ruling in our favor, whichsulted in Sprint paying us approximately $2¢
million . The other lawsuit is pending in federalct in Louisiana. In that case, in early 2011 @wairt dismissed certain of CenturyLink's
claims, referred other claims to the FCC, and stdle litigation. In April 2012, Sprint Nextel fiiea petition with the FCC, seeking a
declaratory ruling that CenturyLink's access chadnot apply to VolP originated calls. We havedeferred any revenue recognition rele
to these matters.

Litigation Matters Relating to Qwes

On July 16, 2013, Comcast MO Group, Inc. ("Comqgddtd a lawsuit in Colorado state court againgtgdt Communications
International, Inc. ("Qwest"). Comcast alleges Quirsached the parties' 1998 tax sharing agreeftiEBA") when it refused to partially
indemnify Comcast for a tax liability settlementr@cast reached with the Commonwealth of Massaclsusedt dispute to which we were not a
party. Comcast seeks approximately $80 millionameges, excluding interest. Qwest and Comcastaatiepto the TSA in their capacities as
successors to the TSA's original parties, U S WHRT., a telecommunications company, and MediaOreifg Inc., a cable television
company, respectively. We have not accrued a tiglidr this matter because we do not believe liadiflity is probable.

On September 29, 2010, the trustees in the Dutckrbatcy proceeding for KPNQwest, N.V. (of which €stwas a major shareholder)
filed a lawsuit in the District Court of Haarlenhet Netherlands, alleging tort and mismanagemeimhslander Dutch law. Qwest and
Koninklijke KPN N.V. ("KPN") are defendants in thiswsuit along with a number of former KPNQwestewisory board members and a
former officer of KPNQwest, some of whom were formeaffiliated with Qwest. Plaintiffs allege, amowgher things, that defendants' actions
were a cause of the bankruptcy of KPNQwest, ang skek damages for the bankruptcy deficit of KPN&wehich is claimed to be
approximately €4.2 billion (or approximately $5.8ibn based on the exchange rate on December(i3 2 plus statutory interest. Two
lawsuits asserting similar claims were previougdfagainst Qwest and others in federal courtsew Jersey in 2004 and Colorado in 2009;
those courts dismissed the lawsuits without pregidin the grounds that the claims should not lgatiéd in the United States.

In February 2014, Qwest, KPN, the individual defemis and the trustees reached a definitive agreesedtiing the litigation. The
settlement terms include Qwest's payment of appratély €171 million (or approximately $235 millitwased on the exchange rate on
December 31, 2013 ) to the KPNQwest bankruptcytegtarsuant to its indemnification obligations,adissed below.
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On September 13, 2006, Cargill Financial Markekts,aRd Citibank, N.A. filed a lawsuit in the DigttiCourt of Amsterdam, the
Netherlands, against Qwest, KPN, KPN Telecom Baxid other former officers, employees or supervismgrd members of KPNQwest, sc
of whom were formerly affiliated with Qwest. TheMsuit alleges that defendants misrepresented KPNEfinancial and business condition
in connection with the origination of a credit fitgiand wrongfully allowed KPNQwest to borrow fundnder that facility. Plaintiffs allege
damages of approximately €219 million (or approxeha$301 million based on the exchange rate orebxer 31, 2013 ). The value of this
claim will be reduced to the degree plaintiffs igeerecovery from the tentative trustee settlentesicribed above. While we expect the
plaintiffs would receive proceeds from any suclstiee settlement, the amounts of such expectedegcave not yet known. On April 25, 20
the court issued its judgment denying the clainseded by Cargill and Citibank in their lawsuit.r@idl and Citibank are appealing that
decision.

Regarding the 2010 proceeding filed by the trusteesaccrued a liability in 2013 in the pre-tax ambof €171 million (or
approximately $235 million reflected in our accompiag consolidated financial statements based erefthange rate on December 31, 213
which represents our best estimate of Qwest'sibomitn under the terms of the then-tentative setéint. Regarding the 2006 suit brought by
Cargill Financial Markets, Plc and Citibank. N.e do not believe that liability is probable andlwontinue to defend against the matter
vigorously.

The terms and conditions of applicable bylaws,ifteates or articles of incorporation, agreementagplicable law may obligate Qwest
to indemnify its former directors, officers or erapées with respect to certain of the matters diesdrabove, and Qwest has been advancing
legal fees and costs to certain former directdfiars or employees in connection with certain texat described above.

Several putative class actions relating to theaitaton of fiber optic cable in certain rights-efiy were filed against Qwest on behalf of
landowners on various dates and in courts locat@d istates in which Qwest has such cable (Alabamzona, California, Colorado,
Delaware, Florida, Georgia, lllinois, Indiana, lgwansas, Kentucky, Maryland, Massachusetts, Mahiglinnesota, Mississippi, Missouri,
Nebraska, Nevada, New Jersey, New Mexico, New YNdtth Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, PennsyibsaBouth Carolina, Tenness
Texas, Utah, Virginia, and Wisconsin.) For the nqat, the complaints challenge our right to insiat fiber optic cable in railroad rights-of-
way. The complaints allege that the railroads dwenrtght-of-way as an easement that did not incthdeight to permit us to install our cable
in the right-of-way without the plaintiffs' conseMost of the currently pending actions purporb&brought on behalf of state-wide classes in
the named plaintiffs' respective states, althougharction pending before the Illinois Court of Apfsepurports to be brought on behalf of
landowners in lllinois, lowa, Kentucky, Michigan,iivhesota, Nebraska, Ohio and Wisconsin. In gentralcomplaints seek damages on
theories of trespass and unjust enrichment, asageglunitive damages. After previous attempts terento a single nationwide settlement in a
single court proved unsuccessful, the parties maee to seek court approval of settlements onte-btastate basis. To date, the parties have
received final approval of such settlements intafes (Alabama, California, Colorado, DelawarefiBl, Georgia, lllinois, Indiana, lowa,
Kansas, Kentucky, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesotassiksippi, Missouri, Nebraska, Nevada, New Jefdew York, North Carolina, Ohio,
Oklahoma, Oregon, Pennsylvania, South Carolinang@ssee, Utah, Virginia and Wisconsin) and haveyabteceived either preliminary or
final approval in one state where an action is pen{iTexas) and three states where actions weraeatime, but are not currently, pending
(Arizona, Massachusetts, and New Mexico). We haeeued an amount that we believe is probable fesdhmatters; however, the amount is
not material to our consolidated financial statetsen

Securities Actions

CenturyLink and certain of its affiliates are defants in one consolidated securities and four sloddter derivative actions. The
securities action is pending in federal court i@ 8outhern District of New York and the derivataaions are pending in federal court in the
Eastern and Western Districts of Louisiana. Pli@in these actions have variously alleged, amathgr things, that CenturyLink and certain
of its current and former officers and directorslated federal securities laws and/or breached i@ty duties owed to the Company and its
shareholders. Plaintiffs' complaints focus on atkgaterial misstatements or omissions concernagleyLink's financial condition and
changes in CenturyLink's capital allocation strgtiegearly 2013.

The matters are in preliminary phases and the Coynjpdiends to defend against the filed actions nogsly. We have not accrued a
liability for these matters as it is prematuret¢idetermine whether an accrual is warranted anid §o, to determine a reasonable estimate of
probable liability.
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Other Matters

From time to time, we are involved in other prodagd incidental to our business, including patefrimrgement allegations,
administrative hearings of state public utility aoissions relating primarily to rate making, actioakting to employee claims, various tax
issues, environmental law issues, grievance hesabirfpre labor regulatory agencies, and miscellaséard party tort actions. The outcome
these other proceedings is not predictable. Howdased on current circumstances we do not belfeatghe ultimate resolution of these other
proceedings, after considering available defensdsaay insurance coverage or indemnification right have a material adverse effect on
our financial position, results of operations osltélows.

We are currently defending several patent infringetlawsuits asserted against us by poacticing entities. These cases have progre
to various stages and one or more may go to tritie coming 24 months if they are not otherwiselked. Where applicable, we are seeking
full or partial indemnification from our vendorsdsuppliers. As with all litigation, we are vigosiu defending these actions and, as a matter
of course, are prepared both to litigate the matejudgment, as well as to evaluate and consifieettlement opportunities.

Capital Leases

We lease certain facilities and equipment undeiouarcapital lease arrangements. Depreciationsgtasinder capital leases is included
in depreciation and amortization expense in ousobdated statements of operations. Payments dtatigases are included in repayments of
long-term debt, including current maturities in ttemsolidated statements of cash flows.

The tables below summarize our capital lease agtivi

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)
Assets acquired through capital leases $ 12 20¢
Depreciation expense 13€ 15C
Cash payments towards capital leases 11¢ 112

December 31,

2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)
Assets included in property, plant and equipment $ 877 $ 89:¢
Accumulated depreciation 33¢ 22¢
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The future annual minimum payments under capitsdearrangements as of December 31, 2013 werd@gsfo

Future
Minimum
Payments
(Dollars in
millions)
Capital lease obligations:
2014 $ 144
2015 111
2016 75
2017 7C
2018 68
2019 and thereafter 30¢
Total minimum payments 77€
Less: amount representing interest and executtg co (20¢)
Present value of minimum payments 57C
Less: current portion (209)
$ 461

Long-term portion

Operating Leases

CenturyLink leases various equipment, office féeid, retail outlets, switching facilities, and etmetwork sites. These leases, with few
exceptions, provide for renewal options and esicalatthat are either fixed or based on the consyameg index. Any rent abatements, along
with rent escalations, are included in the companiadf rent expense calculated on a straight-lagidover the lease term. The lease term for
most leases includes the initial non-cancelabla fgus any term under renewal options that areoresdsly assured. For the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 , our grosslexpanse was $455 million , $445 million and $4@illion , respectively. We also receiv
sublease rental income for the years ended Decedih@013 , 2012 and 2011 of $16 million , $18 imilland $17 million , respectively.

At December 31, 2013, our future rental commitradat operating leases were as follows:

Future
Minimum
Payments
(Dollars in
millions)
2014 $ 207
2015 274
2016 252
2017 23z
2018 20¢
2019 and thereafter 1,391
Total future minimum payments $ 2,65k

(1) Minimum payments have not been reduced byrmini sublease rentals of $104 million due in theriunder norcancelable subleas
Purchase Obligation:
We have several commitments primarily for marketstjvities and support services from a varietyarfdors to be used in the ordinary
course of business totaling $628 million at Decenfie 2013 . Of this amount, we expect to purcl&l million in 2014 , $248 million in

2015 through 2016 , $80 million in 2017 through 8@hd $79 million in 2019 and thereafter . Thesewmnts do not represent our entire
anticipated purchases in the future, but represelytthose items for which we are contractually aaitted.
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(16) Other Financial Information
Other Current Assets

The following table presents details of our otherent assets in our consolidated balance sheets:

December 31,

2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)
Prepaid expenses $ 26€ 257
Materials, supplies and inventory 167 12t
Assets held for sale 26 96
Deferred activation and installation charges 94 53
Other 44 21
Total other current assets $ 597 552

Assets held for sale includes several propertiaswiie expect to sell within the next twelve months.
Selected Current Liabilitie:

Current liabilities reflected in our consolidategldnce sheets include accounts payable and othentliabilities as follows:

December 31

2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)

Accounts payable $ 1,111 1,207
Other current liabilities:

Accrued rent $ 52 48

Legal reserves 273 39

Other 18¢ 147

Total other current liabilities $ 514 234

Included in accounts payable at December 31, 28822812 were $88 million and $132 million , respesly, representing book
overdrafts and $140 million and $170 million , resfively, associated with capital expendituresluded in legal reserves at December 31,
2013 was $235 million related to the settlemeneagrent with the trustees in the KPNQwest Dutch hepiky proceeding. See Note1l5—
Commitment and Contingencies for additional infotioraon legal matters.

(17) Labor Union Contracts

Approximately 36% of our employees are membersaoiows bargaining units represented by the Comnatinics Workers of America
("CWA") or the International Brotherhood of Eleciai Workers ("IBEW"). Approximately 12,000 , or 26%f our employees are subject to
collective bargaining agreements that expired Gat@h 2012, and an additional 1,600 or 3% of ouplegrees are subject to additional
collective bargaining agreement that have expimecesthen. Since the expirations, we have beentraing the terms of new agreements.
Recently, we reached conditional agreements withAdWstrict 7 and IBEW Local 206 for a four -yearllestive bargaining agreement
covering approximately 12,000 of our employeeseAfejecting the initial agreements, the CWA anB\B members approved the second
agreements, and they became effective on Octoh@023. The new agreements will expire on Octoh@017.
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(18) Repurchase of CenturyLink Common Stock

In February 2013, our Board of Directors authorimedo repurchase up to $2 billion of our outstagdiommon stock. During theelve
months ended December 31, 2013, we repurchas@édlion shares of our outstanding common stocthamopen market. These shares wer
repurchased for an aggregate market price of $ilkdn , or an average purchase price of $34.26spare. The repurchased common stock
has been retired. As of December 31, 2013 , weapadoximately $433 million in stock remaining aeaile for repurchase under the Stock
Repurchase Program. The repurchased shares $eafmve exclude shares that, as of December 3B,,204 had agreed to purchase unde
program for $29 million , or an average purchaseepof $31.90 per share, in transactions thatesk#hrly in the first quarter of 2014. As of
February 20, 2014 , we had repurchased 51.8 mili@res for $1.75 billion , or an average purcipaise of $33.78 per share.

(19) Other Comprehensive Earnings

The table below summarize changes in our accuntutiteer comprehensive loss recorded on our corsetichalance sheet by
component for the year ending December 31, 2013 :

Foreign Currency

Translation
Post-Retirement Adjustment
Pension Plans Benefit Plans and Other Total
(Dollars in millions)
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ (1,399 (289) (23 (1,70
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifins 67% 164 1 84C
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other compnsive
income 55 3 1 5¢
Net current-period other comprehensive income Jloss 73C 167 2 89¢
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ (669) (122) (19) (802)

The table below present information about our sifecations out of accumulated other comprehensise by component for the year
ending December 31, 2013 :

Affected Line Item in Consolidated Statement of
Operations or Footnote Where Additional
Decrease (Increase) Information is Presented If The Amount is not
Year Ended December 31, 2013 in Net Loss Recognized in Net Income in Total

(Dollars in millions)
Amortization of pension & post-retirement plans

Net actuarial loss $ (88) See Note 8—Employee Benefits
Prior service cost (5) See Note 8—Employee Benefits
Total before tax (93
Income tax expense (benefit) 35 Income tax expense
Insignificant items Q)

Net of tax $ (59)
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(20) Dividends

Our Board of Directors declared the following diefdis payable in 2013 and 2012 :

Dividend
Date Declared Record Date Per Share Total Amount Payment Date
(in millions)

November 12, 2013 11/25/201: 0.54C $ 321 12/6/201:
August 27, 2013 9/6/201: 054C $ 321 9/19/201:
May 22, 2013 6/3/201z 0.54C $ 32C 6/14/201:
February 27, 2013 3/11/201: 0.54C $ 33¢ 3/22/201:
November 13, 2012 12/11/201: 0.72t % 454 12/21/201:
August 21, 2012 9/11/201: 0.72¢ % 452 9/21/201:
May 24, 2012 6/5/2012 0.72¢ % 452 6/15/201:2
February 12, 2012 3/6/201z 0.72t % 452 3/16/201:
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The effectiveness of our or any system of disclesantrols and procedures is subject to certaiitdions, including the exercise of
judgment in designing, implementing and evaluativgcontrols and procedures, the assumptions nsderitifying the likelihood of futur
events and the inability to eliminate misconduahptetely. As a result, there can be no assurarateotir disclosure controls and procedures
will detect all errors or fraud. By their natureyr@r any system of disclosure controls and proeesioan provide only reasonable assurance
regarding management's control objectives.

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting (as defined in Rule 13a-
15(f) under the Exchange Act). Management conduateassessment of the effectiveness of our inteoratol over financial reporting based
on the criteria set forth in Internal Control -dgtated Frameworil 992)issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe
Treadway Commission. Based on the assessment, Brapaghas concluded that its internal control dweancial reporting was effective as
December 31, 2013 to provide reasonable assurageeding the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial statements in
accordance with General Accepted Accounting Prlasip

Our Chief Executive Officer, Glen F. Post, Ill, aor Chief Financial Officer, R. Stewart Ewing,, Jrave evaluated the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and proced(aeglefined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) @&hcurities Exchange Act of 1934, or the
"Exchange Act") at December 31, 201Based on the evaluation, Messrs. Post and Evangleded that our disclosure controls and proces
are designed, and are effective, to provide redderassurance that the information required toibelaked by us in the reports that we file
under the Exchange Act is timely recorded, prombssemmarized and reported and to ensure thamiraftion required to be disclosed in the
reports that we file or submit under the Exchangeigaccumulated and communicated to our manageineluding Messrs. Post and Ewing,
in a manner that allows timely decisions regard@qyuired disclosure.

There were no changes in our internal control dwancial reporting during 2013 that materiallyexffed, or that we believe are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our interoantrol over financial reporting.

See Management's Report on Internal Control oveairfgial Reporting and the Report of Independenidagd Public Accounting Firm
on our internal control over financial reportingliam 8, which are incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE
The information required by Item 10 is incorporabgdreference to the Proxy Statement.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 is incorporabgdreference to the Proxy Statement.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of Dedwer 31, 2013 about our equity compensation pladgiuwhich Common Shares are
authorized for issuance:

Number of
securities to be Weighted- Number of securities
issued upon average remaining available
exercise of exercise price of for future issuance
outstanding outstanding under plans (excluding
options and options and securities reflected in
rights rights column (a))
G (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by
shareholders 1,074,740 @ $ 42.8 26,883,53 @
Equity compensation plans not approved by
shareholder® 4,250,54. 34.2( —
Totals 5,325,28! $ 35.9¢ 26,883,53

(1) This amount includes 1,472,131 shares remgiturbe granted under our shareholdgproved employee stock purchase |

(2) These amounts represent common shares tsumdisipon exercise of options or vesting of restlistock units that were assumed in connection egttain
acquisitions approved under our required compamytyecentive plans. See Note 2—Acquisitions te @onsolidated Financial Statements in Item 8isfahnual
report.

The balance of the information required by Itenislihcorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information required by Item 13 is incorporabgdreference to the Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 is incorporabgdreference to the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Exhibits identified in parentheses below are omWiith the SEC and are incorporated herein by eefa. All other exhibits are provided
as part of this electronic submission.

Exhibit
Number  Description
2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Octobe2@08, by and among CenturyLink, Inc., EmbargpBoation and Cajun

Acquisition Company (incorporated by reference xaiBit 99.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report Borm 8-K (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exag@@ommission on October 30, 2008).

2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of AprilZfi,0, by and among CenturyLink, Inc., its subsidiBB44 Acquisition
Company, and Qwest Communications International(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Ceyttink, Inc.'s
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784&dilwith the Securities and Exchange Commission il 27, 2010).

2.3 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of AprilZ8,1, by and among CenturyLink, Inc., SAVVIS, lacd Mimi
Acquisition Company (incorporated by reference xaiBit 2.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report Barm 8-K (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exag@@ommission on April 27, 2011).

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation ehf@ryLink, Inc., as amended through May 23, 20d@ofporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s @nt Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) fileilh the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 30, 2012).

3.2 Bylaws of CenturyLink, Inc., as amended and redtéteough November 4, 2010 (incorporated by refegdn Exhibit 3.2 of

CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 106D the period ended September 30, 2010 (File Nd-0XY84) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Novefi&d10).

4.1 Form of common stock certificate (incorporated éference to Exhibit 4.10 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Rgtion Statement on
Form S-3 filed with the Securities and Exchange @dission on March 2, 2012 (Registration No. 333-883

4.2 Instruments relating to CenturyLink, Inc.'s RevalyiCredit Facility.
a. Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, datetlAgsril 6, 2012, by and among CenturyLink, Inadathe lenders

and agents named therein (incorporated by referenEghibit 4.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Repon Form 8-K
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on April 11, 2012).

b. Guarantee Agreement, dated as of April 6, 20§2nd among the original guarantors named théimdorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s @nt Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filedh the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 112204s assumed by two additional guarantors under a
assumption agreement, dated as of May 23, 2018rfincated by reference to Exhibit 4.2(b) of Centimy, Inc.'s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period endiede 30, 2013 (File No. 001-07784) filed with tree&ities and
Exchange Commission on August 8, 2013).

4.3 Instruments relating to CenturyLink, Inc.'s Termaho

a. Credit Agreement, dated as of April 18, 2032abd among CenturyLink, Inc., the several bankkaher financial
institutions or entities from time to time partibereto, and CoBank, ACB, as administrative agiecb(porated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s @nt Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filedh the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 202201

b. Guarantee Agreement, dated as of April 18, 20§2nd among the original guarantors named th€hecorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of CenturyLink, IncCarrent Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784adilwith the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 202204s assumed by two additional guarantors under a
assumption agreement, dated as of May 23, 2018rfincated by reference to Exhibit 4.3(b) of Cenlim, Inc.'s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period endiede 30, 2013 (File No. 001-07784) filed with trec&ities and
Exchange Commission on August 8, 2013).

4.4 Instruments relating to CenturyLink, Inc.'s puld&nior debt®

a. Form of Indenture, by and between Century Telap Enterprises, Inc. (currently named CenturyLink.) and First
American Bank & Trust of Louisiana, as Trustee diporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Century.imc.'s
Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. N653915) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cdssian on
March 31, 1994).

W Certain of the items in Sections 4.4, 4.5 and #.6nfit supplemental indentures or other instruregaverning debt that has been retired, or (iBméf
trustees who may have been replaced, acquiredemted by similar changes. In accordance with 16&h(b) (4) (iii) (A) of Regulation S-K, copies of
certain instruments defining the rights of holdafrsertain of our longerm debt are not filed herewith. Pursuant to tagulation, we hereby agree to furn
a copy of any such instrument to the SEC upon tque
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(). Form of 7.2% Senior Notes, Series D, due 2(02&orporated by reference to Exhibit 4.27 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K tbe year ended December 31, 1995 (File No. 001-
07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on March 18, 1996).

(ii). Form of 6.875% Debentures, Series G, dueB2(iacorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K tbe year ended December 31, 1997 (File No. 001-
07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on March 16, 1998).

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Fatyri4, 2005, by and between CenturyTel, Inc. éntly named
CenturyLink, Inc.) and Regions Bank, as Trustesigieting and outlining the terms and conditions of
CenturyLink's 5% Senior Notes, Series M, due 20&ofporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K éMlo. 000-50260) filed with the Securities and e
Commission on February 15, 2005).

(). Form of 5% Senior Notes, Series M, due 20aBdrporated by reference to Exhibit A to Exhibit &f
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K éANo. 000-50260) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 15, 2005).

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Maé; 2007, by and between CenturyTel, Inc. (culyaramed
CenturyLink, Inc.) and Regions Bank, as Trustesigieting and outlining the terms and conditions of
CenturyLink's 6.0% Senior Notes, Series N, due 201 5.5% Senior Notes, Series O, due 2013 (incatpd by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s @nt Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filedh the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 297200

(). Form of 6.0% Senior Notes, Series N, due 28dd 5.5% Senior Notes, Series O, due 2013
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to Exhibil of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8
K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the SecuritiesdalBxchange Commission on March 29, 2007).

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Sepéz 21, 2009, by and between CenturyTel, Incréeily named
CenturyLink, Inc.) and Regions Bank, as Trustesigieting and outlining the terms and conditions of
CenturyLink's 7.60% Senior Notes, Series P, du®20®l 6.15% Senior Notes, Series Q, due 2019 (ocated
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink, IncCsrrent Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-077843dilwith the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Septemb&0p®)).

(). Form of 7.60% Senior Notes, Series P, due922r] 6.15% Senior Notes, Series Q, due 2019
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to Exhibil of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Forim 8
K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the SecuritiesdaExchange Commission on September 22, 2009).

Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 16n2011, by and between CenturyLink, Inc. and BegBank, as
Trustee, designating and outlining the terms amtlitimns of CenturyLink's 5.15% Senior Notes, Sefe due
2017 and 6.45% Senior Notes, Series S, due 202arfiorated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Centuni,ilnc.'s
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784&dilwith the Securities and Exchange Commissioruae 16,
2011).

(). Form of 5.15% Senior Notes, Series R, duer2fxd 6.45% Senior Notes, Series S, due 2021
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to Exhii2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8
K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the SecuritiesdaBxchange Commission on June 16, 2011).

Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as oEM&R, 2012, by and between CenturyLink, Inc. aediéns
Bank, as Trustee, designating and outlining theasesnd conditions of CenturyLink's 5.80% Seniords$ot
Series T, due 2022 and 7.65% Senior Notes, Serids¢J2042 (incorporated by reference to Exhilditef.
CenturyLink's Current Report on Form 8-K (File Ni®1-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 12, 2012).

(). Form of 5.80% Senior Notes, Series T, due282d 7.65% Senior Notes, Series U, due 2042
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to Exhibil of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8
K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the SecuritiesdalBxchange Commission on March 12, 2012).

Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Mafg 2013, by and between CenturyLink, Inc. andi®e Bank,
as Trustee, designating and outlining the termscanditions of CenturyLink's 5.625% Senior Notesi&s V,
due 2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibitaf.CenturyLink's Current Report on Form 8-K (File.N001-
07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on March 21, 2013).
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(). Form of 5.625% Senior Notes, Series V, due@@ncorporated by reference to Exhibit A to Exthibl
of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8¢ No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 21, 2013).

h. Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Ndyam27, 2013, by and between CenturyLink, Inc. Redions
Bank, as Trustee, designating and outlining theseaind conditions of CenturyLink's 6.75% Seniorddot
Series W, due 2023 (incorporated by reference tolibd.1 of CenturyLink's Current Report on ForaK §File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exg@@ommission on November 27, 2013).

0] Form of 6.75% Senior Notes, Series W, due 202&rporated by reference to Exhibit A to Exhibil
of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8¢ No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on November 27, 2013).

4.5 Instruments relating to indebtedness of Qwest Conications International, Inc. and its subsidiariés.

a. Indenture, dated as of April 15, 1990, by aetivieen The Mountain States Telephone and Teledtapipany
(currently named Qwest Corporation) and The Firstidthal Bank of Chicago (incorporated by referetace
Exhibit 4.2 of Qwest Corporation's Annual ReportForm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 (Fi
No. 001-03040) filed with the Securities and Exg@@ommission on January 13, 2004).

(). First Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofil&#, 1991, by and between U S WEST
Communications, Inc. (currently named Qwest Corfian® and The First National Bank of Chicago
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of Qw@etporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2002 (File No. 08040) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion
on January 13, 2004).

b. Indenture, dated as of April 15, 1990, by aatieen Northwestern Bell Telephone Company (presteceo
Qwest Corporation) and The First National Bank bfdago (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5(b)
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 106D the period ended March 31, 2012 (File No. 0078%j
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioiviay 10, 2012).

(). First Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofil&#, 1991, by and between U S WEST
Communications, Inc. (currently named Qwest Corfiondand The First National Bank of Chicago
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of Qw@etporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2002 (File No. 08040) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion
on January 13, 2004).

C. Indenture, dated as of June 29, 1998, by armhgrd S WEST Capital Funding, Inc. (currently nandest
Capital Funding, Inc.), U S WEST, Inc. (predecessd@west Communications International Inc.) an@ Hirst
National Bank of Chicago, as trustee (incorpordigdeference to Exhibit 4(a) of U S WEST, Inc.'s@uat
Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-14087) filed witte Securities and Exchange Commission on Novedfer
1998).

(). First Supplemental Indenture, dated as oBJ8®, 2000, by and among U S WEST Capital Fundimg,
(currently named Qwest Capital Funding, Inc.), WEST, Inc. (predecessor to Qwest Communications
International Inc.) and Bank One Trust Company, Na& trustee (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.10 of Qwest Communications Internatiolmal.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended June 30, 2000 (File No. 001-1557& filith the Securities and Exchange Commission on
August 11, 2000).

d. Indenture, dated as of October 15, 1999, bybatteen US West Communications, Inc. (currentipea Qwest
Corporation) and Bank One Trust Company, N.A.rastée (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4f{pwest
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for tharyended December 31, 1999 (File No. 001-0304€ fivith
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Mar@0@0)).

(). First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of daid 9, 2004, by and between Qwest Corporationh8d
Bank National Association (incorporated by refeetw Exhibit 4.22 of Qwest Communications
International Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 1@e@the period ended September 30, 2004 (File
No. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and Exa@@ommission on November 5, 2004).

(ii). Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as afeli7, 2005, by and between Qwest Corporation asd U
Bank National Association (incorporated by refeetw Exhibit 4.2 of Qwest Communications
International Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-KlgMlo. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on June 23, 2005).
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(iii). Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated agdwodust 8, 2006, by and between Qwest CorporatiahlhsS.
Bank National Association (incorporated by refeeetw Exhibit 4.1 of Qwest Communications
International Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-KgMlo. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on August 8, 2006).

(iv). Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofyM8&, 2007, by and between Qwest Corporation aisd U.
Bank National Association (incorporated by refeeetw Exhibit 4.1 of Qwest Communications
International Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-KgMlo. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 18, 2007).

(V). Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofilA&, 2009, by and between Qwest Corporation arsl U
Bank National Association (incorporated by refeeetw Exhibit 4.1 of Qwest Communications
International Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-KgMlo. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on April 13, 2009).

(vi). Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated akiné 8, 2011, by and between Qwest CorporatiorJaBd
Bank National Association (incorporated by refeeetw Exhibit 4.8 of Qwest Corporation's Form 8-A
(File No. 001-03040) filed with the Securities d&xthange Commission on June 7, 2011).

(vii). Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated aSetember 21, 2011, by and between Qwest Corporatid
U.S. Bank National Association (incorporated byerefice to Exhibit 4.9 of Qwest Corporation's
Form 8-A (File No. 001-03040) filed with the Seci#s and Exchange Commission on September 20,
2011).

(viii). Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated a®atober 4, 2011, by and between Qwest CorporatidnaS.
Bank National Association (incorporated by refeetw Exhibit 4.1 of Qwest Corporation's Current
Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-03040) filed witte Securities and Exchange Commission on
October 4, 2011).

(ix) Tenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as oflApr2012, by and between Qwest Corporation arfl U.
Bank National Association (incorporated by refegta Qwest Corporation's Form 8-A (File No. 001-
03040) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on March 30, 2012).

(x) Eleventh Supplemental Indenture, dated asiné 25, 2012, by and between Qwest Corporation and
U.S. Bank National Association (incorporated byerefice to Exhibit 4.12 of Qwest Corporation's
Form 8-A (File No. 001-03040) filed with the Seti#g$ and Exchange Commission on June 22, 2012).

(xi) Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, dated as @y\23, 2013, by and between Qwest Corporation agd U
Bank National Association (incorporated by refegta Qwest Corporation's Form 8-A (File No. 001-
03040) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on May 22, 2013).

4.6 Instruments relating to indebtedness of Embarq @atjpn.®

a. Indenture, dated as of May 17, 2006, by anddset Embarg Corporation and J.P. Morgan Trust Cognpa
National Association, a national banking assocmtas trustee (incorporated by reference to ExHillitof
Embarqg Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-Ke(Nio. 001-32732) filed with the Securities and xcge
Commission on May 18, 2006).

b. 7.082% Global Note due 2016 of Embarq Corpomnafincorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Engp
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for tharyended December 31, 2006 (File No. 001-3237&) filith
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Mar@0@y).

C. 7.995% Global Note due 2036 of Embarq Corpomnafincorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Engp
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for tharyended December 31, 2006 (File No. 001-3237& fivith
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Mar@0@y).

4.7 Intercompany debt instruments.

a. Revolving Promissory Note, dated as of Apri2@12 pursuant to which Embarq Corporation maydwifrom an
affiliate of CenturyLink, Inc. up to $2.5 billionnoa revolving basis (incorporated by referencexbiliit 4.7(a) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 106D the period ended September 30, 2012 (File N&-000’ 84)
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiNovember 8, 2012).

b. Revolving Promissory Note, dated as of April 18120pursuant to which Qwest Corporation may borfimm an
affiliate of CenturyLink, Inc. up to $1.0 billionnoa revolving basis (incorporated by referencexbilit 4.7(b) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 106D the period ended September 30, 2012 (File Nd-000’ 84)
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiNovember 8, 2012).
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C. Revolving Promissory Note, dated as of SepterdBe2012, pursuant to which Qwest Communications
International, Inc. may borrow from an affiliate @enturyLink, Inc. up to $3.0 billion on a revolgitasis
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7(c) of @eyLink Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for thear ended
December 31, 2012 (File No. 001-07844) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on MarcB13)2
10.1 Qualified Employee Benefit Plans of CenturyLinkg litexcluding several narrow-based qualified plias cover union
employees or other limited groups of employees).
a. CenturyLink Dollars & Sense 401(k) Plan andstras amended and restated through December @@, 20

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foetlear
ended December 31, 2006 (File No. 001-07784) fieH the Securities and Exchange Commission on Méarc
2007), as amended by the First Amendment and tben8eAmendment thereto, each dated as of Deceniber 3
2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.bfafenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10t the
year ended December 31, 2007 (File No. 001-077E4) With the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 29, 2008), as amended by the Third Amentthereto dated as of November 20, 2008 (incotpdrby
reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) of CenturyLink, Inésnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddwer 31,
2008 (File No. 00137784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on February 27, 2009), as amer
by the Fourth Amendment thereto dated as of Jun2@m® (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.bfa
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 106D the period ended June 30, 2009 (File No. 00188Yyfiled
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Augu2009), as amended by the Fifth Amendmenetber
dated as of September 15, 2009 (incorporated leyeefe to Exhibit 10.1(a) of CenturyLink, Inc.'srAral Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2608 No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities anccBange
Commission on March 1, 2010), as amended by thid Simnendment thereto, dated as of December 30, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foetlear
ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) fi@H the Securities and Exchange Commission on Marc
2010), as amended by the Seventh Amendment thefé&eative May 20, 2010 (incorporated by referettce
Exhibit 10.1(a) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly et on Form 10-Q for the period ended SeptembgR300
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on November 5, 2010) and asdede
by the Eighth Amendment thereto, effective Jandar®011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1) Tf
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fbe year ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 0014778
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiomMarch 1, 2011).

b. CenturyLink Union 401(k) Plan and Trust, as adesl and restated through December 31, 2006 (iocated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) of CenturyLink, IndAenual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Dewmer 31,
2006 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securitasd Exchange Commission on March 1, 2007), as dateby
the First Amendment thereto dated as of May 29720@orporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 106D the period ended March 31, 2008 (File No. 0078%)
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMay 7, 2008), as amended by the Second Amendment
thereto dated as of December 31, 2007 (incorpofatadference to Exhibit 10.1(b) of CenturyLink¢lis Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRBQ7 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Secustand
Exchange Commission on February 29, 2008), as agdeloylthe Third Amendment thereto dated as of
November 20, 2008 (incorporated by reference talktxh0.1(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report o
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 200& (Rd. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Earaie
Commission on February 27, 2009), as amended blyahgh Amendment thereto dated as of June 30, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fbe period
ended June 30, 2009 (File No. 007784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on August 7, 200¢
as amended by the Fifth Amendment thereto datefl 8sptember 15, 2009 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Repon Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2608
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exg@@ommission on March 1, 2010), as amended bgittie
Amendment thereto, dated as of December 30, 20@8rforated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fbe year ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 0014778
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMarch 1, 2010), as amended by the Seventh Amemdme
thereto, effective May 20, 2010 (incorporated Hgmence to Exhibit 10.1(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'si§terly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended Septer@®e2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Setias and
Exchange Commission on November 5, 2010) and asdadeby the Eighth Amendment thereto, effective
January 1, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Eixibih1(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report Borm 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2010 (File No.@0A84) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion
on March 1, 2011).

133




Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number  Description

C. CenturyLink Retirement Plan, as amended artdtezsthrough December 31, 2006 (incorporated f®yeace to
Exhibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Repon Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2606
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exg@@ommission on March 1, 2007), as amended by
Amendment No. 1 thereto dated as of April 2, 208eqrporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 106D the period ended March 31, 2008 (File No. 0078%j
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioMay 7, 2008), as amended by Amendment No. 2 tihvere
dated as of December 31, 2007 (incorporated byaeée to Exhibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Aral Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 260& No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities arxtRange
Commission on February 29, 2008), as amended byndment No. 3 thereto dated as of October 24, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) Ceyitink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for thear ended
December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed wite Securities and Exchange Commission on February 2
2009), as amended by Amendment No. 4 dated asef3, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhidit(c) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 106D the period ended June 30, 2009 (File No. 00188Yyfiled
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Augu2009), as amended by Amendment No. 5 thelattn
as of September 15, 2009 (incorporated by referemBahibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annuakport on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 200@ (Rd. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Earuie
Commission on March 1, 2010), as amended by AmentiMe. 6 thereto, dated as of December 30, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foethear
ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) fieH the Securities and Exchange Commission on Marc
2010), as amended by Amendment No. 7 thereto,teféeat various dates during 2010 (incorporateddfgrence
to Exhibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s QuarteReport on Form 10-Q for the period ended Septerdde2010
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities dixthange Commission on November 5, 2010) and asd@ede
by Amendment No. 8 thereto, effective January 1, 12(ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fbe year ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-4)778
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiomMarch 1, 2011).

10.2 Stock-based Incentive Plans and Agreements of @Ggdritik

a. Amended and Restated 1983 Restricted Stock &aamended and restated through February 23, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(a) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foethear
ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) fi@H the Securities and Exchange Commission on Méarc
2010).

b. Amended and Restated 2000 Incentive CompemnsBtam, as amended through May 23, 2000 (incorpdray
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s@erly Report on Form 1Q-for the period ended June 30, 2!
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities dfxthange Commission on August 11, 2000) and amentdme
thereto dated as of May 29, 2003 (incorporatedefigrence to Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Qedy
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June B03ZFile No. 001-7784) filed with the Securitiexla
Exchange Commission on August 14, 2003).

0] Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant t® #9000 Incentive Compensation Plan and dated as of
May 21, 2001, entered into between CenturyLink, &nd its officers (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2(e) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Repon Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2001 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission on March 15, 2002).

(i) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanttie 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan and dated as of
February 25, 2002, entered into between Centuryllimk and its officers (incorporated by referete
Exhibit 10.2(d) (ii) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annu&eport on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2002 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission on March 27, 2003).

C. Amended and Restated 2002 Directors Stock @tian, dated as of February 25, 2004 (incorpotayed
reference to Exhibit 10.2(e) of CenturyLink, Indsnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Dduer 31,
2003 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission on March 12, 2004) and
amendment thereto dated as of October 24, 2008rfincated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(d) of Ceyitimk,
Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ehBecember 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed wifita
Securities and Exchange Commission on Februar2@m).
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to thedoing plan, entered into between CenturyLink,
in connection with options granted to the outsitteadors as of May 10, 2002 (incorporated by rafeee
to Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly pt&t on Form 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 2002 (File No. 001-07784) filed lith Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 14, 2002).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to thedgoing plan, entered into between CenturyLink,
in connection with options granted to the outsitteadors as of May 9, 2003 (incorporated by refeeen
to Exhibit 10.2(e) (ii) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s AnauReport on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2003 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Becurities and Exchange Commission on
March 12, 2004).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to thedoing plan, entered into between CenturyLink,
in connection with options granted to the outsitteadors as of May 7, 2004 (incorporated by refeeen
to Exhibit 10.2(d) (iii) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Amral Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Becurities and Exchange Commission on
March 16, 2006).

d. Amended and Restated 2002 Management Ince@twepensation Plan, dated as of February 25, 2004
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(f) om@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foetiear
ended December 31, 2003 (File No. 001-07784) fi@H the Securities and Exchange Commission on Mag;
2004) and amendment thereto dated as of Octob&@0B8, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2fe)
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fbe year ended December 31, 2008 (File No. 0014778
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiorrebruary 27, 2009).

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(Vi)

(Vi)

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to thedoing plan, entered into between CenturyLink,
and certain of its officers and key employees abus dates during 2002 following May 9, 2002
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Ceyitink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q foeth
period ended September 30, 2002 (File No. 001-0)/ffléd with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on November 14, 2002).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuantdeegoing plan and dated as of February 24, 20G8rexsh
into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its officersc@nporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(f) (ii) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fbe year ended December 31, 2002 (File No. 001-
07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on March 27, 2003).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanfdoegoing plan and dated as of February 25, 200#red
into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its officersc@nporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(f) (iii) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K tbe year ended December 31, 2003 (File No. 001-
07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on March 12, 2004).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of Februar20a3,
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its exige officers (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Repon Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2003
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on May 14, 2003).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarihe foregoing plan and dated as of February @842
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its exige officers (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2(f) (v) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s QuartgrReport on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31
2004 (File No. 000-50260) filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission on May 7, 2004).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuantdeefjoing plan and dated as of February 17, 20QBresh
into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its executivioei's (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10)2(e
(v) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form-KGor the year ended December 31, 2004 (File
No. 000-50260) filed with the Securities and Exa@@ommission on March 16, 2005).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of Februan2@5,
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its exige officers (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2(e) (vi) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s AnnuBkport on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2004 (File No. 000-50260) filed with Becurities and Exchange Commission on
March 16, 2005).
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e. Amended and Restated 2005 Directors Stock Btaamended and restated through February 23, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(f) om@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foetiear
ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) fifeH the Securities and Exchange Commission on Méarc
2010).

(@ Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan, entered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its outside directasf May 13, 2005 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report Form 8-K (File No. 000-50260) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 13, 2005)

(i) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan, entered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its outside directasf May 12, 2006 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Repon Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2006
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on August 3, 2006).

(iii) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuanthe foregoing plan, entered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its outside directassof May 11, 2007 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2(f) (iii) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annudkeport on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Becurities and Exchange Commission on
February 27, 2009).

(iv) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan, entered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its outside directassof May 9, 2008 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 (f) (iv) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annu&eport on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Becurities and Exchange Commission on
February 27, 2009).

(v) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarihe foregoing plan and dated as of May 8, 2009,
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and eadisddutside directors on such date who remained on
the Board following July 1, 2009 (incorporated byerence to Exhibit 10.2(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period endi@de 30, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 79200

(vi) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of May 8, 2009,
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and eadisddutside directors who retired on July 1, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(c) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the period ended June 30, 2009 (File No. 08184) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion
on August 7, 2009).

(vii) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant tdahegoing plan and dated as of July 2, 2009, ed
into between CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its méglirectors named to the Board on July 1, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(d) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the period ended June 30, 2009 (File No. 08184) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion
on August 7, 2009).

(viii) Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant tofii@going plan and dated as of July 2, 2009, edtarto
between CenturyLink, Inc. and William A. Owens ayment of Mr. Owens' 2009 supplemental
chairman's fees (incorporated by reference to Hixhib2(e) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report
Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2009 (fdle001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on August 7, 2009).

(ix) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of May 21, 2010,
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and seveitsajutside directors on such date (incorporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'sa@terly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed with tlec&ities and Exchange Commission on August 6,
2010).

f. Amended and Restated 2005 Management Ince@twepensation Plan, as amended and restated through
February 23, 2010 (incorporated by reference tatiixh0.2(g) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report &orm 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 2009 (File NG-0D784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Gugsion
on March 1, 2010).

0] Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to thedoing plan, entered into between CenturyLink,
and certain officers and key employees at vari@iegisince May 12, 2005 (incorporated by referémce
Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Repon Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30,
2005 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission on November 9, 2005).
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan, entered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. and certain officers and key eaygles at various dates since May 12, 2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Ceyitink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q foeth
period ended September 30, 2005 (File No. 001-0)/ffl@d with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on November 9, 2005).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanttie foregoing plan and dated as of February 216200
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its exige officers (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2(g) (iii) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annu&eport on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Becurities and Exchange Commission on
March 16, 2006).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of Februar2Q6,
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its exge officers (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2(g) (iv) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s AnnuReport on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Becurities and Exchange Commission on
March 16, 2006).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant ® fisregoing plan and dated as of February 26, 2007,
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its exige officers (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Repon Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2007
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on May 9, 2007).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarihe foregoing plan and dated as of Februarypéy,
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its exige officers (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Repon Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2007
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on May 9, 2007).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of Februarn2@@8,
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its exige officers (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Repon Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2008
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on May 7, 2008).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursutanthe foregoing plan and dated as of February2069
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(g) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the period ended March 31, 2009 (File No. 001-07 Ti#2d with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on May 1, 2009).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of March 8, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Ceyitink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q foeth
period ended March 31, 2010 (File No. 001-0778é}fivith the Securities and Exchange Commission
on May 7, 2010).

g. Amended and Restated CenturyLink Legacy EmB&O§ Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and restatedgh
February 23, 2010 (incorporated by reference tdlixh0.2(h) of CenturyLink, Inc.’s Annual Repom ¢orm
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 (File®d.-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 1, 2010).

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of May 21, 2010,
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and fouit®butside directors as of such date (incorporhted
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'sa@terly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed with tlec&ities and Exchange Commission on August 6,
2010).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of May 21, 2010,
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and Willi&mOwens in payment of Mr. Owens' 2010
supplemental chairman's fees (incorporated byeafar to Exhibit 10.3 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Qualster
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June GD0Q ZFile No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on August 6, 2010).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, datedaSeptember 7, 2010, entered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. and Dennis G. Huber (incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 10.16 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 104D the period ended September 30, 2010 (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exa@@ommission on November 5, 2010).
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10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

h. Form of Retention Award Agreement, pursuarh&equity incentive plans of CenturyLink or Embargl dated
as of August 23, 2010, entered into between Cehiky Inc. and certain officers and key employes®fsuch
date (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.ZehturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10« the
period ended September 30, 2010 (File No. 001-0)/ffléd with the Securities and Exchange Commission
November 5, 2010).

i. CenturyLink 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (incorpted by reference to Appendix B of CenturyLinkg.ls Proxy
Statement for its 2011 Annual Meeting of SharehadEile No. 001-07784) filed with the Securitiexla
Exchange Commission on April 6, 2011).

0] Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for exeeaitbfficers used in 2011 and 2012 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2(a) (i) of CenturyLinkglis Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended June 30, 2011 (File No. 001-07784) filed whth Securities and Exchange Commission on
August 9, 2011).

(i) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for nonfragement directors used since 2011 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2(a) (ii) of CenturyLinkyd.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended June 30, 2011 (File No. 001-07784) filed whth Securities and Exchange Commission on
August 9, 2011).

(i) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement foreextive officers used since May 2013.

Key Employee Incentive Compensation Plan, dateaf danuary 1, 1984, as amended and restated asvehiber 16,
1995 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.d¢fCenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10 the year ended
December 31, 1995 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on Marci9%5) and
amendment thereto dated as of November 21, 1986rfiorated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(f) of Ceylink, Inc.'s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmmn31, 1996 (File No. 001-07784) filed with thecGeties and
Exchange Commission on March 17, 1997), amendrher¢tp dated as of February 25, 1997 (incorpoiisye@ference
to Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly gt on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 3B71@ile No. 001-
07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on May 8, 1997), amendment thereto dated Aprd 25,
2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.ZehturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form QCfor the period ende
March 31, 2001 (File No. 001-07784) filed with tBecurities and Exchange Commission on May 15, 2@0d¢ndment
thereto dated as of April 17, 2000 (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 10.3(a) of CenturyLink, IscAnnual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 200% (Rd. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Earuie
Commission on March 15, 2002) and amendment thelieed as of February 27, 2007 (incorporated bsreeice to
Exhibit 10.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Repon Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 26d& No. 001-
07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on August 8, 2007).

Supplemental Dollars & Sense Plan, 2008 Restateraffattive January 1, 2008, (incorporated by wfee to

Exhibit 10.3(c) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Repon Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, Z60& No. 001-
07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on February 29, 2009) and amendment theedénl és of
October 24, 2008 (incorporated by reference to l&khD.3(c) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report Barm 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-077E4) With the Securities and Exchange CommissioiManch 27,
2009) and amendment thereto dated as of Decemb@02® (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.4 o
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fbe year ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-4)/figéd with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Mar@911).

Supplemental Defined Benefit Pension Plan, effectis of January 1, 2012 (incorporated by referemé&xhibit 10.5 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fbe year ended December 31, 2011 (File No. 001-4@)/fi@d with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Feb2&rg2012).

Amended and Restated Salary Continuation (Disgpitan for Officers, dated as of November 26, 1@8&orporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 of CenturyLink, Inc.'srual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Deearth, 1991).

2010 Executive Officer Short-Term Incentive Progr@ncorporated by reference to Appendix B of Ceyitink, Inc.'s
2010 Proxy Statement on Form 14A (File No. 001-@jTBed with the Securities and Exchange Commissin April 7,
2010).

Amended and Restated CenturyLink 2001 EmployeekRocchase Plan, dated as of June 30, 2009 (inaigzbby
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s@erly Report on Form 10-Q for the period endeteJs80, 2009 (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exa@@ommission on August 7, 2009).

Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into kedw CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its directorsfaduly 1, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 of Ceyitink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File Na1-07784) with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Julpa9y
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10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into kegw CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its officers &dudy 1, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of Ceyitink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q foetheriod ended
June 30, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with tlec&ities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 2009

Change of Control Agreement, effective January0l,12 by and between Glen F. Post, Il and CentunigLinc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 of Ceyitink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for thear ended
December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed wite Securities and Exchange Commission on Marc@11)?

Form of Change of Control Agreement, effective damu., 2011 between CenturyLink, Inc. and eachsobiher
executive officers (incorporated by reference taiBit 10.12 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report Barm 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-077&4) With the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMarnch 1,
2011).

Amended and Restated CenturyLink, Inc. Bonus Lifautance Plan for Executive Officers, dated asmil/3, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Ceyitink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q foetperiod ended
March 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with tBecurities and Exchange Commission on May 7, 2808)First
Amendment thereto (incorporated by reference taliixh0.13 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report Form 10-Q for
the period ended September 30, 2010 (File No. GUB4) filed with the Securities and Exchange Corsiaison
November 5, 2010).

Certain Material Agreements and Plans of Embar@@Quaition.

a. Embarqg Corporation 2006 Equity Incentive Pemamended and restated (incorporated by refetence
Exhibit 99.1 of the Registration Statement on F&8 filed by CenturyLink, Inc. (File No. 001-07784ith the
Securities and Exchange Commission on July 1, 2009)

b. Form of 2007 Award Agreement for executive adfis of Embarg Corporation (incorporated by refeecio
Exhibit 10.1 of Embarq Corporation's Current Remart-orm 8-K (File No. 001-32372) filed with thecBeities
and Exchange Commission on February 27, 2007).

C. Form of 2008 Restricted Stock Unit Award Agresmn(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 oftiarg
Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K (File R61-32372) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 4, 2008).

d. Form of 2009 Restricted Stock Unit Award Agresmn(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 ofliarg
Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K (File R61-32732) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 5, 2009).

e. Form of Stock Option Award Agreement (incorpedsby reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Embarq Corporés
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32372dilwith the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 4, 2008).

f. Amendment to Outstanding RSUs granted in 20@7 2008 under the Embarqg Corporation 2006 Equitertive
Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1&wntharq Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-kKtfie
year ended December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-323I&?) With the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 13, 2009).

g. Form of 2006 Award Agreement, entered into leemvEmbarqg Corporation and Richard A. Gephardt
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Engp@orporation's Current Report on Form 8-K (File RO1-
32372) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on August 1, 2006), as amended by the amartdme
thereto dated as of June 26, 2009 (incorporatagfeyence to Exhibit 10.6 (m) of CenturyLink, IscQuarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June G09 ZFile No. 001-07784) filed with the Securitasd
Exchange Commission on August 7, 2009).

h. Amended and Restated Executive SeveranceiRtdinding Form of Participation Agreement enteneiti
between Embarqg Corporation and William E. Cheek&djiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Embarq
Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forpkeod ended September 30, 2008 (File No. 001-3pfiiéd
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on la&t80, 2008).

i. Embarqg Supplemental Executive Retirement Fiaramended and restated as of January 1, 2009p@nated by
reference to Exhibit 10.27 of Embarqg Corporatigrisiual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Dduem31,
2008 (File No. 001-32372) filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission on February 13, 2009)ndment
thereto dated as of December 27, 2010 (incorpotatedference to Exhibit 10.14(o) of CenturyLinkel's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmem31, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed with thecGeties
and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2011) and seaoendment thereto as of dated as of November 15,
2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14fEenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 1(df the
year ended December 31, 2011 (File No. 001-077&4) With the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 28, 2012).
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10.15

12*
18*
21*
23*
31.1*

31.2*

32*

Certain Material Agreements and Plans of Qwest Caniaations International Inc. or Sawvis, Inc.

a.

Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and res(atedrporated by reference to Annex A of Qwest Camitations
International Inc.'s Proxy Statement for the 200ihal Meeting of Stockholders (File No. 001-155filéd with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Marc2@97).

Forms of restricted stock, performance shadeagtion agreements used under Equity Incentive, Ris.amended
and restated (incorporated by reference to Exfibi2 of Qwest Communications International Incisrént
Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-15577) filed witte Securities and Exchange Commission on October 2
2005; Exhibit 10.2 of Qwest Communication Interoaél Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
December 31, 2005 (File No. 001-15577) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on Febriry 1
2006; Exhibit 10.2 of Qwest Communication Interaaél Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for tleeiqd
ended March 31, 2006 (File No. 001-15577) filedwite Securities and Exchange Commission on M2p36;
Exhibit 10.2 of Qwest Communication Internationat.Is Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2006 (File No. 001-15577) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on Febryary 8
2007; Exhibit 10.3 of Qwest Communication Interoaél Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No100
15577) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on September 15, 2008; Exhibit 10.2 of Qwest
Communication International Inc.'s Quarterly RemmrtForm 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 200ie (
No. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and Exg@ommission on April 30, 2009; and Exhibit 10f Devest
Communication International Inc.'s Annual Reportramm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 201@ (Fi
No. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and Exg@@ommission on February 15, 2011).

Deferred Compensation Plan for Nonemployeediirs, as amended and restated, Amendment to Bdferr
Compensation Plan for Nonemployee Directors (incafed by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Qwest
Communications International Inc.'s Current ReparfForm 8-K (File No. 001-15577) filed with the Seties
and Exchange Commission on December 16, 2005 ahithiE%0.8 to Qwest Communication International.®ic
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period enSegdtember 30, 2008 (File No. 001-15577) filed \tlith
Securities and Exchange Commission on October@®8)2and Amendment No. 2011-1 to Deferred
Compensation Plan for Nonemployee Directors (incmafed by reference to Exhibit 10.15(c) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report for the year esh@xcember 31, 2011 (File No. 001-07784) filed wfth
Securities and Exchange Commission on Februar22R).

Qwest Nonqualified Pension Plan (incorporateddierence to Exhibit 10.9 of Qwest Communications
International Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fioe year ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 00Z-Zpkled
with the Securities and Exchange Commission onuseiprl6, 2010).

SAWVIS, Inc. Amended and Restated 2003 Incenflempensation Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 of SAVVIS, Inc.'s Quarterly Report Borm 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2006 (File
No. 000-29375) filed with the Securities and Exd@@ommission on May 5, 2006), as amended by Amentim
No. 1 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.668{VVIS, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for thear
ended December 31, 2006 (File No. 000-29375) fiéd the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 26, 2007); Amendment No. 2 (incorporatedetference to Exhibit 10.1 of SAVVIS, Inc.'s Curte
Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-29375) filed witte Securities and Exchange Commission on May A&/
Amendment No. 3 (incorporated by reference to Bxiib.3 of SAVVIS, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Fofi-Q
for the period ended June 30, 2007 (File No. 008789 filed with the Securities and Exchange Comioissn
July 31, 2007); Amendment No. 4 (incorporated bgnmence to Exhibit 10.2 of SAVVIS, Inc.'s Currerggdrt on
Form 8-K (File No. 000-29375) filed with the Sedig$ and Exchange Commission on May 22, 2009); and
Amendment No. 5 (incorporated by reference to BxHib.2 of SAVVIS, Inc.'s Current Report on ForniKg8¥File
No. 000-29375) filed with the Securities and Exd@@Commission on May 22, 2009).

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Preferability Letter of Independent Registered Rultcounting Firm.

Subsidiaries of CenturyLink, Inc.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Cotse

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of GenyLink, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the SadmOxley Act of

2002.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of CiemyLink, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the SadmOxley Act of

2002.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer andi€hFinancial Officer of CenturyLink, Inc. pursuatet Section 906 of th
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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101* Financial statements from the Annual Report on Fb@AK of CenturyLink, Inc. for the period ended Betber 31, 2013,
formatted in XBRL: (i) the Consolidated Statemenift©perations, (ii) the Consolidated StatementSaiprehensive
(Loss) Income, (iii) the Consolidated Balance See@t) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flgwshe Consolidated
Statements of Stockholders' Equity and (vi) theeddb our Consolidated Financial Statements.

* Exhibit filed herewith.
Note: Our Corporate Governance Guidelines amatt€rs of our Board of Director Committees areted on our website at www.centurylink.com.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdattimual report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

CenturyLink, Inc.
Date: February 27, 2014 By: /s/ David D. Cole
David D. Cole

Executive Vice President, Controller arge@tions
Support
(Chief Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this annual report has been digpatow by the following persons
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe date indicated.

Chief Executive Officer,

/sl Glen F. Post, lll President and Director February 27, 2014
Glen F. Post, llI
/s/ William A. Owens Chairman of the Board February 27, 2014

William A. Owens

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
/s/ R. Stewart Ewing, Jr. Officer and Assistant Secretary February 27, 2014

R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.

Executive Vice President, Controller and

/s/ David D. Cole Operations Support February 27, 2014
David D. Cole
/sl Virginia Boulet Director February 27, 2014
Virginia Boulet
/sl Peter C. Brown Director February 27, 2014
Peter C. Brown
/s/ Richard A. Gephardt Director February 27, 2014
Richard A. Gephardt
/sl W. Bruce Hanks Director February 27, 2014
W. Bruce Hanks
/sl Gregory J. McCray Director February 27, 2014
Gregory J. McCray
/sl C. G. Melville, Jr. Director February 27, 2014

C. G. Melville, Jr.
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/s/ Fred R. Nichols

Fred R. Nichols
/sl Harvey P. Perry

Harvey P. Perry
/s/ Michael J. Roberts

Michael J. Roberts
/sl Laurie A. Siegel

Laurie A. Siegel
/sl Joseph R. Zimmel

Joseph R. Zimmel

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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CENTURYLINK, INC.

CALCULATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

(UNAUDITED)

Years Ended December 31,

Exhibit 12

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in Millions)

Income before income taxes and cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle $ 224 1,25( 94¢€ 1,531 813
Less: income from equity investee (24 (15) (13) (16) (19
Add: estimated fixed charges 1,48¢ 1,504 1,22: 61F 41¢€
Add: estimated amortization of capitalized

interest 1€ 15 12 2 2
Add: distributed income of equity investee 14 12 14 16 20
Less: interest capitalized (47) (43 (25) (13 (3)
Total earnings available for fixed charges $ 1,67¢ 2,72 2,15¢ 2,13t 1,231
Estimate of interest factor on rentals $ 147 14z 12¢€ 57 48
Interest expense, including amortization of

premiums, discounts and debt issuance cost 1,29¢ 1,31¢ 1,072 54E 367
Interest capitalized 41 43 25 13 3
Total fixed charges $ 1,48¢ 1,504 1,22¢ 61% 41€
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 1.1 1.81 1.77 3.4i 2.94



Exhibit 18

February 27, 2014

CenturyLink, Inc.
100 CenturyLink Drive
Monroe, Louisiana 71203

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have audited the consolidated balance she@smtfiryLink, Inc. (the Company) as of December21,3 and 2012 , and the related
consolidated statements of operations, stockhdldgrsty, cash flows, and comprehensive incomes{ldsr each of the years in the thrgear
period ended December 31, 2013, and have repitréeelon under date of February 27, 2014 . The afen¢ioned consolidated financial
statements and our audit report thereon are indlidéhe Company’s annual report on Form-KGor the year ended December 31, 2013 . As
stated in note 1 to those financial statementsCtrapany changed the date of its annual assessihgoodwill impairment from September

to October 31, and states that the newly adoptedusting principle is a preferable alternativetesiew date of the assessment is more cli
aligned with the Company’s strategic planning psscén accordance with your request, we have readeand discussed with Company
officials the circumstances and business judgmeaitdanning upon which the decision to make thsngfe in the method of accounting was
based.

With regard to the aforementioned accounting chaagthoritative criteria have not been establidoe@valuating the preferability of one
acceptable method of accounting over another agbkpimethod. However, for purposes of the Compmaogimpliance with the requirement:
the Securities and Exchange Commission, we aréshing this letter.

Based on our review and discussion, with reliantenanagement’s business judgment and planningoweuc that the newly adopted method
of accounting is preferable in the Company’s cirstances.

Very truly yours,

/sl KPMG LLP



SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013

Subsidiary
Actel, LLC

CENTURYLINK, INC.

Bloomingdale Telephone Company, Inc. (20%)

Century Cellunet International, Inc.
Cellunet of India Limited

Century Interactive Fax, Inc.

Century Telephone of West Virginia, Inc.

CenturyLink—Clarke M. Williams Foundation

CenturyTel Acquisition LLC
CenturyTel of Adamsuville, Inc.
CenturyTel of Arkansas, Inc.
CenturyTel Broadband Services, LLC
CenturyTel TeleVideo, Inc.
CenturyTel/Teleview of Wisconsin, Inc.
Qwest Broadband Services, Inc.
CenturyTel Broadband Wireless, LLC
CenturyTel of Central Indiana, Inc.
CenturyTel of Central Louisiana, LLC
CenturyTel of Chatham, LLC
CenturyTel of Chester, Inc.
CenturyTel of Claiborne, Inc.
CenturyTel of East Louisiana, LLC
CenturyTel of Evangeline, LLC
CenturyTel Fiber Company II, LLC
CenturyTel Holdings, Inc.

Century Marketing Solutions, LLC
CenturyTel Arkansas Holdings, Inc.
CenturyTel of Central Arkansas, LLC
CenturyTel of Northwest Arkansas, LLC
CenturyTel Holdings Alabama, Inc.
CenturyTel of Alabama, LLC
CenturyTel Holdings Missouri, Inc.
CenturyTel of Missouri, LLC
CenturyTel Investments of Texas, Inc.
CenturyTel of the Northwest, Inc.
Brown Equipment Corp.

Carter Company, Inc.

Honomach PR, Inc.

Cascade Autovon Company
CenturyTel/Cable Layers, Inc.

State of
incorporation
or formation

Delaware
Ngeh
Louisiana
Mauritius
Louisiana
West Virginia
Colorado
Louisiana
Tennessee
Arkansas
Louisiana
Wisconsin
Wisconsin
Delaware
Louisiana
Indiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
lowa
Tennessee
Louisiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
Arkansas
Louisiana
Louisiana
Alabama
Louisiana
Missouri
Louisiana
Delaware
Washington
Nevada
Hawaii
Puerto Rico
Washington
Wisconsin
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Subsidiary
CenturyTel of Central Wisconsin, LLC

CenturyTel of Colorado, Inc.

CenturyTel of Eagle, Inc.

CenturyTel of Eastern Oregon, Inc.
CenturyTel Entertainment, Inc.

CenturyTel of Fairwater-Brandon-Alto, LLC
CenturyTel of Forestville, LLC

CenturyTel of the Gem State, Inc. (97%)
CenturyTel of Inter Island, Inc.

CenturyTel of Larsen-Readfield, LLC
CenturyTel of the Midwest-Kendall, LLC
CenturyTel of the Midwest-Wisconsin, LLC
CenturyTel of Minnesota, Inc.

CenturyTel of Monroe County, LLC
CenturyTel of Montana, Inc. (99%)
CenturyTel of Northern Wisconsin, LLC
CenturyTel of Northwest Wisconsin, LLC
CenturyTel of Oregon, Inc.

CenturyTel of Paradise, Inc.

CenturyTel of Cowiche, Inc.

CenturyTel of Postville, Inc.

CenturyTel of Southern Wisconsin, LLC
CenturyTel of the Southwest, Inc.
CenturyTel Telecom Service, Inc.
CenturyTel Telephone Utilities, Inc.
CenturyTel of Upper Michigan, Inc.
CenturyTel of Washington, Inc.
CenturyTel/WORLDVOX, Inc.

CenturyTel of Wyoming, Inc.

Eagle Valley Communications Corporation

International Communications Holdings, Inc.

Pacific Telecom, Inc. (Shell)

PTI Communications of Ketchikan, Inc.
PTI Communications of Minnesota, Inc.
PTI Transponders, Inc.

Universal Manufacturing Corp.
CenturyTel of Idaho, Inc.

CenturyTel Interactive Company
CenturyTel Internet Holdings, Inc.
centurytel.com, LLC

CenturyTel Investments, LLC
CenturyTel Long Distance, LLC
CenturyTel of Michigan, Inc.
CenturyTel Midwest—Michigan, Inc.

State of
incorporation
or formation

Delaware
Colorado
Colorado
Oregon
Washington
Delaware
Delaware
Idaho
Washington
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Minnesota
Delaware
Oregon
Delaware
Delaware
Oregon
Washington
Washington
lowa
Delaware
New Mexico
Washington
Washington
Michigan
Washington
Oregon
Wyoming
Colorado
|&veare
Oregon
Alaska
Minnesota
Oregon
Wisconsin
Delaware
Louisiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
Michigan
Michigan




Subsidiary
CenturyTel Mobile Communications, Inc.

CenturyTel of Mountain Home, Inc.
CenturyTel of North Louisiana, LLC
CenturyTel of North Mississippi, Inc.
CenturyTel of Northern Michigan, Inc.
CenturyTel of Northwest Louisiana, Inc.
CenturyTel of Odon, Inc.

CenturyTel of Ohio, Inc.

CenturyTel of Ooltewah-Collegedale, Inc.
CenturyTel of Port Aransas, Inc.
CenturyTel of Redfield, Inc.

CenturyTel of Ringgold, LLC

CenturyTel SM Telecorp, Inc.
CenturyTel Telecommunications, Inc.
CenturyTel of San Marcos, Inc.
CenturyTel San Marcos Investments, LLC
CenturyTel Security Systems, Inc.
CenturyTel Service Group, LLC
CenturyTel Solutions, LLC

CenturyTel of South Arkansas, Inc.
CenturyTel of Southeast Louisiana, LLC
CenturyTel of Southwest Louisiana, LLC
CenturyTel Supply Group, Inc.
CenturyTel/Tele-Max, Inc.

CenturyTel of Lake Dallas, Inc.
CenturyTel Web Solutions, LLC
CenturyTel of Wisconsin, LLC

Embarqg Corporation

Carolina Telephone and Telegraph Company LLC
NOCUTS, Inc.

SC One Company

Centel Corporation

Centel Capital Corporation
Centel-Texas, Inc.

Central Telephone Company of Texas
EQ Central Texas Equipment LLC
Central Telephone Company

Central Telephone Company of Virginia
Embarq Florida, Inc.

The Winter Park Telephone Company
CenturyLink Public Communications, Inc.
EQ Equipment Leasing, Inc.
CenturyLink Sales Solutions, Inc.
Embarq, Inc.

State of
incorporation
or formation

Louisiana
Arkansas
Louisiana
Mississippi
Michigan
Louisiana
Indiana
Ohio
Tennessee
Texas
Arkansas
Louisiana
Texas
Texas
Texas
Delaware
Louisiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
Arkansas
Louisiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
Texas
Texas
Louisiana
Louisiana
Delaware
rtiNGarolina
Pennsylvania
Kansas
Kansas
Delaware
Texas
Texas
Texas
Delaware
Virginia
Florida
Florida
Flarid
Delaware
Delaware
Kansas




Subsidiary
Embarqg Capital Corporation

SC Seven Company

Embarg Communications, Inc.

Embarg Communications of Virginia, Inc.
CenturyLink Intellectual Property LLC

Embarq Directory Trademark Company, LLC
Embarq Interactive Holdings LLC

Embarq Interactive Markets LLC

Embarg Management Company

EQ Management Equipment LP

Embarg Mid-Atlantic Management Services Company
Embarg Minnesota, Inc.

Embarg Missouri, Inc.

SC Eight Company

Embarg Network Company LLC

United Telephone Company of the Carolinas LLC
SC Two Company

United Telephone Company of Eastern Kansas
United Telephone Company of Florida
Vista-United Telecommunications (49%)

United Telephone Company of Indiana, Inc.

SC Four Company

United Telephone Company of Kansas

Embarg Midwest Management Services Company
United Teleservices, Inc.

United Telephone Company of New Jersey, Inc.
United Telephone Company of the Northwest
United Telephone Company of Ohio

SC Five Company

United Telephone Company of Pennsylvania LLC, The
SC Six Company

Valley Network Partnership (40% aggregate)
United Telephone Company of Southcentral Kansas
United Telephone Company of Texas, Inc.

EQ United Texas Equipment LLC

United Telephone Company of the West

United Telephone Southeast LLC

SC Three Company

Hillsboro Telephone Company, Inc. (20%)
Lafayette MSA Limited Partnership (49%)
Madison River Communications Corp.

Gallatin River Holdings L.L.C.

Gallatin River Communications L.L.C.

Madison River Communications, LLC

State of
incorporation
or formation

Delaware
Kansas
Delaware
Virginia
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Nevada
North Carolina
Minnesota
Missouri
Kansas
Delaware
South Carolina
Kansas
Delaware
Florida
Florida
amahi
Kansas
Kansas
Kansas
Kansas
New Jersey
Onego
Ohio
Kansas
Pennsylvania
Kansas
Virginia
Arkansas
Texas
Texas
Delaware
Virginia
Kansas
Wisconsin
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware




Subsidiary

Gulf Communications, LLC

Savannah River Communications, LLC
Madison River Finance Corp.

Madison River Holdings LLC

Madison River LTD Funding LLC

Coastal Communications, Inc.

Coastal Utilities, Inc.

Coastal Long Distance Services LLC

Gulf Coast Services, Inc.

Gulf Long Distance LLC

Gulf Telephone Company

Madison River Management LLC

Mebtel, Inc.

Pacific Telecom Cellular of Alaska RSA #1, Inc.
Qwest Communications International, Inc.
EUnet International Limited

EUnet International B.V.

Qwest B.V.

KPNQwest N.V. (44.34%)

Qwest Capital Funding, Inc.

Qwest Europe LLC

Qwest Services Corporation

CenturyLink Investment Management Company
Qwest Communications Company, LLC
Qwest Communications Corporation of Virginia
Qwest International Services Corporation
Qwest N Limited Partnership (98.5%)
Qwest Transoceanic, Inc.

Qwest Communications International Ltd.
Qwest Holdings, BV

Qwest France SAS

Qwest Germany GmbH

Qwest Netherlands BV

Qwest Peru S.R.L.

Qwest Telecommunications Asia, Limited
Qwest Australia Pty Limited

Qwest Communications Japan Corporation
Qwest Communications Korea, Limited
Qwest Hong Kong Telecommunications, Limited
Qwest Singapore Pte Ltd.

Qwest Taiwan Telecommunications, Limited
Qwest Corporation

1200 Landmark Center Condominium Association, Inc.

Block 142 Parking Garage Association

State of
incorporation
or formation

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Georgia
Georgia
Alabama
Alabama
Alabama
Delaware
North Carolina
Alaska
Deleav
United Kingdom
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Colorado
Delaware
Colorado
Galor
Delaware
rgfnia
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
United Kingdom
Netherlands
France
Germany
Netherlands
Peru
Hong Kong
Australia
Japan
Korea
gdtong
Singapore
Taiwan
Colorado
Nebraska
Colorado




Subsidiary
Qwest Database Services, Inc.

SMS/800, Inc. (33.3%)

Qwest India Holdings, LLC

CenturyLink Technologies India Private Limited
The El Paso County Telephone Company
MoveARoo, LLC (33.3%)

Qwest Dex Holdings, Inc.

Qwest Government Services, Inc.

Qwest LD Corp.

Qwest Wireless, L.L.C.

SAWVIS, Inc.

AppFog, Inc.

SAVVIS Argentina S.A.

SAVVIS Asia Holdings Singapore Pte.
Digital Savvis HK JV

Digital Savvis HK Holding 1 Limited

Digital Savvis Investment Management HK Limited
Digital Savvis Management Subsidiary Limited
SAVVIS Australia Pty. Ltd.

SAVVIS Canada, Inc.

SAVVIS Communications Canada, Inc.
SAVVIS Communications Chile, S.A.
SAVVIS Communications Corporation
SAVVIS Federal Systems, Inc.

SAVVIS Communications International, Inc.
SAVVIS Communications Private Limited
SAVVIS Korea Limited

SAVVIS Communications K.K.

SAVVIS do Brasil Ltda.

SAVVIS Telecommunicac6es Ltda.
SAVVIS do Brasil Participacoes Ltda.
SAVVIS Comunicacoes Ltda.

SAVVIS Europe B.V.

SAVVIS Europe BV Sucursal en Espafna
SAVVIS Europe B.V., The Netherlands, filial Sweden
SAVVIS France S.A.S.

SAVVIS Germany GmbH

SAVVIS Hong Kong Ltd.

SAVVIS Hungary Telecommunications KFT
SAVVIS ltalia S.r.l.

SAVVIS Malaysia Sd. Ltd.

SAVVIS Mexico, S.A. de C.V.

SAVVIS New Zealand Limited

SAVVIS Philippines, Inc.

State of
incorporation
or formation

Colorado
District of Columbia
Delaware
India
Colorado
Delaware
Delaware
Colorado
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Argentina
Singapore
British VI
British VI
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Australia
Delaware
Canada
Chile
Missouri
Delaware
Dete
India
Korea
Japan
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Netherlands
Spain
Sweden
France
Germany
Hong Kong
Hungary
Italy
Malaysia
Mexico
New Zealand
Philippines




Subsidiary
SAVVIS Poland Sp Zo.o.

SAVVIS Singapore Company Pte. Ltd.
SAVVIS Switzerland A.G.

SAVVIS Taiwan Limited

SAVVIS (Thailand) Limited

SAVVIS U.K. Limited

SkyComm Technologies Corporation (50.0%)
Spectra Communications Group, LLC
TelUSA Holdings, LLC (89%)

Telephone USA of Wisconsin, LLC

Western Re, Inc.

State of
incorporation
or formation

Poland
Singapore
Switzerland
Taiwan
Thailand
United Kingdom
Delawa
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Vermont



Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
CenturyLink, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements (No. 333-187366 and N8-13®888) on Form S-3, the
Registration Statements (No. 33-60061, No. 333-260Blo. 333-37148, No. 333-60806, No. 333-15015Y.,383-124854, No. 333-150188,
and No. 333-174571) on Form S-8, and the Registr&tatements (No. 33-48956, No. 333-17015, No-1&3839, No. 333-174291, and No.
333-155521) on Form S-4 of CenturyLink, Inc. of oeports dated February 27, 2014 , with respetiidaconsolidated balance sheets of
CenturyLink, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Decemider2B13 and 2012, and the related consolidatedrstatits of operations, comprehensive
income (loss), cash flows, and stockholders' edoitgach of the years in the thrgear period ended December 31, 2013, and the pieets:
of internal control over financial reporting asi@cember 31, 2013, which reports appear in the dbee 31, 2013 annual report on Form 10-
K of CenturyLink, Inc.

/sl KPMG LLP

Shreveport, Louisiana
February 27, 2014



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, Glen F. Post, lll, Chief Executive Officer anceBident, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F CenturyLink, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatommny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢e)band internal control over financial reportifag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedortee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report ishg prepared;

b) designed such internal control over finanaégarting, or caused such internal control overrfagia reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraiigslosure controls and procedures and presentsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regis's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer antlve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdataumnmittee of the registrant's Board of Directors

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessehe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information;
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a signifiodamin the registrant
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2014 Is/ Glen F. Post, Ill
Glen F. Post, llI

Chief Executive Officer and President



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, R. Stewart Ewing, Jr., Executive Vice Presidé&tijef Financial Officer and Assistant Secretasgytify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F CenturyLink, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatommny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢e)band internal control over financial reportifag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedortee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report ishg prepared;

b) designed such internal control over finanaégarting, or caused such internal control overrfagia reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraiigslosure controls and procedures and presentsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regis's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer antlve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdataumnmittee of the registrant's Board of Directors

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessehe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information;
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a signifiodamin the registrant
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2014 /s/ R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.
R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.
Executive Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and Assistant
Secretary




Exhibit 32

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 135@&s Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Each of the undersigned, acting in his capacithasChief Executive Officer or Chief Financial @#r of CenturyLink, Inc.
("CenturyLink"), certifies that, to his knowledgle Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year endeddinber 31, 2013 of CenturyLink fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(ahefSecurities Exchange Act of 1934 and that tf@nimation contained in the Form 10-K
fairly presents, in all material respects, the fficial condition and results of operations of Ceyitink as of the dates and for the periods
covered by such report.

A signed original of this statement has been predith CenturyLink and will be retained by Centuniiand furnished to the Securities
and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

Date: February 27, 2014

/sl Glen F. Post, lll /sl R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.
Glen F. Post, llI R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.
Executive Vice President, Chief
Chief Executive Officer and Financial Officer and Assistant

President Secretary



